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We are growing faster together by

combining the strength and scale of

our large multinational business with an
expert, local knowledge of the customers

we serve and communities we support.

Our success is built on three pillars:
great brands, great people and great
execution. Done sustainably.
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Who we are

Coca-Cola Europacific
Partners is one of
the world's leading
consumer goods
companies — making,
moving and selling
some of the world’s
most loved drinks.
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Performance indicators

Financial

Reported revenue

€18.3bn
9

€14,553m
€13,529m

Comparable and FX neutral revenue

€18.7bn

€14,700m
€13,529m

€3,998m
€3,791m

Reported revenue increased by 5.5%, or B0% on a
comparakzle and FX neutral basis. Volumes wera
down D5%" and revenue per unit case increased
by 85%% Volume remained resilient despite
mMacroeconomic impacts on consumer spend

and strategic SKU rationalisation, with strong
underlying velume performance. Revenue per
case growth reflected positive headline price and
continued focus on promoticnal optimisation and
revenue growth management initiatives,

Further Sustainakbility Other
Information Information

Reported operating profit

€2.3bn

€1,84
€1,670m

Reparted operating profit increasad by 12.05
or 13.5% on a camparable and fx neutral basi:
reflecting strong revenus growth, as well as t
benefit of ongoing efficiency programimes &
cantinuous efforts on discretionary spend
optimisation.

(A1 O a comparable basks, Mo seling day shift in Fy23
(B) On a comparable and forelgn excharge (FX) neutral basis.

Comparakie valume, comparable and FX newtral revenise and revenue per |
comparable ROIC are non-IFRE performance measures, Refer to “Nate req;
non-IFRS performance measures and pages 83-90 for a reconciliation of rey
rlllion in connection with the royvalty income arlsing from the ownership of
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Performance indicators continued

Sustainability
Safety Climate
Group: total incident rate Group: percentage greenhouse gas -
Murnber per 100 full time % 4 (GHG) emissions reduction across 1 6. i
equivalent employeeas our entire value chain versus 2019
Our target Our targets
Reduce our total incident rate (TIR) to below Reduce emissions across our entire value ct
1 by 2025 by 30% by 2030 (versus 2019)
We are working towards world class safety standards Cwur short- and long-term targets to reduce emiss
and our Health, Safety and Mental Wellbeing policy is by 30% by 2030, and toreach Net Zero by 2040, we
helping to ensure that we are adopting best practices. approved by the Science Based Targets initiative (

as eing inling with climate science.

Drinks
Percentage sugar per litre reduction
Q a
Target : Target |
10% reduction by - 25% reduction by

Europe™ 2025 (versus 2019) Australia™ 2025 (versus 2015)
' 14.9% 5

5.0% 16.8% © Our target
& = Reduce sugar
Target : Target - in our drinks

New 20% reduction by 35% reduction by
Zealand® 2025 (versus 2015) Indonesia® 2025 (versus 2015)
e 02 15.9% R e 2023 36.2%

Mote: Qur 2023 data was subject to independent limited assurance. A copw of our 2023 (A} Sparkling soft drinks, nron=carbonated soft drinks and Flavoured w

assurance statement, and assurance statements for pricr vears can be found on (B} Mon-alcoholic ready to drink (MARTD) portfolio, including dairy. Dv

cocacolaep.comysustalnability/download-centre. See detail regarding restatement () In 2009, we announced enhanced packaging taraets for Europe, b

of qur baseline GHG figures Inour methodology statement on page 237 fRET from 2025 1o 2023, Since 2021, our rPET use in Europe has be




Governance and
Directors' Report

Strategic
Report

Our portfolio

Financial

Statements Information

Great brands, innovation and value for customers

We waork with our partners to offer
consumers a wide range of quality
drinks for every taste and occasion,

We continue to expand our portfolic
by growing our core brands, while
launching and scaling new products
in categories like alcohol and coffes,

Cur frontline sales force delivers
execution and activation of our
brands to support and create value
for our customers throughout the
year, particularly during key selling
moments like Halloween, Christmas
and the summer,

We are reducing the environmental
impact of our manufacturing,
distribution and packaging, as well

as delivering on our commitment to
reduce sugar across our portfolic and
offering more low or no calorie drinks.

» This is Forward

2023 volume by brand category

1 2 3 4

1 Coca-Cola 5@.0%

2 Flavours, mixers and energy 26.0%

3 RTD tea, coffee, juices and other 7.5%

4 Hydration 7.5%

Coca-Cola®

Our Coca-Cola brands come
in a range of flavours and a
great choice of packs, with
or without sugar.

More flavours and innovation

In 2023, we provided even more
flavour extensions and innovation
with a number of limited editions
including Coca-Cola® Y3000 Zero
Sugar, co-created with human and
artificial intelligence (A}, and
Coca-Cola Movement,

Supermodel Gig Hadid fronted a
new global brand campaign, A
Recipe for Magic, pairing Coca-Cola
with special meal moments

We also marked the FIFA Women's
Waorld Cup 2023 with promotions,
limited edition pack designs and in
store displays across our channels,
This activity focused on attracting
consumers and engaging

fans across our markets.

We ended the year with engaging
Christmas campaigns and
prormotions to mark the holiday
segson, which is an important
selling morment for CCER

Further Sustainability Other
Information

Key product 2023

Coca-Cola Zera St
and saw volume g

+4.0°

2023 volume perf

Coca-Cola
Trademark

—%

All references to volumes are on a comparable basis. All changes are wersus 2022 equivalent period urless stated otherwise, Non-IFRS performance measure, Refer to M
the presentation of alternative performance measures” on pages B1-82 for the definition of our non-IFRS performance measures and to pages 83-20 for a reconciliation

o comparalze resulits
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Great brands, innovation and value for customers

Flavours, mixers
and energy

Our flavours, mixers and energy

category is driving growth for
our business and providing a
range of great tasting drinks
for consumers.

2023 energy volume
Strong volume
growth supported
by continued
distribution

gains and

exciting innovation
such as Manster
Zero Sugar

New flavours, more low or no
calorie options, and engaging
activation

In partnership with Monster
Energy, we launched new products
including Monster Zero Sugar,
Monster Juiced Aussie Lemonade,
Monster Ultra Rosa and Monster
Ultra Peachy Keen.

Fanta continued to grow, What
The Fanta Zero Sugar returned
with a new colour and mystery
flavour, supported by on and

off shelf execution. The brand
celebrated Halloween, supported
By marketing, promotions and

in store and online execution.

Royal Bliss launched new
flavours including Aromatic Berry
in several markets.

Further Sustainakbility Other

Information

RTD tesz
juices al

Ready to drinl
an important
our business, \
innovation ant
introduced to

Hydrati

Our hydration
provides consi
range of beve
any occasion., |
flavoured wat
waters and iso

(a) Comipined portfolio of Jack Danlels & Coca-Cola and Jack Danlets & Coca-Cola Zero Sugar, external data source Mielsenl ) last 12 weeks ending 27 Januany 2024,
All referances to valumas are on a cormparable basis. All changes are versus 2022 equivalent period unless stated otherwisa. Mon-IFRS performance measure. Refer to N
non-IFRS performance measuras and to pages 83-%0 for a reconciliation of reported to comparable results.
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Image: the Philippines business is supported
by colleagues known as the "Coca-Cola
Tigers' pictured here
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Our operations

Remaining close

to our customers,
communities and
stakeholders gives us
unique knowledge of
our markets, enabling
us to deliver great
brands and great
execution, done
sustainably.

B Cur markets

Lacation of our shared
service cantres

(A} Revenue shown Is percentage
of total reported revenue as at
31 December 2023,

(B} Mumber of employoes as at
3 December 2023

(C) Shared service cantres,

Region

Arzores

Madeira

;  Canary

Islands

Financial
Statements

Further Sustainability Other
Information

Information

Revenue by Total
geography™ employees® facilities

Production

O ST e s
© Germany 16.5% 6,473 16
© Great Britain 17.5% 3487 5
© France and Monaco 125% 2,623 5
@i e 6.0% 2165 3
© Netheriands 4.0% 803 1
© Norway 2.0% 568 1
© Sweden 20% 725 1
© Iceland 05% 166 2
© Buigaria®© — 1196 -

© 6 oM
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Our business model
How we do what we do

From developing close relationships with TCCC and other
franchisors to sourcing raw materials, our great people

make, move and sell great tasting drinks with great execution,
all done sustainably.

IIU}] Great brands We partner

We operate under bottler
000

Great people agreements with TCCC and
Sl other franchisors, and purchase

- the concentrates, beverage
@ Great execution bases and syrups to make,
sell and distribute packaged

w Done sustainabl beverages to our customers
=> y and vending partners.

Associated risks: 2 8 9 11

Forward Forward Forward
on climate on packaging on water

We recycle

Although 99.1% of our bottles and
cans are recyclable, they don't
always end up being recycled.

Forward on Forward Forward
supply chain on drinks on society

For a better shared future
Creating value and driving
sustainable returns for our:

nsUuMers

> Read more in our 5172(1) statement
from the Directors on pages 65-67 and

Qur strategy on pages 14-47

That needs to change. We're
determined to lead the way
towards a circular economy for
our packaging where, working with
partners, we encourage packaging
collection so that materials are
recycled and reused.

Associated risks:1 2 7

Further Sustainakility Other
Report Directors’ Report Statements Information

Information

Read more about
our risks and
mitigations on
pages 48-78

We source

We use ingredier
water, sugar, coff
syrup to make ou
also rely on mate
aluminium, PET, ¢
to produce pack:
average in 2023, ¢
spend was with si
in our countries c

Associated risks: 1 3

H©®

We sell

Our nearly 11,600
commercial tearr
range of custome
shops, supermark
to restaurants, ba
stadiums, so cons
our great beverat
provide cold drint
and supply vendir

Associated risks: 2 2

ALAl
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Chairman and CEO ' (11
In conversation 2023 was anoth
momentum an
to go even furt

Left: — Damian Gamm
Sol Daurella,
Chairman y

i & How would you re
RIC_]'":T_ %
Damian overall business p
Gammell, (| Damian: | am delic

progress across th
We continued to i
people, technolog
sustainability, crea
platform for all ou
Financially we per
achieving strong t
growth, with value
impressive comps
generation. Furths
MAacroeconomic
backdrop, cur voll
resilient.

CEQ

Sol: \We continuec
on driving profitat
and delivering bes

® service, We are bu
rOWI n of our brands, the
have with TCCC ar

capabilities, all of 4
CCEPR as the numt
creator in fast mo
(FMCG) across Eu

faster together ==
B

Damian: Of course
possible without ¢
would like To take
say a very big thar
at CCEP for their t
commitment and
has contributed st
success in 2023,
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Chairman and CEO continued

In conversation

You mentioned CCEP's financial
perfarmance in 2023: what stood

out for you?

Damian: All key financial metrics have
been delivered in 2023, A strong top
ling, led by price and mix. We successfully
executed pricing across all markets

and continued to create value for our
category, Our focus on revenue and
rmargin growth managerment, along
with our price and promaotion strategy,
drove solid gains in revenue per unit
case during the year. Qur volumes also
remained resilient despite inflatichary
pressures. This was driven by great in
market execution, leveraging our broad
pack price architecture, and good
underlying demand in developed
markets, offset by the right strategic
portfolio decisions for the long term.

Strong top line performance, alcngside
our continued focus on cost contral
and productivity efficiencies, drove
strong operating profit growth and
impressive comparable free cash flow
generation. We also returned to the
top end of our target leverage range,
S0, a great year all round.

(A) APS refers to Australia, Pacific and South East Asia.

What progress have you made

on CCEP's strategy?

Damian: We have continued to

grow our business and reach more
households, from expanding our
portfolio through the launch of

Jack Daniel's & Coca-Cola in the
exciting and fast growing ARTD
category, and targeted innovation of
our existing brands such as the launch
of Monster Zero Sugar, to diversifying
geographically through the acguisition
of CCBPIL.

We continued to invest for long-term
growth as well as developing
capabilities and driving efficiencies to
support our mid-terrn objectives for
the years ahead.

We also remained focused on driving
shareholder value. This is made evident
through the combination of driving
solid top and bottorm line growth,
paying a record dividend, up almost
10% year on year, alongside delivering
impressive total shareholder return
{TSR) and entering the Nasdag-100

at the end of the year.

Sol: The acquisition of CCBPI creates
a more diverse footprint for CCERP
geographically, which has prompted
the renaming of API to APS™ It will
provide the cpportunity To leverage
best practice and talent, including
supporting Indonesia's transformation
journey. It reinforces CCEP's aim of
driving sustainable and stronger growth
through diversification and scale, and
underping the Company's mid-term
strategic objectives.

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

Image: Armandinz P

How are you prog
sustainability corr
do these support
objectives?

Sol: Sustainability
success of our bus
will continue to m
help us to make p
long-term commi
ever, we are aware
environmental chi
business, particula
our short-and lon
emissions reductic
recycled content i
improving our wat
progress continue
externally and we
retained our M5CI
inclusion on CDF's
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Chairman and CEO continued

In conversation

0

The acquisition of CCBPI creates a more diverse footprint
for CCEP geographically while providing the opportunity
to leverage best practice and talent.”

— Sol Daurella, Chairman

How have acquisitions contributed to
the Group in 20237

Damian: As mentioned earlier,
geographic diversification is aligned

to our long-term growth strategy,
creating an even stronger platform for
the future, Qur acguisitions have also
enabled us to leverage best practice
and talent in a much bigger way than
before. For example, we have taken
16+ years of experience of the ARTD
market in Australia back to Europe as
we accelerate into this exciting and fast
growing category. This has alreacdy
delivered great results

Sol: From a Board perspective, we have
been delighted with the progress made
this year. We believe that bringing
businasses together has created
growth operationally and culturally, and
will continue to do so. And, as Damian
has already referred to, there has been
a strong focus on sharing capabilities,
as our people have embraced best
practice and standardisation, which has
in turn improved the service we provide
Lo our customers.

How has your relationship with TCCC
developed this year?

Sol: It's so impaortant that we are fully
aligned on strategy, with both
companies sharing a caommon vision.
Our strong relationship is also the
foundation of our This is Forward
sustainability strateagy, which is fully
aligned with TCCC's own global World
Without Waste strategy.

Damian: We have always been closaly
aligned with TCCC strategically and
that won't change. We continue 1o align
our joint long-term growth plans and to
pursue salid ways of working together
with a joint investment mindset and
aligned portfolio management across
all territories.

A great example would be the joint
acquisition of CCBP| from TCCC, in line
with its stated intent to divest bottling
operations.

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

What is the outlor
and beyond?

Damian: We willc
the business to en
right capabilities t
our customers, co
and to continue t
execution and exc

Consumer sentim
be impacted by tt
environment, so, T
brand partners, we
on staying affordez
while creating val.
and customers.

Sol: We continue 1
Coca-Cola bottler
the CCBPI acquisi
for even maore cus
SVEen Mmore consur

What is cansistent
passion, dedicatio
people, as demon
inclusion on the B
Equality Index for
row. As we integra
wider business, we
to focus oninclusi
of our people, as v
advance on our su
commitments.
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Sip.
Support.

ISBAR Believe.

- Faster
connections

Taking up Coca-Cola's campaign theme
"Believing is Magic", CCEP is proud to have
been involved with the FIFA Women's World
Cup 2023, hydrating over 1.5 million players,
coaches, officials, media and spectators during
the tournament. Our commercial teams built
engagement with consumers by helping
customers create football themed activations
in store, as well as online promotions.

Watch: Peter West, General

> Manager, Australia, Pacific
and Indonesia, analyses the
data behind the FIFA Women's
World Cup.

cocacolaep.com/annual-report/
case-study/fasterconnections
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Our market drivers

Our business is affected by a
range of macroeconomic and
market trends - from consumer
and sustainability factors to the
impact of new technology.

Our collaborative business model and
culture means we can adapt and thrive
in a changing envirenrment, while our
strategy enables us to respond to both
current and future dynamics.

Financial

Statements Information

Consumer trends

Today's consurmers are demanding
rmore choice, and our evolving
portfolio offers drinks for a wide
variety of cccasions, Demand for
healthier alternatives continues to
grow, which is reflected in the low and
na calorie choices across our brands,

We believe strong brands supported
Dy innovation are the key to meaeting
changing consumer needs,

The ongoing drive for value and
convenience is coupled with the
move to shopping mare online and
the desire for more drink choices.
We address these consurmer trends
alongside the macroeconomic factors
we face, the impact of technology
and our focus on sustainability.

Read more in Our strategy cn page 14

Macroeconomic factors
Geopcolitical volatility and high
inflation continued to impact our
kusiness and our markets in 2023, We
executed dynamic pricing strategies
across our markets to offset the
inflationary pressures we faced, while
maintaining focus on productivity.

The economic environment continues
to impact consumer sentimeant,
making affordakility increasingly
important for some consumers.

Further Sustainakility

Other
Information

We actively manat
and promotional
affordable and rel
consumers, and ot
architecture help:
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maintaining our o
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sustainability acro
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Government com
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Toensure we mee
on us, we are furtk
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Our strategy

CCEP is a market leader in

a profitable and growing drinks
market. Our aim is to always
outperform the market, creating
value for our customers and
shareholders, while ensuring

we limit our impacts on the
world around us and support

our people and communities.

Cwr strateoy — great brands,

great people, great execution,

done sustainably - is core to delivering
on our aim. This is Forward, our
sustainability action plan, sits at

the heart of our long-term

business strategy,

This is Forward sets out the actions
we are taking on six key social and
environmental topics, where we know
we can make a significant difference
in the areas our stakeholders want us
to prioritise.

MSCI
ESG RATINGS
e 0 | e wem| a | EEY
CLIMATE
PLATINUM -

2023
ecovadis ||
niey

FTSE4Good g

Financial
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[10}] Great brands plé
Forward on

drinks

pages 16-19

Cur diverse portfolio is built on our core
brands like Coca-Cola, Fanta, Sprite and
Monster, as well as targeted expansion
into categories like coffee and alcohol.

At CCEP, we're bringing new products

to a new generation of consumers based
on clear insights, while developing the
classic brands our consumers know

and love.

We are committed to reducing the sugar
in our drinks and offering low or no sugar
options = giving consumers even more
choice.

Done sustainably p36

A

Cur ambition to create a better future,
for people and the planet, sits at the heart
of how we do business, and the decisions
we take.

Central to this are our targets to reduce GHG
emissions by 30% by 2030 (versus 2019), and
to reach Met Zero by 2040. Both targets have
been validated by the SBTi as being in line
with climate science.

Further Sustainakility

Other
Information

0Qo

() Great peog

Forward on
society
pages 20-27

We take care of ou
and committed pe
business successtul
suppliers, customer

We want CCEP to k&
place to wark, wher
has the opportunit
a difference.

We want every bot
recycled or reused
improving collecti

We have adopted

to water stewardst
efficiency within o
working to protect
of the water sourc
communities and «
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This is Forward - our sustainability action plan
Our headline commitments

Pillar Strategy Commitment Target
Forward on Great Sugar reduction Reduce sugar by 2025: by 10% in
drinks brands
Low or no calorie Ower 50% of sales to come from
Forward on Gender diversity management 45% of management positions
society
Gender diversity A third of our workforce to be w
Disabilities 10% of our workforce represente
Supporting skills development Support the skills developrmeant
Forward on 100% of main agricultural ingred

supply chain

Forward on
climate

Forward on
packaging

Forward on
water

Maote: For details on our approsch To reporting and methodology,

please see our 2023 Sustalinability reporting methodolooy

document on cocatolaepoomysustainabiling download-centre,

(A} Reduction in average sugar per litre in soft drinks portfolio
viarsus 2009, Sparkiling soft drinks, nop-carbonated soft drinks
and Flavoured water only, Does not include plain water

oF Juice,

Great ; ; Sustainable sourcing

execution =
Human rights

Done w Met Zero

100% of suppliers to be covered b

MNet Zero GHG emissions (Scope

sustainably ===

GHG emissions reduction

Reduce absolute GHG emission:

Renewable electricity

Use 100% renewable electricity &

Supplier engagement - GHG emissions

100% of carbon strategic supplie

Supplier engagement - Renewable electricity 100% of carbon strategic supplie

Design

100% of our primary packaging t

Recycled plastic

B0% recycled plastic inour PET &

Virgin plastic

Stop using oil-based virgin plasti

Collection

Collect and recycle a bottle or a

Water efficiency

10% water use ratio reduction™|

Replenish

Regenerative water use

beer or Freestyle.

< dbcal/ 100l

(B) Reduction in average sugar per itre in NARTD portfolic
wversus 2015, iIncluding dairy. Does not include coffes, aloohal,

{C) Does not include coffee, alcobod, baer or Freestyle. Low
calorie beveragas < 20keal/ 100rmi Zero calarie beverages

Replenish 100% of the water we
100% regenarative water use in |

(D) Calculated based an the
responding to o 2023w
nurmber of employees se

(E) Qur GHG amissions radu
besar validated by tha 5B
sCinoe,
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@b Great brands

We are extremely privileged
to make, move and sell the
best brands in the world.

Key focus area for CCEP

We're focused on our great brands.
In close collaboration with TCCC and
other franchisors, we are committed

to addressing evolving consumer needs
through our diversified portfolio of
products and packaging sizes.

We endorse the recommendations made
by several leading health authorities,
including the World Health Organization
(WHO), advising people to limit their
added sugar consumption to 10% of their
total calorie intake.

We continue to reduce SUQar across our
portfolio, by reformulating our recipes

and introducing new products, including
new low and no calorie cptions.

We support transparency by providing
customers with straightforward and easy
o understand product information, and
promote responsible marketing with no
advertising of our products to children
under 13, or an older age limit in specific
regions aligned with local regulations.

Producing safe and high guality products
that our consumers can trust is essential
towhat we do. We adhere to The
Coca-Cola Operating Reguirements
(KORE), which define operational
controls and prioritise the sustainable
sourcing of ingredients.

Further Sustainakility COther

Information

Our ambitions

To have brands that people love
and to be category leaders with
great tasting drinks for every
accasion,

To achieve that, we are

investing in:

« strong and aligned
partnerships with brand
partners

« producing and delivering high
guality and graat tasting drinks

« abroad price pack
architecture

« channel diversification

Information
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Great brands continued

Information

Performance and progress against our This is Forward commitn

Forward on

drinks

Volume by category

2023 % of total 2022 % of total

Sparkling 85.0% 84.5%
Coca-Cola 5% 0% 585%
Flavours, mixers and energy 260% 26.0%
ﬁtllls 15.0% 15.5%
RTD teg, coffee, juices and others 7.5% 75%
Hydration 75% g0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

> This is Forward

Reduction in average sugar per litre®™

o 4]
Target | Target |
102 reduction by | 25% reduction by |
Europe'® 2025 (versus 2019) | Australia‘® 2025 (versus 2015) -
? 2022 5.0% e 2022 16.8%
] o
Target Target
New 20% reduction by | 35% reduction by .

Zealand'@ 2025 (versus 2015) Indonesia™® 2025 (versus 2015) |

@ 15.9% @
V2022 15.9% v 2022 31.6%

> This is Forward

Products sold th

Oweer 50% of sales
calorie drinks by z

Group

2022

©
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Great brands continued
Our progress explained

Our product mix and consumer choice
We offer consumers drinks for every
taste and occasion, including drinks
with or without sugar, and drinks with
ingredients which are Fairtrade or
Rainforest Alllance certified.

Our portfolio ranges from carbonated
and still soft drinks, energy drinks, and
RTD teas, to flavoured dairy, organic
soft drinks, beverages with nutritious
benefits, coffes and alcohol,

We continue to expand our portfolio
across our core brands, while also
seaking to launch and scale naw
products in categories like alcohaol
and coffee, and engage with
consumers through collected insights,
dedicated research and consumer
labelling.

We are further enhancing our product
mix by providing a greater range of
smaller packs, which are often more
convenient for consurmers and can help
therm to control their sugar intake.

In 2023, 4.6% of our drinks were enjoyed
in packages of 250ml or less.

Reducing sugar in our drinks

We are a long-standing member

of the Union of Eurcpean Soft Drinks
Associations (UNESDA) and we are
committed to reducing average added
sugars in cur soft drinks by a further
10% by 2025 (from 2019) across Europe,
representing an overall reduction

of 33% in the past two daecades.

Financial

Statements Information

In 2023, in Spain, wa refarmulated
Sprite, giving it a more intense taste,
and introduced Sprite Zero. The brand
has taken an important step towards
greater circulanty by replacing the

iconic, hard to recycle green PET bottle,

with a transparent and 100% recyclable
PET bottle.

In our key ARl markets we also have
armbitious 2025 sugar reduction targets
as we aim to reduce the average sugar
per litre in our NARTD portfolio by 20%
in Mew Zealand, by 25% in Australia

and by 35% in Indonesia (versus 2015,

Focus on low or no calorie drinks
Over the past yvear, we continued to
encourage people to reduce their daily
sugar intake, raising awareness of our
low calorie drinks via our point of sale
communications and by promating
low and no sugar options.

In ARl we continue to introduce and
promote more low and no sugar drinks
with a focus on zero sugar sparkling
drinks and water. For example, we are
proamoting Coca-Cola Zero Sugar in
remote Indigenous communities in
Australia in collaboration with our retail
partners and their communities.

Following an assessment of the health
impacts of aspartame, global health
organisations, including the WHOC,
reaffirmed the safety of the ingredient.
In 2023, we continued to use low and no
calorie sweetaners in our products,

Find out more information on our

approach to food safety and food
additives on page 251

Further Sustainakbility

Other
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Jack & Coke

Faster on
brands

Inspired by Jack & Coke, the classic bar cocktail
known and enjoyed around the world, we were
delighted to launch Jack Daniel's & Coca-Cola
ARTD in Great Britain, the Netherlands and Spain
in 2023. It is perfectly suited to meet consumer
demand for ARTD mixers and create value for

our customers,

> Watch: Stephen Lusk, Chief
Commercial Officer, on how we
brought two iconic brands together.
cocacolaep.com/annual-report/
case-study/fasteronbrands

Image: Jack Daniel’s & Coca-Cola
ARTD cans
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We want CCEP to be a
great place to work, where
everyone is welcome, has
the opportunity to grow
and can make a difference.

Key focus area for CCEP

At CCEP, we have an engaging
workplace, enabling our great people
to do great business for our customers
today and tomorrow.

We promote wellbeing, Inclusion,
diversity, development, innovaticon

and respect, helping to ensure that
our people at every level can be heard,
grow and have a great experience.

We're committed to having a positive
impact on cur people and their
communities by supporting economic
robility, and building resilience.

Some people inour local communities
face significant socicecanomic barriers,
including ineguality, social exclusion and
unemployment, while environmental
challenges affect their daily lives. Across
CCEP, we're tackling these issues and
helping to remove people’s barriers

to the workplace.

Through our volunteering policy we

empower our employees to engage
with their communities,

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Our ambitions

People

Wellbeing and safety of our
people.

Talented, passionate and
committed people who can
cleliver success for CCEP with
winning capabilities, agility and
a perforrmance mindset

Open, inclusive and respectful
workplace.

Communities

Expand our contribution to
society through employee
volunteering and supporting
local community partnerships.

Related Sustainable
Development Goals
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Great people continued

Performance and progress against our This is Forward commitn

32,500

Number of hours volunteered
by our employees

2024 employer recognition

[

@%mm?

FINAVELAL 1L BLACES
m [0 WORK

I
merco

Forbes [EIEE
. BEST
EMPLOYERS
A FOR WOMEN
ER Asla —* Mt
BE T LEMPANGE
T Sl O
IN ASI& 2023

aan g

[ TOP 75
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£

)
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» This is Forward

Gender diversity - Management

45% of rmanagement pasitions to be
held by women by 2030

»This is Forward

Gender diversit

A third of ourwaorl
by 2030

2022

¢

0.62

o
Target
Group 45% by 2030 | Group
2023 38.4% N 2023
2022 37.2% 2022
» This is Forward » This is Ferward
Safety Disabilities
Reduce our total incident rate 0% of our workfo
(TIR) to below 1y 2025 by people with dis
=
Target |
Group <1 by 2025 :

2022 0.87 Calculated baset
= numiber of empl
to our voluntary

e survey (represer
N, 2022 1.04 workforce) and t

employees self-
a disability

(A) Excludes Fiji and Samoa, as aligned role grades are not available for 2023 reporting. We aimto |

(B) Mew commitment launched in 2023, Data not available for 2022,

(£} We alm to be accurate In our reporting and continue to enhance the way we capture and repor
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Great people continued
Highlights from 2023

Workforce Total employees Leadership Board of Directors Dire

diversity 32,315W (senior managemeant 17 con
grade including ELT)EXS 98
3,662

B \Women
W Men

Wormen 5,104 Waormen 1406 Wornen & Wor
Men 24,208 MMen 256 Men 1 Mer

The plan for the year ahead

People Communities We will be working
In 2024, we will continue to prioritise our  In 2024, we will celebrate the fifth to create roadma)
paople's physical and mental wellbeing, anniversary of our Support My Cause our comrritrment
and provide an inclusive, safe and initiative, which supports local development of &
healthy work environment, charitakzle organisations nominated barriers in the late
We will continue to invest in developing DY OUr employees.

our people, strengthening cur We will also continue to enhance our

leadership, commercial, custormer employee volunteering programme,

service and supply chain capabilities ensuring that we continue to create

in particular positive social impact that genuinely

improves the lives of millions of people

Finally, we will invest further in creating _ i
in our communities.

a consistent experience for our people
across cur digital people platforms.

(A} CCEP full time, part time and ternporary corparate employees. Full time equivalent employees as at 31 December 2023, Includes three employees whe did not decla
(B) The memibers of the ELT and their direct reports consist of 56 women and 72 men
(C) Directors of subsidiany companies comgrising 27 women and 55 men are alsoe included inthe workforce diversity statistic under leadership
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Our progress explained

Forward on

society

Our people

Safety

At CCEP the safety and wellbeing of
our employees always come first. Qur
employees receive health and safety
training, aligned with the Coca-Cola
system health and safety procedures
and local regulations.

We expeact and encourage our people
to follow our policies and procedureas
and take action if they become aware
of any situation or behaviour affecting
the physical or mental wellbeing of
others Managers are responsible for

ensuring that our workplaces, processeas

and equipment are kept safe for our
people.

Any potential hazard or work incident is
investigated to identify and pricritise
the short-, mid- and long-term action
plans. In case of injuries or health issues,
we make reascnable adjustments to
our employees duties and working
environment to support their recovery
and continued employment.

We measure our safety performance
using total incident rate (TIR) and lost
time incident rate (LTIR)}. This covers
everyone working for us, including
contractors and termporary workers.
We aim to reduce our TIR to below 1
by 2025,

A contracter management system isin
place across all our territories, requiring

Financial
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contractors to pass a risk-basad
assessment before they are permitted
towork at our sites, Tragically,in 2023,
there was one contractor fatality in
Indonesia. The incident was
investigated with the local authorities
and we continue to improve our safety
procedures to pravent a reoccurrence.

Wellbeing

By the end of 2023, we had trained
rnore than 1250 Wellbeing First Aiders
across CCEP. This has created an
internal netwark for mental health
support, with people trained to spot
the signs of mental health conditions,
listen free of judagement and direct
colleagues to professional services
when they need support,

Approximately 1400 people benefited
fram our Employee Assistance
Programme, an independent service
in our workplace offering 24/7 free

professional support for our peaple and

their family. We also launched our new
Wellbeing Hub in Europe, an online
platform which offers our employees
information and support to take care
of their wellbeing. We aim to expand
to APl soon.

Through our Wellbeing Leadership
training programme launched in 2023,
we helped around 1,475 leaders across
CCEP to understand their own
wellbeing needs, and to develop the
skills and confidence needed to keep
their team safe and well.

For World Health Day 2023, we ran
an internal campaign to support

a proactive approach to health, with
almost 5,000 people taking part.

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

Inclusion, diversit
We believe that bu
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serve will support ©
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disability, gender;
generations. Inclu
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Great people continued
Our progress explained

Supporting and engaging our people
Good communication is essential

to building a motivated, engaged
workforce. We are committed to
communicating clearly and transparently
with cur people and their representatives
in local languages through digital
platforms, printed materials and

direct dialogue,

We engage in forums to ensure

we hear the voice of our emplaoyees,
We meet regularly with the European
Works Council, national and local
works councils, and trade unions

that represent our people across

our territories, Across our territories,
55 unions represent our employees,

We continue to innovate and extend
our digital solutions for our pecple to
make it easier for them to access what
they need, such as policies, training
and key data on pay and parformance,
Our policies are easy to understand,
and are reviewed annually to align
with legal requirements,

We want our people to enjoy a great
experience at CCEP and feel engaged
with our business aims and strategy,

In June 2023, we conducted our annual
employee engagement survey

The results showed sustained strong
engagement levels, with more than
24400 colleagues (76%) participating,
which is up by 557 respondents
compared to last year. Qur strong
engagement score has stayed

stakle at 77,

> Find out more about our Board
engagement with our people on nage &1

Financial
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Employee training, development

and leadership

We believe that when our people learn
and grow, our business grows Too, sowe
continue to invest in learning and
development across CCEP through our
strategy, The Way We Grow. This
includes developing capabilities in
le2adership, commercial custormer
service and supply chain through aur
academies. The Way We Lead, The Way
We Sell and The Way We Serve.

We progressed The Way We Lead
academy with arcund 500 leaders
gaining 340 feedback, helping tham to
grow self-awareness of their leadership
style and enabling them to contribute
o a feedback culture. More than 2,500
leaders participated in a series of virtual
and in-person development modules
including coaching and performance.

We are equipping our frontline
rmanagers through our new global
Great People Manager Programme,
Approximately 500 leaders participated
in 2023. The rollout will continue in 2024,

We offer further training opportunities
through our digital learning platforms
Juice and Academy, supporting
ermployvee developrment of core
capabilities in leadership, commercial,
customer service and supply chain,

Cur people can create their own talent
profile and understand theair objectives,
feedback and development plan using
our digital MyPerformance@CCEP
platform.

Further Sustainakbility
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Europe and saon
in APl provides us
recammendation
paths and netwaorl
4% of employee:
their profile. We h
emplovee engage
by five paints cor
results, with new jc
employees feeling
about our progres
value, and enthusi
career opportunit

We value and inve
talent and suppor
young people gail
and confidence. T
internships, appre
graduate progran
continuad to part
World, the global t
leaders. 21 CCEP ¢
the forum in Belfz
valuable experian

Employee benefi
We pay fairly and |
appropriate mark:
our people with
to their country ar
organisation, inclu
cover sickness, po
bereavement or a
the family. We alsc
life insurance and
as many other fle:

> Find out more a
on pages 127-14.




Governance and
Directors' Report

Strategic
Report

Great people continued
Our progress explained

Respect for human rights

We consider human and workplace
rights to be inviolable and fundamental
to our sustainability as a business. We
support the 10 principles of the

UM Global Compact.

Qur principles regarding human rights
are set outin our Hurnan Rights policy,
which is aligned with accepted
international standards and

CCEP's Code of Conduct (CoC.

Further information on our principles
regarding human rights is provided

in our Supplier Guiding Principles
(SGPs) and Principles for Sustainable
Agriculture (PSA). These set out

the reguirements of our suppliers
related to business ethics, hurman

and workplace rights, the envircnment,
and providing benefits to communities.

Modern slavery

We have a zero tolerance approach

to modern slavery of any kind, including
forced labour, and any form of human
trafficking within our operations, and
by any company that directly supplies
or provides services to our business.

Our Modern Slavery Statement
complies with the UK Modern Slavery
Act 2015 and the Australian Modern
Slavery Act 2018, It sets out the steps
taken by CCEP to prevent, identify and
address modern slavery risks across
our business and supply chain.

See our modern slavery statements at
cocacolagpoorm/about-us/governance

Financial
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Human rights risk assessment

We recognise that all our employees
and supply partners have a role in
identifying and mitigating human
rights risks across our business.
Employees and managers are
empowerad to recognise and address
human rights risks and issues as they
conduct their work, and this extends
to the arrangements we agree with
workers and trade unions.

The effective tracking and
rmanagement of these risks also ensures
compliance with relevant legislation.

We have mapped human rights-related
laws, regulatory requirements and risks
identified in human rights reports in
each of our countries. Based on this, in
2024 we will refresh cur human rights
assessment strategy primarily focused
on the countries where the highest
human rights risks have been identified.

In 2023, we conducted human rights risk
assessments in Germany and Norway,
These assessments identified current
and evolving human rights risks to
ensure we develop proactive measures
to manage risks before they occur,
Hurman rights risk has been rated as

low within our own operations in both
Germany and Normway, however, risk
inour supplier base remains,

Further Sustainakbility
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Forward on

society

Our communities

Boosting skills development

and social inclusion

We're determined to drive the
economic empowerment of under-
represented people, with a particular
focus an people with disabilities, those
from mincrity ethnic groups or lower
sociceconomic backgrounds, and
waomen, by providing employability skills
and removing barriers to the workplace

We support a wide variety of local
community partnerships as part of
our new Skills for Impact initiative
launched in 2023.

FOR IMPACT

& Coca-Cola Europacific
Parners initiative

Forexample, in 2023, we organised
the third BORA Jovens programme
in partrarship with Portuguese NGO
Ajuda em Acdo to support young
people at risk of social exclusion,
in entering the labour market. Since
the start of the programme in 2021,
approximately 400 yvoung people have
participated, resulting in around 160 of
them entering the labour market and
almost 50 going back to school,

Financial
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I Indonesia, in partnership with
associations, universities, governmeants,
and local NGOs, we provide mentorship
programmes to support micro, small
and medium enterprises within fashian,
food and beverages, waste
management and other sectors.

In 2023, we delivered training and
mentorships to approximately

1,000 people.

Protecting the environment

and community wellbeing

We support programmes, prgjects

and initiatives that help crotect local
environments, address climate
adaptation and improve community
wellbeing, including major disaster relief
efforts, water replenishment projects
and local litter clean up activities.

In 2023, supporting the Sea Life Trust
on World Oceans Day, over 100 CCEP
amplovees parlicipated in beach
and river clean ups across England
and Scotland,

We also help address the needs of
people in the community by donating
surplus products and working with
food banks. For example, in 2023,

in Morway, we strengthened our
partnership with Too Good to Go,

a platform that aims to combat food
waste, Through improved forecasting
and employee volunteering we have
managed to avoid the disposal of
around 600 tonnes of finished goods,

Further Sustainakbility
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Apprenticeships

Faster career
progress

We help people accelerate their careers with us by
offering a wide range of different apprenticeship
schemes, from Sales and Merchandising to Food
Technology and Engineering. One of many who
have joined us, Jennifer started as an Engineering
Apprentice at our site in East Kilbride, Great Britain.

Having now completed her qualification, she is
responsible for helping to ensure our lines run
as efficiently as possible.

Watch: Sharon Blyfield, Head of Early
Careers at CCEP, talks about how we
bring talent into the business

cocacolaep.com/annual-report/
study/fastercareerprogress

Further Sustainakbility Other
Information Information
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¥ Great execution

We want to win with our
customers and suppliers,
and maintain high customer
service levels.

Key focus area for CCEP

We're working to deliver great
execution for customers. We're driving
growth, creating value and delivering
results through close support and
collaboration, while identifying new
channels and implementing
transformative new ways to do business.

To ensure we maintain high quality
products and services for our customers
we must promote reliakility, consistency
and sustainability throughout our
supply chain.

We recognise the importance of having
ethical and sustainable procurement
practices that support our business

and sustainakility goals.

As a business, we rely upon a sustainable
supply of ingredients like sugar, coffee,
tea and juicas as well as the raw materials
we use for our packaging like glass,
aluminium, plastic, pulp and paper.

That's why we continue to invest in our
capabilities and the long-standing and
supportive relationships we have with
Our supply chain to provide even better
service for our customers,

Our ambitions OurT
comn
Our customers 1002
ingres

Strong and supportive customer SOUrC
service, known for our agility and

flexibility. 100% «
: - Ccovern
Great digital tools enabled by Princi|
high quality data and analytics, sustall

known to be easy to do business huma
with and for our world class
execution

Our suppliers

Aowell invested supply chain and
optimised portfolio.

Related Sustainable Development Goals

DECINT NORX kN0
ECDMOSIT GRTATH
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Great execution continued
Performance and progress against our This is Forward commitn

value creator for our customers
as measured by NielsenlQ

~90%

great customer service level

~1.5m

unrivalled customer coverage

~16,000

We source products from over
16,000 suppliers

~E7b

In 2023, we spent ~£€7 billion
with our suppliers. 84% was
spent with suppliers based in
our countries of operation

Further Sustainakility
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> This is Forward

Spend covered by guiding
principles

100% of suppliers to be covered
by our 5GPs

Target
100%

Group

2022

2022

@

2022

4

> This is Forward

Sustainable sou

100% of sugar sc
suppliers in com
Frinciples for Su
(PSA)

Group

2022

2022

0

2022

¢

The plan for the year ahead

Our customers

We'll continue to regularly engage
with our customers on strategy,
planning and understanding key
pricrities around new packaging
solutions and product offers to
meet changing consumer trends,

Our suppliers

We'll continue to engage with all of

our suppliers to reduce our Scope 3 GHG
Srmissions, our key priority for 2024, We
will implaerment a targeted programime
for our most critical carbon strateqic
suppliers from which we source PET,

aluminiurm and sur
will help them buil
reduction roadm:
ourown planstor
across our value cl
(versus 2019) and
by 2040,

Upcoming legislat
deforestation anc
across many of ou
compliance oy bo
CCEP. We are pari
suppliers to ensun
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Great execution continued

Our customers

Customers at the heart of our business
As the world's largest Coca-Cola bottier
by revenue, we have built long-standing
and supportive relationships with our
clUstomers.

We are committed to delivering great
execution and creating value for them.
We do this not just by focusing on
growing our own partfalio of products,
but by considering how we can grow
the soft drinks category as a whole,

With the market continuously changing,
itis more important than ever to have
the right commercial strategies in place
tobe able to respond to this evolving
landscape.

Our strong commercial team works
with a wide range cf customers, ranging
from small local shops, supermarkets
and wholesalers to restaurants, bars

and sports stadiums, 5¢ consumers can
enjoy our great tasting products,

We aim to be as close as possible to
our custamers, maintaining continuous
relationships at every level and every
function in order to understand their
business. This enables us to identify
opportunities and ensure these are
aligned with the custorner's ways of
warking.

FE L TE

. g
- -
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Image: Colleague and customer in away from home (AFH) channel

Our frontline field sales teams visit our
customers on a daily basis providing
in-store execution suppaort, while our
key accounts teams engage with
customers on a national and
international level on strategic product
planning, addressing challenges and
opportunities, supported by senior
members of the leadership team.

Much of our ability to create value for
our customers depends on the guality
of the service we provide and how we
deliver in the market,

Cwr focus is on ensuring cur frontline
sales teams are visiting and engaging
with customers regularly, which we
measure by tracking the number of

customer visiks we
In Europe, we hawe
reprasentatives in
conduct up to 13y
represents more t
accounts visits ane
interactions with ¢
monthly basis. In a
sales teams, we als
AFH customers vic
digital teams, as p
contact (face, voic
strategy.
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Great execution continued

Our customers continued

Driving stronger capabilities
across our commercial teams

To accelerate our journey to deliver
a great execution for our customers,
we are enhancing the capabilities of
our people.

We support the skills development of
our employees across all functions and
foster a culture of data-driven decision
making, by driving stronger capabilities
across our sales force and our key
account management team.

Through cur online learning platform
Academy, we offer awide range of
trainings for our people, We continue to
update the development programmes
and to introduce new relevant courses
designad to grow capabilities in specific

areas such as sustainability, finance skills,

negotiation and digital skills. In 2023,
we l[aunched a new academy on the
coffee category

> Find out more about training
programmas for our people on page 24

Image: Colleague and customer in retail in Norway

Further Sustainakility

Other
Information

Partnering with ¢
to drive value

At CCEP we are ¢
value for our custe
exactly what cons
us identify opport
growth, which is ke
commercial strate
In 2023, highlightir
of our customer ri
created more vall
MNARTD business.

We work with Niel

retail and consu
providers — tomei
value we create fc
and haow our indivi
this value creatior

In 2023, across all ¢
Eurcpe and AP w
inwvalue across aur
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Great execution continued

Our progress explained

Forward on

supply chain

Collaborating with our suppliers

We work with our suppliers to procure
Righ guality raw materials and services,
At the heart of this is our integrated
approach to sustainability — making
improvements and launching initiatives
that support responsible sourcing,
climate resilience, water stewardship
and biocdiversity.

We engage with suppliers to identify
common challenges and to
decarbonise our business. The table
on the right illustrates some of the
reqguirements that we have put into
place for our strategic and carbon
strategic suppliers.

COur RSP is included in new contracts
and sets out the mandatory guidelines
that our direct and indirect suppliers
miust comply with in order to do
business with CCEP. This includes our
SGPs, which set out the minimum
reguirements we expect of all cur
suppliers in areas such as workplace
policies and practices, health and safety.
environmental protection, business
integrity and human rights. It also
includes our PS4 which apply to
agricultural ingredients and raw
matearial suppliers and cover human
and workplace rights, environmeantal
pratection and sustainable farm
Mmanagement

Supplier

identification Definition

Strategic suppliers

Further Sustainakility
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by our procureament teams 55

« Represent about 80% of our 500

addressable spend abi

+ Engagement on sustainatility = Sus

extends to approximately 450 ing

suppliers anc

Carbon strategic + Subset of strategic suppliers Inach
suppliers » Approximately 200 suppliers recui
» Represent about 80% of our suppl

Scope 3 GHG emissions . sat

inE

= iral

ele

by

[A) Provides a leading solution for monitonng sustainability in global supply chains. Suppliers that h
If suppliers do not improve thelr performance within a set timeframe, they may not be used in

Priority ingredients

As climate change leads to more
extreme weather and increased
water stress, more sustainable
agricultural practices will be vital to
building resilience across our supply
chain and for the communities

that produce these ingredients.

Together with TCCC, we have
identified 13 priority agricultural
ingredients we rely on to make
and package our beverages.

Managing the pur
ingredients toget)
and other Coca-C
us manage the ch
in our supply chair
Coca-Cola systerr

> For more detail:
ingredients see
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Great execution continued

Our progress explained

We proactively manage sustainability
risks in our supply chain using data
gathered through Ecovadis for
strategic suppliers and EcoVadis 1O for
non-strategic suppliers. In addition, we
continue to use Resilinc seftware,

an Al tool which helps us to proactively
identify potential risks inour supply
chain. Having used the software to map
our tier 1 suppliers in 2022, we started a
project to map our tier 2 suppliers using
Resilinc in 2023

In 2023, we also started using FRDM, a
supply chain risk management tool, to
monitor and mitigate human rights and
climate-related risks in our supply chain,

Human rights in our supply chain
Protecting hurman rights is
fundamental to how we run our
business. We are committed to
ensuring evervones who works at CCEF
and inour supply chain is treated with
dignity and respect.

In 2023, we continued to provide
training on hurman rights to our
employees, with specific training

to procurement managers focused
on the Garman Supply Chain Act.

We also conducted a human rights risk
assessment in Germany and Nonway

in 2023, and published our first annual
report for Norway under the Norwegian
Transparency Act In 2024, we will
expand our reporting with our first
annual report for Germany under

the Act on Corporate Due Diligence
Obligations in Supply Chains,

In 2023, we documentad our procasses
and responsibilities related to human
rights risk assessments, due diligence
and remediation or mitigation, This sets
the basis for a robust governance
framework across CCEP for human
rights related actions.

Supporting our suppliers

in reducing GHG emissions

Qur suppliers are responsible for over
80% of the GHG emissions in our value
chain. We can only meet cur cwn GHG
emission reduction targets by working
in partnership with them. That is why we
have asked approximately 200 carbon
strategic suppliers to set their own
science based targets,

In 2023, 31% of our carbon strateqic
suppliers (Europe 50%, APl 16%), had
5BTivalidated targets.

We also track the number of suppliers
who have committed to set SBTi
targets, including those who may

have already submitted targets to

the SBTI In 2023, a further 48% of our
carbon strategic suppliers (Europe 46%,
ARl 48%) committed to set science
based targets'™,

Further Sustainakbility
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Our progress explained

Supplier standards audits

We expect our suppliers to develop
and implemeant appropriate internal
business processes to ensure that
they fully comply with our SGPs.

As part of the Coca-Cola system, we
rely on independant third party audits
commissionad by TCCC to maonitor
supplier compliance with our SGPs

for ingredients and primary packaging
directly purchased by CCEP and faor
juices and concentrates purchased

O il

from TCCC.

To date, these audits have coverad
more than 4% of our ingredients and
prirmary packaging suppliers. If a
supplier fails in any aspect of the SGPs,
they are expected to implement
corrective actions. TCCC conducts
unannounced audits at its discretion
and we reserve the right to terminate
an agreament with any supplier that
cannot demonstrate that it is
upholding the SGPs' requirements,

P5A compliance is verified through
adherence to a limited set of third

party sustainable agriculture standards

T o= o

approved by TCCC, CCEP directly
purchases sugar beet and sugar cane,

pulp and paper, and tracks compliance

with the PSA for these commodities
through TCCC,

Financial Further Sustainability Other
Statements Information Information
Our priority ingredients™
Raw Procurement Quantity
material method and brands

Beet and
cane sugar

Directly by CCEP « Approximately 71
tonnes of beet sL
- Approximately 3(
tonnes of cane st

A Diractly by CCER » Europe apporoxin

tonnes of board 1
secondary and te
packaging, and n
mnaterials

« APl approximate
tonnes of board 1
secondary and te
packaging"®

Pulp and paper®

TECE « Orange and lerme
from concentraty
from concentrat:
puree, are key ing
inanumber of ol
products (e.g. Mil

Maid)
Coffee and tea Directly by CCERP = Grinders brand
TEEE « Costa, Chagwa ar

Tea brands

(A) Our 13 pricrity agriculture based ingredients and bio-based packaging materials include sugar
pulp and paper.

(B) We aim to expand reporting on this category to inchude additional areas such as printed and oo

() Coca-Cola trademark beverages with juice from concentrate, not from concentrate and puree
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¥ Done sustainably Forward on

We take our responsibility
to reduce our environmental This is Forward commitments

impact seriously. @ Climate ﬁ
; 2 L
Reduce our absolute GHG 100% ¢
emissions (Scope 1,2 and 3) Lo e |
Key focus areas for CCEP oy 30% by 2030 by 30% by 2030
(Wersus 2019)® 50% re
We are committed to decarbonising bottle

our entire business. MNet Zero GHG emissions (Scope in AR

()
The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 1,2and 3) by 2040°

Stop L
PCC) has highlighted the nee 4 & '
Change LIFCE has Mohighted the need Use 100% renewable electricity plastic
for urgent climate action™™, We take our R et e
jois. nec . M S across all markets by 2030, -
responsibility seriously, and have set GHG Collec
emissions reduction targets aligned to

100% of carbon strategic can fo
suppliers™ to set science based -
targets in Europe by 2023 and

in APl by 2025, 0 :

100% of carbon strategic

climate science,

We are taking urgent action to reduce
the impact of our packaging.

Waste and pollution, particularly from

prlaslllclci,:)ackagc:jng. dm S'QQ'F!C:T.JE glo}_t:;:lal suppliers'™ to use 100% 10% @
challer .geﬁ,gm 1 we are reinvent mglr e renewable electricity in Europe manu
WAt A o = : o 4 =
way we do u5|neJ5.tc progressive yl by 2025 and in API by 2030. by 20:
move away from a linear model and the

waste it creates, towards a full circular Reple
madal Related Sustainable WE LISE

Development Goals

We have adopted a value chain Y 100% r

approach to water stewardship. Climate leader

Wateris vital to our business. It is the main

ingredient in our products, essential to our

rmanufacturing processes and crucial for the ' .

agricultural ingredients we use. We prioritise Packaging

water efficiency in our own operations,

while safeguarding the sustainability () v

of the water sources our business, (B) Our G

communities and suppliers rely upon. Water o ::rhﬂ:
(D) Water
{E} NARTLC

We han
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact
Performance and progress against our This is Forward commitn

Forward on
climate

14

PAS 2060 carbon neutral
certified production facilities
across our territories

Further Sustainakility
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» This is Forward

Reduce emissions

Reduce absolute GHG emissions
(Scope 1,2 and 3) by 30% by 2030,
versus 2019%

Target o
30% reduction by

Group 2030 (versus 20192

2022 11.6%

? 2022
i 2022

12.6%

10.0%

> This is Forward

Renewable electricity consumption

Use 100% renewable electricity
across all markets® by 2030

o
Target

Group 1003 by 2030

2022 73.1%

? 2022
? 2022 23.5%

> This is Forward

Supplier engage

1008 of carbon st
to set science bas
(Europe)and by

Group

2022 17%

i 2022 2
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact continued

Our progress explained

Developing a climate transition plan
across our value chain

In 2023 we focused on building
roadmaps to deliver against our
short- and long-term GHG emissions
reduction targets. This work included
modelling reductions across the
business, including plans from each
market we operata in. It is the starting
point for the development of our
long-term climate transition plan.

Owur carbon reduction roadmagp has
been aligned with our commercial
long-term business planning, and we
have worked to align decision making
within our Capex planning processes,

To support our business planning,

we have also embedded a carbon
projection into our 2023-2025
long-term planning and 2023 business
plan. This has helpad us improve the
connection Detwaen our commercial
and carbon forecasts

~€450m

Between 2023 and 2025, we
expect to invest approximately
€450m in energy, logistics and
carbon reduction technologies
in our operations to support
our decarbonisation plan.

> Read more about our climate transition
plan in our TCFD disclosure on pages 51-53

Reducing supplier GHG emissions
Maore than 80% of the GHG emissions
in our value chain come from our
supply chain (Scope 3).

To reduce these emissions we have
asked around 200 carbon strategic
suppliers to set their own science based
targets and to transition to 100%
renewable electricity by 2025 in Europe
and by 2030 in AP,

In 2023, around 80% of our Scope 3
GHG emissions were linked to suppliers
with 5BTivalidated targets. In 2023, 31%
of our suppliers have SBTi validated
targets A further 48% have committed
o set science based targets.

We are also working together with
TCCC to collect and validate supplier
specific emission factors directly from
our suppliers, initially focusing an
packaging and ingredients suppliers,
which are the largest contributors to
GHG emissions. This work will be critical
in helping us to reflect the impact of
our suppliers' actions more accurately.

> Read more about our engagement on
climate with suppliers on page 22

Reducing the carl
of our packaging
One of the bigges
reduction comes |
amount of recycle
packaging, and irr
collection rates ac

We are committe
of packaging whe
ensuring that the
packaging we do |
reused or recyclec
end up as waste o

Read more abol

activities on pac
Reducing the carl
of our ingredient
QOur ingredients ac
approximately 25¢

footprint, mostly
processing and tr:

We are working to
accurate carbon o
and aiming for 100
our RSP, which inc
FSA and our expe
carbon managam

In 2024, we will wo
set targets on our
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> Read more abol
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact continued

Our progress explained

Reducing the carbon footprint of our
operations and commercial sites

Our operations and commercial sites
account for around 11% of our total
cartzon footprint.

We are working to reduce GHG emissions
from our production facilities by shifting
to on- and off-site renewable electricity,
improving enargy efficiency, transitioning
from fossil fuel powered equiprment to
electric machinery (such as boilers and
rmanual handling equipment) and
reducing cur fugitive CO, losses.

Im 2023, we invasted appraximatealy

£28 million in energy, logistics and
carbon reduction technologies within
our operations. We estimate that this
could save approximately ¢ 000MWhH
and 21,000 tonneas of CO.e per year,
potentially helping us reduce our
annual electricity and natural gas costs
by around €2 million par year. In Spain,
we replaced an old PET bottle blower
with a more energy efficient one at our
production facility in Fuenmayor. In the
Metherlands, we installed two new
electric bailers, two heat pumps and a
Alkm stainless steel pipe network to help
alectrify our Dongan production facility.

In 2023, 14 of our production facilities
were certified under the PAS 20460
standard as carbon neutral. Site
certification follows significant efforts
to reduce emissions, including
converting forklift trucks from gas

to lithium ion powered batteries, and
switching lighting to lower power LEDs,

Remaining site emissions ware offset
using Verified Carbon Standard
(WCS)-certified carbon credits.

Renewable electricity

Using renewable electricity is critical
to our efforts to decarbonise the
business.

As a member of the Climate Group's
RE100 initiative, we are committed to
using 100% renewable electricity across
all of our markets by 2030. Investing in
renewable electricity in APl could be

a major carbon reduction driver

for CCEP

In 2023, 98.9% of the electricity
purchased and 97.8% of the electricity
we consumed in Europes came from
renewable scurces™. This difference is
due to asmall amount of non-renewable
electricity consumed in leased facilities
where we do not directly control the
electricity contracts

In AP 33.7% of the electricity purchased
and 35.8% of the electricity consumed
was from renewable sources.

We continue to invest in renewable and
low-carbon energy projects, including
on-site and power-purchase
agreements for solar, wind, combined
heat and power (CHP), district heating
and hydropower. For example, in 2023,
we signed a three vear Renewable
Energy Certificate (REC) sale and
purchase agreemeant with FT FLM in
Indonesia, In 2023, 13 of our facilities
sourced electricity from or-site solar,
wind or hydro power, generating
around 16,000 MWh of electricity.

79.1%

of the electrici
2023 was renev

Carbon offsetting
While our focus is
busingss in ling wit
pathway, we supp
of carbon offsetti
value chainin the

We follow SBTi Ne
this area, purchasi
of high quality car
GHG emissions wh
reduce further — f
remaining emissic
neutral productio

In 2023, we retired
carbon credits fro
Katingan Mentaye
peatland in Centri
Indonesia. These ¢
offset remaining ¢
carbon neutral pre
plan to continue t
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(A} See pages 238-239 form
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact continued

Our progress explained

Reducing emissions from our

own car fleet, vans and trucks

GHG emissions from our car fleet and
vans account for approximately 22%
of our Scope 1 emissions.

As members of the Climate Group's
EVI00 initiative, we are transitioning
to electric vehicles (EVs) or ultra-low
emission cars and vans for our own car
fleet across our territories by 2030

We offer workplace charging and make
it convenient for employees to charge
Vs at home and on the go.

In Europe, we increased our use of
hybrid and electric cars and vans from
20% in 2022 to nearly 30% in 2023,

Reducing third party logistics emissions
Owur third party distribution and
transportation emissions account

for approxirnately 7% of our Scope 3
GHG emissions.

We are reducing emissions by improving
our warehouse capacity, working with
suppliers to optimise the transportation
of our products, and increasing our use

of alternative fuels, Warehouse capacity
expansions at our production facilities
have reduced road miles and enabled
direct to customer deliveries instead

of using external warehouses.

Alternative fuals currently make up
around 15% of the tatal kilormetres
driven by our third party logistics
hauliers in Europe. This includes the
use of HWOT, CNG, bioCNG and LNG,
In Belgium, Luxembourg, Spain and
Sweden we are delivering our

beverages to local customers
using electric trucks

By working with cur suppliers, we have
also cut the distance our ingredients
and raw rmaterials travel to reach our
production facilities. Many of our own
sites are located next to our can
suppliers, eliminating the need to
transport empty cans. Some of aur
production facilities, such as Grigny

in France and Halle in Gerrmany,
manufacture their own PET bottle
pre-forms. We also run front- and
back-hauling programmes with
customers and suppliers across
Europe, which ensures that trucks
never drive empty.

In 2023, we built a2 new €8 million
warehouse at our production facility in
Azeitdo Portugal, and opened an external
warehouse in the Jordbro industrial
area of Sweden. Increasing our storage
capacity and improving our warehousing
enables us to minimise our truck
rmovements, lower costs and reduce
our COs footpring, while making our
operations more flexible and efficient.

In 2023, in Spain, we joined Lean &
Green, an initiative of the Association
of Companies of Manufacturers

and Distributors (AECOC), to reduce
emissions asscciated with the transport
and logistics sector. We are committed
to implementing a comprehensive
action plan to identify opportunities
for improvement and implementing
sustainable solutions working closely
with our suppliers and logistics partners,

Reducing our em|
drink equipment
GHG emissions fre
for17% of our tote

In 2023, we reduce
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact continued
Performance and progress against our This is Forward commitn

Forward on

packaging

» This is Forward

Recyclability

100% of prirmary Wﬁ\kaging —
recyclable by I PEA

(=]
Target |
100% by 2025 !

Group

2022

4

» This is Forward

Recycled plastic (rPET)

50% recycled plasticin our PET Bottles
in Europe by 2023 - other APl markets
by 2025+

a

Target :

Group 100%

|
2022 48.5%

Target °

100% by 2023

9 59.2% 5

N, 2022 56.3% _

Target n

100% by 2025 |

2022 26.9%

4

»This is Forward

Collection

Collect and recye
eachoneweasall b

Group

M3

2022

2022
f_i_':'

2023

2022

The plan for the year ahead

In 2024 we will continue to take action
to drive down the footprint of our
packaging as part of our journey to
aliminate waste and reduce GHG
2MmIssions,

We'll do this through the key pillars of
our packaging strategy removing
unnecessary packaging, innovating in
refillable and dispensad solutions,
waoarking towards 100% collection so that
packaging materials can be recycled or
reused, and increasing the amount of
recycled material we use in our
packaging.

We'll continue to v
Sustainable Packa
which streamlines
exploratory sustai
across our territor
innovation and sy
towards our goals
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact continued

Our progress explained

Packaging life cycle

Through the use of life cycle analysis,
we can assess the carbon footprint of
our packaging, allowing us to make
informed decisions and helping us
prioritise our efforts to reduce the
GHG emissions of our packaging.

Many factors can help to reduce the
carbon footprint of our packaging,
including higher collection rates,
using more recycled content in our
packaging, or changing from one
packaging type to another.

> Read more about our climate activities
on pages 37-40

Future pack mix

In 2023, we held workshops across our
territories to assess the product carbon
footprint of specific pack types within
our current and future portfolio. This
work informs a future pack mix strategy
that is aligned with both our sustainalbility
objectives to reduce GHG emissions
and our long-term business strategy,

We recognise the important role that
public policy has to play in developing
a circular economy and we take into
account upcoming legislation, which in
selected markets or sub-channels will
reguire us to reduce the use of single
use plastic or introduce reusable
packaging.

Refillable and reusable

Redeasigning how to bring products
o people in new ways will help us to
become more resource efficient and
is part of the solution to eliminating
plastic pollution and reducing

GHG emissions.

By 2030, TCCC aims to have at least
25% of its global volume sold in
refillable glass or plastic bottles, or in
reusable containers through Coca-Cola
Freestyle or traditional fountain
dispensers.

We are working to increase the share of
reusable packaging in our portfolio and
are conducting a deeper analysis across
our business to ensure we can monitor
and report our progress. For examiple,
in France, we have developed a
partnership with Carrefour which
deployved a deposit systemn for refillable
glass bottles in 150 of its Carrefour city
stores across Paris,

47.6%

of the PET bottles we put
on the market are 100% rPET

Dispensing delive
Dispansing systen
enjoy our drinks
less packaging ary
recyclable cups or
toinnovate our di
offering and work
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dispensing equipr
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact continued

Our progress explained

100% recyclable

Recyclability is the first principle of

the circular econamy. For packaging

to retain its value and for the material
to ke recycled, it must first be collected
and be compatible with recycling
infrastructure in practice and at scale.

We want to ensure our packaging is
not just technically recyclable, but easy
and feasible for consumers to recycle,
For example, in Australia, after nearly
60 years, we replaced Sprite's iconic
green PET bottles with clear plastic,
rmaking it easier to recycle them into
rnew bottles locally.

Althoughwe are focusing on making
our prirmary packaging recyclable,
we ultimately want to ensure all

the materials we use are recyclable,
preferably in a closad loop system.
To achieve this, we are taking steps
to rmake our secondary packaging,
such as labels and the shrink wrap we
use for multi packs, recyclable as well,

Recycled and renewable materials
Using recycled material in our bottles
and cans keeps valuable resources in
the circular economy and helps us
move away from the use of new materials
including virgin fossil based plastic,

We aim to achieve this by using
recycled aluminium in our cans and
recycled PET (rPET), PET from
renewable sources or PET obtained
through enhanced recycling. Thisis
a core part of our strategy to
dernonstrate that PET beverage
bottles can be fully circular.

Infinite recycling with
CuRe Technology

In support of our ambition to eliminate
oil-based virgin plastic from our
bottles, through CCEP Ventures,
we are investing in CuRe Technology.

The technology uses polyaster
rejuvenation to target plastics that
cannot be recycled by mechanical
recycling methods and prevents
them from being incinerated or
downcycled, or sent to landfill,

The low energy recycling process
creates high quality rPET with a
carbon footprint that is around 65%
lower than virgin PETY We intend
tostart using CuRe Technology's
rPET in Europe from 2025, following
the developrment of a new
praduction facility.
(A) Based on CuRes life cycle assessment, carbon footprint
reductions compared to virgln: 2022 flaure,

Image: rPET granulate

> Find out mare at cocacolasp.comy
annual-report/case-study/
recyclingtech

In 2023, through C
we announcedar
with universities in
Metherlands to ex
CO.can be turnec
like packaging ma
recyclable and th
acircular future.

We are working wi
increase the recyc
packaging types, i
and tertiary packs

Packaging colleci
and infrastructur
Packaging collect
it has been used s
low-carbaon, fully c
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That is why we are
creation of collect
our markets, work
local government:

For example, in A
with Pact Group, €
Management and
we invested in twe
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equivalent of two
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~E5M

We invested approximately
€5 million in water efficiency
and wastewater treatment
technology in our operations
in 2023

36

In 2023, together with TCCC
and TCCF, we supported 27
water replenishment projects
in Europe and 2 in API

64

out of 66 of our NARTD
production facilities are
certified under the ISO 14001
environment management
standard®

» This is Forwn

Water efficiency

10% water use ratio™ reduction
by 2030, versus 2019

Target u
Group 10% reduction |

2023l

@

]

>

The plan for the year ahead

Water is critical to nature, our
communities and our Dusiness. ILis
the main ingredient in our products,
essential to our manufacturing
processes, and is critical to ensuring a
sustainable supply of the agricultural
ingredients we depend upon.

In 2024, we will update our Facility
Water Vulnerability Assessments
(FAWNAS) across our production
facilities to assess our local watershed
based risks and vulnerabilities.

»This is Forward

Water replenish

Replenish 100% ¢
WE USE In our e

Group

2022

Through CCER Ve
investrment platfo
initiatives, we will
and invest in emel
that will help us to
efficiency at ocur s

We also plantoir
water replenishing
our markets in 20z
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Done sustainably — Our environmental impact

Our progress explained

Assessing water risk

Water-related risks continue to
increase globally as the health of many
watersheds continues to deteriorate.
We map our water risks using a series
of risk assessments, in line with TCCC.

All our production facilities have their
baseline water risk assessed through

a global Enterprise Water Risk
Assessment (EWRA) using the World
Resources Institute's (WRID Aqueduct
30 tool 21 of our 42 NARTD production
facilities in Europe, and three cut of

24 MARTD production facilities in AP
are located in areas of high baseline
water stress,

In 2023, 8,067 million m? (7405 million
m3 in Europe, and 642 million m2 in APID
of our production volumes were
sourced from areas of baseline water
stress. This represented 49 8% of our
total production volumes, (56.5% of
our production volumes in Europe

and 21.5% in API).

We also complete FAWNAS every
three years, assessing further physical,
regulatory and social risks at a
production facility level. We will be
updating this assessment across all of

our MARTD production facilities in 2024,

We also assess potential risks inwater
quality and future availability to our
business, the local community and the
wider ecosystem through source water
vulnerability assessments (SVAs), which
we aim to complete every five vears,

Sites address these risks through
facility water management plans
(WMPs). These are used to manage site
targets enhance climate resilience, and
enable data sharing and reporting. In
2023, all our NARTD production facilities
had SWAs and WMPs in place.

Settlng context based targets

We use the insights from these risk
assessments to categorise our sites, and
set water efficiency and replenishment
targets that are appropriate for the
context of the watershed our sites
operatein.

We categorise our sites as follows:

Leadership locations: Sites which rely
onvulnerable water sources or have a
hiah level of water dependency, These
sites have the highest water use
recluction targets, and rmust achieve
100% regenerative water use by 2030,

Further Sustainakbility

Advanced efficiency: Sites which
operate inawater stressed context, and
will be focused on achieving advanced
water efficiency, and best in class water
recluction targets.

Contributing locations: Sites which
aperate in the lowest water risk areas,
and have water use ratio targets which
maet industry benchmark standards.

Improving water efficiency

We work to improve our water efficiency
across our operations, and measure
progress through our WUR (the amount
of water needed to produce alitre of
product). We aim to reduce our total

Other
Information

water use ratio by 1
2019, This target is
context based targ
production facility

In 2023, we investe
£1 million inwater
and processas anc
wastewater trearr
inour sites. For ex;
production facility
we optimised the
process, saving ap
per year.

We estirmate that
inwater efficienc
in savings of apprt
per year and will
water and wastew
of approximately

Returning wastev
to the environme
We aimtosafelyr
wastewater to naty
is discharged fromn
facilities, we apply
standards which n
and TCCC's Operz
(KORED.

In 2023, we discha
of wastewater. Mo
facilities pre-treat
and send it to mul
treatment plants.
production sites ¢
have on-site waste
plants,
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Our progress explained

Regenerative water use

At our leadership locations, where we
face the highest water risk, we aim to
not only achieve best in class water
efficiency, but also reach 100%
regenerative water use by 2030

Sites achieve this through
replenishment programmes within the
minor river basin of the site and
through beneficial use of their
wastewater.

Across our 13 leadership locations, we
withdrew 9.5 million m® of water, and
discharged 3.2 million m? of wastewater
in 2023

Water replenishment

We alim to replenish 100% of the water
we use in our beverages through a
portfolio of projects in priority locations
acrass our operations and our
watersheds and within our
communities,

These replenishment projects are
managed in partnership with local
MNGEDs and community groups and are
funded together with TCCC and TCCF.

We focus our replenishment efforts on
three priorities:

» Operations: Projects in our leadership
locations which will contribute
towards our 100% regenarative water
use target.

« Communities: [nvestment in climate
resilient water, sanitation and hygiene
OWASH) projects in our priority
communities.

= Watersheds: Water stewardship
projects in our priority sourcing
regions

In 2023, together with TCCC and TCCF
we supported 27 water replenishment
projects across Europe, and 9 in AP,
replenishing 18.3 million m? of water
across our territaries, including

16.2 million m¥ in Europe, and 2.1 million
m? in API. This represents 98.7% of our
total sales volume (107.9% in Europe,
and 40.1% in AP1). This drop in
replenishment volumes versus

prior yvear is due to one of our largest
projects in Australia, Project Catalyst.
coming toan end.

In 2023, together with TCCF, we began
a major replenishment project on the
Canal des Moéres located in the
eastern part of Dunkirk, France, near
one of our leadership locations. The
project aims to restore surface water
resources in a territary that suffers
from recurring drought

In the Netherlands, we are working

with TCCC and Matuurmonumenten

to safeguard future water supply and
improve groundwater levels in the

De Plateaux nature reserve, The project
aims to secure the water supply To

the area over the coming decade,

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

Collective action
As part of our corn
responsible water
together with TCC
in the UN Water C
and joined 50 oth
endorsing the CEL
Water Resilience (
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Taking action on sustainability

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

We acknowledge CCEF's rola in TCFD alignment overview
addressing climate change, and are
committed to decarbonising our Recommendation Recommended disclosures and disclosure le|
business in line with climate science,
and being transparent about the
impacts, risks and opportunities that
climate change poses to our business.

Governance a. Describe the Board's oversight of climate-re
risks and opportunities

b. Describe management’s role in assessing an

5 4 =Tl i - o risks ~ W
Our climate disclosures are manading climate-related risks and opporty

based upon the four pillars and

11 recommendations of the

TCFD's guidance. We consider

our disclosure to be consistent with
the TCFD recommendations and
recommended disclosures.

Strategy a. Describe the climate-related risks and cppo
the organisation has identified over the shor
rmedium and long term

b. Describe the impact of climate-related risks
oppertunities on the crganisation’s business
strategy, and financial planning

In 2023, we evolved our scenario

taking into consideration different climate-re

» Risks and opportunities were scenarios, including a 2°C or lower scenario
modelled across three potential
emission pathways. = 4%9C +2 5°C
and +15°C.

+ Scenarics have been modelled
on a gross-risk basis, assuming
NG mitigating actions, or progress
on our Thisis Forward targets, such
as our GHG emissions reduction
targets'™. Mitigation actions and
related investments for physical
and transition risks are listed on
pages 57-58.

= Analysis has been completed over
the short (five years), medium (2030)
and long term (2040).

« Physical and transition risks have
been disclosed guantitatively over
the short term, and qualitatively cver
the medium and long term term.

+ This work should not be viewed as a
forecast, and will evolve in the coming
years as we refine these scenarios.

S QU ERELEIGER S = Describe the arganisation’s processes for ide
and assessing climate-related risks

b, Describe the organisation's processes for mi
climate-related risks

¢, Describe how processes for identifying, asses
managing climate-related risks are integrate
organisation's overall risk management fram

Metrics a. Disclose the metrics used by the organisatio
and targets assess climate-related risks and opportunitic
with its strategy and risk management proc

b Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if appropriate
=HG emissions, and the related risks

c. Describe the targets used by the organisatic
manage climate-related risks and opportun
and performance against targets

LAY Cur GHG emnissions reduction and Net Zero targets have been validated by the SBTI as being i
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) con

Governance

Board-level governance

In alignment with the TCFD
recommendations, our Board oversees
climate risk and opportunities. The Board
is supported in its oversight by its
Committees, notably the ESG and Audit
Committees, as cutlinedin our TCFD
governance framawork.

There is close collaboration across these
Committees due to the role that both
have in our ESG reporting, disclosure
and assurance processes. A joint
meeting of these Committees was

held to discuss these matters, including
this TCFD disclosure,

The Board oversees and assesses
CCEP's Group wide strategy, including
climate-related considerations,
ensuring alignment with emerging
regulatory mandates and market
trends. It also approves significant
financial cormmitments and plans to
reduce GHG emissions.

Climate-related issues are considered
as part of Board decision making. In
2023, we aligned our carbon reduction
roadmaps with our business planning
and Capex investment routines (see
page 38), sustainability metrics were
presented with asset management
reguests to the Audit Cormmmittes.
The Remuneration Committes
reviewed performance against CCEP's
GHG emissions reduction targets to
inform vesting outcomes for the
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP).

The Board also receives training and
deep dives on climate-related issues.
In 2023, this included a session on

sustainable packaging and the circular
ecanoamy. An annual Board session
focused solely on risk is held each
December, and includes a review of
climate-related risks, as well as other
ESG-related risks.

Management supports the Board
Committees throughout the year,
Forexample, in 2023, the ESG Committes,
following guidance from CCEP's
leadership, recommended to the

Board that we update cur water
strategy to include a Group water

use efficiency target.

Management-level governance
Ownership and governance for
sustainability-related risks and
opportunities, and driving progress
against our commitrents, is
embeddead throughout our business.
Risk management is a key responsibility
for all senior leadership, who are
assigned ownership of specific risks,
including climate-related risks.

Risks are evaluated regularly as part
of our enterprise risk managemeant
process (see pages 48-69).

kKey leadership and management with
responsibility for climate-related issues,
are outlined in the TCFD governance
framework. The main discussion forum
for the Executive Leadership Team
{ELT) on climate matters is the
Sustainability Steering Committee
(5SC). Multiple cross functional working
groups are focused on developing the
strateay and delivering against our This
is Forward targets. Working groups, led
by key management, meet regularly,
and will bring items for information,
review and decision making to the 55C,

and to the Board |
required. In 2023, 1
CCEP's carbon rec
including progres:
trajectory, and agt
address gaps. This
scenario risk modk
and transition risk:
development of C
transition plan asi
The S5C will contir
development of ¢
plan against relew
IK's Transition Pla

See our TCFD g
on page hi
Stakeholder enga
We engage reguls
of stakeholders or
stakeholders have
us to address man
sacial issues. Our s
integral to every
chain, from the su
rawy rmaterials to tr
we operate, and ti
producing and sel
Their insights into
issues and impact:

integral to the de
is Forward sustair:

We advocate for ¢
supporting gover:
private sector initi
rapid and sustaine
emissions. In 2023,
companies in sign
Business Caalition
letter advocating -
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TCFD governance framework

The Board

= Sets the sustainability strategy
= Has primary oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities

i i i = Roceies freedback on climate-related issues from Committes Chairs and wa CEQ report

ESG Committee
Met six times in 2023

+ Responsible for oversesing performance
against This is Forward strategy and gogls

= Rewviews emvironmental and social-related risks
and opportunities, iIncluding climate-related
risks and GHG emissions reduction targests

Nomination Committee
Met six tirmes in 2023

+ Reviews the size, structure, composition

and skills of the Board to ensure it remains
effective

= Ensures thera is sufficient expertise on the

Board inareas such as risk and climate

Remuneration Cor
Met five times in 2(

» Allgns the Group's re
rainforce the achiey

» Crnersees performar

the LTIP, which has &
weighting allocated

=

«  Cwersees ESG reporting, disclosure
and assurance

of GHG emissions

~

Clirmate responsibility ligs with the Chief Exacutive
and supply Chain Officer and Chief Fublic Affairs, C
COfficer who are responsible fior providing manager
topics 1o the Board and its Committees

Executive Leadership Team (ELT)

M larly thro

Sustainability Steering Committee

ELT member:

+ Chief Executive Cfficer * Chief Commercial Officer Provides opportunity to review: o 2023 top
«  Chiaf Fimancial Officer = Chief Integration Officer + This is Forward targets and our progress roadma
« General Counsal and = {Thiaf Public Affairs, against thase use affic

Company Secratary Communications and ¢ Climate-related risks and scenario anahysis, ragulath
» Chief Customer Sarvice Sustainability Officer including TCFD
and Supply Chain Gificer « Cwtputs raised as reguired to the ESG
' Committee (including on climate topics)

Sustainable Packaging Office (SPQ)

TCFD and ESG Disclosure group

[developd

«  Owerseen by Chief Public Affairs, Commmunications and « Cherseen by Ganeral Counsel and Company Secretary and Crnearsean by
Sustainakility Officer and VP Sustainability WP Sustainability Sustainabilit

» Resporsible for ensunng a sustainable packaging strategy « Owersight of ourwork on TCFD and climate-related risks 85« Carbon e

can be implemented across our Business, including peck mix well &3 our broader ESG reporting and disclosure aporoach

g : 2 o + ASSESSITE
recycled contert and improving packagirg collection

+ Complet
Netwaork,
and natu

(A} One meeting was a joint meeting of the Audit Committes and ESG Committes hedd in February 2023,
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Strategy

Clirmate change poses short-, mediurm-
and long-term risks to our business.
This includes phiysical risks that could
disrupt our operations and supply chain
through extreme weather events, such
as floods and droughts. Transition risks,
such as shifts in consurmer prefarences
and increased regulations o addreass
clirmate change, could be faced by

our business.

In accordance with the TCFD
recommendations, we have integrated
science based climate scenario
modelling with internal and insurance
data to build a comprehensive regional
climate analysis. This methodalogy
enhances our decision making
capabilities and understanding

of potential climate vulnerabilities
within our operations and value chain,
fostering climate resilience across

the arganisation.

Our business and financial planning

do not depend on a single emission
pathway. Instead, our scenario analysis
informs management's understanding
of potential risks and cpportunities,
serving as a tool for informed
deliberation rather than as definitive

predictions of future events or outcomes.

Since 2022 we have partnered with
Risilience, a specialised climate analytics
company which uses technology
pioneered by the Centre for Risk
Studies at the University of Cambridge
Judge Business School, to co-develop

a digital twin platform, enabling the
modelling of both physical and
transition risks across our value

chair over a 20-30 year horizon,
aligned with five global warming
scenarios (including >4°C, +2.5°C and
+15°C), using shared socioeconomic
pathways (55Ps),

We alsc worked with external physical
climate specialists Marsh Advisory to
establish how climate change could
impact the frequency and severity of
climate-related weather events on our
rmanufacturing and operations, under
RCP 2.6 and 85 scenarios (~1.4%C and
~4 3°C respectively). This covers all
major climate-induced threats (coastal
inundation, river flooding, surface water
ﬂOC'diF‘lg. extrame heat, extreme wind,
wildfire and others) through 2100. In
2023, we worked with Marsh, using the
Risilience platform, to complete a pilot
assessment of the risk of reduced
proaduction yields from sugar beet

for our supply in Great Britain, due to
chronic climate change impacts, such
as drought and changing weather
patterns, We are reviewing the
potential to scale this assessment
across our business in the future,

Our work with Risilience and Marsh
quantifies our exposure and potential
financial impacts from climate change
evenls across various emission
pathways. We are also enhancing

our risk management framework,
incorporating Al-powered risk sensing
technigues to identify and address
emerging risks, including thase
associated with climate change.

We work in close ¢
TCCC to assess i
and opportunities
asystem to meet
for sustainable pre
climate change. Tl
from these initiati
our strategic busir
investment decisi
the delivery of ou

Business planning
We integrate clim
considerations int
strategy, planning
management pro
knowledge gainet
risk analysis helps |
business planning
decisions and sup)
our climate target
the impact of clirr
multiple aspects:
financial planning,
supply chain and
products, operatic
inresesarch and de
example through
and investment w
Aswe continue to
scenario analysis, v
climate risk assess
recommended wi

We are commitie
climate-related ri:
delivery of qur Thi
sustainability targ
our short-term tar
absolute GHG em
2030 (versus 2019
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We also used our carbon roadman to
emized a carbon projection intc our
2023-2025 long-range planning and
2023 business plan. This has helped us
improve the connection between our
commercial and carbon forecasts at
Group and country levels.

In 2024, we will build upon the work
completed so far, to develop a full
climate transition plan. We are
reviewing frameworks as they are
introduced, eg. UK TPT Disclosure
Framewark, and will aim to align cur
climate transition plan disclosures
as relevant,

Investment

Through this work, we allccated over
€300 million between 2020-2027 to
support the cngoing decarbonisation
of our operations and value chain,
and have an investment plan of
approximately €450 million for
emissions reduction initiatives between
2023-2025, This includes cantinued
investment in rPET which has a
significant carbon reduction impact,
aswell as other carbon, energy and
logistics saving initiatives.

Through these investrnents, we are
working to mitigate the physical and
transition risks we face, and realise
opportunities coming from cost,
energy and carbon savings. In 2023,
we invested approximately €28 million
inenergy, logistics and carlbon saving
technologies, and expect that this
could result in an annual energy and
GHG emissions saving of approximately
9000 MWh and 21,000 tCC.e,
potentially helping us reduce our

annual electricity and natural gas costs
by around €2 million per year
Investment in energy and water savings
projects also helps mitigate physical
risks, such as drought, on a production
site level. In 2023 we continued to
invest in water saving projects at our
sites in areas of high baseline water
stress, For example, we updated our
water treatment systems in Grigny,
France, invested in the recavery of rinse
water in La Corufia, Spain, and
optimised the water treatment process
in Barcelona, Spain. Cur 2023
investment of approximately €5 million
inwater initiatives could save
approximately 145,000y per year.

Identifying our transition risks through
scenario analysis strengthens our
resilience and helps to identify
potential opportunities from the global
transition to a low-carbon economy.
This scenario analysis identified our
greatest policy, market and reputation
risks and opportunities as coming from
packaging, Through our SFO, we
continue to monitor risks and
opportunities linked to various
packaging models and regulaticons,
including strategies to maximise return
oninvestrments and improve our
strategy's resilience through a diverse
packaging portfolio,

Our continued investment in recycled
materials such as rPET provides CCEP
with a significant opportunity to
increase our use of recycled material
and reduce our use of virgin PET. Our
irvestrment in rPET enabled us to reach
our =50% rPET target four years early in
Eurcpe, and reduced GHG emissions in

2023 by approxim
rPET also provides
significant cpport
recycled content |
countries, to mitig
and could help pr
potential new taxi
restrictions and b«
plastic bottles whi
recycled plastic,

Our investment in
toeliminate the u
plastic in our bottl
support an opport
lower carbon and
Lo consumers, a tr
outlined within ou
we took a significe
launching 100% rP
Indonesia. In 2023,
bottles we sold we
from 100% rPET®
contributing 5093

Rapid decarbonis:
continued engage
regulatory shifts a
particular, regulat
an expansion of re
Capacity, shifts to
andrapid phase o
been identified as
we have supporte
of our public palic

Business resilienc
We have reviewsc
impacts of warmir
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Carbon reduction roadmap

We are working to build a climate transition plan to support the delivery of cur short- and long-term GHG emissiol
business planning processes, to support our decarbonisation through 2030. In 2024, we will build upon this work, us
risks, to assess the resilience of our strategy, identify opportunities to mitigate climate-related risks and ensure we

Actual emissions (tCO,e) Projected emissions reduction - in line with SBTi targets™ (t(
6.3m 16.7% GHG emissions | (4 Forilustrative purposes only.
reduction across our entire
value chain versus 2019 2030targ

reduce er

-30% by 30% vs
4.4m
2019 II!II

Beyond value chain mitigation

Projected carbon removal m

Key actions and anticipated time horizons p

Ingredients @ SEU rationalisation @ Reducir 'g SUgAr 3Cross DO"tr'\_,ll'C @ Sustainable agriculture

Packaging ® Accelerate rPET and rAlurminium @ L |\.r“twugﬁtlnq @ Increasing recycled content @ Increasing pac

r-1ar‘|ufactur|'ng @ Fugitive CO; reduction @ Electric forklifts @ Increasing renewable electricity @ Reduction of fossi

Transport ® Alternative fuel use @ Network and route optimisation @ Electricvehicles @ Increased use of train
CDE O HFC free @ Replace OFLUs @ Replace old equipment with energy efficient equipment @ Grid dec
Suppliers and Supglier engagement including; Advocacy and e
partners — 1002 of our carbon strategic suppliers to set science based targets by 2023 memberships enc
(Eurcpe) and 2025 (AP T

— 100% renewable electricity by 2025 (Europe) and 2030 (APD with

o Through CCEP Yentures, we are committed to seeking out and =0

funding solutions designed to drive innovation and sustainability —H

VENTURES  progress inline with CCEP's Met Zerg 2040 ambition, ==

Maotas, COE = Cold drink equipment, alse refarred to as “coolers”: Fugitive CO, reduction refers to the loss of C0, as an ingredient that ocours when we cap our products
HFC = Hydroflucrocarbon OFUs = Open fronted units (most have been retrofitted with doors), to be replaced with more energy efficient equiprment.
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Risk management

Climate-related risks have been
identified as a principal risk categaory
for CCEP for many yvears, with a growing
probability of affecting our existing
business model, necessitating proactive
mitigation strategies. Our risk
managemeant framework includes
clirmate risks, as detailed on page 73
The Principal risks section of this report
on pages 68-78 further outlines the
various types of loss impacts and the
potential influence of climate risks on
our strategic objectives.

Climate risk is a principal strategic
priority, linked to our This is Forward
sustainability action plan. We assess and
identify climate risks across business,
functional and project levels, following
cur enterprise risk management
process with local compliance reviews
and annual enterprise risk assessments.
We also review opportunities as part

of our risk framewaork, and as part of
our normal management routines,

QOur approach drives progress towards
meeting our GHG emission reduction
targets and helps manage impacts
from physical, transition and regulatory
clirmate risks. Our commitment to this
comprahensive risk management
strategy Underscores our dedication to
long-term resilience and sustainability.

Qur approach to climate

scenario analysis

Partnering with Risilience, we
developed a digital twin model for
scenario analysis, blending CCEP's
financial, operaticnal supply chain,
product and environmental data.
We modelled scenarios under
different climatea emission pathways.
These pathways were defined by
assumptions about policy change,
energy outlooks, technological
innovation and global temperature
change, underpinned by Shared
Sociceconomic Pathways (S5Ps)
widely used by the IPCC.

This physical climate materiality
assessment is an important step

to inform CCEP's climate resilience
planning. Higher risk sites could be
provided with operational adaptation
plans and risk engineering
improvements to mitigate against
damage and business interruption.

> See the emissions pathways and risks
assessed on page 55

Assessing physical and transition

risks and opportunities

We evaluated physical and transition
risks and opportunities over the

short- (five years), medium- (2030)
and long-term (2040 and beyond),
This is in line with a slight extension of
our business planning timeframes, and
our short-(2030) and long-term (20403
GHG emissions reduction targets.

We analysad short
impact over five y
we can influence ¢
strategic, capital a
and operational d
uncertainty arcun
impacts of our clir
bayond five years,
fimancial impact a
period. We have a
high level review ¢
climate vulnerabil
basis, to help us id
opportunities, spc
our strategic plani

We assessed all of
transition risks out
Out of the risks ar
assessed, seven (1l
transition) were d
significant based
and qualitative im
Some risks (for ex
litigation or invest
assessed, but were
We will continue T
our modelling of ¢
risks and opportur
coming years.

> See the physical
assessed on pac
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Emissions
pathway

55P

Temperature

rise by 2100

Global CO,
emissions

Global action
against
climate
change

Likelihood

>4°C emissions
pathway

Mo Paolicy
SSPE-85

>47C

200% by 2100

Few ar no steps taken
to lirnit emissions.
Current GHG emissions
levels roughly doukle
b 2050, The global
economy is fuelled

by exploiting fossil
fuels and energy-
intensive lifestyles,

Lo

+2.5°C emissions
pathway

Stated Policy
S5P 2-45

AR

-75% by 2100

Reliance on existing/
planned policies (not
commitmeants). GHG
emissions plateau
around current levels
before starting Lo fall
mid-century, but do
not reach Met Zero
by 2100,

+1.5°C emissions
pathway

Paris Arnbition
SsSP 1%

+HEAE

MNet Zero by 2050

Coordinated action
leads to reduced
emissions and societal
shifts towards
sustainability. While
extreme weather
increases, the most
severs climate impacts
are avoided

Low

Scope and method

What are
physical

and transition
risks and
opportunities?

CCEP scope

Quantification




Strategic Governance and Financial Further Sustainability Other
Report Directors’ Report Statements Information Information
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) con

Physical risk

We modelled how extreme weaather events and chronic changes to weather patterns could pose a phy:
scenario modelling identified potential risks from extreme weather, such as drought or flooding at proc
and precipitation patterns could have an impact on agricultural vields for key ingredients. Mitigating ac
planning processes.

Short-term (five years) cumulative gross risk financial impact estimates (assuming no mitigation)

Fotential cumulative discounted cash flow at risk Low <€350m |

Short-term (five

Physical risks What could be expected =4°C emissions pathway

Extreme weather Increased risks of site damage due to more freguent |
events could cause and severe extrame weather, including riverine and
TS T R SR ETA T surface water flooding, Impacts could result in

and logistics routes business interruption and asset damage at our
production sites

« Acuteweather eventssuchase
or distribute our products.
= |psurance premiums could incn

([T d-ELAT e RUET CY A VL Droughts can lead to water scarcity and reduced Low
or water scarcity quality in our territories, potentially raising production
costs or limiting capacity, adversely impacting our
producticon and sales.

= Of our &6 NARTD production si
WRI Agueduct 3.0 analysis.

= Previous droughts have impact

= We modelled the risk as a pote)
high risk sites. The risk escalates

Changes to weather Decreased agricultural productivity in some regions Low |
and precipitation of the world as a result of changing weather patterms
patterns could cause may impact the yield and/or guality of key raw
disruption to supply ingredients {(e.g. sugar beet, sugar cane, coffes or

of ingredients arange jLJi-{_.E‘) that we use to produce our products

* Sugar yields could be negativel
= Sugar beet, as our modelling su

France is projected to have the
= Our modelling indicated that o

Scenarios are modelled assuming no mitigating actions or progress on our stated sustainability action plan. It as
GHG emissions remain static. Our mitigation strategy and our This is Forward sustainability commitments are d

Medium- (2030) and long-term (2040 and beyond) non-financial assessment

In the =4°C warming scenario, physical risks at CCEP facilities, including operational and supply chain dis
under this scenario revealed lang-term flooding risks, especially in Belgium, Spain, and Indonesia. These
Additionally, climate change may intensify water scarcity, affecting water quality in certain regions. Anal
icentified 21 Eurcpean facilities and three NARTD facilities in AF| as high risk for water stress.
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) con

Qur strategic response to physical risks

Physical risk Value chain How could this impact our business {(assuming no mitigation)? How arsg

ST ERVEENVG T LT ETT LW -+ Camage to property at production and warehouse facilities, = Ourp
events could ELGR--EIEGOEE as well as our logistics and distribution netwaorks. from
cause disruption « Compromised infrastructure and logistical channels due to - Enh
to facilities and facility and eguipment damage could hinder our preduct ato
logistics routes rmanufacturing and delivery capabilities - Dey
= MNotably, severe flooding in 2021 affected cur Chaudfontaine,

Belgium, and Bad Meusnahr, Garmany production sites, In 2022,

floods in Australia disrupted our distribution network We anticipate

flooding as 2 persistent physical risk across all emission scenarios,

[l d-EEA T ROTE = S T T =TT [l = Water scarcity poses a risk to our production processes, s ‘We e
stress or water and operations potentially leading to regulatory constraints on water usage, faciliti
scarcity which may affect our production capabilities. D55058
« Temporary water shortages could result in increased production Water

expenses or limitations in production capacity, impacting our *» These

beverage production and sales, and elevating costs. al eac

« Of our &8 NARTD production facilities, 24 are situated in regions WIURY
with baseline water stress, as identified by the WRI Agueduct 3.0 » Atsgite

water risk analysis, autho

= |n 2023, due to drought, local authorities in some of our = e air

markets in Europe (Spain and France) escalated water risk by 200

levels, which could have resulted in limits on industrial water for th

usage, These restricticns did not directly affect our sites, and leads

in some cases our water targets and demonstrated progress » |0 202

on improving water efficiency helped to mitigate water proce

restrictions being imposed on our facilities could

£300[(

Changes to Supply chain » Changing weather patterns and/or extreme weather events » Wehe
weather and could impact the vield and/or quality of our key ingredients and basec
precipitation raw rmmaterials, such as sugar beet, sugar cane, orange juice or « We air
patterns could coffee, This could reduce the availability and guality, orincrease SO
cause disruption the cost of ingredients « Wein
to supply of » Our primary sugar beet sourcing regions, including France, Great  which
ingredients Britain, the Netherlands and Spain, are all potentially vulnerable = We ait
o climate-related water sCarcity issues, based upon WEI and el

Agueduct 3.0 water risk analysis, initiat

(A} Water use ratio: litres of water per litre of finished product produced.
(B} NARTD production facilities which rely on vulnerable water sources or have high water dependency, We have nine leadership locations in Eurcpe and four in AP,
(C) Carbon strategic suppliers account for ~B0% of our Scope 3 GHG emissions (~200 suppliers in tatal).
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) con

Transition risk

Our scenario analysis focused on the transition risks across our value chain, under three emissions pathw
transition risks in the near term, compared to physical risks. The level of exposure to transition risks is drp
highest potential transition risk. Mitigating actions against these risks are determined as part of our busi

Short-term (five years) cumulative gross risk financial impact estimates (assuming no mitigation)

Potential cumulative discounted cash flow at risk m |

Transition risk What could be expected?

Policy Carbon pricing is used as a shadow mechanism through which governments
can incentivise GHG emissions reductions, The scenarios assume the use of Assurmes negligible e
higher carbon prices across CCEP markets to price and penalise GHG emissions,

including those linked to packaging materials, to drive decarbonisation.

Market Consumer awareneass of environmental impact drives a shift towards more - Low [
sustainable, lower-emission alternative products and services. The scenarios s rE e L ey
assume that consumer preferences will shift towards packaging options that  for packaging types t

are perceived to be more sustainable, transforming market demand. perceived to be more

Technology Regulatory or market shifts may phase out fossil fusls and related equipment, - Low [
leading to a devaluation of carbor-intensive assets and potential IMPairMent or  assyumes that develor
write-offs, CCEF's exposure is limited, primarily due to our fleet assets relving on  fossi-fuel driven with

fossil fuels. innovation
Reputation Levels of consumer activism could be influsnced by how much climate m_
action is taken by the beverage sector and by CCEP. This assumes a Low level of consume

potential gross risk if CCEP falls behind the beverage sector, causing
increased consurner activism relative to our competitors. This assessment
does not include packaging changes likely to be reguired by legislation
across the sector

Scenarios are modelled assuming no mitigating actions or progress on our stated sustainability action plan. It as
and GHG emissions remain static. Our mitigation strategy and our This is Forward sustainability commitments a

Medium- (2030) and long-term (2040 and beyond) non-financial assessment

Beyond a five-year time horizon, the level of uncertainty of transition risks increases. Transition risks are
mid term. In the next five years, in light of the challenge of coordinating global climate action, modest ¢
impact. More significant action from policymakers to stimulate the low-carbon transition would acceler
impacts to the business.

In the medium term, new regulations designed to decrease the use of packaging materials that contrik
packaging could require additional investment in our packaging portfolio, manufacturing capabilities a
increasing demand from consumers for more sustainable products, Our SPO monitors risks and opport
reviews ways to maximise return on investments through pricing, increasing our value share and the avc
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) con

Qur strategic response to transition risks

Transition risks Value chain

Policy Packaging

Operations

and raw
materials

‘Market Brands and

(consumer) portfolio

Technology Operations

-Reputaticn ' Brands and
portfolio

How could this impact our business
(assuming no mitigation)?

Introduction of cartzon and/or
packaging taxes or levies, aimed
at reducing GHG emissions from
packaging and waste, that could
result in;

* increased costs for packaging
materials

Increase in carban taxes, aimed
at reducing GHG emissions
Wwithin industry groups that
could resulting

= noreased energy costs
* ncreased raw matenals costs

» | oss of revenue and/or missed
growth opportunities

= Asset write downs, investments
in low-emissicn technology to
meet market regulation

« Loss of revenue and/or missed
growth opportunities due to
consumer activism against cur
sector and/or cur products

How are we addressing these risks?
(Our mitigation strategy)

= Atarget to collect and recycle a bottle or ¢
industries to increase collection and recycli

= Targets toreach 50% rPET inour PET bottle

= Innovating in refillable and dispensed solut

= We allocated over €300 million betwsen 20
and value chain, and hawve an investrmeant pl
between 2023 and 2025 This includes cont
savings initiatives,

« Continued investrment in rPET provides CC
specific markets, mitigating potential taxe:
not contain recycled plastic.

» Short- and leng-term GHG emissions redu
(versus 2019) and to reach Net Zera by 20«
* |se renewable electricity across all of aurr
» Engaging and working with cur carbon str
— set their own science based GHG emissi
— use 100% renewable electricity in their o)
— share their carbon footprint data with us

» Aimning to source all our agricultural ingrec

meet our PSA requirements.

= During 2023, we invested approximately £

approximately 2000MWhHh and 21,000 tonn:
annual operating costs of approximately €

« Regular review of products and business e
« Removing packaging materials where we (

our usa of recycled content and help toirr

» |nvesting in manufacturing equipment an

energy sources

= As part of our EV100 commitment, we aim

emissions vehicles by 2030,

= Investing in the decartonisation of aur prc

energy and carbon saving technologies, sa

» Exploring and investing in new technologi
* Short- and leng-term GHG emissions redu

(wersus 2019) and to reach Net Zera by 20

* |ncreasing recycled content in packaging :
« Developing refillable and reusable produc
« Collaborating with TCCC and other franch

agenda of our brands
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) con

Metrics and targets

Through our sustainability reporting
and disclosure, we track, measure and
manage our sustainability targets and
related metrics.

Qur This is Forward sustainability
action plan targets were developed
from stakeholder insights, and our
targets are focused on our most
material issues, A full list of our
sustainability metrics, our reporting
approach and GHG emissions
calculation methodology can be found
in the Key performance data surmrmary
on pages 234-241 Stress scenarios
regarding the ongoing viability of our
business can be found on page 79

We are piloting the use of a carbon
price of €£100/1C0O.e, see page 51

For cur disclosure, we have considered
the TCFD cross industry climate-related
matrics and agriculture, food, and
forest products group metrics.

Climate targets

In 2023, our short- and long-term
GHG emissions targets were validated
by the SBTi as being in line with
climate science.

Qur climate targets are as follows;

« Net Zero GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2
and 3} by 2040

« Reduce absolute GHG emissions
(Scope 1,2 and 3) by 30% by 2030
(versus 2[]1'?}

= Use 100% renewable electricity across
all markets by 2030

« 100% of carbon strategic suppliers to
set science based targets by 2023
(Eurcpe) and 2025 (AP

= 100% of carbon strategic suppliers
to use 100% renewable electricity
by 2025 (Europe) and 2020 (API)

Our GHG emissions targets are tied
to executive remuneration through
our LTIP, see pages 133-135.

Water metrics and targets

We focus on water efficiency in our
operations and helping to protect
water sources for our busingss,
communities and suppliers. Our key
water targets are as follows:

= 10% reduction in our
manufacturing water use ratio™
by 2030 (versus 2019)

= Replenish 100% of the water
we LSe In our beverages

+ 100% regenerative water use in
leadership locations™ by 2030

In 2023, we improved our water use
ratio by 4.9% versus 2019 by setting
context based targets and improving
our water efficiency

Packaging metrics and targets
Packaging accounts for 37% of cur
total value chain carbon footoring,
making it a key area wheare we can
reduce emissions. Feducing
unnecessary packaging and improving
packaging circulanty will help reduce
our carbon emissions and support us
in reaching our climate targets.

Read more about our actions on
climate, packaging and water on pages
36-47

Cross industry clir
group metrics

Tonnes of CO,e

Scope 1

GHG emissions S_cp
(full value chain)®

Emissions from big
sequestered carbo

Intensity ratio

Full value chain G
per litre (c e

‘GHG emissions (S
per euro of reven

Energy use

Direct nE:l"Il’:rg_‘,r cong
(Scope 1) ¢

Direct energy cong
(Scope 2) ¢

Direct energy cong
(Scope 1 and Scop

Agriculture, food a
Total water withdr
Total water consu

Total productlcn VO
of baseline water s

Mt For details on aur appn
COCACOECOMmy SUSTainakHiy
(A} Measured as litres of wate
which rety onwulnerable wate
(C) The acquisition of APl can
allow for better pariod over
sumIMmany on pages 234-241.4
Britain for CCEP. {F) Scope 2i
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Our stakeholders are part of our business and play a vital role in our success at every st
From the suppliers that provide our raw materials, to the communities where we opera
make and sell our products, we seek to work together to refresh our markets and make

Our people A comprehensive e_mnual Boarfl engage_menti Impa.tci

engagement plan includes: The Remuneration Committes Our pe

Townhalls, Speak Up channels, reviews the Group wide by rmiak

CCEP depends on engagement surveys and the remuneration policy to ensure it great

the great people Ermnployvees Share Purchase rermains aligned with the long-term CCEP ¢

who make, move and Plar (ESFF) strategic goals of the Company T.i'l;l.'fll._ll'_;

sell our products to Communications and campaigns, The Nomination Committes’s remit  work w
customers every day. e.g.mental health, safety and includes key people matters such as

inclusion, online platforms, work succession, diversity and culture \.'Iﬂ?at r

curJrn:Hs and tr.a|.r'| I'|CJ and ) The Board engages directly with E-_?:gr

developmeant programmes employees through Townhalls _e- s

facility tours, market visits, and Develo

presentations and deep dives safety

at Board level Inclusic

Hurmar

study  Listening to women in our supply chain

This year, we launched the We ain

Women's Listening Circles to miakes

unite women in customer service forwo

and supply chain, providing where

. spaces for them to listen to gende

each other's experiences and feedb:

exchange ideas. safety,

> Image: some of our participants from Our bu
Indonesia, hﬂ\-’@ cl

Read more about our people
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Our shareholders

Shareholders provide
the equity capital for
our business and hold
management to
account on financial
performance and

key environmental,
social and governance
(ESG) issues.

Our franchisors

We conduct business
primarily under
agreements with
franchisors that
generally give us
exclusive rights

to make, sell and
distribute beverages
in approved packaging
in specified territories.

dividends or through share buybacks

Governance and Financial Further Sustainakility Other
Directors' Report Statements Information Information
A comprehensive annual Board engagement: What
engagement plan includes: The CEO, CFO, Chairman and IR team Finan
AGM, roadshows, analyst meetings, engage with investors and analysts Costs
results presentations and webcasts throughout the year and provide Susta
Erokers appointed to provide advice  “Pdates to the Board on shareholder Mok
fa / ' £ r Tar=]

on market conditions and external views, share ’eQ'St'?  Share i beha
communications performance and investor sentiment rr;alle
Shareholder-nominated Directors The Remuneration Committes Chair e
on the Board in accordance with sngages onthe remuneration policy charu
Shareholders Agresment -
it 2 = Impact/value created: PR,
Shareholders create value for CCEP N "
through voting at the AGM and bl
continuing to invest in CCER "F'f":"r’
- - - inter:

CCEP creates value for sharehaolders .
by returning cash either by paying Analy
perce

Regular contact with franchisors
includes:

Management contact at different
functional levels, such as public
affairs, communications and
sustainability, supply chain, sales
and marketing

Cnaoing dialogue with General
Managers and regular top to

op rmeetings

Inviting franchisors to present annual
business plans to customers

Beoard engagement:

Regular updates to the Board from
the CEC and the Chief Commarcial
Officer via the ATC on franchisors,
including on performance,
relationships and any issues

Chairman engages directly with
key franchisors including TCOC

Impact/value created:

CCEP gains value from the exclusive
rights given by franchisors to make,
sell and distribute their products

CCEP creates value for franchisors

by driving sales 1o customers so
franchisors' drinks are available where
and when consumears want them

Wha
Prafi
in oL

Aligr

Sust

SO
Wha
Joint
Suce
Cate
Mark
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Our consumers

Consumers drink the
products we make, sell
and distribute.

>

Read more about our
CONSUMErs on |

Our customers

Customers sell our

products to consumers.

>

Read more a
customers or

Feedback from consumers on social
media and via the consumer hotlines

Day to day interaction via our sales
team when visiting outlets

Consumers create value when
buying our products

CCEP creates value for consumers
through providing a diverse portfolico
of high guality, safe and great tasting
drinks and by providing transparent
labelling to help consumers maks
informed choices

Governance and Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Directors' Report Statements Information Information
CCEP's ways of engaging Board engagement: What
with censumers include: Indirectly through customers Praodt
Collection of consumer insights and franchisors Erired
from franchisors, c:_rSLOrw'-;Ers orvia Direct engagement through e
SR A
dedicated research Farkat visits
Cnnsuﬂerl labelling, s.ov:!al media, Pracantatiohs oritrands What
activation in store and day to day ard Behavoural Batterns Low &
interaction via our sales teams of sah
when visiting cutlets Impact/value created: % Dac

Regular engagement

with customers includes:

General Managers engaging

with customers on strateqy

and planning and owning the
customer relationship

Account managers contact with
customers on business development

Cur sales teams calling on customers
every day in the market

Supply chain in daily contact to
ensure customers receive the best
customer senvice

Board engagement: What
Through managemeant insights M |
Jirect engagement through Prod.,
rmarket visits held in Australia and andc
Mew dealand Erii
Customer engagement 5es5i0N Custre
and dinner in Australia in 2023
CEOQ updates to the Board on pricing, ‘h‘fu"hat
negotiations, joint value creationand  YolN
custormer satisfaction metrics Custe
Retail landscape session analy
rmeas
Impact/value created: perfo
Customers create value for CCEP by advar
selling our products to consumers resea
CCEP creates value for customers custo

through our customer centric
operating model, portfolio diversity
and quality of products and service
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Our stakeholders continued

Our suppliers

Suppliers provide a wide
range of commodities
and services from
ingredients, packaging,
utilities, equipment, to
facilities management,
fleet, logistics and
information technology.

t our suppliers

Our communities

Communities are
where we operate and
where our employees
live and work.

>

Read more about community
engagement cn p

Processes to engage regularly
with suppliers include:

Supplier relationship management
programime through TCCC's
procurement consortium

Partnering and collaborating with
suppliers, in areas such as business
continuity or sustainability, to foster
strategic relationships

Further Sustainakbility Other

Information Information

Board engagement: What
Updates provided by the CEQ and Expos
CFC on key supplier relaticnships marke
Cevelopment of SGPs setting ghdl o
requirements for suppliers inrelation  Drivin
to human rights, health and safety suppl
gﬂd environment Long-
Presentations to the Board on and al
strategic topics such as carbon reven
recluction and supply risk

What
Impact/value created: Cualit
Suppliers create value for CCEP e

. ne TCCC

by providing high guality, safe and ks
Shas ey e s 5GPs
sustainable products and services,
and optimised supply chain and Comr
innowvation partnerships targe

renew

CCEP creates value for suppliers
through long-term collaborative
partnerships and provides supoort on
sustainable practices and ernission plans

Regular engagement with

our communities include:

Boosting skills developrment

and social inclusion, e.g. youth
development programmes, BORA
Jovens programme, apprenticeships
and collaborating with food banks

Protecting the local environment,
e.g water replenishment and litter
clean up programmes

Supporting local communities,
e.g. grassroots initiatives and
disaster relief

Board engagement:
Board memkbers engage with local
projects and at CCEP events

The ESE Committee is responsible
for averseeing CCEP's relationship
with communities under the social
pillar of its remit

Impact/value created:
Communities create value for CCEP
through access to talented people, local
water sources, connection with local
policymakears and comrunity groups

CCEP creates value for communities
through access to employment,
improving the local environment
and investing in community causes

What
Emple

Erwire

Corp
What
Camr
Emple
Direct
progr
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Section 172(1) statement from the Directors

During 2023, we acted in

good faith to promote the
long-term success of CCEP

in our discussions and decision
making for the benefit of CCEP's
shareholders as a whole, and

in doing so having regard to
stakeholders and the matters
set out in section 172 of the
Companies Act, including:

Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Statements Information Information
The likely consequences of The impact of the

any decision in the long term

The Board recognises that its decision
making will affect CCEP's long-term
success. When taking decisions,
particularly of strategic importance,
the Board considers the likely
consequences of any decision on
CCEP's long-term, sustainable growth
while endeavouring to balance the
interests of all cur stakeholders.

The interests of our people, and the
need to foster business relationships
with our key stakeholders

Our key stakeholders rernain the
same as last year, namely our people,
shareholders, franchisors, consumers,
customers, suppliers, and communities.
How CCER has engaged with our
stakeholders more generally is
explained on pages &1-64.

We identify our key stakeholder
groups as those with significant
interactions with our business model
and that we impact in the course of
our business operations, We describe
how aur usiness interacts with our
stakeholders, and the impacts of
these interactions, throughout this
Integrated Eeport. The Board strives
to gain stakeholder perspectives to
inform its decision making through
direct engagement, where feasible, as
well as through regular communication
with senior management.

operations on the
and the environm
We recognise that
strategy in a susta
to consider the cc
environmental im
During the vear, w
assessed and chal
progress against ¢
plan and our susts
Information on oL
plan and how we ¢
TCFD recomment
on pages 48-60.C
governance frame
Board's decisions i
as set out on page

The desirability o
maintaining a rep
standards of busi
Ensuring our busir
responsibhy is func
Ensuring our long
The Board assesse
the Group's cultur
aligns with the Gre
values and stratec
and oversees a co
framework, as set
that enablesther
the right decision:
This includes our €
delegated author

> Read our CoC ai
code-of-conduc
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Section 172(1) statement from the Directors

Principal decisions

The Board made several principal
decisions during 2023, where

the Directors had regard to the
relevant matters set out in section
172(1)(a)-(f) of the UK Companies
Act 2006 (the Companies Act)
when discharging their duties.

Here we outline how the

Board approached the CCBPI
acquisition and strategic portfolio
choices as principal decisions.

Further Sustainakility

Other
Information

Image: Leadership from the Coca-Cola systern and AEY

Acquisition of CCBPI
o
I 8% 3 ¥

On 23 February 2024, CCEP completed
the acquisition of CCBPI jointly with
AEV, underpinning CCEP's ambitious
mid-term strategic objectives and
solidifying CCEP's position as the
world's largest Coca-Cola bottler by
revenue. The proposed acquisition was
announced on 2 August 2023 with final
transaction documents approved by
the Board on 15 November 2023,

The Board and Mé&
(asubsetofthe B
powers from the €
inits decision makin
from its Comnmiti
topics, including;

« the ATC, whichr
transaction doc
the share purch:
the Bottler's Agr
with the Fairnes

« the Audit Comn
the proposed ce
financing arranc
CCEP's 60% stak

Our strategy key Ii{ﬁl Great brands % Great people @ Great execution :E?; Done sustainatly
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Section 172(1) statement from the Directors

Principal decisions

Frorn completion, the transaction

is EPS accretive, and by working with
ABEV and TCCC, there is oppartunity
to unlock even more potential.

To support its decision making,

the Board received an opportunity
overview of CCBPlincluding scale,
profitability, market environment,
recent performance, key challenges
and the current business plan,

This was supported by an overview

of partnership considerations including
the shareholders agreement with

AEY. Using these insights, the Board
concluded that the acquisition would
result invalue creation for shareholders,

Employees

Engaging and retaining cur people
is a key consideration, ensuring that
evaryone has a voice and feels valued.

The acquisition will create an even maore
diverse workforce and provides an
opportunity to scale knowledge, best
practice and talent across CCEP. We will
also benefit from combining our talent
pools as well as sharing learnings and
best practice on digital, technology,
procurement and sustainability
capabilities.

Franchisors

Franchisors are a key stakeholder
group, given the importance of
raintaining a strong relationship

and alignment with TCCC. Due to the
quality of interacticns between TCCC,
AEV and CCEPR, TCCC as seller of CCEPI
is confident in CCEP's ability to hold a
rnajority stake and work collaboratively
as a joint venture partner with AEY

Consumers

The acquisition enhances our consumear
reach. It also brings new brands to
CCEP's portfolic.

Communities, environment
and customers

CCBPI runs local community
programmes including a number of
partrarships to encourage the return
of plastic bottlas by consumers for
recycling via collection hukbs. CCBPI also
has a joint venture with Indorama in a
PET recycling scheme, consistent with
CCEP's approach in Indonesia at our
Amandina PET recycling plant.

Gaining deep local insights in all our
territories remains a priority, including
building experience and rmarket
understanding to meet specific
stakeholder needs.

Further Sustainakbility
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Principal risks

CCEP identifies, assesses and
manages the principal risks

we face as a business through
strong risk management across
the organisation, mitigating risk
and pursuing the benefit of

the related opportunities.

To support this, CCEP has developed

an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework to emibzed risk management
within our key functions, activities and
decision making.

An ovenview of our approach to risk
management is provided in the
diagram to the right.

o Governance

The Board has overall responsibility

for risk management at CCEP.
Owersight and monitoring is provided
by the Audit Committee with regular
reports from management The topic

is led at the ELT by the General Counsel
and Company Secretany working with
managemeant’s Compliance and Risk
Cormmittee (CRC) and the One Risk
Office, which brings together all leaders
involved inrisk, including the ERM team,
Each principal risk has a risk owner

at ELT level who is responsible for
considering whether the risk is properly
explained and has appropriate risk
mitigation plans in place,

The governance structure, including risk
management, is outlined on page 50

as part of cur TCFD disclosure.

Other
Information
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o Identify and assess

risks and opportunities
Our annual enterprise risk assessment
(ERA) provides a top down strategic
view of risks. The members of the
Board, ELT and over 100 senior leaders
carry out a risk survey and interviews to
discuss current risks, opportunities and
arnerging risks.
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Principal risks continued

The risk appetite statements

are reviewed annually by the CRC
and the Audit Committee. We are
in the process of operationalising
the statements through the
implementation of risk indicators.

o Communication

Our One Risk Office is a forum that
brings together first, second and third
line of defence representatives several
timnes a year to share risk management
knowledge across our functions and
business units, per the diagram below.
Emearging risk thames and extarnal
factors that could impact our business
are discussed. We regularly invite
external risk experts (e.g. risk analysts to
inform us on potential scenarios of the
Middle East crisis) and risk leaders from
other organisations to help us broaden
our understanding of risk.

Financial Further Sustainakility
Statements Information
o Reporting

Aninternal risk report is created

and shared on a regular basis with
leadership highlighting key risks,
emerging trends and mitigation
activities to support decision making.

The following pages set out a summary
of our principal risks based on the
findings of our most recent ERA

The Board has carried out a robust
assessment of these principal risks.

This surmmary is not intended to include
all risks that could impact our business and
the risks are presented in no particular
order. In this report, we show how each
principal risk links to, and undergins the
relevant aspect of our strategy.

Beyond principal risks, CCEP faces other
operational risks which are managed as
part of our daily routines. We are aware
that due to the economic downturn the
risk of fraud has increased. CCEP has
embarked on an entity wide fraud risk
assessment as part of its enhanced
fraud management plan.

Participants

1* Line of Defence 2™ Line of Defence 3™ Line of Defence
Business Central Risk Corporate
Representatives Functions Audit Staff

One Risk Office

Emerging risks and
external risk factors

Internal risk
mitigation activities

External benchmarking
for best practice in risk
management

Topics discussed
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Principal risks continued

The table below shows our principal risks

Causal factors Consequence
Principal Strategic Description themes (What gives themes (Potential
risk objective (What is the risk?) rise to the risk?) impact of the risk)
Business The risk of « Cyberattackor|T/ - Disruption to supply chains/
disruption [{U}] prolonged, large: operational technology  operations
scale natural andl/or system failure « Safety and wellbeing of
@ man made « Pandemics our people
glsruptive events Extreme weather « Brand and reputation
events (floods, fires) damage
» MNatural disasters = Financial impact

« Civil unrest, war
and terrorisrm

Understanding the change in trend
Confidence in cur capabilities to deal with major disruptions, proven and enhancec

Packaging [{ﬂ}] Therisksrelating o« Stakeholder concern - Brand and reputation
packaging waste and  about the damage from not kesping up
plastic pallution, and environmental impacts with community/customer

M7 single use plastic of single use plastic expectations
= packaging, litterand . Financial impact from
packaging waste increased taxes and on the

costs of doing business

» Regulatory and compliance
impacts

« Increased potential for

> activism and litigation

Packaging on
pages 41-43

Our strategy ke - o000 . : :
Ly [{D}] Great brands Yy Great people @ Great execution '_EE" Done sustainakbly
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Principal risks continued

Principal
risk

Strategic
objective

Legal,
regulatory
and tax

te & B &

Cyber and IT
resilience

Our strategy ke - o000 . :
. [ﬂj}] reat brands (Y Great people @ Sreat execution

Description
(What is the risk?)

The risks associated
with new or
changing legal,
regulatony or tax,
legislative
ervironment

and subseguent
obligations and
compliance
reguirements

The risks related to
the protection of
inforrmation systems
and data from
unauthorised
BCCess, misuse,
disrugtion,
madification, or
destruction

Financial
Statements

Causal factors
themes (What gives
rise to the risk?)

"

Increased regulation
on businass activities
Use of regulated
ingredients

Increased packaging
regulation

Commercial and
rmarketing restrictions
On sugar, sweeteners
and energy ingredients
Labelling reguirements
Cistrioution and sale
regulations
Ernplayrment regulation
Sugar & low and no
calorie sweetener,
enargy drinks
ingredients, packaging
and carbon taxes
Regulation of new
technology including Al

External attackers
seeking to ransom or
disrupt systerns and data
Dependency on third
parties

Intermal misuse (malicious
or accidental)

security and
maintenance of IT
infrastructure and
applications

Change prograrmimes

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Other
Information

Consequence
themes (Potential
impact of the risk)

Financial impact from new
ar higher taxes

Stricter sales and marketing
controls impacting margins
and market share

Punitive action from
regulators or other legislative
bodies

Increase to the cost of
compliance to meet stricter
ar new regulatory
requirements

Brand and reputation
damage

Financial impact fram
disruption Lo operations

of fines

Safety and wellbeing of
ernployees, customers or
business partnars who may
have their personal
information stolen

Brand and reputation damage

<

Dane sustainably
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Principal risks continued

Principal
risk

Economic
and political
conditions

Market

olo
DL Satagy Kay [{D}] Great brands OO0 Great people @ Great execution __:;?;

Strategic
objective

&

oS

Description
(What is the risk?)

The risks associated
with cperating in
volatile and
challenging
Macroeconomic
and geopolitical
conditions

The risks to
rmaintaining the
relationships with
Qur customers

and consumers

to meet their
changing demands,
needs and
expectations

Financial
Statements

Causal factors
themes (What gives
rise to the risk?)

"

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Other
Information

Consequence
themes (Potential
impact of the risk)

Low economic growth =

Or recession

High currency and
commodity price
wvialatility

High inflation
Political instabilityy
conflict

Civil unrest

Mew distribution

channels and platforms

Changing customer

and consurner habits .

Changes in the

competitive landscape -

Legislative and
regulatory changes

Financial impact from
reduced demand from
consumers and an increasing
COst base

Disruption to supply chains
from sanctions or impact on
shipping/trade routes

Financial impact

from reduced demand
from consumers
Decreasing margins and
market share

Inability to meet strategic
objectives

Brand and reputation damage

Dane sustainably
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Principal risks continued

Causal factors Consequence

Principal Strategic Description themes (What gives themes (Potential

risk objective (What is the risk?) rise to the risk?) impact of the risk)

Climate lv The risks and GHG emissions acrass Brand and reputation
change == opportunities our value chain, damage from not meeting

and water

>

Read about TCFD

associated with
managing the
impacts of climate
change and water
SCarcity across our
value chain

including emissions
from our production
facilities, CDE, the
transportation of our
products, packaging
and the ingredients
that we use, and
storage of our
products

Scarcity of water and
water guality issues
related to water
sources we and our
suppliers rely upon
Regulatory and
legislative initiatives
aimed at reducing
GHG emissions
Water usage
restrictions that

may e mandatory
at a local level during
scarcity peaks
Changing consumer
and investor
preferences

sustainakility targets
Financial impacts from future
carbon taxes and the
transition costs to low

EHG emissions

Regulatory and compliance
impacts related to TCFD
disclosures

The disruption of water
supply to our preduction
sites and key suppliers

Understanding the change in trend
Increasing nurmber of extrema weaather events, water scarcity and droughts expary

Our strategy ke - o000 . : :
Ly Great brands Yy Great people Great execution __:;?; Done sustainakbly
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Principal risks continued

Principal
risk

Description
(What is the risk?)

Strategic
objective

The risks relating

o our ability to
effectively adapt
and respond to
changes in customer
and consumer
preferences and
ehaviour towards
our products

Changes

in customer
and consumer
buying trends
and category
perception

Financial
Statements

Causal factors
themes (What gives
rise to the risk?)

« Legislative changes
driven by governmeant
or lobby groups

« External marketing
campaigns towards
alternative ingredients/
products
Publication of
guidelines or
recommendations
related to sugar
consurnption, energy
drinks or additives by

NHO or other health
authorities

« |Increased media
scrutiny and social
media coverage
impacting consurmer
perception on
ingredients and
packaging

+ Viability of alternatives
Lo sugar, sweeteners
and other ingredients
within our product
portfolio

« Consumer lifestyle

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Other
Information

Consequence
themes (Potential
impact of the risk)

= Financial impacts from
decline in sales volurmes
and market share (delisting,
demand decrease)

« Increased regulatory scrutiny

« Commercial, marketing and
labelling restrictions

« Increased taxes on our
products
Darmage to brand and
reputation

Understanding the change in trend
Increasing regulation, social media coverage of packaging and ingredients, and an
OUr customers and consumers.

Y

olo
DL Satagy Kay [{D}] Great brands OO0 Great people @ Great execution =

Dane sustainably
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Principal Strategic
risk objective
Business '-"-':0: E
transformation,
integration
and digital
capability
People and 000

it o

wellbeing

read about People

Description
(What is the risk?)

The risks relating
Lo the execution
of our strategic
and continuous
improvement
initiatives

The rizks relating

to the identification,
atfraction,
development, and
retention of talent,
Alsa risks relating to
the weliibeing of our
pecple (including
human rights and
rmodern slaveny)

Financial
Statements

Causal factors
themes (What gives
rise to the risk?)

Digital transformation

Identification and
execution of supply
chain improvermeants
Relationships with our

partners and franchisors
Ineffective coordination

between Bls and
central functions

Cha nge management

failure

Diversion of
management’s focus
away from our core
Business

Job design and
working conditions
Reward and
recognition
Misconduct by third
parties relating to
nurman fights

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Other
Information

Consequence
themes (Potential
impact of the risk)

+ Damage to brand and

reputation

Financial impacts fram a
decline in our share price
arising frorm not realising
the value creation fram
thesa initiatives

Industrial action and
disruption to our operations

Damage to brand

and reputation

Financial impacts from
adecline inemployee
engagement and productivity
Industrial action and disruption
to our operations

Punitive action fram regulators
or other legislative kxodies and
potential for litigation

Our strategy ke - o000 . : :
Ly Great brands Oy Great people Great execution __ég Done sustainakbly
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Principal risks continued

Causal factors Consequence
Principal Strategic Description themes (What gives themes (Potential
risk objective (What is the risk?) rise to the risk?) impact of the risk)
Relationships The risk of + Lack of effective » Darmage to brand
with TCCC misaligned engagerment, and reputation
and other Incentives or communication + Financial impacts, including
franchisors strategy with and/or discussion as a result of TCCC or other
CCC and/or with franchisors franchisors acting adversely
other franchisars to our interests with respect

ta our business relationship

Product @ The risks relating + Afailure in food safety, « Consurner health and
quality to ensuring the food quality, food safety concerns
wide range of defence or food « Reputation damage and
D‘:UI] products we fraud processes [ass of consurmer trust
produce are safe

« Regulatory and legal
Cconsequences
« Financial losses

for consumiption
and adhere to
strict food safety
and quality
requirements

Our strategy ke - o000 . : :
Ly Great brands Oy Great people Great execution __ég Done sustainakbly
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Principal risks continued

Internal control procedures

and risk management

CCEP's internal controls are designed
to manage rather than eliminate risk,
and aim to mitigate risk of fraud and
misstatements.

In addition to management
responsibility, the Board has overall
responsibility for the Cornpany's systemn
of internal controls and for reviewing
its adequacy and effectiveness. To
discharge its responsibility in a manner
that complies with law and regulation
and promotes effective and efficient
operation, the Board has established
clear operating procedures, lines of
responsibility and delegated authority,

The Audit Committes has specific
responsibility for reviewing the internal
control policies and procedures
associated with the identification,
assessment and reporting of principal
and emerging risks to check thay are
adeqguate and effective,

Owr internal control processes include:
« Board approval for significant
projects, transactions and
corporate actions

» Either senior management
or Board approval for all major
expenditure at the appropriate
stages of each transacticn

= Regular reporting covering
both technical progress and
our financial affairs

= Board review identification,
evaluation and management
of significant risks

Financial

Statements Information

Read more about our approach to
internal control and risk management
in the Audit Committee report on
pages M7-124

Cybersecurity

Risk management and strategy

Cur management and Board recognise
the critical importance that a robust
cybersecurity programme and
processes play in maintaining

the integrity of CCEP's business
applications and data Our Chief
Information Officer (Cl1O), and Chief
Information Security Officer (CISC)
lead our cybersecurity programme

and regularly report to cur Audit
Committee and Board on cylbersecurity
matters, through which we assess,
identify, and manage material risks
frorm cybersecurity threats, We seek

to promote a cybersecurity culture
inwhich everyone feels a responsibility
to prevent cyberattacks.

Cwur cybersecurity policies, standards,
procasses and practices are integrated
into our risk management framework,
which addresses the principal risks we
face as a business and how we identify,
assess and manage them, In addition,
our CISO and his team utilise a risk
analysis standard from the Information
Security Forurmn (ISF), which is aligned
with industry best practice standards
to identify and assess |T security risks
aswell as numerous ISF controls

and checks,

Further Sustainakbility
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Principal risks continued

Following an initial evaluation for risk
and business impact by aur IT Security
Director and in collaboration with the
CISO, relevant cybersecurity incidents
and threats are escalated to the
corporate Incident Managerment Team
(IMT) and communicated in a timely
manner to our Disclosure Committes
consisting of the Chairrman, CEQ, CFQ,
Group Cormpany Secretary and General
Counsel, and VP Investor Relations

& Corporate Strategy. The Disclosure
Committee is responsible for reviewing
and making the determination
regarding materiality and public
disclosures pursuant to the SEC

and exchange listing rules,

We use third party experts to support
on certain aspects of our cybersecurity
pragramme but maintain internal
leadership and oversight of all, including
in connection with our risk processes,
We work with other bottlers and
partners such as TCCC to share

insights on potential threats

We also monitor third party service
providers, through:

« Aninternal controls assessment of
our third party control framework

+ Governance and performance
through reporting requiremeants
far major vendors

+ Procurement third party risk
management processas

« |dentification and oversight by
our CISQ, supported by our Business
Continuity and Resilience (BCR)
team, of risks associated with those

Financial Further Sustainakility Other

Statements Information Information
thirct party service providers that are CISO who has bee
relevant to our Business Process and seven years, with 2
Technology (BPT) function cybersecurity and

« Improvements in researching the
emerging threat landscape

« |mproving the security of our external
attack surface; and

« Conducting due diligence into peers
and trading partners

As at the date of this report, we are not
aware of any risks from cybersecurity
threats, including as a result of any
previous cybersecurity incidents, that
have materially affected us, our
business strategy, results of operation
or financial condition. For additional
inforrmation concerning cybersecurity
risks we face, refer to the risk factor
subsection titled, "Cyber and IT
resilience” on page 71,

Governance

In addition to having a dedicated cyber
security team concerned with day to
day cybersecurity operations,
cybersecurity is also a critical area of
focus at both our executive and Board
levels, which helps ensure that the
Board executes its oversight of cyber
risks and that we consider security risks
in our business strategy.

Cur cybersecurity processes for
managing and assessing cybersecurity
risks, as described above, are managed
and overseen by our Information
Security Committes, which comprises
the CIO, CCO, Chief Data Privacy
Officer and other senior managemeant
members, and is coordinated by our

management. In &
chairs the Informe
Committes, helpit
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Viability statement

In accordance with provision 31
of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code),
the Directors have assessed
the prospects for the Group.
The Directors have made this
assessment over a period of
three years, which corresponds
to the Group's planning cycle.

Financial

Statements Information

The assassmant considered the Group's
prospects related to revenue, operating
profit, EBITDA and comparable free
cash flow. The Directors considered

the maturity dates of the Group's

debt obligations and its access to
public and private debt markets,
including its committed rmulti

currency credit facility. The Directors
also carried out a robust review and
analysis of the principal risks facing

the Group, including those risks that
could materially and adversely affect
the Group's business model, future
performance, solvency and liquidity.

Stress testing was performed on

a number of scenarios, including

different estimates for operating

profit and comparable free cash flow.

Amaong cother considerations, these

scenarios incorporated the potential

downside impact of the Group's
principal risks, including those

related to:

+ Legal and regulatory intervention,
including in relation to plastic
packaging

« Risk of cyber and social engineering
attacks

« Economic and political uncertainty
= Climate change and water

Further Sustainakbility
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Non-financial and sustainability information statement

This Integrated Report
contains a combination of
financial and non-financial
reporting throughout.

As required by sections 414CA
and 414CB of the Companies
Act 2006 (the Companies Act),
the following non-financial
and sustainability information
can be found as stated in the
following table.

These pages contain, where
appropriate, details of our
policies and approach to
each matter.

MNon-financial and sustainability information

Page(s)

Environmental matters

Emiployese matters

Social matters

Human rights

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters
Qur business madel

Risk and principal risks

Non-financial performance indicators
Climate-related financial information

Forward o
Forward o
Forward o
Forward o
TCFDon |
Forward o
Our stakel
Forward o
Forward o
Forward o
Our busine
Principal r
Risk factol
Sustainab
Key perfol
Sustainabi
Taking act
Principal r
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Business and financial review
Our business "Capex" or "Capil

CCEP is a leading consumer goods group in Western Europe and the Asia Pacific
region, making, selling and distributing an extensive range of primarily NARTD
beverages. We make, move and sell some of the world's most loved brands -
serving nearly 600 million consumers and helping over two million customers
across 31 countries grow We combine the strength and scale of a large,
multinational businass with an expert, local knowledge of the customers

we sarve and communities we suppart

Note regarding the presentation of alternative performance measures

We use certain alternative performance measures (non-IFRS performance
measures) to make financial, operating and planning decisions and to evaluate
and report performance. We believe these measuras provide useful information
to investors and, as such, where clearly identified, we have included certain
alternative performance measures in this document to allow investors to better
analyse our business performance and allow for greater comparability. To do

so, we have excluded items affecting the comparability of period over period
financial performance, as described below, The alternative performance
measures included herein should be read in conjunction with and do not
replace the directly reconcilable IFRS measures,

The alternative parformance measures in this document have been calculated
in a mannear consistent with thosa set forth in CCEP's 2022 Annual Report on
Form 20-F filed with the SEC on 17 March 2023, and the title of certain non-IFRS
meaasures has been updated to better reflect their comparabie nature,

For purposes of this document, the following terms are defined:
"As reported" are results extractad from our consolidated financial statements.

"Comparable" s defined as results excluding iterns impacting comparakbility,
which include restructuring charges, income arising from the ownership of certain
mineral rights in Australia, gain on sale of sub-strata and associated mineral rights
in Australia, net impact related to European flooding, gains on the sale of property,
accelerated amartisation charges, expenses related to legal provisions, impact

of a defined benefit plan amendment arising frem legislative changes in respect
of the minimum retirement age and acquisition and integration related costs.
Comparable volume is also adjusted for selling days.

"FX neutral" is defined as period results excluding the impact of foreign
exchange rate changes. Foreign exchange impact is calculated by recasting
current Year results at pror year exchange rates.
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Business and financial review continued

“Comparable ROIC" adjusts reportad praofit aftar tax for items impacting

the comparability of period over period financial performance and is defined

as comparable operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders divided

by the average of opening and closing invested capital for the year. Comparable
ROIC is used as a measure of capital efficiency and reflects how well the Group
generates comparable operating profit relative to the capital invested in

the business.

“Dividend payout ratio" is defined as dividends as a proportion of comparable
profit after tax,

Forward-looking alternative performance measures

Within this report, we provide certain forward-locking non-IFRS financial
information, which managernent uses for planning and measuring performance.
We are not able to reconcile forward-looking non-IFRS measures to reported
measures without unreasonable efforts because it is not possible to predict with
a reasconable degree of certainty the actual impact or exact timing of items that
may impact comparability throughout the vear,

Unless otherwise stated, percentage amounts are rounded to the nearest 05%.

Key financial
i

Year ended 31 December 2023
measu e A L £ Ve =

Further Sustainakbility

€ millions % change vs prior year

Comparable

As reported Comparable FX impact  As reported Comparable FX Impact  FX Neutral
Revenus 18302 18302 (396) 55% 5.5% (2.5%) B.0%
Cost of sales 11582 11,576 (249) 45% 459, (20%) &5%
Operating
expenses 4488 4353 (24) 6.0% 6.5% (2.0%) B5%
Operating profit 2339 2373 (51 12.0% 11.0% (25%) 13.5%
Profit after taxes 1669 1701 (39 Q5% 2 0% {25%) 11.5%
Diluted earnings
per share (€£) 363 37 (0.08) 10.5% 2.5% (25%) 120%

(A) Ses Supplermentary financial information - ltems impacting comparability on page 90 for a reconciliation of reported
ta comparable rasults.
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Business and financial review continued

Operational review

Comparable valume by cate
Revenue
Revenue totalled £18.3 billion, up 5.5% versus prior year on a reported basis, and b it ki b
80% on a comparable and FX neutral basis. Revenue per unit case increased by Sparkling
85% in 2023 on a comparable and FX neutral basis. Volume declined by 0.5% on Coca-Cola™
acomparable basis. Flavours, mixers and

Year ended 31 December 2023 Stills

Hydration

Revenue Reparted % FX neutral % : 2 = R
in rillicns of As reported Comparable change change RTD tea, coffee, juic
Europe 14,553 14553 755 ghe Total
AP 3749 3749 (1.0%) 55%  (A) RTD referstoready todr
Total CCEP 18,302 18,302 5.5% 8.0%

On a brand cateo

Comparable volume - selling day shift CCEP Sk mse St Dot 2022 on a compar

i : Zero Sugar, with ve

recast using current year selling days" 2023 2022 % change £ 3 3
Volume 3279 3,300 0.5%) and :nm:mapon, ine
Impact of selling day shift T = nfa [lavours, mixers ar
Comparable volume - selling day shift adjusted 3,279 3,300 en “omBanlchas
continuing tc gair
(A A unit case equals approsamately 5.678 fitres or 24 eight ounce servings, a typical volurme measure used in our industry. volurme, re ﬁel:ti!"lg

Hydration volumea
Water volume dec
as Skl rationalisat
and |beria (Aquab
increased by 9.0%,
benefiting Power:

Volumes were down 05% an both a reported and comparable basis. In

Europe, strong in-market execution alongside continued consumer demand

in our developed markets drove volume growth of 0.5%, despite mixed summer

weather. APl volumes were down 5.0% versus 2022 mainly driven by softer

consumer spending in indonesia and strategic stock keeping unit (SKUD

portfolio rationalisation, partly offset by continued underlying volume

growth in Australia and New Zealand reflecting strong in-market execution. RTD teas, coffees,
onacomparable |
partially offset by
(up 235%). Inthe .
since launch and i
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Business and financial review continued
Revenue by segment: Europe Feported revenus
Revenue Europe i DEIICII{-}G rraindy b
In millns of € except per T Additionally, rever
I T year resylts at :_-::’I- W 2023 20_2; % change ncrease If‘ﬁD|Er‘r“|E:
As reported 14,553 13,529 7.5% ’li_‘“GTt‘ir VG*LT‘”"ES
Adjust Impact of FX changes 147 n/a n/a i atakas
FX neutral 14,700 13,529 8.5% Reported revenue
Revenue per unit case 5.56 5.14 g.0% Ccontinued growth

Revenue in Europe totalled £14.6 billion, up 7.5% versus prior year on a reported
basis, and 85% on an FX neutral basis. Revenue per unit case in Europe increased
by 8.0% in 2023, on a comparable and FX neutral basis, reflecting positive headline
price increases and promoticnal optimisation alongside favourable mix.

Year ended 31 December 2023

Revenue by geography Reported FX neutral
Ir reiflicsens oF § As reéported % change % change
Great Britain 3235 50% &.5%
Germany 38 12.5% 12 5%
Iberia 3325 2.5% 5.5%
France™ 2321 1.0% 11.0%
Belgium and Luxembourg 1078 3.5% 3.5%
Metherlands 78 55% 55%
Morway 376 {70%) 5.52

Sweden gle:) (5.5%) 0%
lceland 84 (3.5%) 10%
Teotal Europe 14,553 7.5% 8.5%

(A) lberia refers to Spain, Portugal and Andarra
(B} France refers to continental France and Monaco.

Reported revenue in Great Britain was up 5.0% versus 2022, Foreign exchange
translation negatively impacted revenue growth by 1.5%. The increase in revenus
was mainly driven by revenue per unit case growth reflecting the headline price
increase implemented at the end of the second quarter and positive brand mix,
including growth of 165% in Monster and the successful launch of Jack Daniel's &
Coca-Cola. From a category perspective, Coca-Cola Zero Sugar, Fanta, Monster
and Dr Pepper showed strong volume growth.

impacted by the t
addition to favour
Sprite and Monste

Reported revenus
by revenus per un
implementad in tl
Maonster, Sprite an

Reported revenus
the Netherlands, I
exchange translat
in revenus was m:
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Revenue by segmr

Revenua API
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FX neutral
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50% on a compar:
MNew Zealand offs
spending in Indon




Financial
Statements

Governance and
Directors’ Report

Strategic
Report

Information

Business and financial review continued

Year ended 31 December 2023

Further Sustainakbility

Revenue by geography Reported FX neutral
In millicns of As reported % change % change
Australia 2385 2.0% Q5%
Mew Zealand and Pacific Islands &9 4 5% 11.0%
Indonesia and Papua MNew Guinea &85 (14.5%) (10.5%)
Total API 3,749 (1.0%) 5.5%

Revenue in the Australia, Pacific and Indonesian territories (Australia, New Zealand
and Pacific Islands, Indonesia and Papua New Guinea) was down 1.0% versus 2022,
Foreign exchange translation negatively impacted revenue growth by 6 5%,

The underlying increase in revenue was mainly driven by revenug per unit case
growth as a result of the headline price increase implemented across all our
markets during the first half of the year and promctional cptimisation in Australia.
Coca-Cola Zero Sugar, Monster and Powerade showed strong volume growth.

Cost of sales

Reported cost of sales totalled €11.6 billion, up 45% versus priar year on a reported
basis, and 65% on a comparable and FX neutral basis. Cost of sales per unit case
increased by 7 5% on a comparable and FX neutral basis,

Cost of sales

Year ended 31 December

Other
Information

Cost of sales in Eu
2022 on a compar
driven by continue
aluminium were tt
recycled PET and
the year Headline
response to these
drove increased re
Mix was also adver

Cost of sales in AF
comparable basis,
transportation and
concentrate costs

Operating expen:
Reparted operati
onareported bas

Operating expenses

In milligns of € FX impact ca

As reporte_d
Adjust: Total items ir

CUrTENt year tesults 2t prit 2023 2022 % change Adjust: Restructuri
As reported 11,582 11,096 4.5% Adjust: Acquisition
Adjust Total iterms impacting (&0 (23 Adjust: Litigation'™™
Adjust: Restructuring charges™ (9 197 9 Adjust: Accelerate:
Adjust; European flooding™® g 1 W Adjust: Defined be
Adjust: Litigation™ (&) = Comparable
Comparable 11,576 11,088 4.5% Adjust: Impact ojff(
Adjust Impact of FX changes 243 n/a n/a  Comparable and FX
Comparable and FX neutral 11,825 11,088 6.5% Arounts represent restn
Cost of sales per unit case 3.6 3.36 7.5% (B) Amounts represent costs

(&) Arnounts represant restructuring charges related to business transformation activities,

(B} Armaounts represent the incremental expanse incurred offset by the insurance recoveries collected as a result of the July 2021
floading events, which impacted the operations of cur production facilities in Chaudfontaine ard Bad Neuwenahr,

() Armounts relate ta the establishment of a provision in connection with an ongaoing labour law matter in Germany.

as well as integration cos!
31 December 2022,
{C) Arnounts relate to the es
(D) Arrecunts represent acoel
ard Bearn Suntary upan
{(E) Amounts represent the i




Financial
Statements

Governance and
Directors’ Report

Strategic

Report Information

Business and financial review continued

Operating expenses in Europe increased, driven by continued inflationary
pressures on labour and haulage, as well as optimised investment in trade
marketing expenses to suppoart our top line growth, With a third of cperating
expenses being variable in nature, the uplift involume reflecting resilient
consumer demand and strong in-market execution also Impacted our

cost base.

Similar to BEurope, comparable aperating expenses in AP also reflected
inflationary pressures on labour and haulage, and increased investment in
trade marketing expenses contributed to the growth in operating expenses,

Discretionary spend optimisation and the delivery of our previously announced
multi-year efficiency programme, which has now been closed cut, maintained
our cperating expenses as a percentage of revenue versus 2022

Restructuring

Restructuring charges of €9 million and £85 million were recognised within
reported cost of sales and reported operating expenses, respectively, for the
yvear ended 31 December 2023 related principally to severance charges arising
from various transformation initiatives.

Restructuring charges of £19 million and €144 million were recognised within
reported cost of sales and reported operating expanses, respectively, for the
yvear ended 31 Decermber 2022, which are primarily attributable to €82 million
of expense recognised in connection with the transformation of the full service
vending operations and related initiatives in Germany.

Effective tax rate
The reported effective tax rate was 24% and 22% for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively.

The increase in the reported effective tax rate to 24% in 2023 (2022: 22%) is largely
due to the increase in the UK statutory tax rate to a weighted average of 235%
and the review of uncertain tax positions.

The comparable effective tax rate was 24% and 22% for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively.

Further Sustainakbility
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Year ended 31 December

ROIC
Iy rel s B 2023 2022
Reported profit after tax 1,669 1521
Taxes 534 434
Finance costs, net 120 114
Mon-operating items 16 15
Reported operating profit 2,339 2,086
Iterns impacting comparabilin 34 52
Comparable operating profit® 2,373 2,138
Taxes'B {570 {4740
Mon-contralling interest (132
Comparable operating profit after tax attributable to
shareholders 1,803 1,651
Dpening borrowings 1ess cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments 10,26 11,4675
Opening equity attributable to sharehclders 7447 7033
Opening invested capital 17,711 18,708
Closing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments 240% 10,264
Closing equity attributable to shareholders 7976 7447
Closing invested capital 17,385 17,711
Average invested capital 17,548 18,210
ROIC 9.5% 8.4%
10.3% 9.1%

Comparable ROIC

(A} Reconciliation from reported to comparable eperating profit is included in the Supplementary Financial Information - ltems

impacting comparability section on pages #1-%2.

(B} Tax rate used is the comparable effective tax rate for the year (2023 24%, 2022 22%).

Information
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Business and financial review continued

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainakbility

Comparable free cash flow

ir miillions ¢ 2023 2022
Net cash flows from nperating activities 2,306 2,932
Less Purchases of property, plant and equipment (&72) (500
Less: Purchases of capitalised software {1400 (103)
Add: Proceeds from sales of property, plant and

equipmant 101 il
Less: Payments of principal on lease obligations (148) {153
Less: MNet interest payments 124) (130)
Adjust Items impacting comparabilib™! {R%) {252)
Comparable free cash flow 1,734 1,805

(a) During the year ended 31 Decemiber 2023, the Group has received net of tax cash proceads of £89 million in connection with the
royalty income arising from the ownership of certain mineral rights in Australia, During the year ended 31 Decemiber 2022, €252
milllien of cash procesds were received from the reglonal tax authorities of Bizkaia (Basque Reglon), In connection with the
ongoing dispute in Spain regarding the refund of historical VAT arnounts related to the period 2013-2014, The proceeds associated
with these specific events have been included within the Group's net cash flows from operating activities for the years ended
31 Decernber 2023 and 31 Decarmnber 2022, respectively. Given the unusual nature and to allow for better period over period
comparability, our comparable free cash flow measure excludes the cash impact related to these iterms.

In 2023, total borrowings decreased by €511 million. This was driven by repayments
on third party borrowings of €1,15% million and payments on the principal and
interest from lease obligations of €165 million, partially offset by proceeds from
third party barrowings of €594 million, Movement as a result of fair value hedges
resulted in an increase of borrowings by €40 miillicn: Additions and other
movemeants on leases further increased borrowings by €191 million. All this was
partially offset by currency translation and other non-cash changes of £112 million.

The following bonds were repaid on maturity: US5850 million 0.5% Notes 2023,
repaid in May 2023; USS25 million 434% Nates 2023 and USS25 million 4.34% Notes
2023, both repaid in October 2023; and €350 million 2.625% Notes 2023, repaid in
Movermber 2023. In Decaemiber 2023, the Group issued €700 million 3.875%

Motes 2030 in connection with the proposed acquisition of CCEPI, which mature
in December 2030,

Other
Information
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Business and financial review continued

The ratio of net debt to comparable EBITDA s used by invastors, analysts and
credit rating agencies to analyse our operating performance in the context of
targeted financial leverage, and so we provide a reconciliation of this measure
MNet debt enables investors to see the economic effect of total borrowings, fair
value impact of related hedges and other financial assets/liabilities, cash and
cash eqguivalents, and short-term investments in total. Comparable EBITDA

is calculated as EBITDA after adding back items impacting the comparability
of year over yvear financial performance.

Comparable EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures, or future
requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments. Further,
comparable EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirernents for,
our working capital needs, and, although depreciation and amortisation are
non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amaortised are likely

to be replaced in the future and comparable EBITDA does not reflect cash
requirements for such replacements.

Net debt to comparable EBITDA

Comparable EBITDA in 2023 totalled €31 billion and increased relative to 2022
by €217 million. The increase versus 2022 was primarily driven by the increase in
reported operating profit, reflecting increased revenue. The ratio of net debt to
comparable EBITDA s 3.0 versus 35 in 2022 reflecting the decrease in net debt
due to the repayment of borrowings and the increase in comparable EBITDA

Dividends

In line with our commitments to deliver long-term value to shareholders,

we paid a first half interim dividend of €0.67 per share in May 2023 and a second
half interim dividend of €117 per share in December 2023, based on comparable
diluted earnings per share, maintaining a payout ratic of approximately 50% in
lime with our dividend paolicy. For the year ended 31 December 2023, dividend
payments totalled €841 million (2022; €763 million).

Share buyback
Mo Shares were repurchased in 2023 and 2022

Further Sustainakbility Other
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Supplementary financial information - Items impacting comparability - Reported to comparable
The following provides a summary reconciliation of iterms impacting comparability for the yvears ended |

Full year 2023

Profit after Diluted sarnings

Full year 2022

which is catculated nnor to raurding Operating profit taxes per share (€) which is calculated priorton
As reported 2,339 1,669 3.63 As reported

Items impacting comparability Items impacting cor
Restructuring charges™ 94 79 Restructuring charae
Acquisition and integration related costs'™® 12 14 Acquisition and intec
European flooding™ (93 (7 European flooding'™
Coal royalties™ 18) (12) Coal rayalties™
Property sale'® (54) (38) Defined benefit plan
Litigation™ 17 12 Comparable
Accelerated amortisationt®? 27 1%

Sale of sub-strata and associated mineral rights't (35 (35)

Comparable ' 2,373 1,701

(4} Amounits represant restructuring charges related to business transformation activities.

(B} Amounts represent costs incurred in connection with the proposed acquisition of CCBRI for the year ended 37 Decerniber 2023
as well & integration costs related to the acquisition of CCL recognised during the year ended 31 Decerniber 2022,

(3 Arnounts represant the incremental expense incurred offset by the insurance recoveries collected as a result of the July 2021
flooding events, which impacted the operations of cur production facilities in Chaudfontaine and Bad Mewsnahr.

(D) Amounts represent ravalty incame arising from the ownership of certain mineral rights in Australia. The rovalty income
was recognised as "Other income” in our consolidated income staterment for the years ended 31 Decemizer 2023 and
3 Decermnber 2022, respectively,

Operating profit by segment
Operating profit Europe
I relilicns af =3 faet e L Year ended 31 December

{E} Armounts represent gains
Other incormea” inour co
(F) Arnounts relate 1o the es
{3} Armourts represent accel
and Beamn Suntary upon i
(H} Arnounts represent the ¢
The transaction comghety
statement for the year et
() Armounts represent the ir

Operating profit Af

by recasting currant year resuits 3t prior year rates 2023 2022 % Change Yy FECASTING CLren

As reported 1,842 1,529 20.5%  Asreported

Adjust Total items impacting 46 141 nfa  Adjust Total iterns ir
comparability comparaklity
Comparable 1,888 1,670 13.0%  Ceomparable

Adjust Impact of FX changes % n/a nfa Adjust Impact of FX
Comparable and FX neutral 1,907 1,670 14.0% Comparable and FX

The Company's Strategic Report is set out on pages 1-90. The Strategic Report was approved by the Bo

Damian Gammell,
Chief Executive Officer
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Chairman'’s
introduction '

On behalf of the Board, | am
pleased to present the corporate
governance report forthe year
ended 31 December 2023.

Thereport describes CCEP's
corporate governance framework
and procedures, and summarises
the work of the Board and its
Committees to illustrate how

we have discharged our duties
during the year.

It was another busy yvear with the
Board taking the opportunity to

visit our colleagues in Australia and
New Zealand and witness first hand,
once again following the Board's visit

to Indonesia in 2022, the positive
integration and successful collaboration
with our teams in AP

It was also announced in August 2023
that CCEP, together with AEV, had
entered into a non-binding Letter of
Intent to jointly acquire CCBPI, which
we are delighted to say completed
on 23 February 2024, The acquisition

Financial

Statements Information

of CCBPI solidifies CCEP's position
as the world's largest Coca-Cola battler
by revenue

Some key areas of focus and decisions of
the Board during 2023 are cutlined belcw.

Managing and mitigating the effects
of the macroeconomic environment
2023 was another challenging year

as a result of the effects of the war

in Ukraine, the conflict in the Middle
East and other econcmic factors.

The Board provided strategic oversight
and guidance to management to
mitigate the impacts arising from
commodity prices and inflationary
pressures, Adaptability and agility during
2023 were key and will continue to be
important into 2024,

Culture

The Board plays a critical ralein
shaping the culture of the Company
by promoting growth focused and
values-based conduct and aims to
create a culture where everyone feels
welcome to be themselves and that
they are valued and belong. To monitor
this during the year, the Board received
outputs from engagement surveys,
CoC reporting, diversity statistics

and health and safety indicators

Health, safety and wellbeing

The Board's key pricrity remained the
safety of our pecple, customers and
communities. A numier of measures
continued to be putin place to support
the physical and mental weallbeing and
health of cur people. This included
enhancing the number of wellbeing
First Aiders to a new total of over 1,250,

Further Sustainakbility
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Board of Directors

Our Board of
Directors” is diverse,
experienced and
knowledgeable,
bringing together
the skills needed

for our long-term
success in line with
our skills matrix.

Total number of
Directors on the Board

(A) Based on Directors
as at 29 February 2024,

(B} Excluding the Chairrman,

Further Sustainakbility
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Directors' biographies

As at 31 December 2023,
our Board consisted of

our Chairman, CEO and

15 Non-executive Directors.

Biographies of our Board
members and details of Board
and Committee changes made
up until the publication of this
report are set out on pages
95-99,

> Find out more at
cocacolaepcomy/board-of-directors

Governance and
Directors' Report
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Sol Daurella
Chairman
Date appointed to the Board May 2016

Further Sustainakbility Other
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Damian Gammell
Chief Executive Of
Date appointed to th

Committees @ Q-

Committees

Key strengths/experience

« Experienced director of public
companies opaerating in an
international ervironment

« Adeep understanding of fast
moving consumer goods (FMCE)
ard our markests

« Extensive experience at Coca-Cola
bottling companies

« Strong international strategic and
commercial skills

« Sol and the Daurella family have been
part of the Coca-Cola systerm for over 70
years, when the first bottling agreement
was signed in Spain in 1951

Key external commitments

Co-Chairman and member of the
Executive Committes of Cobega, 5.4,
Executive Chairman of Olive Partners, 5A,
director of Equaterial Coca-Cola Bottling
Company, 5.1, independent non-executive
director and a member of the
Appointments, Remuneration and
Responsible Banking, Sustainakility and
Culture Committees of Banco Santander

Previous roles

Warious roles at the Daurella family's
Coca-Cola bottling business, director of
Banco de Sabadell Ebro Foods, Acciona
and Co-Chairrnan of Grupo Cacaolat

Key strengths/exp
= Strategy, risk mar
cdevelopment anc
« Aision, custormer
trarsformational
« Developing peop
promoting sustai
= Over 25 yearsof |
experience and ir
of the non-alcokg
(MNARTD) industr,
Coca-Cola systen

Key external comn
MNSA,

Previous roles
Beverage Group Fr
Group and CEQ of .
tManaging Director
and a numiber of ot
roles in the Coca-Ce
Russia, Australia anc

Key to Committees ° Affiligted Transaction Committes ° Audit Commities . Ervironmental, Social and Govemance Committes ‘
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John Bryant
Independent Non-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board Jan 2021

José Ignacio Comenge
Mon-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board May 2016

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

MNathalie Gaveau
Independent Non-
Date appointed to th

Committees

Committees ~@c v J
Key strengths/experience

+ Chairman/CEQ of a multinational
public company

« Expert instrategy, mergers and
acquisitions, restructuring and
portfolio transfarmation

+ 30years experience in consumer goods

« Strong track record of finance and
operational leadership, experience
in overseeing information technology

+ Engaged in the cybersecurity
strategy process

Key external commitments

Chairman of the Board and of the
Momination Committee and mamboer

of the Remuneration Commities of
Flutter Entertainment ple, non-executive
director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the Audit,
Corporate Responsibility and Momination
Committees of Compass Group plc and
non-executive director and member of
the Audit and Mominating and Corporate
Governance Committees of Ball Corporation

Previous roles

Executive Chairrman and CEQ of Kellogg
Company having previously held a variety
of senior roles in the Kellogg Company,
strategy advisor at AT, Kearnsy and
Marakon Associates and non-executive
director of Macy's Inc,

Committees ama e n@
Key strengths/experience
« Extensive experience of the
Coca-Cola system
+ Broad board experience across
industries and sectors
- knowledgeabls about the industry
in our key market of lberia
+ |nsights in formulating strategy drawn
from leadership roles in varied sectors

Key external commitments

Director of Olive Partners, 3.4, ENCE
Energia y Celulosa, 5.4, Comparia Vinicola
del Norte de Espafa, SA, Ebro Foods 5.4,
Barbosa & Almeida SGP5, 5.4, Mendibea
2002, 5L and Chairman of Ball Beverage
Can lberica, 5.L

Previous roles

Senior roles in the Coca-Cola system,

Axh S A Aguila and Heineken Spain and
YWice-Chairman and CEC of MMA Insurance

Key strengths/exp

» Successfulteche
and investor

+ Expertine-comr
trarsformation, ir
data and social

« International con
goods experienct

Key external comn
MNon-executive dire
Cormmerce Inc, Sor
World and Senior A

Previous roles

Founder and CEC ¢
Interactive Busines:
TBWA Teqguila Grou
E-business and CRb
Med, co-founder ar
of Pricerminister, Fir
Lazard, and non-ax
HEC Paris and Calid
of Tailwind Internat
acquisition compar

Key to Committees ° Affiliated Transaction Committee ° Audit Committee . Erwironmental, Social and Governance Committes ‘
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Mary Harris
Independent Non-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board May 2023

Committees PN ] - )
Key strengths/experience

+ Toplevel strategic outlcok with
international and consumer focus

« Significant non-executive director
experence gained from aother major
listed companies

» [Deep understanding of remuneration
requirements gained from previous
Remuneration Committee chair roles

Key external commitments
Cesignated non-executive director for
workforce engagement and a member
of the Remuneration Commities of
Reckitt plc and a Supervisory Board
memiber at HAL Haolding N.Y.

Previous roles

MNom-executive director at [TV plc,
Lnibail-Rodamco Westfield 5E,
Sainsbury's, TNT Express and TINT MW,
and Partner at Mckinsey & Company

Thomas H. Johnson

Independent Non-executive Director and
Senior Independent Director

Date appointed to the Board May 2016

Committees AT A E .°
Key strengths/experience

« Chairman/CED of international
public companies
« Manufacturing and distribution expertise
« Extensive international management
experience in Europe
« Investment and finance experience

Key external commitments
CEC of The Taffrail Group, LLC and non-
executive director of Universal Corporation

Previous roles

Chairman and CEC of Chesapeake
Corporation, President and CEC of
Fiverwood International Corporation,

and director of Coca-Caola Enterprises, Ing,
Genln Corporation, Mirant Corporation,
ModusLink Global Sclutions, Inc, Superior
Essex Inc. and Tumi, Inc.

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

Dagmar Kollmann
Independent Non-
Date appointed to th

Committees

Key strengths/exp

= Expertinfinance
listed groups

« Thorough unders
markets and mer

« Extensive comms
relations experier
= 5trong executive
experience in glo
« Risk oversight aru
QoOVErnance expe

Key external comn
Chairman of the Su
of Citigroup Global
member of the Sur
Unibail-Rodamco-y
Deutsche Telekom
director of Faysafe
and Commissioner
Monopolies Comm

Previous roles

CEC and Country +
Awustria for Morgan |
boards of Morgan S
and Morgan Stanle
Ltd in London, Asso
in London, non-exe
IPEX-Bank and Dec
Supervisory Boards
Heoldings AG and D
Ffandbriefbank AG

Key to Committees ° Affiligted Trarsaction Cornmitiee ° Audit Commitiee . Erwironmental, Social and Governance Committes ‘
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Nicolas Mirzayantz
Independent Non-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board May 2023

Mark Price
Independent Non-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board May 2019

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

Nancy Quan
Mon-executive Dire
Date appointed to th

Committees @@~ r

Committees

Key strengths/experience
« Ower 30 years of strategic, operational
and business transformation experience
« Adeep understanding of the
FMCG incustry
» Strong sustainatility and ESG experience

Key external commitments
Cirector of Puig S.L

Previous roles

YWarious senior roles at IFF, including
President, Nourish Division and Divisional
CEQ, Scent Division. Previously served on
the Board of the International Fragrance
Association and was a Cultural Leader at
the Waorld Economic Forum

Committees o @@ r
Key strengths/experience

+ Extensive experience in the
retail industry

« Adeep understanding of
international trade

- Strong strategic and sustainable
developrment skills

Key external commitments
Member of the Housa of Lords,
Founder of WorkL, Chair of Trusteeas
af the Fairtrade Foundation UK and
President and Chairman of the
Chartered Management Institute

Previous roles

Managing Director of Waitrose

and Deputy Chairman of John Lewis
Partnership, non-executive director

and Deputy Chairman of Channal 4 TV
and Minister of State for Trade and
Investment and Trade Palicy, Chair of
Business in the Community, The Prince's
Countryside Fund and Member of
Council at Lancaster University

Key strengths/exp
= Extensive knowle
Coca-Cola systen
« Significant leader
spanning innowvat
trends, research &
and supply chain
« Experience appli
geographical foo

Key external comn
Executive Vice Pres
Techmnical and Innoy
a memiber of the Li
Board of Directors,
Adhvisory Board for 1
California Davis MEB,
FIRST (For Inspiratit
of Science and Tect
Advisory Beard

Previous roles

Yarious senior roles
Chief Technical Off
MNorth Armmerica, Glol
Development Offic
Innovation, Researc
Genaral Manager fe
Group, Vice Preside
Development, Pacil
for the Shanghai, Ja
and Development (

Key to Committees ° Affiliated Transaction Committee ° Audit Committee . Erwironmental, Social and Governance Committes ‘
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Directors' biographies continued

Dessi Temperley
Independent Non-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board May 2020

Appointed 1 January 2024

Guillaume Bacuvier
Independent Non-executive Director
Date appointed to the Board Jan 2024

Committees s e v R Committees AT A E N R

Key strengths/experience Key strengths/experience

» Financial and technical « Valuable perspectives on consumer
accounting expertise behaviours and strategy

« Strong commercial insights and
knowledoe of European markets

« International consumer brands
aexperience

« Ekilled intechnology

Key external commitments
MNon-executive director and Chairman

of the Audit Comimittes of Cimpress plc,
non-executive director and member of the
Audit and Risk Committees of Philip Maorris
International Inc. and member of the
Supervisory Board of Corbion NV

Previous roles

Group CFO of Beiersdorf AG, member of
the Supervisory Board of Tesa 5E, Head of
Imvestor Relations at Mestls, CFO of MNestle
Purina EMENA and CFO of Nestle South
East Europe, and finance roles at Cable &
Wireless and Shell

+ Brings awealth of marketing
effectivensss insights from across
Europe and APAC

+ Strong track record of commercial and
technological business transformation

Key external commitments

CEQ of Worldpanel, Kantar's consurmer
panel market research division, and
non-executive director of Berger-Levrault

Previous roles

CEC of dunnhumby, a number of
senior positions at Google and Orange
and non-executive director of Attest
Technologies Limited and VEON Ltd

Other
Information

Key to Committees ° Affiligted Trarsaction Cornmitiee ° Audit Commitiee . Erwironmental, Social and Governance Committes ‘
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Senior management

1. Nik Jhangiani 2. Clare Wardle 3. José Antonio Echeverria
4. Peter Brickley 5. Stephen Lusk 6. Ana Callol 7. Victor Rufart
8. Veronique Vuillod 9. Leendert den Hollander 10. John Galvin
11. Francesc Cosano 12. Stephen Moorhouse 13. Peter West
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Senior management continued

Our senior management
team and Damian Gammell
together constitute the
members of the Executive
Leadership Team (ELT).

Nik Jhangiani
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Appointed May 2016

Further Sustainakbility

Milke has more than 30 years of finance
experience, including 20 vears within

the Coca-Cola system, previously as Senior
Vice President and CFO for Coca-Cola
Enterprises, Inc. Mik started his careear

in New York at accountancy firm Deloitte
& Touche before spending two years

at Bristol-Myers Sguibb as Internaticnal
Senior Internal Auditor. He then joined the
Colgate-Palmolive Company in New York
where he was appointed Group Financial
Director for the Migerian operations, before
moving to TCCC in Atlanta, He is a Certified
Public Accountant. Mik is also the culture
and heritage inclusion executive sponsor

at CCEP.

Clare Wardle
General Counsel and Company Secretary
Appointed July 2016

Clare leads legal, risk, compliance, security
and company secretariat. Prior to joining
CCEPR, she was Group General Counsea|
and Company Secretary at Kingfisher pilc,
Commercial Director, General Counsel
and Company Secretary at Tube Linas
and held senior roles at the Royal Mail
Group, She began her career as a barrister
before moving to Hogan Lovells: Clare is
the Senior Independent Director of The
City of London Investrment Trust plc and
chair of the Royal British Legion Industries'
Developrment Board. Clare is also the
LGETO+ inclusion executive sponsor

at CCEP,

Other
Information

José Antonio Eche
Chief Customer Sei
Supply Chain Office
Appointed Septembe

lose Antonio leads:
supply chain and cu
focused on creatine
for cur customers, s
expanded and sust
of drinks and packa
part of the Coca-(
serving in multiple r
President of Strate:
Projects for the lbe
Vice President, Stra
for Supply Chain ac
is also the disability
sponsor at CCER,

Peter Brickley
Chief Information ¢
Appointed Novemben

Peter leads the bus
technology functic
steering CCEPs inv
salutions. Peter has
experience leading
businesses including
and BAT, Before CC
and Managing Dires
Services at SABMille
the Brain and Spine
designate of the Ct
Praviously, Peter we
Building Society.
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Senior management continued

Victor Rufart
Chief Integration Officer
Appointed October 2016

Victor leads business strategy and businass
transformation. Prior to joining CCER,

he was CEC of Coca-Cola lberian Partners,
S.A and spent 25 years at Cobega, SA
While with Cobega, 5.4 he held a number
of senior roles including Director of

MNew Business, Head of Finance, advisor

in the formation of the Equatorial
Coca-Cola Bottling Company and

Head of Tax Planning.

Véronique Vuillod
Chief People and Culture Officer
Appointed November 2020

Véronigue heads CCEP's People and
Culture function, Having joined the
Coca-Cola system and bottling cperations
25 years ago, she has worked inmany
hurman resources (HR) positions across
business units, commercial and supply
chain functions oversesing HR strategy
and partnering with business leaders, as
well as specialist positions in talent, people
growth and engagement, She bbegan her
career as a management consultant with
FricewaternouseCoopers, She is an
achvocate for human centred workplaces,
supports the prormotion of inclusion and
diversity, HR best practices in leadership
and workplace, and innovations networks.

Leendert den Hollander
General Manager, France

and Morthern Europe
Appointed September 2020

Further Sustainakbility

Leandert is responsible for CCEF's business
units in France and Morthern Europe, which
includes our businesses across France,
Benelux and Nordics. Previously,

he was General Manager of Great Britain,
Prior to CCEP, Leendert was CEQ of
Young's Seafood and Managing Director

at Findus Group Ltd. Earlier in his career,
Leendert spent 15 years at Procter &
Gamble in senicr marketing positions.
Leendert is also the gender balance

and equality executive sponsor at CCEP

John Galvin
General Manager, Germany
Appointed June 2022

John leads CCEP's business unit in
Zermany. lohn joined the business in 2019
and, pricr to his appointmeant as General
Manager of Germany, held the role of Vice
President, Sales and Marketing for
Zermany. Previously, lohn led Coca-Cola
'Igecef-c's business in Pakistan, and he began
his career with Diageo. He has held sales,
rmarketing and general management
roles across Europe and Asia, and brings
significant international experience and
leadership in the beverage sector to CCEP.

Other
Information

Francesc Cosano
General Manager, ||
Appointed May 2016

Francesc leads CCE
Portugal and Andor
Operations Director
of Coca-Cola Iberia
has been part of the
for over 30 years an
of sales manageme
as Sales Director the
Manager, He has als
Director forthe Leg
in Anglo Espafiola d

Stephen Moorhous
General Manager, C
Appointed Septembe

Stephen is responsi
unit in Great Britair
experience in the C
leading business of
chain Stephen has

senior executive ral
most recently as Ge
Morthern Eurgope. P
worked overseas fo
the LS and Asian Pe
is a mamber of the

Institute of Grocen,
British Soft Drinks &
also the multi-aeneg
executive Sponsor &




Strategic Governance and Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Report Directors' Report Statements Information Information

Corporate governance report

Governance framework

Cur corporate governance framework is summarised below, with further detail provided on the followi

» Delegation >

Audit Monitors the integrity of the Group's financial s
Committee and results announcements, the effectivensss ¢
controls and risk management, as well as manas
external auditor relationship and material CoC)
Environmental, Oversees performance against CCEP's strategy
Social and goals for ESG, reviews ESG risks facing CCER, in
Governance health and safety and climate change risks, and
(ESG) practices by which these risks are managed anc
Committee mitigated, recommends to the Board for apprc
sustainability cormnmitrents and targets, and m
B?ard of and reviews public policy issues that could affe
Stakeholders Directors and CoC matters.
Including Momination Sets selection criteria and recommends candid
our people, Committee appointrment as Independent Non-executive O
shareholders, reviews Directors' suitability for election/re-elec
franchisors, shareholders, considers Directars' potential con
CONSUMers, interest, oversees development of a diverse ser
customers, management pipeline and Director succession,
5 ]pp”erg and oversees wider people matters for the ::_:JTIOU[:'-‘, ir
mmunit culture, diversity, succession, talent and leaderst
Remuneration Recommends remuneration policy and framew
Committee the Board and sharehalders, recommends remi
packages for members of the Board to the Boe
approves remuneration packages for senior man,
reviews workforce remuneration and related pe
principles, and governs employee share scharme
Affiliated Has oversight of transactions with affiliates and
Transaction recommendations to the Board (affiliates arae b
Committee of 5% or more of the securities or other owners!
(ATC) interests of CCEP).
Ad hoc « [Disclosure Committee
committees « Results and Dividend sub committee

< Accountability <
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Statement of compliance

The governance framework of the
Company is set out In its Articles

of Association (the Articles) and

the Sharehclders' Agreement.

These provide a high level framework
for the Company's affairs, governance
and relationship with its stakeholders
including its shareholders. The Articles,
Shareholders' Agreement and
freguently asked guestions about

the governance framework are
available on the Company's website at

cocacolaep.com/about-us/governance.

Statement of compliance

with the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code)

We follow the Code on a comply

or explain basis. CCEP is not subject
to the Code, as it has a standard listing
of ordinary shares on the Official List.
However, we have chosen to comply
with the Code where possible and
explain areas of non-compliance to
demoaonstrate our commitment to good
governance as an integral part of our
culture. Save as set out below, CCEP
complied with the Code during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

A copy of the Code s available on the
Financial Reporting Council's (FRC)
website: www froorguk/librany/
standards-codes-policy/carparate-
governance/uk-corporate-
governance-code/

Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Statements Information Information
Chairman Remuneration

Code provision @

The Chalrman, Sol Daurella, was

not considered independent on her
appointment. However, we benefit
fram her vast knowledge of, and long-
term commitment to the Coca-Cola
system, and her extensive experience
and leadearship skills, gained from her
roles as director and CEQ of large
public and private institutions across
rmany different sectors.

Annual re-election

Code provision 18

Sol Daurella, the Chairman, will not be
subject to re-alection during her nine
vear tenure following the completion
of the merger in 2014. This recognises
the importance of her extensive
experience and knowledge of the
beverage industry, and the significant
shareholding of Olive Partners, 5A
(Olive Partners) in the Company.

CCEP follows governance best practice,
with all other Directors standing for
re-election annually at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM).

Code provision 32
The Rermunearatiol
composed solely ¢
it comprises a maj
Shareholders' Agre
the Remuneratior
at least one Direct

« Olive Partners, fi
at least 15% of

« European Refre
Company (ER),
foraslong asitc
the Company

The Remuneratiol
independent Chal
the nominated Di
understanding of

Remuneration

Code provision 33
The Remuneratiol
not solely respons
remuneration of €
CEQ. Instead, the
any Director whos
is linked to the de
their remuneratio
Mon-executive Di
recommendation
Committee and ft
analysis and debal
has followed all of
Committee's reco
All executives rect
from decision mal
executive remune
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Corporate governance report continued

Board Committees

CCEP has a number of Committesas
whose purpose and compaosition are
broadly comparable to the
requirements of the Nasdag Rules for
domestic LS companies. However,
ather than the Audit Committes,
committes meaembers are not all INEDs,
althauah i all cases the majority are,
Each committee has its own terms of
reference (broadly equivalent to a
charter document) which are reviewed
annually and can be found on our
website at cocacolasp.com/about-us/
governanca/committess.

Audit Committee

More infarmation about the Audit
Committee is set out in its report,
including compliance with the
requirernents of Rule 104-3 under

the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, and Rule 5605(c)(2)(A) of
the Nasdag Rules,

The Audit Committes comprised

only INEDs (who are also deemed
independent under the Nasdag Rules).
Howeaver, the responsibilities of the
Audit Committee (except for
applicable mandatory responsibilities
under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act) follow
the Code's recommendations rather
than the Nasdag Rules, although they
are broadly comparable, One of the
Masdadg's similar requirements for the
Audit Committee states that at least
one member of the Audit Committee
should be a financial expert.

The Board determinad that Dessi
Temperley, John Bryant and Dagmar
Kollmann possess such expertise and
are therefore deemed financial experts
as defined in Item 164 of Form 20-F. It
was further determined that none of
the Audit Committee members had
participated in the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

Code of Conduct

The Nasdag Rules require relevant
domestic US companies to adopt and
disclose a code of conduct applicable
to all Directors, officers and employees.
The CCEP ColZ applies to all employees,
Cirectors and the senior financial
officers of the Group. Our CoC seeks to
ensure that we act with integrity and
accountability in all our business
dealings and relationships. Qur policies
also drive compliance with relevant
legislation. The CoC covers issues such
as anti-bribery, data protection,
environmental regulation, human rights,
health, safety, wellbeing and respect faor
others. It aligns with the UN Global
Compact, the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, the UK Bribery Act, the
Code, the EU General Data Protection
Regulation, the Spanish and
Fortuguese Criminal Codes and Sapin |,

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

We also expect all
work on our behal
rmanner consisten
comply with our S

All employees are
CoC training, whic
induction process
Training on specif
their roles is provic
Our CoC specifica
responsibilities an
help with decision
guidance on situa
and harassment.

If the Board amer
provisions of the ¢
amendment or ws
the website, No sL
amendment has t
date.

> See our CoC at
# code-of-conauc
CCEP considers tF
related palicies ac

Rules on the code
relevant domestic
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Corporate governance report continued

Board leadership and company
purpose

Role of the Board

The Board is primarily responsible for
the Group's strategic plan, risk appetite
and oversight, systems of internal
control and corporate governance
palicies, to ensure the long-term
success of the Group, underpinned by
sustainability.

> Read more about the Board's role in
risk oversight in Principal risks on paces
68-78 TCFD on pages 48-40 and the

Audit Committee report on pages
118-124

To retain control of key decisions and
ensure there is a clear division of
responsibilities, there is a formal
schedule of matters reserved to the
EBoard, which sets out the structure
under which the Board manages

its responsibilities, and provides
guidance on how it discharges its
authority and manages its activities.
Reserved matters include strategic
decisions, approval of annual and long-
term business plans, suspension,
cessation or abandonment of any
material activity of the Group, and
material acguisitions and disposals.

The Board, through the Nomination
Committee, assesses and monitors the
Group's culture to ensure it aligns with
the Group's purpose, values and
strategy set by the Board.

Read more about our strategy on paoe
74 and read our Momination
Committee's report on pages 114-114

Table 1

Roles on the Board

Responsibilities

Chairrnan

CEC

SID

MNEDs

Caompany
Secretary

Operating, leading and governing the Board
Setting meeting agendas, managing meeting
Promoting a culture of open debate betweer
encouraging effective communication during
Creating the conditions for overall Board and
DCirector effectivenass

Leading the business
Implementing strategy approved by the Boar
Owverseeing the operation of the internal cont

Advising and supporting the Chairman by acti
contact for shareholders and as an interrmedi:

Providing constructive challenge, strategic gu
and specialist advice to the Board and its Cory
Helding management to account

Offering their extensive experience and busin
other sectors and industries

Assisting the Chairman by ensuring that all Dir
tirmely access to relevant information
Advising the Board on legal, compliance and ¢
matters

Crganising the induction and ongoing training

Stakeholders

The Board recognises the importance
of stakeholders to CCEP - both their
inputs to our business and our impact
on them. We use a matrix to help
ensure Directors have the right
engagement and information to

aenable them o consider stakeholders

¥

interests in their decision making,

> Read more about stakeholders on
pages &1-64
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Board activities

Key topics discussed by the Board
during 2023 Area of focus
The Chairman sets the Board agenda, Risk

which consists of discussion topics
described in the table adjacant that
align with its strategic objectives
towards its aim of promating the
long-term success of CCEPR,

N addition, at Board meetings the
Directors receive reports back from
Committee Chairs, business and
commercial updates from the CEO
{including on digital, technology and
innovation), finance reports from the
CFO, reports covering governance and
regulatory updates from the Company
Secretary, and updates on businass
performance and initiatives from other
key senior executives,

Sustainability

Strategy was also a key focus of
discussions, and the Board considered
and debated consumer trends focusing
on developments in Al the status of the
current global market, performance
and opportunities in the AP| region and
the retail landscape.

Commercial

Finance

Link to strategy
Great 000 (Great
brands people

Y Done

sustainakzly

Great
execution

Other
Information

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Discussion topics

Assessment of market uncertainty, sancti
result of the war in Ukraine, Middle East al

Changes to retail environments and custc
Review of competitors, global market an:

People strategy, including focus on emplc
talent, learning and development and fut

Promoting employee inclusion, diversity a
Review of wider workforce remuneration
Prioritising the safety of our people by pil
Continual monitoring of our progress aga
Progression of our packaging initiatives
Created new sustainable partnerships
Consideration of the expanding framewo
Progress towards improving route to mar

Expanding presence in API by exploring e
evidenced by the acquisition of CCEPI

Increasing consumer choice by growing o
new categories such as alcoholic ready to

Development of relationship with TCCC a
Approval of capital expenditure and divid
Support for developments in innovation v
Progress made on the implementation of

Monitoring pricing challenges and opport
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Corporate governance report continued

Board activities

This timeling highlights some of the training and development opportunities received by the Board in 2

March 2023 >

Market and production facility tours in
Sydney, Australia and Auckland,

MNew Zealand

Dwring the March 2023 Board meeting,
Board members attended tours of the
Marthmead production facility and the
market in the Paramatta region of the
cCity, gaining insights into the wider
business in Australia, as well as a market
visit in Auckland, Mew Zealand.

April 2023

Opening of new office in Sofia, Bulgaria
Board members and senior managemeant
attended the opening of the new, state
of the art office in Sofia. The agenda for
Lhis visit included an IDE&E lunch with

local emplovess.

Image: New Sofia office being officially opened
by Chairman, 5ol Daurella, and CFO, Nik Jhangiani

May 2023

Sidcup production facility tour

As part of their induction programmes,
board members Nicolas and Mary were
welcomed to the Sidoup production
facility in GB.

Image: Colleagues with Board members, Nicolas
Mirzayvantz and Mary Harris, during their visit

October 2023 >

Plastics and packaging

Board members received a deep dive
into our packaging strateqy, which
included updates on refillable packaging
and packageless [o support delivery of
CCEP's sustainalzility acticn plan, Thisis
Forwarg

September 202

™ 'OPENM HAPPINESS

B i

2= WELCOME TO SIDCUP =

Artificial Intellige
The Board receive
session on the rec
capabilities of Al a
including its poter
impacts on CCEP

strategy mesting.

October 2023

Seville production facility tour
The Cctober Board meeting included a
visit to the Coca-Cola Rinconada
production facility in Seville, Spain.
Image: Board member, José lgnacio Comenge,
and Chief Customer Service and Supply Chain
Officer, José Antanio Echeverria, during wisit
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Corporate governance report continued

Division of responsibilities and
conflicts of interest

Governance structure

The Board, led by the Chairman,

is responsible for the leadership of
the Group. While both the Executive
Director and NEDs have the same
duties and constraints, they have
different roles on the Board (see
Table 1on page 106). There is a clear,
written division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the CEO,
The Board has approved a framework
of delegated authority to ensure an
appropriate level of Board contribution
to, and oversight of, key decisions and
the management of daily business
that support its long-term sustainable
success, This framework has been
designed to enable the delivery of
the Company's strategy and is cutlined
in cur governance framework on

page 103,

The Board delegates certain matters
toits Committees. Each Committee
has its own written terms of reference,
which are reviewed annually, These are
available at cocacolasp.com/about-us/
governance/committess.

The CEQ with the ELT manages the day
o day business, All decisions are made
in accordance with our chart of
authority, which defines cur decision
approval requirements and ensures
that all relevant parties are notified

of decisions impacting their area of
respansibility.

Board support

Board rmeetings are generally
scheduled at least one year in advance,
with ad hoc meetings arranged to suit
business needs. Meetings are held in a
variety of locations, reflecting our
engagement with all aspects of our
international business.

The agenda of Board meetings follow
our annual Board programme, This sets
out the standing items at each
rmeeting, such as periodic activities
(including results and AGM
documentation), business plan and the
assessment of Board evaluation results,

Before the Board meeting, the
Chairrman, CEC and Company Secretary
agree the final agenda. This covers
discussion itermns such as the status of
ongeoing projects and stakeholder
considerations. Comprehensive briefing
papers are circulated electronically to
all Directors, to allow time to review the
rnatters which are to be discussed.

Throughout the year, Directors have
access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and independent
professional advice, at the Company's
expense.

Further Sustainakbility
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Independence of
Directors

The Board review:
of all the NEDs ag
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SEC Rule 104-3in
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It determinad tha
John Bryant, Nath
Mary Harris, Thom
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Mark Price, and Dk
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when carrying out
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Corporate governance report continued

Board and Committee meetings
The Board held seven formal mestings
during 2023, with additional ad hoc
meetings with Board and Committee
memibers held in line with business
needs. Directors are expected to
attend every meeting. If a Director is
unable to attend, the relevant papers
are pravided to that Directar in
advance 5o that comments can be
given to the Chairman or Committee
Chairrnan, as applicable, who relays
them at the meeting. Afterwards, the
Chairman or Committes Chairman, as
applicable, also briefs the Director on
the matters discussed.

Attendance during 2023 is set out in
Table 2. The Chairman attends most
Committee meetings. There is cross
memkbership between the Audit
Committee and Remuneration
Committee. This helps ensure
remuneration outcomes aliagn with the
underlying performance of CCEP. This
reflects CCEP's joined up approach to
investing in and rewarding our people,

Table 2

Meeting attendance by Board and Committee members™

Independent or nominated
by Olive Partners or ER™

Chairman

Sol Daurella

Executive Director
Damian Gammell
Non-executive Directors

Mominated by Olive Partners

CES

Manolo Arrayo Mominated by ER
Jan Bennink'™ Independent
John Bryant Independent

José Ignacio Comeange
Christine Cross™

Morminated by Olive Partners
Independent

Mathalie Gaveau ™ Independent

Alvaro Gomez-Trénor Aguilar - Nominated by Olive Partners
Mary Harris™ Independent

Thomas H. Johnson 51D

Dagrmar Kollmann Independent

Alfonse Libano Daurella
Micolas Mirzayantz!CXE!
Mark Price

Mancy Ouan e

Mario Rotllant Sola
Brian Smith =

[Dessi Termperley

Garry Watts'™

Mominated by Olive Partners
Independent

Independent

Morminated by ER
Mominated by Qlive Partners
Mominated by ER
Independant

Independent

(4 The maximum number of scheduled meetings in the period
during which the individual was a Board or Committes
member is shown in brackets.

(B} Mominated pursuant to the Articles of Association and terms

of the Shareholders Agreement.

() Jan Bennink, Christine Cross and Brian Smith each steppead
down from the Board effective 24 May 2023 Garry Watts
stepped down from the Board effective 31 December 2023

(D) Effective 24 May 2073, M
Mancy Quan were appoin
{E) Effective 24 May 2023, M:
member of the Affiliated
(F) Effective 24 May 2023, M|
member of the Remunat
{G) Effective 24 May 2023, Ni
wers appointed to the E
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Composition, succession

and evaluation

Board diversity and composition

The composition of the Board and its
Committees is set out on page 110, As
their biographies on pages §5-9% show,
our Board members have a range of
backgrounds, skills, experience and
nationalities, demonstrating a rich
cognitive diversity.

> See an overview of our Directors' skills
and experience on page 93

> Read more about the Group's approach
to ID&E on page 23

Qur commitment to diversity begins at
the top, with clear leadership from our
Board, and is embedded at every level
of our business through our, Board
Diversity Policy, Inclusion, Diversity and
Equity Policy, This is Forward and the
CaolC.

> Read more about Board succession
and Board diversity on nages 113-116

Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Statements Information Information
Board evaluation Table 3
In line with best practice, we conduct an 2023 Board evalu
external Board evaluation at least once
every three years, We did this last in Disruptive |
2021 and have begun the process of 2023 Show
conducting the external evaluation in findings. prepare
2024 the imp
- : disrupti
Following the strong feedback and technoh
outputs following the internal 2022 Fow to b
Board evaluation, it was determinad them.
that a similar process was appropriate
for 2023. The Board followed the Actions TheBoa
Chartered Governance Institute's under- receivec
Principles of Good Practice for Listed Taken overviey
Cornpanies when appointing Lintstock 12023 digital
to support in the questionnaire-based transtor
exercise, alongside interviews with all 5;?;%;?«:
Directors by the SID. Lintstock has no =
other connection with CCEP ar any Board tr
individual Director. 5essions
innovatl
The guestionnaire and interview the futu
responses were collated and reports frontline
praduced on the performance and been scl
for 2024

effectivenass of the Board, each
Committee and the Directors. The
Board discussed the results openly and
constructively.

Cwerall, the Board confirmed that it
continued to perform effectively.
Board culture, its relationship with
senior management and Board support
were highly rated, but some areas for
further improvement were identified.
These are setout in Table 3.
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Corporate governance report continued

Table 4

Disclosure of compliance with provisions of the Audit, risk and internal control

and Remuneration sections of the Code

Further Sustainakbility

Items located elsewhere in the 2023 Integrated Report Page(s)
Directors responsibilities statement 147
Directors' statement that they consider the Integrated Report and financial 147
staternents, taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and understandable
Zoing concern statermant 144
Assessment of the Group's principal risks &68-78
Viability statement 79
Risk management and internal control systerms and the Board's review of their 1,124
effectiveness
Audit Committes report 118-124
Directors remuneration report 127-143

Election and re-election of Directors
The Board has determined that

the Directors, subject to continued
satisfactory performance, shall stand
for election ar re-election at the May
2024 AGM with the exception of

the Chairman, as explained on page
104. The Board is confident that each
Director will carry on performing their
duties effectively and remain
committed to CCER.

The MED terms of appointment
are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office and
at each AGM. Among other rmatters,
these set out the time commitrment
expected of NEDs. The Board is
satisfied that the other commitments
of all Directors do not interfare with
their ability to perform their duties
effectively.

See the significant commitments

of our Directors in their biographies
on pages 95-99

Other
Information

Audit, risk and ini
and Remuneratio
Disclosures of con
provisions of the £
control and Remu
the Code areloca
Feport. Thase disc
descriptions of th
CCEP's internal cc
management syst
Rule 7 of the Discl
Transparency Rule
out where each re
can be found.

Annual General M
The AGM continue
in our annual share

The 2024 AGM of
be held on 22 May
of AGM will set ou
a full description ¢
conducted at the
available on our w
of its posting to st
April 2024,

The Chairrman, SIC
Chairrmen are avai
for discussion thre
discuss any matte
of responsibility, b
Company Secreta
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Chairman'’s letter

0

We want CCEP to be a great
place to work, with a strong and
inspiring workplace culture.”

Dear Shareholder

| amn pleased to report on the work of
the Nomination Committee during
2023

People and Culture

The Committee continued to play an
impaortant role in overseging CCEP's
approach to culture and its people. This
was facilitated through updates from
management on |ID&E and wellbeing
initiatives, talent managerment and
capabilities for CCEP's next generation
technology architecture. In particular,
in 2023 the Committee was pleasad

to receive regular updates on CCEPS
inclusivity commitments, with the
Company making progress towards all
targets, including the aim to have 45%
wormen in management roles and

Financial

Statements Information

above by 2030 We also met our
cammitrnent to have 10% of the
workforce with self-declared
disabilities™,

The Committee also heard albbout how
the Company was accelerating its great
leadership through the development of
programmes to enhance the skills of its
leaders to better support their people
Insights were provided into how CCEP
continued to embed its "Everyone's
Welcome" philosophy to encourage
and implerment an inclusive culture and
ensure engagement from all levels of
the business up to the senior leadership.

In addition, the Committee received
data and actionable insights about our
people from the Group's ermployee
engagement survey and monitored
progress through a regular scorecard.

> Read more about our people on paces
20-28

Board succession

A key focus of the Committes is to
ensure that the Board and its
Committees have the right
composition and balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity.

As announced on 14 December 2023,
we welcomed Guillaume Bacuvier to
the Board with effect from 1 January
2024 and announced the resignation of
Garry Watts. | would like to thank Garry
for his invaluable contribution to CCEP.
When considering the appointment,
the Cormmittes noted the existing skills
on the Board and the desirability of

Further Sustainakbility

Other
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axpertise in consu
and strategy, asw
expearience in AP
which Guillaume t
Committee deter
had sufficient tim
Board and nc con

The Committes a
composition of th
and as a result Mic
succeeded Garry
Audit Committes
1January 2024,

Read more abol
on page 114 and
page 99

INED induction
The Commilttes re
arrangements for
new INEDs appoir
and Mary, and for
in 2024,

Read more abol
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Nomination Committee report

Nomination Committee role

The key duties and responsibilities of
the Comrmittee are set out in its terms
of reference. These are available at
cocacolasp.com/about-us/
governance/committess and include:

+ Reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on
Board appointrments,
re-elections, and Board and
Committee compositicn

« Overseeing the evaluation of the
Board

« Ensuring and oversesing succession
planning of the Board and senior
management talent pipeline

« Assessing and monitoring culture and
ensuring effective engagement with
our people

Membership

Membaer since
Manolo Arroyo May 2021
Sol Daurella May 2076
Mary Harris May 2023
Mark Price May 2019

Activities of the Nomination
Committee during the year

Table 1on page 115 sets out the
rmatters considered by the Committes
during 2023. Further detail is provided
in this report. The Committee met six
times during the year.

> See details of attendance at meetings
on page 110

Board composition and diversity

As delegated by the Board, the
Committee continuously keeps the
composition of the Board under review,
aiming to maintain a well-balanced
Board with a mix of individuals who
bring a wide range of expertise,
experience and diversity To align

with the Group's long-term strategy.

Board Diversity policy

The Board and the Momination
Committee recognise the benefits that
diverse characteristics have to offer to
all aspects of governance. In 2023, the
Board's Diversity policy was updated to
make it clear that, in respect of
appaintments not only to the Board,
but to Committees that it recognises
the benefits of having diversity with
regard to a wide range of
characteristics such as age, gender,
athnicity, sexual orientation and
disability, as well as educational and
professional background. The policy
drives balance and alignment with
CCEP's purpose, strategy and values,
through agreed principles and targets
which reflect the measures the Board
will take when considering its own
rmemership and approach,

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information
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Director inductions

The Nomination Cormmittee reviews
the induction programme for new
Directors. All new Directors receive a
suite of induction materials as well as
mentorship from established Directors.
Meetings with members of the Board
and the ELT, and site visits ina number
of our markets are also arranged.

Owver 2023, the newly appointad

INEDs induction programme included
attending the March Board meeting in
Australia and New Zealand, attending
an ID&E event in the new Bulgaria
office, and market visits in GB, Sweden
and Australia. They alsa attended a
market visit and production facility
tour in France and received bespoke
training on CCEFs franchisor agreements
and governance documents,

Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Statements Information Information
Senior management succession Table 1

The Committee is committed to
supporting the development and
progression of diverse talent at senior
rmanagement level and acknowledges
the recommendations of the Parker
Review in developing ethnic diversity
targets for senior management. The
Committee considers and
recommends succession plans for the
Group's ELT to the Board,

Ower 2023, the Committee oversaw a
change to the structuring of the
Eurcpean BUs, with Leendert den
Hollander assuming an expanded role
toincorporate the France BU as part of
his responsibilities in Northern Europe,

Matters considert
Meeting date
February 2023

May 2023

July 2023

September 2023
October 2023

December 2023
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Nomination Committee report continued

Table 2

Nasdaq Board diversity disclosure®

Board Diversity Matrix As of 31 December 2023
Country of principal executive offices. Urited Kingdorn
Faoreign private issuer Yes
Disclasure prohibited under horme country law MNo

Total nurmber of Directors 17

Did not
Female Male Mon-binary disclose gender

Part I: Gender identity |
Directors & T |
Part Il: Demographic background
Underrepresented individual

in home country jurisdiction
LEBTO+ 1

0id not disclose demographic background =

Table 3 - LR14 Annex 1(a) reporting on gender identity or sex
FCA listing requirements

Mumber of sen
Mumber of Board members Percentage of the Board positions on th

Meﬂ .-i.a Ii.lﬁl 3

Women & 35 1
Mot specified/prefer not to say

Table 4 - LR14 Annex 1(b) reporting on ethnic background

Mumber of sen
Humber of Board members Percentage of the Board positions on th

White British or other White

(including minority-white groups)
Mixed/Multiple ethnic groups — == =
Asian/asian British 1 &
Black/African/Caribbean/Black British — = =
Other ethnic group, including Araks :
Mot specified/prefer not to say = = =

& 24 3

(A} Disclosure permitted with Director consant.

(B} Senior positions on the Board include the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or Senior Indeperdent Director, The Chief Financial Officer is not a rmember of the Board, Tho
The data in the above tables was collected voluntarily through the annual Directors & Officers ("D&O") questionnaires. The data is used purely to satisfy CCEP's Cha
Board and leadership diversity disdlosure requirements under the UK's Financial Conduct Listing Rules and Masdag requirements. The Board was asked to self- 15 N
report their data throwgh guestions raised in the DEC questionnaire on gender identity, sexual orientation and ethnic background.
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Audit Committee
Chairman'’s letter

Supporting the successful
acquisition of CCBPI was a key role
of the Committee during 2023."

Dear Shareholder

| arn very pleased to introduce the Audit
Committee report setting out the key
matters and issues considered in 2023.

Committee membership

The Committee was pleased to
welcorme Nicolas Mirzayantz to the
Committee following the retirement of
Garry Watts on 31 December 2023,

CCBPI acquisition

The Committee reviewed the financing
and structuring and also hedging
strategy to support the acquisition by
CCEP of its 60% share of CCBPI, as well
as the related disclosures in the 2023
financial statements.

SEC correspondence

The Committee reviewed the
Company's correspondence with the
SEC anits long-standing policy of
accounting for the TCCC bottling rights

Financial

Statements Information

as indefinite-lived intangible assets,
asweall as the associated disclosure
included in the FY23 preliminary
results published on 23 Februany 2024,
<n 7 March 2024, the SEC staff
completaed its review with no

further comments raised to CCEP.

External auditor re-tender

The Committes considered the
mandatory 2025 audit re-tender
including discussing and approving the
proposed approach to the tender. The
Committee leveraged best practice
insights on how companies approached
this in addition to the learnings from the
FRC's Best Practice Guide to Audit
Tendering,

ESG

Curing 2023, in addition to receiving
regular ESG regulatory updates, the
Committee agreed with the ESG
Committee those matters that would
warrant consideration by the joint
rmeeting of the Committees including
the TCFD statement, year end ESG
reporting and disclosure, and assurance
of ESG performance data In addition,
the Committee supported the
transition to EY as assurance provider for
FY23 for CCEP's Thisis Forward metrics.

Risk management

During 2023, on behalf of the Board, risk
rmanagement remained a priority with
ongoing discussions on:

» ERM framework, including
identification and assessment of
principal and emerging risks, risk

Further Sustainakbility

Other
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Membership*

Member since
Dessi Temperley May 2020
(Chairman)
John Bryant January 2027
Dagrnar Kollmann May 2019

Micolas Mirzayvantz January 2024

*  Garry Watts was a member of the Committes until
M Dacember 2023

> See details of meeting attendance in
2023 on page 110

> Read more about the Audit Committee
members on pages $5-G%

Key responsibilities

The roles and responsibilities of the
Audit Committee are set out in the
terms of reference, which are available
at cocacolaep.com/about-us/
governance/committees, and are
reviewed annually by the Committees.
Key responsibilities are detailed below.

Accounting and financial reporting

= Monitaring the integrity of the
Group's annual audited financial
statements and other periodic
financial statements

« Reviewing any key judgerments
contained in them relating to
financial performance

Financial

Statements Information

Systems of internal control and risk
management

Reviewing the adeguacy and
effectiveness of the Group's internal
control processes

Overseeing the Group's compliance,
operational and financial risk
assessments as part of the broader
ERM programme

Owverseeing the Group's business
capakbility and cybersecurity
programmes

Owverseeing climate risks as part of the
ERM programme

Reviewing and assessing the scope,
operation and effectiveness of the
internal audit function

Relationship with external auditor

Reviewing and assessing the
relationship

Reviewing their independence
Agreeing terms of engagement and
remuneration

Assessing the effectiveness of the
external audit process

Reviewing reports from the external
auditor and management relating to
the financial staterments and internal
control systems

Making recommendations to the
Board in respect of the external
auditor's appointment,
reappointment or removal

Further Sustainakbility
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Matters considered by the Audit
Committee during 2023

The Committee met eight times during
the year and held one joint meeting
with the ESG Committee. Reports from
the internal and external auditors were
presented as standing agenda items,
along with reports from seniar
managemeant on the following topics in
the Committee’s remit:

+ Accounting and reporting matters

« Accounting for TCCC bottling rights

» Owversight of S0OX compliance

+ Legal matters

= Corporate integrity programme

= Business continuity management and
cybersecurity

+ Enterprise Risk Management

« Capital projects, including review of
sustainability metrics

« Tax and treasury matters

= Climate risk disclosures

« External auditor re-tender

+ Ohersight of CCBPI acquisition
process and related financing

The Committee's interactions with the
internal audit function and the external
auditor during the year are discussed in
more detail later in this report. A
surmmmary of key matters considered by
the Audit Committee in 2023,in
addition to standing items, is set out in
Table 1 on page 120,

Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
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Financial reporting, significant Audit Committee

financial issues and material
judgements

During 2023, the Committee considered
the significant accounting judgements
and estimates, and their
appropriatenass and disclosure,
including the Group's long-standing
policy and judgement on accounting
for the TCCC bottling rights as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.

The Committee met regularly with
rmanagement during 2023 to consider
the financing and hedging strategies in
relation to the CCPBI acquisition.

For the remaining matters, the
Committee agreed with management
that the appropriate accounting
considerations had been given and the
impact of each iterm was not material
to the Group's financial statements.

See our Viability statement on page /9
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Audit Committee report continued
Table 1
Matters considered by the Audit Committee during 2023
Meeting date ey matters considered in addition to standing agenda items"*® Meeting date
February 2023 « 2022 preliminary Q4 and full « SOX compliance Juily 2023
(two mestings, year results, including significant = Pay for performance
including one joint estimates and judgements « 1AS 36 impairments
meeting of the « Listing rule compliance with « Tax matters
ESG Committee CFD recommendations and + 2023 internal audit plan
and Audit review of TCFD statement « Corporate Integrity 0
; ; : ctober 2023
Committes) * |nternal audit ESG reporting Programme
readiness
March 2023 o 2027 Integrated Report, + Reappointment of the external
including viability and going auditor
concern statements, + S0X compliance
accounting policies and related  » 2023 internal audit plan
significant judgements and + Internal Audit Charter and the
estimates, segmental reporting, Independence and Objectivity
hedging activities, related FPolicy
parties and post-employment = Treasury matters Decermber 70723
benefits = |nvestment policy renewal
April 2023 = FY23 profit forecast
= 202307 trading update
= First half interim dividend
May 2023 « Accounting and reporting + ERM update

matters

SO 2023 planning

Tax matters including tax
strategy paper

Capital allocation and
expenditure
IT/cybersecurity update

Audit firrn re-tender

Audit Comrmittes evaluation
and auditor effectivenass
reEview

(A} During Fabruary and Ma
which included:

- Reviewing the 2023 p

judgements, account]

- Advising the Board or

- Independent auditar’

= Approval of this Awdit

- Progress on SEC com

(B) During February 2024,a

staternent and listing nJ
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Audit Committee report continued

Table 2

Significant reporting matters in relation to financial statements considered by the Audit Committe
Accounting area Key financlal impacts Audit Committee considerations
Accounting for TCCC [CCC franchise intangibles The Group's bottling agree
bottling rights at 31 December 2023 £11.8 billion rights to distribute and sell

are for initial terms of 10 ye:
interdependent relationshig
e caused by non-renewal e
are essentially perpetual The
to non-performance of the
agreement at the expiratic
agreements as at 31 Decen
history of renewals, indefinit:

During 2023 the Committee
for the TCCC bottling rights
continued disclosure as a sic

Deducticns from revenues Total cost of customer marketing The Group participatesiny
and sales incentives programimes in 2023 £5.4 billion increase the sale of produc
Accrual at 31 December 2023: €1.3 billion can be earned by custome

marketing programmes.

For customer incentives th
contractual terms, custome
Under IFR5 15, these types o
estimates used at each repc
recarded.

Actual amounts ultimately
the Committes received ir
Zroup along with period ery
on key judgemeants and esti

Tax accounting and reporting 2023 book tax expernse: €534 million The Group evaluated a nurr
2023 cash taxes: €5D¢, rrillion across taxjurilsﬂictiorﬁ. risks

deferred tax inventory and

2023 effective tax rate: 24.7% Committee received inforr

affecting the Group, consic
the level of risk involved wit

The Committes alsa consic
tax matters.
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Accounting area

Key financial impacts

Further Sustainakbility
Information

Other
Information

Audit Committee considerations

Assat impairment analysis

Restructuring accounting

Indefinite lived intangible assets at
31 Decermber 2023 £11.8 billion

Goodwill at 31 Decemiber 2023 €45 billion

Restructuring cost recorded in 2023 €94 million

Cther items impacting operating  Remaining items impacting operating

profit comparability

profit comparability recorded in 2023;
£40 millian (credit)

The Group performs an an|
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reprasent the individual ter
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Audit Committee report continued

External audit

Effectiveness of the external

audit process

The Committee has responsibility and
aversight of the Group's relationship
with its external auditor, EY, and for
assessing the effectivenass of the
external audit process. BEY was
appointed as the external auditor in
2014 and the lead audit partner is Sarah
Kokot, who was appointed following
completion of the 2020 Audit. In
accordance with the UK and SEC
external auditor independence rules,
Sarah Kokot would face mandatory
rotation as lead audit partner following
the completion of the 2025 audit.

The Committee acknowledges the
provisions contained in the Code and
the Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation
(Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Processes and Audit
Cormmittee Responsibilities) Order
2014 in respect of audit tendering

In light of the mandatory 2025 Audit
re-tender, the Committee has begun
the process of re-tendering the role
of external auditor.

Im 2023, the Committes agreed the
approach and scope of the audit work
to be undertaken by EY for the financial
year. It also reviewed EY's terms of
engagement and agreed the
appropriate level of fees payable in
respect of audit and audit-related
services.

See details of the amounts paid to
the external auditor in MNote 17 to the
consclidated financial statements on
page 200,

EY provided the Cormmittee with
regular reports on the status of the
audit, its assessment of the agreed
areas of audit focus and findings, and
conclusions to date. EY had regular
discussions with management to
identify the potential business and
financial risks for CCEP and ensure that
correct accounting treatment was
adopted in response.

The Committee used a questionnaire
o review the effectiveneass of the
external auditor and focused on

four key areas: the audit partner, audit
planning and execution, reporting

by the auditor and the role of
management. The review determined
the audit to be very effective, with
sorme minor areas for improvemeant
which will be reviewed and
implemented in 2024,
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Audit Committee report continued

Internal audit

The internal audit function provides an
independent and cbjective assessment
of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's integrated internal control
framewaork, which combines risk
managemeant, governance and
compliance systems. The internal audit
function reports directly to the Audit
Committee and comprises
approximately 40 full time, professional
audit staff based in London, Berlin,
Madrid, Sofia and Sydney, with a range
of business expertise working across
multiple disciplines.

Effectiveness of the internal

audit function

At the start of the year, the Committee
reviewed the internal audit plan for
2023 and agreed its scope, budget and
resource reguirerments for the vear. The
Committee continued to maonitor the
plan and forward-looking audit radar to
make sure recommendations remained
appropriate for the year ahead

Through regular management reports
containing key internal audit
observations, proposed improvement
measures and related timeframes
agreed with management, the
Committee monitored the
effectiveness of the internal audit
function against the approved internal
audit plan. The Chief Audit Executive
attended the scheduled meetings of
the Committee during 2023 to raise any
key matters with the Directors.

Internal control and risk management
The Group depends on robust internal
controls and an effective risk
rmanagement framework to
successfully deliver its strategy. The
Audit Committes is responsible for
rmonitaring the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's internal
cantral systems, which includes ts
compliance with relevant sections of
the Code and the requirements of SOX,
specifically sections 302 and 404, as it
applies to US FPIs.

Effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems
Regular reports were presentad to the
Committee on the Group's internal
audit assessrments of the adequacy and
effectiveness of CCEP's integrated
internal control framework, risk
rmanagement, governance and
compliance functions. The Committee
was provided updates on the internal
control framewaork, including any
proposed updates and amends and the
remediation of any identified control
deficiencies during the year,

In 2023, management undertook a top
down enterprise risk assessment
including business units and functions.
This included an assessment of the
Group's risk appetite across identified
enterprise risks, to gauge and promote
alignment of risk appetite with CCEF's
long range plan. The Committes
reviewead the findings, approved
changes to the enterprise risk
management assessments and
concluded that management's
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ESG Committee

Chairman's letter

o

The Committee dedicated
significant time to discussing
progress against the

This is Forward sustainability
action plan across Europe and
APL"

Dear Shareholder

| arn very pleased to introduce the ESG
Committee report setting out the key
matters and issues considered for 2023,

Committee membership

The Committee was pleased to
welcome Nancy Quan and Nicolas
Mirzayantz following the conclusion of
the 2023 AGM,

This is Forward

The Committee's main focus during
2023 was the oversight of CCEP's Thisis
Forward sustainability action plan. The
Committee received updates on all our
six action areas. climate, packaging,

Financial

Statements Information

water, society, drinks and supply chain.
We put a particular focus on CCEP's
carbon reduction roadmap, packaging
collection and approach to water
steswardship, efficiency and
replenishment. Our gender diversity
and disability roadmap were also key
focus areas.

The Committee also spent significant
time focusing on CCEP's Forward an
drinks commitments relating to sugar
reduction and low and no caloria
sweeteners (LNCS) across CCEP's
markets, In May 2023, the Committes
met with representatives from TCCC to
undertake a deep dive into TCCC-led
advocacy and innovation on LNCS.

Carbon reduction roadmap

Following CCEF's 2030 GHG emissions
reduction target, and the Net Zero 2040
target being validated by the Science
Based Targets initiative (SBTI) as being in
line with climate science, the Committes
spent significant time reviewing CCEP's
2030 GHG emissicns trajectory and
carbon roadmap. A deep dive was held
into Scope 3 GHG emissions to
understand the key drivers of CCEF's
emissions which would be factored into
the development of a climate transition
plan.

> Read more on our updated SBTi targets
on page 60

Customers and sustainability

The Committee spent time discussing
trends in CCEP's customer sustainability
expectations and pricrities including
the renewed focus of many to set
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ESG Committee report
Membership*
Member since
Mario Hotllant Sola May 2022

{Chairman)

MNathalie Gaveau January 2019

Micolas Mirzayantz May 2023
Mark Price May 201%
Mancy Quan May 2023

Jan Bennink and Brian Smith were mermibers of the
Cormmittes until 24 May 2023

ESG Committee role

The key duties and responsibilities of the
Committes are set out in its terms of
refarence. These are available at
cocacolaep.com/about-us/governance/
committees,

ESG activities in 2023

The Committee met six times in

2023, including a joint meeting with

the Audit Committee. The main focus
of the Cormmittes was monitaring
CCEP's progress against its sustainability
action plan, This is Forward, but it did
consider other matters which are
detailed below.

Reporting and regulatory updates

» Review of F¥22 reporting and
performance

« Limited assurance of FY22
sustainability performance data

+ During the joint meeting with the
Audit Committee in February 2023,
the Committes reviewead the TCFD
staternent with consideration to
listing Rule compliance and TCFD

Financial
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recommeandations and considered
areport by internal audit on ESG
reporting readiness,

> Read more on TCFD reporting
on pages 48-4(0

+ Updates included on:

- CSRD

- EU propaosed Directive on
Corporate Sustainability Due
Diligence

= International Sustainability
Standards Board (ISSB)

- UK mandatory reporting
requirements such as TCFD and
TPT

— EPR legislation in the Philippines

Climate

= Deep dive on GHGE emissions and
carbon reduction pathways

« Reviewing progress against CCEP's
science based emissions reduction
targets across Europe and AP

Packaging

« |Jpdate on cross system strategic
approach to packaging collection and
tracking progress against the TCCC
aligned collection target

* Deep dive into cross system strategic
approach to collection in Indonesia

Social

= Approval of Modern Slavery
Staternent

- CoC reporting compliance

« Discussions on customer sustainability
expectations and priorities

« Anti-bribery update

Further Sustainakbility
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Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chairman

Remuneration outcomes for 2023
reflect strong overall business
performance.”

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased
to present the Directors remuneration
report for CCEP for the year ended
3 December 2023. This includes a
surnrmary of cur remunaration policy
(page 129), which shareholders
approved at our 2023 AGM, We have
also set out our Annual repart on
remuneration (ARR) (pages 131-143),
which outlines how we implemented
the policy during 2023 and how we
intend to do so in 2024, This will e
subject to an advisory vote at our
2024 AGM

Remuneration outcomes for 2023
Annual bonus

The strong overall business
performance outlined in the Strategic
Report has been reflected through
the annual bonus, with performance
against all three financial metrics being
above target. Ravenue and comparable
operating profit increased yvear on
year by 5.5% and 11.0%, respectively,
This, alongside strong comparable
free cash flow generation, has resulted
in an overall Business Performance
Factor (BPF) of 165% of target being
achieved The strong business
parformancea is also a reflection of

the exceptional leadership of the
CEO throughout 2023, which resulted
in an Individual Perfarmance Factor
(IPF) of 115 being awarded to him.
The final bonus payvment ta the

CEC was 79% of maximur. Further
details are provided on pages 131-132
of the ARR.

2021 Long-Term Incentive Plan

The 2021 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP) award, granted in September
2021, was subject to earnings per share
(EPS), return on invested capital (ROIC)
and COse reduction performance
targets over the three year period

to 31 Decamber 2023, Around 275
senior executives and management
participated in the scheme, including
the CEQ.

CEP has perforrr
over the |ast three
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All refarances to revenue, operating profit, operating free cash flow, EPS and ROIC targets refer to those measuras that are defined within the ARR
(A Comparable and on a tax and curency neutral basis, adusted for brand sales,
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Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chairman contir

Implementation of remuneration
policy in 2024

The Committee considers that our
overall remuneration framework
remains fit for purpose and will
implement our remuneration policy for
2024 on the same basis as for 2023 (see
pages 141-142 for further details).

The Committee has approved a 2.0%
salary increase for the CEQ, effective

1 April 2024, which is significantly lower
than the 2.5% merit increase for the
wider &B waorkforce,

The structure of the 2024 annual bonus
will be unchanged from last year, with
the business perforrmance element
being based on stretching
performance targets for operating
profit, revenue and cperating free cash
flow. These targets will include the
parformance of the Philippines
business following the successful
acquisition of CCBPI. For the CED, his
individual element will be assessed
against objectives aligned to the key
strategic areas of focus of the business,
which include: market share,
operational objectives, ESG and people
targets.

The 2024 LTIP award will continue to be
based ona mix of EPS, ROIC, and COse
reduction. Due to the timing of the
acqguisition of CCBP|, and to enable
robust targets to be set for the
combined businass, the awards will be
made in G2 The targets will be set at
stretching levels taking inte account
both our lang-terrm plan and external
forecasts. Targets will be fully disclosed
innext year's ARR

Following the end of the performance
period, LTIP awards will be sulzject to an
additional two-year holding period.

Looking ahead

We regularly monitor the performance of
our remuneration policy and will
continue to engage with shareholders
where necessary to ensure we are
implementing the paolicy in a way which
is aligned with both good governance
and commercial best practice,

While the targets:
were substantially
our COse reductic
time of grant, the
conscious that the
2022 LTIP {(due to
were setinaconsi
those for the 2020
As such, the Comr
parformance agai
under review and
overall outcome a
underlying perfar
of vesting.

Our remuneratior
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aims. | hope we cc
your support inre:
our forthcoming £

John Bryant,
Chairman of the
Remuneration Co
15 March 2024

All references to revenue, operating profit, operating free cash flow, EPS and ROIC targets refer to those measures that are defined within the ARR
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Summary of

Key principle Application to policy Current implementation Fixed pay
—_— I —_— = —
= =< . === — =
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Remuneration at a glance

Overview of 2023 remuneration performance

CCEP share price'™ (USS) Reported Fixed pay
Annual bonus cutcomes long-term KPls
70 Operating profit Comparable EPS‘® ?ZSE. sl
2% increase
1.91x target 2022 3.39 -E1 27
{B)
Comparable ROIC
a0 2021 9.2%
Operating free cash flow 2022 9 10
55
COze reduction per litre :
: pe Benefits
2023 17.4 % « Carallowance
50 {Furope reduction : F_)”“’ate medical
Borus pay out = 79% 2020-2023) = School fees
3 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2023 | of maximum {including « Financial planni
() Nasdag listing IPF of 115}
Pension
2023 CEO single figure CEO shareholding Pension scheme
£7.4m As at 31 Dec 2023 2,156% of salary EESSEHI:«LL[ anae
(H0%) - L:--:m i kfore
3uu% Gf s_alar.F COWICRET WOTkKTOrc

£27k

B Fixed pay 2023 total value

. Annual bonus . Current shareholding
TP £12.3m

B shareholding requirement

A - i
{B) Comparable diluted EPS and comparable ROIC are non-IFRS performance measures. Refer to 'Note regarding the presentation All ri;*f:f;:-rences Lo rey
of albernative performance measures' on pages 81-B2 for the definition of our non-IFRS performance measures and to page %0 for 2023 cutcomes ¢

for a reconciliation of reported to comparable results.
Read more in th
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Annual report on remuneration

Remuneration outcomes for 2023

The following pages set out details of the remuneration received by Directors
for the financial year ending 31 December 2023, Prior yvear figures have also been
shown, Audited sections of the report have been identified.

The Directors' remuneration in 2023 was awarded in line with the remuneration
policy, which was approved by shareholders at the AGM in May 2023

Single figure table for Executive Directors (audited)

Further Sustainakbility

Taxable Fixed Annual Long-term Variable Total

Salary benefits Pension pay bonus  incentives remuneration remuneration

Individual Year (E00D) (0003 {£000) {eooa) (E0D0Y (E£000) (E000) (E0OO)
Damian 2023 1235 @9 27 1351 3525 7396W 10,821 12,282
Gammell 50220 1208 135 26 1369 3730 7054® 10,784 12,153

(&) Estimated value based on three month average share price and exchange rate at 31 December 2023 of USS61.15 (E49.25)
and includes £589.000 cash payment in respect of dividend equivalents to be paid on the vested Shares, Murmber will be restated
in next yaar's single figure table to show the final value on the vesting date of 15 March 2024. Around £450,000 of tha vest value
s attributable bo share price apprediation.

(B} Restated from £4.720,000 in last year's single figure table to reflect actual share price on vesting date of 555,09 (£45.25)
on 17 March 2023 applied to 144 544 vested Shares and £513,000 cash paymnent in respect of dividend equivalents paid
an the vested Shares.

Notes to the single figure table for Executive Directors (audited)

Base salary

Darnian Gammell received a salary increase of 2.0% from £1217.098 to £1241,440
effective from 1 April 2023, This increase was significantly lower than the merit
increase provided to the wider GB workforce of 6.0%.

Taxable benefits

During the year, Damian Gammell received the following main benefits: car
allowance (£14,000), financial planning allowance (£10,000), schooling allowance
(£50,000 net) and family private medical coverage (£7,000)

Pension

The pension provisions that apply to Damian Garmmell are aligned to all other GB
employeess. Damian Gammell elected to receive a contribution into the pension
scheme up to the annual allowance with the balance up to the maxirmum allowed
by the Remuneration Policy as a cash allowance, This equates to a total payment
of £30,000 from CCER inclusive of ernployer National Insurance contributions

(i.e. the actual benefit received by Damian Gammell is less than £30,000 per year),

Other
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Annual report on remuneration continued

2023 annual bonus outcome - BPF

As set out in the Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chairman (page
1270 overall performance in 2023 has been strong. This has been reflected in the
annual bonus outcome, with performance for all three financial measures being
above target.

Performance targets Perfarmance outcomes
Threshold

(0.25x Target Maxirmum Multiplier
Measure Weighting multiplier) (1 multiplier) (2x multiplier)  Actual outcome achieved
Operating 50% £2135m £2286m £2437m £2423m 157
profit
Revenue® 30% E17772m £18,6346m £19254m E18.455m 1.03x
Cperating 20% £2074m £2305m £7489m £€72487m 1.95%
free cash
Flow'™
Total 100% 1.65x

(a) Comparable operating profit on a FX neutral basis at budget rates,
(B} Revenus ona FX neutral basis at budget rates.

(C) Comparable operating profit before depreciation and amortisation and adjusting for capital expenditures, restructuring cash
expenditures and changes in aperating working capital, on an FX neutral basis at budget rates,

2023 annual bonus outcome = IPF

To determine an appropriate IPF, the Chairman of the Board assesses Damian
Gammell's performance against the individual performance objectives that were
set at tha start of the vear. The autcome is then discussed with and
recommeanded by the Committee for final approval by the Board,

Damian Gammell once again provided exceptional leadership of the business
during 2023 within a very challenging external envircnment. He delivered strongly
against his individual objectives outlined below, and the Board determined that his
IPF should be set at 1.15x for the year.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Long-term incentives

Awards vesting for performance in respect of 2023

The 2021 LTIP award was subject to EPS, ROIC and CO-e reduction performance
targets measured over the three year performance period from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023.

Performance targets™
Actual Final
Threshald Target Maximum  performance vesting
Measure Weighting  {25% vesting) (100% vesting) (200% vesting) outcome level
Ep5W 42.5% £304 £341 €367 €378 200x
ROICE 42 5% 8.3% Q2% 9% 10.4% 200x
CO.e 15% 60% 20% 1000% 17 4ol 2.00x
reductionc per litre per litre per litre per litre
Total formulaic 200x
vesting level
Total vesting 185

after discretion

(A} Comparable and on a tax and currency neutral basis, adjusted for brand sales.

(B} ROIC calculated as comparable operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders, on a tax and curency neutral basis, divided
by the average of opening and closing invested capital for the year, adjusted for brand sales and material noncash equity
accounting adjustments. Invested capital is calculated as the addition of borrowings and equity attributable to shareholders less
cash and cash equivalents and short-term investrmeants.

() Target based on entire value chainin Europe,

(D) Straight-fine vesting between each vesting level shown,

(o) This rmetric was subject to external independent imited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2023, Please see
cocacolaepcomysustainability/download-centre for our 2023 assurance statement
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Holistic review of overall performance over 2021 LTIP performance period
Overall business performance

NARTD value share growth over the perfarmance pericd

(2021 =+40bps, 2022 = +10bps, and 2023 = +10bps).

Largest FMCG value creator in Europe, and largest NARTD value creatorin
Australia and New Zealand — created over €1.3 billion of value in 2023 for our
customers in Europe, Australia and New Zealand. Across the three year
performance period, we created over £3.2 billion of value for customers across
our markets, by focusing on core brands, in-market execution and revenue
growth managemeant initiatives.

Strong revenue per unit case (FY23 +85%, Europe: +8.0% and APl +11.0%) driven
by positive headline price increases and promotional optimisaticn alongside
favourable mix.

We committed to rebasing our cost base versus pre-pandemic levels. As a % of
revenus, our comparable operating expenses are lower now (FY23: 24%), in-line
with last year (FY22: 24%), mitigating inflationary pressures with productivity
initiatives and more importantly below 2019 (FY19: 26%).

Strong comparable free cash flow generation of €17 billion in 2023, in-line with
our mediurn-term objective of at least £1.7 billion.

Shareholder experience

Share price performance — highest share price in history of company of
S$66.87 achieved during the performance period, and exceeded in early
2024 Share price as at the date of signing the report remains over 25%
above the grant price.

Significant value delivered to shareholders through continued payments of
dividends - F¥23 dividend per share of €1.84 (+95% versus 2022), and cumulative
dividends of €22 billicn over the period, maintaining an annualised dividend
pay-out ratio of approximately 50%.

Strong TSR growth — 50% growth over the three yvear period, which was

top decile performance versus FMCG peers and cut-performed the

FTSE 100 (32%), Eurcnext 100 (37%) and S&P 500 (34%).

Further Sustainakbility
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Annual report on remuneration continued

« In 2022, we launched the new global Emplovee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP),
which oives our employees the cpportunity to buy Shares in CCEP on a regular
basis. For every share an emplovee purchases, CCEP will provide a matching
share, up to an agreed limit. In Great Britain, we offer a similar opportunity under
an employee share plan, which makes use of a tax-efficient cpportunity for
employees to become shareholders through salary sacrifice arrangements.
Around 43% and 75% of eligible employees were participating in the global ESPRP
and Great Britain share plan, respectively, on 31 Decemiber 2023

* Focus onour communities — Cur emmployees in Europe volunteered 32 500 hours
with a total of €14.8 million in community investrment in Europe and API. Cur
Support My Cause initiative enables employees to nominate local charities they
feal passicnately about for a donation from the business. Since 2012, we have
donated £1.2 millien to 200 local charities and community Groups across our
territories, In addition, in 2023, we donated over €400,000 to support 125
grassroots charitable and community partnerships located close to our sites and
offices.

= Focus onour customers — We have an unrivalled customer coverage with which

we jointly create value, with more than €3 billion added to the FMCG industry
since 2021.

Awards granted in 2023 (audited)

A conditional award of performance share units (PSUs) was granted under the
CCEP LTIP to Damian Gammell on 13 March 2023, with a target value of 250% of
salary in line with the remuneration policy. The performance measuras weare
unchanged from the prior year and continued to align with the long-term strategy
- EPS, ROIC and COe reduction. Financial targets were set at stretching levels and
on the same basis as in prior years, taking into account both our long-term plan
and external forecasts. Targets for C0ywe reduction were significantly increased
versus those used for prior awards.

Information
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Historical TSR performance and CEQ remuneration outcomes
The chart below comparas the TSR performance of CCEP from admission up until 31 December 2023w
and the 58P 500. These indices have been chosen as recognised equity market indices of companies of

30 trading day average data: against S&P 500, Euronext 100 and FTSE 100
Total shareholder return data
300

250
200

150

e — f-_.-
100 &/

0 T T T T
May 2014 Dec 2006 D 2077 Doz 20118 Cwac 2079 D

— CCEP = SEP 500 =— Eurcnexti00 FTS

The following table surmmarises the historical CECQ's single figure of total remuneration and annual bont
this period:

2016 2016 2017 2018
John Brock Damian Gammall Damian Gammell Damian Gammell Damian |
CEC single figure of remuneration S53.890 £27 £3714 £381
(C0oo)
Annual bonus pay out (asa % 31.23% 40 6% &0.7% 6313
of maximum opportunity}
LTI vesting {as a % of maximum T/, A S I A

opportunity)

(A} The figures for 2006 are in respect of the period for which each individual served as CEO during the year. John Brock served as CED from 2% May to 28 December 201
(B} Restated from last year's single figure to reflect the actual share price on vesting date for the 2020 LTIP.
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Percentage change in CEO and Director remuneration
The table below shows the percentage change in CEO and Director remuneration from 2022 to 2023 (a
change in remuneration for all employees of the Parent Company, in line with the revised reporting reg

I

Base Taxable Annual Base Tanable Annual
Comparator salary/foe benefits bonus salary/fea benafits™ bonus
CED 22%  (267)% (5.5)% 25% 0.7% 4.6%
All emnployees 4.3% 0.5% (700 34% 0.5% 11.7%
Other Directors
Sol Daurella 13% 133.3% n'a 2.4% 200.0% n/a
Manaolo Arroye™ 45% (875w n'a 71.5m% n/a n/a
Jan Bennink'® (e10ee (100003 n'a (7.83% 200.0% n/a
John Bryant™™ 17.9% (11.1)% n/a 35% 125.0% n/a
Josa lgnacio Comenge 1.0 333% /8 20% 125.0% n/a
Christine Cross'®! (A54%)  (100.0)% n/a 14% 80.0% n/a
MNathalie Gaveau 122% 200.0% n/a &65% 200.0% n/a
Alvaro Gomez-Trénor Aguilar 12% 62 5% n/a 2.4% 100.0% nia
Mary Harris'™ rn/a n/a n/a n'a n/a n/a
Tharmas H. Jahnson 78% 237% n/a 27% 550.0% n/a
Dagrmar Kellmann 38% 20.0% n/a 16.8% 150.0% n/a
Alfonso Libano Daurella (29)% &6 7% n/a 1.0% n/a n/a
Micolas Mirzayantzt® rn/a n/a n/a n/a n/a /a8
Mark Price 55% 100.0% n/a 58% 200.0% n/a
MNangy Quan'™ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mario Rotllant Sola B.0% 333% n/a 14.3% 125.0% n/a
Brian Smith %% (59.2)%  (833)% n/a 65%  500.0% n/a
Dessi Temperley™® BOm  (300)% n/a 15.3% 150.0% n/a
Garry Watts® (B.4)% (16.7)% n'a (7.5)% 50.0% n/a

(A} Appointed to the Board on 26 May 2021,

(B} Resigned from the Board on 24 May 2023

{C) Appointed to the Board on 1 January 2021

(D) Appainted to the Board on 24 May 2023,

(E) Appointed tothe Board on 27 May 2020,

(F} Appointed to the Board on 9 July 2020,

() Resigned from the Board on 31 December 2033

(H) Reduction and increases in taxable benafits reflact the impact of travel restrictions across 2020, 2021 and 2022,

(1} Moincrease was applied for 2021, but small increase reflects the 2020 salary increase applyving only fram 1 Apedl 2020,
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below shows a summary of distributions to shareholders by way of
dividends and share buyback as well as total employee expenditure for 2023 and
2022, along with the percentage change of each.

Further Sustainakbility

2023 2022 % change
Total emplovee expenditure £2433m £2318m 5.0%
Dividends™ £841m £763m 1029

(4} There were no share buybacks in 2022 or 2023

CEO pay ratio

The table below shows the ratio of the CECQ's single figure of remuneration for
2023 to the 25" percentile, median and 75" percentile total remuneration of full
timme eguivalent GB employees. The ratic is heavily influenced by the fact that the
CEC participates in the LTIP. If the LTIP were excluded from the calculation, then
the median ratic would be 751 The main reason for the increase in the ratio from
2022 to 2023 is driven by a change in the disclosed LTIP value for the CEQ.

25 percentile Median 755 parcentile

Year Method ratio ratio ratie
2023 24614 18915 15010

2027 2811 1711 1301

2021 Option B 2217 1621 921

2020 1751 1051 831

2019 2507 1691 11711

CAY The individual used in this calculation recehed total pay and berefits of £50,000 (of which £34,000 was salary).
(B} The individual used in this calculation received total pay and benefits of £45,000 (of which 52,000 was salary).
(23 The indiividual used in this caloulation received total pay and benefits of £82,000 {of which £54,000 was salary).
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Payments to past Directors (audited)
Thera were no payments to past Directors during the vear.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments for loss of office during the year,

Statement of Directors’ share ownership and share interests (audited)
Interests of the CEO

The CEO is required to hold 300% of their base salary in Shares. The guideline is
expected to be met within five years of appointment. Until the guideline is met,
R0% of any vested Shares from incentive awards (after tax) must be retained, The
guideline continues to apply for one year following termination of employment.

Details of the CECQ's share awards are set out in the table below.

Other
Information

Share ownershipr
Gammell are set ¢

Int
Sha
Decem|
[amian
Gamme|[© 5

(A} For further detalls of the:
(B} Do not count towards acl
(20 The CEC has no interasts
(D) A further 138,201 shares w

Vested
during the year

Mumber of
Shares subject
Director to awards at 31 Granted
ol grank G Ferm et mvand Eamee e [Decnrony Ay g e s
Darmian
Gammell™
17 Mar 2020 PSLE MAA 156,264 -
29 Sep 2021 Pt A 142404 =
10 Mar 2022 =l MAA 163,776 -
13 Mar 2023 pPSu M/A - 130,738

144544

e | oy, | ] =i

(&) In addition, the CED has 324,643 vested but unexercised options with an expiry date of 5 November 2025 and an exerciss price of US339.00 Na options were axercis
(B} The performance condition was satisfied at 92.5% of maximum on 31 December 2022 Award vested on 17 March 2023,

(3 The number of Shares shown is the masimum number of Shares that may vest if the performance targets are it in full,

(D) The 2021 PSU awards will vest at 185% of target {128,201 shares) on 15 March 2024
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Interests of other Directors (audited)
The table below gives details of the Share interests of each NED either through
direct ownership or connected persons.

Interests in Shares at
31 December 2023

Sol Daurellg™re! 33385384
Manaolo Arroyvo -
Jan Bennink 49750
John Bryant 3340
José lgnacio Cormenge™ 7842464

Christine Crosst™ =
Mathalie Gaveau =

Alvaro Gomez-Trénor Aguilar 3143874
Mary Harris'E? =
Thomas H. Johnson 14,000
Dagmar Kallmann

Alfonso Libano Daurella™™ 6701540
Nicolas Mirzayantz® 7,930
Mark Price

MNancy Quan'™® =
Mario Rotllant Scla -
Brian Smith*’ -
Dessi Temperley =
Garry Watts™ 10,000

(&) Shares held indirectly through Olive Partrers, The numiber of Shares increased slightly during the year as a result of a reduction in
Chive Partners' share capital

(B} Forthe purposes of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Cormpanies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
{as amended), Sol Daurella (and her connacted persons within the meaning of section 252 of the Companies Act) are deemed tobe
interasted in the shares hald by Ofive by virtue of their indirect minority interest in Cobega 5.4, which indirecthy owns 57.5% of Olive.

() Resigned from the Board on 24 May 2023, Share interests stated are as at the date of resignation.

(D) José lgnacio Comenge's Share interests increased to 7,855,504 on 12 February 2024 following an increase to his owerall holding in
Ohive Partners.

(E) Appointed to the Board on 24 May 2023,

(F} Resigned from the Board on 31 December 2023 Share interests stated are as at the date of resignation.

Dilution levels

The terms of the Company's share plans set limits on the numizer of newly issued
Shares that may be issued to satisfy awards. In accordance with guidance from the
Investment Association, these limits restrict overall dilution under all plans to under

Information
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Sol Daurella
Manolo Arrovo

Jan Bennink™
John Bryant

Jose lgnacio Come
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Mary Harris'®
Thomas H. Johnson
Dagmar Kollmann

Alfonso Libano
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Nicolas Mirzayantz!
Mark Price

Nancy Quan'®
Maric Rotllant Scla
Brian Smith"
Dessi Temperley
Garry Watts™
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Implementation of remuneration policy for 2024

Base salary
Damian Gammell will receive a 2.0% salary increase effective 1 April 2024, This is

lower than the average merit increase provided to the wider GB workforce of 3.5%.

2024 salary
i . 2023 asiery  (etfective from 1Aprl) % incremse
Carmian Gammel| £1,241.440 £1,2665,249 20%

Further Sustainakbility

Taxable benefits

Mo significant changes to the provision of benefits are proposed for 2024,
The main benefits for Damian Garmmell will continue to include allowances
in respect of a car, financial planning, schooling and private healthcare

Pension

Mo changes are proposed in respect of the pension provision for Camian
Gammell. He will continue to receive a contribution into the pension scheme
up to the annual allowance, with the balance up to the maximum allowed by
the Remuneration Policy (£30,000 inclusive of employer National Insurance
contributions) as a cash allowance,

Annual bonus

Mo changes have been made to the structure of the annual bonus plan for 2024,
and the opportunity for Damian Gammell will rermain unchanged at 150% of salary
for target performance and 360% for maximum performance.

Performance will continue to be assessed against financial and individual
performance measures on a multiplicative basis as set out on page 131
The financial measures and relative weightings will also remain unchanged,

Measure Definition Weighting

Operating profit Comparable operating profit on a Fx neutral basis at 50%
budget rates

Revenue Revenue on a FX neutral basis at budget rates 30%

Operating free cash  Comparable operating profit before depreciation and 20%

flowy amortisation and adjusting for capital expenditures,

restructuring cash expenditures and changes in
operating working capital, on a FxX neutral basis at
budget rates
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Long-term incentive

Carian Gamrnell's long-term incentive opportunity for 2024 will be aligned with
the limits set aut in the remuneration policy. He will be granted a target award of
250% of salary and may receive Up to two times this target award if the maximum
performance targets are achieved,

The 2024 LTIP award will continue to be based on a mix of EPS, ROIC and CCse
reduction, unchanged from last year, and the targets will be set at stretching levels
taking into account both our long-term plan and external forecasts.

Due to the timing of the acquisition of CCBPI, and to enable robust targets to be
set for the combined business, the awards will be made in Q2. Full details of the
targets will be disclosed in next year's ARRE

Following the end of the performance period, awards will be subject Lo an
additional two vear holding period.

Chairman and NED fees

The NED base fee, Chairman fees were increased by 35% with effect from

1 April 2024 as outlined below, alongside increases to the additional fee for the
Senior Independent Director and Committee membership fees. Fees were last
increased with effect from 1 April 2022, other than for the Nomination Committes
which were |last increased with effect frorm 1 April 2023

Fees effective
Role Current foes 1 April 2024

Chairman £582000 £602250
NED basic fee £85000 £88,000

Additional fee for Senior Independent Director 31750 £32750

Additional fee for Audit and Remuneration Commitiess £37.250 £37.250

Committee Chairman  affiliated Transaction, Nomination and £36000  £356000

ESE Committees

Additional fee for Audit and Remuneration Committees £16,000 £16500

Comﬂrmtteelz Affiliated Transaction, Nomination and

membership ESG Committees £15500  £16,000

Further Sustainakbility
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Annual report on remuneration continued

Remuneration Committee key activities
The table below gives an overview of tThe key agenda items discussed at each
scheduled meeting of the Remuneration Committee during 2023,

Further Sustainakbility

Meeting date  Key agenda items
February +« Approval of financial performance » Approval of 2022 annual bonus
2023 outcome for 2022 annual bonus outcome for the ELT

« Approval of final vesting outcome for  « Review of ELT individual

2020 LTIP objectives in respect of the 2023
annual bonus

March » Approval of 2023 annual bonus financial » Approval of 2023 ELT
2023 performance measures and targets Remuneration packages

=« Approval of 2023 LTIP opportunities » Review of 2022 Remuneration

= Review of Chairman and NED fees Report
May 2023« Review of Committee effectivenass « AGM voting update

s Advisor review » Deloitte Market Update
Cctober « Review of 2023 annual bonus and 2021 » Review of executive shareholding
2023 LTIP performance guidelines

Cecembser =
2023

Review of Malus and Clawback Policy

Review of first draft of the 2023
Rermuneration Report

Performance update for 2023 annual

onus

Review of annual report on wider
workforce remuneration

Base pay design for 2024
Incentive design for 2024

The Chairman, CEC, CFC and the Chief People and Culture Officer attended
meetings by invitation of the Committee to provide it with additional context or
information, except where their own remuneration was discussed.

Other
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Directors’ report
The Directors present their report, together with the audited Table 1

consolidated financial statements of the Group, and of the Company,
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

This Directors' report has been prepared in accordance with the applicable

disclosure reguirements of the following:

« Companies Act

« Listing Rules (LRs) and DTRs

» Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market [nvestigation (Mandatory
Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee Respansibilities)
Order 2074, as published by the UK Competition and Markets Authaority
(with which the Company complies voluntarily)

« Rules promulgated by the US Securities and Exchange Commission

Additional infarmation and disclosures, as required by the Companies Act, LRs and
DTRs, are included elsewhere in this Integrated Report and are incorporated into
this Directors' report by reference in Table 1.

This Directors' report, together with the Strategic Report on pages 1-90,

represent the management report for the purpose of compliance with DTR
415R(2) and 418R.

Directors

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The Articles set out certain rules that govern the appointment and replacement

of the Company's Directors, These are summarised as follows;

= A Director may be appointed by either an ordinary resolution of shareholders or
by the Board

« Olive Partners and ER may each appoint a specified number of Directors, upto a
set maximum, in accordance with their respective eguity holding proportionsin
the Company

+ Replacement INEDs must be recommended to the Board by the Nomination
Committee

« The Board shall consist of a majority of INEDs

« Directors (other than the initial Chairman, CEC and INEDs) must retire at each
AGM, and may;, if eligiktle, offer themselves for re-election

= The minimum number of Directors (disregarding alternate Directors) is two

> Read more about the re-election and election of Directors in the Corporate governance
report on page 112
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Directors' report continued

Powers of Directors
The Directors may exercise all powers of the Company, in accordance with, and
subject to, the Company's Articles and any applicable legislation

> Read more about the roles and responsibilities of the Board and the main Committees of the
Board in the Governance and Directors' Report on pages 13-144

Directors’ indemnity arrangements

Qualifying third party incdemnities were in place throughout 2023, and remain in
place as at the date of this Integrated Report Under these indemnities, the
Company has agreed 1o indemnify the Directors of the Company, to the extent
permitted by law, against losses and liabilities that may be incurred in executing
the powers and duties of their office.

Amendment of Articles

The Articles may only be amended by a special resclution of the Company’s
shareholders in accordance with the Companies Act. Certain provisions of the
Articles are entrenched and may only be amended or repealed with the

prior consent of Olive Partners, ER or a majority of the INEDs (as applicable). In
particular, the requirement under the Articles that the Board shall, at all times,
contain a majority of INEDs may only be amended or repealed with the

prior consent of a majarity of the INEDs. The Articles are available at
cocacolaep.com/about-us/governance.

Political donations

The Group made no political donations or contributions during 2023 (2022 nil). Itis

our policy not to make political donations or incur political expenditure. However,
there may be uncertainty as to whether some normal business activities fall under
the wide definitions of pclitical donaticns, organisations and expenditure used in
the Companies Act. We will therefore continue to seek sharehclder approval to
make political donations or incur expenditure as a precaution to avoid any
inadvertent breach of the Companies Act.

Shares

Rights and obligations

The rights and cbligations relating to the Company's Shares {in addition to those
set out by law) are contained in the Articles.

Further Sustainakbility

Other
Information

Restrictions on tr
Qlive Partners anc
acquisition or disp
Other than those:
agreements betw
of securities or vol

Employee share s
Shares issued und
the existing Share
on behalf of partic
trustee as directe:

Significant sharel
In accordance witl
of which the Corn
this report. The sh
shareholders,

Share buyback pr
The Company anr
under which it prc
purchase and cary
purchases for the
authority granted

In light of the sign
brought about by
announced a susg
shareholder authc
which the Compa
the Company'siss
Shares purchased
Shares were purchk

We intend to seek

> For more detail:
on page 254




Strategic Governance and Financial Further Sustainakbility Other
Report Directors' Report Statements Information Information
Directors’ report continued
Table 2 Independent aud
Interests in Shares of which the Company has been notified Disclosure of infe
Each of the Direct
Percentage of MNumber of that
Percentage of total voting rights voting rights ;
total vating rights Number of notified to the notified to the
notified to the  voting rights notified Company as Company as + sofarashe orst
(= t  tothe Compan: t t the date of at the date of i
Shareholder t:-my?a?;n“d‘.ﬂ = the y.:ra::d .'His rapn:tf“ this rq::ri section 418 of tr
Cobega, SA™ 36.1% 166,128,987 36.1% 166128987 ¢ he GEJ?he has tal
TCCC® 19.01% 87950640 1901% BoRT6AD, T lcEaNia]

(A) Held Indirectly through its 56.03% owned subsidiary, Olive Partners.

(B} Held indirectly through European Refreshments Unlimited Company.

(23 Percentage interests disclosed calculated as at the date on which the relevant disclosure was made. These have not been updated
e refiect changes in the total voting rghts since notification and so may not represent the percentage interest as at 31 Decamber
2023 or the date of this report

Change of control

There are no agreaments in place which provide compensation for loss of office
or employment to any Director in the event of a takeover, except for certain
provisions under the employee share plans, which rmay provide that certain
outstanding awards may vest early in such an event,

The Board considers that a change of control might have an impact on the
following significant agreements:

« Bottling agreements between the Group and TCCC

= A bank credit facility agreement, under which the maximum armount available
at 31 December 2023 was £1.8 billion

» Mote and guarantes agreement in relation to the A5250 million 4.20% MNotes 2031
« MNote and guarantee agreement in relation to the USS550 million 4.34% Notes 2023

Research and development

TCCC's second-largest innovation centre is based in Belgium, where products for
Europe, the Middle East, Africa and part of South Asia are developed. CCEP does
not have its own research and development centre, but the Company invests in
and undertakes certain activities for the development of innovative solutions
(such as packaging concepts or less energy, water and carbon intensive beverage
manufacturing technology), digital capabilities and advanced analytics ta drive
the simplification of applications and platforms, and to support and grow its
business in both its manufacturing and non-manufacturing operations.t®’

(D) This policy has applied for the last thres vears.
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Directors' responsibilities statement

Responsibility for preparing

financial statements

The Directors are responsitle for
preparing the Integrated Report and
the financial statements in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom (UK)
law and regulations.

LK company law reguiras the Directors
to prepare financial statements for
each financial year, Under that law, the
Directors have prepared Group and
Parent Company financial statements
in accordance with UK-adopted
Imternational Accounting Standards.

In preparing the consolidated GFOUD
financial statements the Directors
have also elected to comply with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union, and International
Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (|ASB).

Under section 393 of the Companies
Act, the Directors miust not approve the
financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group and of the
profit or loss of the Comipany and of
the Group for that period,

In preparing the Company financial
statements, the Directors are
required to:

= Select suitable accounting policies
and apply them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting
astimateas that are reasonable
and prudent

« Follow Uk-adopted International
Accounting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union, and
International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the IASE

= Prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis unless itis
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

In preparing the Group financial
statements the Directors are
required to:

« Select suitable accounting policies
and apply them consistently

» State whether UK-adopted
International Accounting Standards,
International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and International
Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the |ASE have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements

« Present Information, including
accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable
information

« Provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS are insufficient
to enaltzle users to understand the
impact of particular transactions,
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Report of independent registered public accounting firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors
of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Coca-Cola
Europacific Partners plc (the “Group”) as of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2023, and the related
notes, collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”. In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group at 31 December 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2023, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Group's internal control over financial reporting
as of 31 December 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework) and our report dated 15 March 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Group’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a
public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
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We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond
to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit
of the financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit
committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial
statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgements. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit
matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or
disclosures to which they relate.
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Report of independent registered public accounting firm continued

Description of the matter

How we addressed the matter in our audit

Accrued
customer
marketing costs

Accounting for
uncertain tax
positions

The Group participates in various programmes and arrangements with
customers referred to as “promotional programmes”, which are recorded as
deductions from revenue. The off-invoice discounts activity totalled €5.4
billion for the year ended 31 December 2023, with €1.3 billion of accrued
customer marketing costs as of 31 December 2023.

Auditing the completeness and measurement of the accrued customer
marketing costs is complex and judgemental, particularly in relation to
promotional programmes where there is estimation uncertainty related to
the forecasted sales volumes, expected customer performance or amounts
ultimately claimed by customers.

The types of promotional programmes are more fully described in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements with details about accrued customer
marketing costs disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2023, the Group recorded provisions for uncertain tax
positions of which €175 million are included in current tax liabilities and the
remainder in non-current tax liabilities.

The Group is subject to income tax in numerous jurisdictions and is
routinely under audit by taxing authorities in the ordinary course of
business as described in Note 20 and Note 22 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Management applies judgement in assessing tax exposures in each
jurisdiction, which requires interpretation of local tax laws and specific facts
and circumstances.

Auditing the uncertain tax positions is judgemental, because of the inherent
uncertainty related to the tax exposures, which may result in materially
different outcomes. Specifically, each tax position involves the evaluation of
unique and evolving facts and circumstances.

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s revenue recognition policies and processes and how they are applied,
evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls that address the risks of material misstatement
relating to the completeness and measurement of the promotional programmes. For example, we tested controls over
management’s determination of the total estimated sales volumes used in the assessment of the accrued customer
marketing costs.

To evaluate the specific estimations that are inherent in the calculation of the accrued customer marketing costs and the
completeness of the accrual, our audit procedures included, among others, testing management’s methodology to estimate
the year-end accrued customer marketing costs, in particular the use of historical trends. We tested the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying data by agreeing key terms of the promotional programmes to the executed sales agreements
on a sample basis. We compared accrued customer marketing costs to subsequent cash settlements on a sample basis.
We performed analytical procedures on the ratio of accrued customer marketing costs to relevant data such as gross
revenue to identify any potential outliers and tested material unusual or unexpected journal entries.

We also analysed the historical reversals and ageing of the accrued customer marketing costs, to identify potential
management bias in the estimate of the year-end accrual and considered any changes in the business environment that
would warrant changes in the methodology.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls in place over the
Group’s process to evaluate and account for uncertain tax positions. For example, we tested the Group’s controls around
evaluation of the facts and circumstances supporting the conclusions on the Group’s tax positions.

We obtained management’s calculations and agreed inputs to source documentation where applicable.

We evaluated the tax positions taken by management in each significant jurisdiction in the context

of local tax laws, considering correspondence with tax authorities, the status of any tax audits and

third-party advice obtained by the Group. Our work involved tax professionals with local knowledge to assess the tax
positions taken in each significant jurisdiction in the context of local tax law and significant tax assessments.

In evaluating management'’s tax provisions, we evaluated the assumptions used by management to assess its uncertain
tax positions and compliance with the requirements of IFRIC 23. We developed our independent range of possible
outcomes for the Group’s tax exposures based on evidence obtained, which we compared to the Group’s provisions.
Where exposures arise in jurisdictions with similar laws and regulations, we also considered whether the evaluation of tax
risks was consistent across those jurisdictions and took into account any resolution of these issues with the tax authorities.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
We have served as the Group’s auditor since 2016.
London, United Kingdom

15 March 2024
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Report of independent registered public accounting firm continued

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors
of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc’s internal control over financial reporting as
of 31 December 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
framework), (the COSO criteria). In our opinion, Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc (the
“Group”) maintained,

in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as

of 31 December 2023, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated statements of financial position of
the Group as of 31 December 2023 and

2022, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years

in the period ended 31 December 2023, and the related notes and our report dated 15 March
2024 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Group’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management'’s report on internal control over financial reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
London, United Kingdom
15 March 2024
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022 2021
Note € million € million € million
Revenue 4 18,302 17,320 13,763
Cost of sales (11,582) (11,096) (8,677)
Gross profit 6,720 6,224 5,086
Selling and distribution expenses 17 (3,178) (2,984) (2,496)
Administrative expenses 17 (1,310) (1,250) (1,074)
Other income 23 107 96 —
Operating profit 2,339 2,086 1,516
Finance income 18 65 67 43
Finance costs 18 (185) (181) 172)
Total finance costs, net (120) (114) (129)
Non-operating items (16) (15) (5)
Profit before taxes 2,203 1,957 1,382
Taxes 20 (534) (436) (394)
Profit after taxes 1,669 1,521 988
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,669 1,508 982
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests — 13 6
Profit after taxes 1,669 1,521 988
Basic earnings per share (€) 5 3.64 3.30 2.15
Diluted earnings per share (€) 5 3.63 3.29 2.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022 2021
Note € million € million € million
Profit after taxes 1,669 1,521 988
Components of other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement:
Foreign currency translations:
Pre-tax activity, net (246) (205) 260
Tax effect — — —
Foreign currency translation, net of tax (246) (205) 260
Cash flow hedges:
Pre-tax activity, net 21 (64) 277
Tax effect 20 (1) 17 (63)
Cash flow hedges, net of tax 12 10 (47) 214
Other reserves:
Pre-tax activity, net 3 9) 7
Tax effect 20 — 3 1)
Other reserves, net of tax 3 6) 6
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement (233) (258) 480
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to the income statement:
Pension plan remeasurements:
Pre-tax activity, net 15 (108) (45) 301
Tax effect 20 35 1 (63)
Pension plan remeasurements, net of tax (73) (34) 238
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to the income statement (73) (34) 238
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the period, net of tax (306) (292) 718
Comprehensive income for the period 1,363 1,229 1,706
Comprehensive income attributable to shareholders 1,363 1,202 1,684
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests — 27 22
1,363 1,229 1,706

Comprehensive income for the period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2023

2022

Note € million € million Note € million € million
ASSETS Current:
Non-current: Current portion of borrowings 13 1,300 1,336
Intangible assets 6 12,395 12,505 Current portion of employee benefit liabilities 15 8 8
Goodwill 6 4,514 4,600 Current provisions 22 114 115
Property, plant and equipment 7 5,344 5,201 Current derivative liabilities 12 99 76
Non-current derivative assets 12 100 191  Current tax liabilities 253 241
Deferred tax assets 20 1 21 Amounts payable to related parties 19 270 485
Other non-current assets 25 295 252 Trade and other payables 14 5,234 5,052
Total non-current assets 22,649 22,770 Total current liabilities 7,278 7,313
Current: Total liabilities 21,278 21,866
Current derivative assets 12 161 257 EQUITY
Current tax assets 58 85 Share capital 16 5 5
Inventories 8 1,356 1,380 Share premium 16 276 234
Amounts receivable from related parties 19 123 139 Merger reserves 16 287 287
Trade accounts receivable 9 2,547 2,466 Other reserves 16 (823) (507)
Other current assets 24 351 479 Retained earnings 8,231 7,428
Assets held for sale 24 22 94  Equity attributable to shareholders 7,976 7,447
Short-term investments 10 568 256 Non-controlling interest 16 — —
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,419 1,387 Total equity 7,976 7,447
Total current assets 6,605 6,543 Total equity and liabilities 29,254 29,313
Total assets 29,254 29,313
LIABILITIES The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Non-current: The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 15
Borrowings, less current portion 13 10,096 10,571 March 2024. They were signed on its behalf by:
Employee benefit liabilities 15 191 108 Damian Gammel,
Non-current provisions 22 45 55 Chief Executive Officer

15 March 2024

Non-current derivative liabilities 12 169 187
Deferred tax liabilities 20 3,378 3,513
Non-current tax liabilities 75 82
Other non-current liabilities 46 37
Total non-current liabilities 14,000 14,553
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2023

2022

2021

Note € million € million € million
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before taxes 2,203 1,957 1,382
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
from operating activities:
Depreciation 7 653 715 693
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 139 101 89
Share-based payment expense 21 57 33 16
Gain on sale of sub-strata and associated mineral rights 23 (35) — —
Gain on the sale of property 23 (54) — —
Finance costs, net 18 120 114 129
Income taxes paid (509) (415) (306)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in trade and other receivables (5) (282) (242)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 6 (244) (1)
Increase in trade and other payables 124 885 507
Increase/(decrease) in net payable receivable from related
parties 80 (15) 8
(Decrease)/increase in provisions (11) 37 (116)
Change in other operating assets and liabilities 38 46 (42)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2,806 2,932 2,117
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of bottling operations, net of cash acquired — — (5,401)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (672) (500) (349)
Purchases of capitalised software (140) (103) 97)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 101 1 25
Proceeds from sales of intangible assets 37 143 —
Proceeds from the sale of sub-strata and associated
mineral rights 23 35 — —
Net (payments)/proceeds of short-term investments (342) (207) 198

Note € million € million € million
Investments in equity instruments (5) 2) 4)
Proceeds from sale of equity instruments — 13 25
Interest received 58 — —
Other investing activity, net 9) — 2)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (937) (645) (5,605)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings, net 13 694 — 4,877
Changes in short-term borrowings 13 — (285) 276
Repayments on third party borrowings 13 (1,159) (938) (950)
Settlement of debt-related cross currency swaps 13 69 — —
Payments of principal on lease obligations 13 (148) (153) (139)
Interest paid 13 (182) (130) (97)
Dividends paid 16 (841) (763) (638)
Exercise of employee share options 43 13 28
Transactions with non-controlling interests — — (73)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 19 (282) — —
Other financing activities, net (16) (20) 5
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (1,822) (2,276) 3,289
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 47 1 (199)
Net effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (15) (31) 83
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 10 1,387 1,407 1,523
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10 1,419 1,387 1,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total

Share capital  Share premium  Merger reserves  Other reserves Retained earnings Total interest equity
Note € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
As at 1 January 2021 5 192 287 (537) 6,078 6,025 — 6,025
Profit after taxes — — — — 982 982 6 988
Other comprehensive income — — — 465 237 702 16 718
Total comprehensive income — — — 465 1,219 1,684 22 1,706
Non-controlling interests recognised relating to business combination — — — — — — 228 228
Transactions with non-controlling interests — — — — — — (73) (73)
Cash flow hedge gains transferred to goodwill relating to business combination 12 — — — (84) — (84) — (84)
Issue of shares during the year 16 — 28 — — — 28 — 28
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 21 — — — — 16 16 — 16
Share-based payment tax effects 20 — — — — 3 3 — 3
Dividends 16 — — — — (639) (639) — (639)
As at 31 December 2021 5 220 287 (156) 6,677 7,033 177 7,210
Profit after taxes — — — — 1,508 1,508 13 1,521
Other comprehensive income/(loss) — — — (272) (34) (306) 14 (292)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) — — — (272) 1,474 1,202 27 1,229
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 16 — — — (79) — (79) (204) (283)
Issue of shares during the year 16 — 14 — — — 14 — 14
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 21 — — — — 33 33 — 33
Share-based payment tax effects 20 — — — — 10 10 — 10
Dividends 16 — — — — (766) (766) — (766)
As at 31 December 2022 5 234 287 (507) 7,428 7,447 — 7,447
Profit after taxes — — — — 1,669 1,669 — 1,669
Other comprehensive loss — — — (233) (73) (306) — (306)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) — — — (233) 1,596 1,363 — 1,363
Cash flow hedge (gains)/losses transferred to cost of inventories 12 — — — (114) — (114) — (114)
Tax effect on cash flow hedge (gains)/losses transferred to cost of inventories 12; 20 — — — 31 — 31 — 31
Issue of shares during the year 16 — 42 — — — 42 — 42
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 21 — — — — 54 54 — 54
Purchases of shares for equity settled Employee Share Purchase Plan — — — — (4) 4) — 4)
Share-based payment tax effects 20 — — — — 1 1 — 1
Dividends 16 — — — — (844) (844) — (844)
As at 31 December 2023 5 276 287 (823) 8,231 7,976 — 7,976

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1

General information and basis of preparation

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together CCEP, or the
Group) are a leading consumer goods group in Western Europe and the Asia Pacific region,
making, selling and distributing an extensive range of primarily non-alcoholic ready to drink
beverages.

The Company has ordinary shares with a nominal value of €0.01 per share (Shares). CCEP is a
public company limited by shares, incorporated under the laws of England and Wales with the
registered number in England of 9717350. The Group’s Shares are listed and traded on
Euronext Amsterdam, the NASDAQ Global Select Market, London Stock Exchange and on the
Spanish Stock Exchanges. The address of the Company’s registered office is Pemberton House,
Bakers Road, Uxbridge, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
approved and signed by Damian Gammell, Chief Executive Officer, on 15 March 2024 having
been duly authorised to do so by the Board of Directors.

Impact of climate change

As part of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has considered
the impact of climate change risks on the current valuation of the Group’s assets and liabilities,
particularly in the context of the risks and scenarios identified in the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) on pages 48-60 of the Strategic Report. There has been
no material impact on the financial reporting judgements and estimates arising from the
considerations of the Group and, as a result, the valuation of the Group’s assets and liabilities as
of 31 December 2023 have not been affected. The Group’s considerations were specifically
focused on the impact of climate change risks on the projected cash flows used in the
impairment assessment of our indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill (refer to Note 6) as
well as the carrying value and useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment (refer to
Note 7). As the pace and effectiveness of a global transition to a low-carbon economy evolve,
including the development of government policies aiming to address the risks arising from
climate change, the Group will continue to monitor and assess the relevant implications on the
valuation of the Group’s assets and liabilities that could arise in future years.
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Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group reflect the following:

« They have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards,

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and

International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB).

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain items

measured at fair value. Those accounting policies have been applied consistently in all

periods, except for the adoption of new standards and amendments as of 1 January 2023, as

described below under accounting policies.

- They are presented in euros, which is also the Parent Company’s functional currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest euro million except where otherwise indicated.

- They have been prepared on a going concern basis (refer to the “Going concern” paragraph
on page 146).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its

subsidiaries. All subsidiaries have accounting years ended 31 December and apply consistent

accounting policies for the purpose of the consolidated financial statements.

Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through the Group’s
power to direct the activities of the entity. All intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated on consolidation.

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% to 50% of voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control
as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including
goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and any other components of equity, while any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary
is measured at fair value when control is lost.

The financial results presented herein for the period from 1 January 2021 through to the
acquisition of CCL (the Acquisition) effective 10 May 2021 refer to Coca-Cola European Partners
plc (Legacy CCEP) and its consolidated subsidiaries. The periods from the Acquisition to the
year ended 31 December 2023 refer to the combined financial results of CCEP.

Foreign currency

The individual financial statements of each subsidiary are presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the subsidiary operates (its functional currency). For the
purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each
subsidiary are expressed in euros.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are remeasured to the functional currency of the entity at the rate of exchange
in effect at the statement of financial position date with the resulting gain or loss recorded in the
consolidated income statement.

The consolidated income statement includes non-operating items which are primarily made up of
remeasurement gains and losses related to currency exchange rate fluctuations on financing
transactions denominated in a currency other than the subsidiary’s functional currency. Non-
operating items are shown on a net basis and reflect the impact of any derivative instruments
utilised to hedge the foreign currency movements of the underlying financing transactions.

The assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated from local currencies to
the euro reporting currency at exchange rates in effect at the end of each reporting period.
Revenues and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates, with average rates
being a reasonable approximation of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Gains and
losses from translation are included in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
operation, accumulated exchange differences are recognised as a component of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Information

The principal exchange rates used for translation purposes in respect of one euro were:

Average for the year ended 31 December®

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
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2023

2022

2021

2023

2022

British pound 1.15
US dollar 0.92
Norwegian krone 0.09
Swedish krona 0.09
Icelandic krona 0.01
Australian dollar 0.61
Indonesian

rupiah® 0.06
New Zealand dollar 0.57
Papua New

Guinean kina 0.26

1.17
0.95
0.10
0.09
0.01
0.66

0.06
0.60

0.27

1.16
0.85
0.10
0.10
0.01
0.63

0.06
0.60

0.24

1.15
0.90
0.09
0.09
0.01
0.61

0.06
0.57

0.24

1.13
0.94
0.10
0.09
0.01
0.64

0.06
0.60

0.27

(A) For the year ended 31 December 2021, the rates for the Asia Pacific region are calculated as average for the period from 10 May 2021 to 31 December
2021

(B) Indonesian rupiah is shown as 1000 IDR versus 1 EUR
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Reporting periods
In these consolidated financial statements, the Group is reporting the financial results for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The following table summarises the number of selling days for the years ended
31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 (based on a standard five day
selling week):

First half Second half Full year
2023 130 130 260
2022 130 130 260
2021 131 130 261

Comparability

Sales of the Group’s products are seasonal. In Europe, the second and third quarters typically
account for higher unit sales of the Group’s products than the first and fourth quarters. In the
Group’s Asia Pacific territories, the fourth quarter would typically reflect higher sales volumes in
the year. The seasonality of the Group’s sales volume, combined with the accounting for fixed
costs such as depreciation, amortisation, rent and interest expense, impacts the Group’s
reported results for the first and second halves of the year. Additionally, year over year shifts in
holidays, selling days and weather patterns can impact the Group’s results on an annual or half
yearly basis.

Note 2

Accounting policies

IFRS 15 “Revenue recognition and deductions from revenue”

The Group derives its revenues by making, selling and distributing ready to drink beverages. The
revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time at which control passes to a
customer, typically when products are delivered to a customer. A receivable is recognised by the
Group at the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

The Group uses various promotional programmes under which rebates, refunds, price
concessions or similar items can be earned by customers for attaining agreed upon sales levels
or for participating in specific marketing programmes. Those promotional programmes do not
give rise to a separate performance obligation. Where the consideration the Group is entitled to
varies because of such programmes, it is deemed to be variable consideration. The related
accruals are recognised as a deduction from revenue and are not considered distinct from

Further Sustainability
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the sale of products to the customer. Variable consideration is only included to the extent that it is
highly probable that the inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
normal commercial terms.

Financing elements are not deemed present in our contracts with customers, as the sales are
made with credit terms not exceeding normal commercial terms. Taxes on sugared soft drinks,
excise taxes and taxes on packaging are recorded on a gross basis (i.e. included in revenue)
where the Group is the principal in the arrangement. Value added taxes are recorded on a net
basis (i.e. excluded from revenue). The Group assesses these taxes and duties on a jurisdiction
by jurisdiction basis to conclude on the appropriate accounting treatment.

The rest of the accounting policies applied by the Group are included in the relevant notes
herein.

New and amended standards
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time in the year
ended 31 December 2023.

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” is a comprehensive new standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide a comprehensive
accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers covering
all relevant accounting aspects.

The new standard had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8

The amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates,
changes in accounting policies and corrections of errors. They also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IFRS Practice Statement
2 “Making Materiality Judgements” provide guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities
provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for
entities to disclose their “significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
“material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions concerning accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to
IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 “Income Tax” narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception,
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning liabilities.

The amendments had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to IAS 12

The Group has adopted International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS
12) upon their release on 23 May 2023. The amendments provide a temporary mandatory
exception from deferred tax accounting for the top-up tax, which is effective immediately, and
require new disclosures about the Pillar Two exposure (see Note 20 for further details).

The Group has not early adopted any other amendments to accounting standards that have
been issued but are not yet effective. These amendments are not expected to have a material
impact to the Group in the current or future periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Note 3

Significant judgements and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements

and estimates that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to estimates are recognised prospectively. The significant judgements made in applying the
Group’s accounting policies were applied consistently across the annual periods.

The significant judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant
effect on the amounts recognised in these financial statements are outlined below.

Significant judgements

Intangible assets and goodwill

The Group has assigned indefinite lives to its bottling agreements with TCCC. This judgement
has been made after evaluating the contractual provisions of the bottling agreements, the
Group’s mutually beneficial relationship with TCCC and the history of renewals for bottling
agreements.

Refer to Note 6 for further details on the judgement regarding the lives of bottling agreements.

Significant estimates

Impairment of indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use or the fair value less costs to sell of the cash generating unit
(CGU) to which the goodwill or intangible asset has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires management's estimation of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU,
including climate-related risks. Refer to Note 6 for the sensitivity analysis of the assumptions
used in the impairment analysis of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.
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Deductions from revenue and sales incentives

The Group participates in various promotional programmes with customers designed to increase
the sale of products. Among the programmes are arrangements under which rebates, refunds,
price concessions or similar items can be earned by customers for attaining agreed upon sales
levels, or for participating in specific marketing programmes. Those promotional programmes
do not give rise to a separate performance obligation. Where the consideration the Group is
entitled to varies because of such programmes, the amount payable is deemed to be variable
consideration. Management makes estimates on an ongoing basis for each individual promotion
to assess the value of the variable consideration based upon historical customer experience,
expected customer performance and/or estimated sales volumes. The related accruals are
recognised as a deduction from revenue and are not considered distinct from the sale of
products to the customer. Refer to Note 14 for further details.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions and there are many transactions
for which the ultimate tax determination cannot be assessed with certainty in the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises a provision for situations that might arise in the foreseeable
future based on an assessment of the probabilities as to whether additional taxes will be due. In
addition, the Group is involved in various legal proceedings and tax matters. Where an outflow of
funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be
made, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Where the final outcome on
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact
the tax provision in the period in which such determination is made. These estimates are subject
to potential change over time as new facts emerge and each circumstance progresses. The
evaluation of deferred tax asset recoverability requires estimates to be made regarding the
availability of future taxable income in the jurisdiction giving rise to the deferred tax asset. Refer
to Note 20 for further details regarding income taxes.

Defined benefit plans

The determination of pension benefit costs and obligations is estimated based on assumptions
determined with the assistance of external actuarial advice. The key assumptions impacting the
valuations are the discount rate, salary rate of inflation and mortality rates. Refer to Note 15 for
further details about the Group’s defined benefit pension plan costs and obligations, including
sensitivities to the key assumptions applied.
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Note 4

Segment information

Description of segment and principal activities

The Group derives its revenues through a single business activity, which is making, selling and
distributing an extensive range of primarily non-alcoholic ready to drink beverages. The Group’s
Board continues to be its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), which allocates resources
and evaluates performance of its operating segments based on volume, revenue and
comparable operating profit. Comparable operating profit excludes items impacting the
comparability of period over period financial performance.

The following table provides a reconciliation between reportable segment operating profit and

consolidated profit before tax:

Year ended 31 December
2022

2023 2021

Europe API Total Europe API Total Europe API Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Revenue 14,553 3,749 18,302 13,529 3,791 17,320 11,584 2,179 13,763
Comparable
operating profit® 1,888 485 2373 1670 468 2138 1500 272 1,772
Items impacting
comparability® (34) (52) (256)
Reported operating
profit 2,339 2,086 1,516
Total finance costs, net (120) (114) (129)
Non-operating items (16) (15) (5)
Reported profit
before tax 2,203 1,957 1,382

(A) Comparable operating profitincludes comparable depreciation and amortisation of €558 million and €196 million for Europe and AP respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Comparable depreciation and amortisation charges for the year ended 31 December 2022 totalled €549 millon and €223
million for Europe and API [ bi and charges for the year ended 31 December 2021 totalled €564 million and
€162 million for Europe and API respectively.
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(B) Items impacting the comparability of period over period financial performance for 2023 primarily include restructuring charges of €94 million (refer to Note
17) and accelerated amortisation charges of €27 million (refer to Note 6), partially offset by €18 million of royalty income arising from the ownership of
certain mineral rights in Australia (refer to Note 23), considerations of €35 million received relating to the sale of the sub-strata and associated mineral rights
in Australia (refer to Note 23) and gains of €54 million mainly attributable to the sale of property in Germany (refer to Note 23). tems impacting the

for 2022 included ing charges of €163 million (refer to Note 17), partially offset by €96 million of other income arising from the
favourable court ruling pertaining to the ownership of certain mineral rights in Australia (refer to Note 23) and net insurance recoveries received of

€11 million arising from the July 2021 flooding events.

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s revenue during the years

ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

Revenue by geography

The following table summarises revenue from external customers by geography, which is based

on the origin of the sale:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022 2021
Revenue: € million € million € million
Iberia® 3,325 3,034 2495
Germany 3,018 2,682 2,335
Great Britain 3,235 3,088 2,613
France® 2,321 2,089 1,813
Belgium/Luxembourg 1,078 1,042 926
Netherlands 718 682 557
Norway 376 404 391
Sweden 398 421 375
Iceland 84 87 79
Total Europe 14,553 13,529 11,584
Australia 2,385 2,339 1,359
New Zealand and Pacific Islands 679 649 377
Indonesia and Papua New Guinea 685 803 443
Total API 3,749 3,791 2,179
Total CCEP 18,302 17,320 13,763

(A) Iberia refers to Spain, Portugal and Andorra.
(B) France refers to continental France and Monaco.
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Assets by geography
Assets are allocated based on operations and physical location. The following table summarises
non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets, by geography:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
Assets: € million € million
Iberia® 6,455 6,401
Germany 3,162 3,091
Great Britain 2,523 2,469
France® 940 896
Belgium/Luxembourg 623 613
Netherlands 439 428
Sweden 349 349
Norway 225 242
lceland 38 36
Other unallocated 360 271
Total Europe 15,114 14,796
Australia 5,065 5,281
New Zealand and Pacific Islands 1,687 1,755
Indonesia and Papua New Guinea 682 726
Total API 7,434 7,762
Total CCEP 22,548 22,558

(A) Iberia refers to Spain, Portugal and Andorra
(B) France refers to continental France and Monaco,
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Note 5

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit after taxes by the weighted average
number of Shares in issue and outstanding during the

period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated in a similar manner, but includes the effect of
dilutive securities, principally share options, restricted stock units

and performance share units. Share-based payment awards that are contingently issuable upon
the achievement of specified market and/or performance conditions are included in the diluted
earnings per share calculation based on

the number of Shares that would be issuable if the end of the period was the

end of the contingency period.

The following table summarises basic and diluted earnings per share calculations for the years
presented:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022 2021

Profit after taxes attributable to equity shareholders

(€ million) 1,669 1,508 982

Basic weighted average number of Shares

S ) (it

in issue®™ (million) 459 457 456

Effect of dilutive potential Shares® (million) o 1 1

Diluted weighted average number of Shares in

h A (il

issue®™ (million) 459 458 457

i i (C)

Basic earnings per share(© (€) 3.64 3.30 215
i i (C)

Diluted earnings per share(© (€) 3.63 3.29 215

(A) As at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group had 459,200,818, 457,106,453 and 456,235,032 Shares, respectively, in
issue and outstanding.

(B) For the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, no options to purchase Shares were excluded from the diluted
eamings per share calculation. The dilutive impact of all outstanding options, unvested restricted stock units and unvested performance share units was
included in the effect of dilutive securities.

(C) Basic and diluted eamings per share are calculated prior to rounding.
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Note 6

Intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets with indefinite lives

Intangible assets with indefinite lives acquired through business combination transactions are
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. These assets

are not subject to amortisation but are tested for impairment annually at the

CGU level or more frequently if facts and circumstances indicate an impairment may exist. In
addition to the annual impairment test, the assessment of indefinite lives is also reviewed
annually.

TCCC franchise intangible assets

The Group’s bottling agreements with TCCC contain performance requirements and convey
the rights to distribute and sell products within specified territories. The agreements in each
territory are for initial terms of

10 years that can be renewed for another 10 years. The Group believes that its
interdependent relationship with TCCC and the substantial cost and disruption to TCCC that
would be caused by non-renewal ensure that these agreements will continue to be renewed
and, therefore, are essentially perpetual.

The Group has never had a bottling agreement with TCCC terminated due

to non-performance of the terms of the agreement or due to a decision by TCCC to terminate
an agreement at the expiration of a term. After evaluating the contractual provisions of the
bottling agreements as at 31 December 2023,

the Group’s mutually beneficial relationship with TCCC and history of renewals, indefinite
lives have been assigned to all of the Group’s TCCC bottling agreements.

Brands

In connection with the Acquisition, the Group acquired a portfolio of brands, predominantly
comprised of certain non-alcoholic ready to drink beverages distributed and sold in Australia and
New Zealand. These are considered to have an indefinite life, given the strength and durability of
the brands. Refer to Note 19 for details surrounding the subsequent sale of certain non-alcoholic
ready to drink brands to TCCC, which was completed in tranches.
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Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the total consideration transferred over the
amount recognised for net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the gain is recognised in the consolidated income statement as a
bargain purchase. Goodwill is not subject to amortisation. It is tested annually for impairment at
the CGU level or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the CGU that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination irrespective of whether a CGU is part of the
business combination.

Intangible assets with finite lives

Intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost of acquisition or production and are
amortised using the straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives. Finite lived
intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired. The amortisation period and method are reviewed annually.

Internally generated software

The Group capitalises certain development costs associated with internally developed software,
including external direct costs of materials and services, and payroll costs for employees
devoting time to a software project and any such software acquired as part of a business
combination. Development expenditure is recognised as an intangible asset only after its
technical feasibility and commercial viability can be demonstrated. When capitalised software is
not integral to related hardware, it is treated as an intangible asset; otherwise it is included within
property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful life of capitalised software is predominantly
between five and seven years. Amortisation expense for capitalised software is included within
administrative expenses and was €94 million, €83 million and €75 million for the years ended

31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively.
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Customer relationships

The Group has acquired certain customer relationships in connection with business
combinations. These customer relationships are recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition,
and amortised over an estimated economic useful life of 20 years. Amortisation expense for
these assets is included within administrative expenses and was €10 million, €10 million and €9
million for the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
respectively.

Non-TCCC franchise intangible

In connection with the Acquisition, the Group acquired certain bottling agreements with non-
TCCC distribution partners, mainly Beam Suntory, which contain performance requirements and
convey the rights to distribute and sell products within specified API territories. The non-TCCC
bottling arrangements were recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and were initially
amortised over an expected economic useful life of 20 years. On 2 August 2023, the Group
announced that CCEP and Beam Suntory will discontinue their relationship effective 1 July 2025
(Australia) and 1 January 2026 (New Zealand). CCEP will remain the exclusive manufacturing,
sales and distribution partner for Beam Suntory in Australia and New Zealand through the end of
the current contractual terms set to expire on 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2025,
respectively. The discontinuance of the relationship triggered a change in the assigned useful
economic life of the intangible assets effective from the second half of 2023, resulting in an
accelerated amortisation charge of €27 million recognised for the year ending 31 December
2023. As at 31 December 2023, finite-lived intangible assets of €94 million were reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position related to the Beam Suntory distribution rights,
primarily attributable to those available in Australia. Total amortisation expense for these assets
is recognised within administrative expenses and totalled €35 million, €8 million and €5 million
for the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
respectively.
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Balances and movements in intangible assets and goodwill
The following table summarises the movements in the carrying amounts of intangible assets and goodwill for the periods presented:
TCCC franchise Non-TCCC franchise Assets under
intangible Brands Software ~ Customer relationships intangible construction Total intangibles Goodwill
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Cost:
As at 31 December 2021 12,008 22 571 197 149 47 12,994 4,623
Additions — — 40 1 — 63 104 —
Disposals — — (27) — — (1) (28) —
Transfers and reclassifications — 1" 39 — — (38) 12 —
Currency translation adjustments (134) 6 2) ®3) (1) (2) (136) (23)
As at 31 December 2022 11,874 39 621 195 148 69 12,946 4,600
Additions — — 64 — — 92 156 —
Disposals — — (27) — — — (27) —
Transfers and reclassifications — — 63 — — (65) 2) —
Currency translation adjustments (116) @) (1) (1) (6) ) (133) (86)
As at 31 December 2023 11,758 32 720 194 142 94 12,940 4,514
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 31 December 2021 — — (297) (53) (5) — (355) —
Amortisation expense — — (83) (10) 8) — (101) —
Disposals — — 22 — — — 22 —
Currency translation adjustments — @) 2) 2 — — @) —
As at 31 December 2022 — (7) (360) 61) (13) — (441) —
Amortisation expense — — (94) (10) (35) — (139) —
Disposals — — 27 — — — 27 —
Currency translation adjustments — 7 1 — — — 8 —
As at 31 December 2023 — — (426) 1) (48) — (545) —
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2021 12,008 22 274 144 144 47 12,639 4,623
As at 31 December 2022 11,874 32 261 134 135 69 12,505 4,600
As at 31 December 2023 11,758 32 294 123 94 94 12,395 4,514
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Impairment of indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill

Each CGU is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or whenever there is an
indication of impairment. The recoverable amount of each CGU is normally determined through
a value in use calculation. To determine value in use for a CGU, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate reflective of the current market
conditions and risks specific to each CGU. If the carrying value of a CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the carrying value of the CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount and
impairment charges are recognised immediately within the consolidated income statement.
Impairment charges other than those related to goodwill may be reversed in future periods if a
subsequent test indicates that the recoverable amount has increased. Such recoveries may not
exceed a CGU'’s original carrying value less any depreciation that would have been recognised if
no impairment charges were previously recorded.

The Group’s CGUs are based on geography and generally represent the individual territories in
which the Group operates. For the purposes of allocating intangibles, each indefinite lived
intangible asset is allocated to the geographic region to which the agreement relates and
goodwill is allocated to each of the CGUs expected to benefit from a business combination,
irrespective of whether other assets and liabilities of the acquired businesses are assigned to the
CGUs.

The following table identifies the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets
attributable to each significant CGU of the Group. In addition to the significant CGUs of the
Group, as at 31 December 2023, the Group had other CGUs with total indefinite lived intangible
assets of €1,349 million (2022: €1,369 million) and goodwill of €370 million (2022: €380 million).

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022

Indefinite lived intangible Indefinite lived intangible

assets Goodwill assets Goodwill
Cash generating unit € million € million € million € million
Iberia 4,289 1,275 4,289 1,275
Australia 2,596 1,397 2,690 1,450
Great Britain 1,680 200 1,646 200
Germany 1,060 748 1,060 748
Pacific® 816 524 849 547

(A) Pacific refers to New Zealand and Pacific Islands.
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The recoverable amount of each CGU was determined through a value in use calculation, which
uses cash flow projections for a five year period. These projections reflect the impact of climate
change on our business as well as the mitigating actions and strategies we are undertaking to
support our commitment to reach Net Zero by 2040. The key assumptions used in projecting
these cash flows were as follows:

Growth rate and operating margins: Cash flows were projected over four years based on the
Group’s strategic business plan. Cash flows for the fifth year and beyond were projected using
an inflation-based long-term terminal growth rate between 1.6% and 4.5%.

- Discount rate: A weighted average cost of capital was applied specific to each CGU as a
hurdle rate to discount cash flows. The discount rates represent the current market
assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the time value of
money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in the
cash flow estimates. The following table summarises the pre-tax discount rate attributable to
each significant CGU.

2023 2022

Pre-tax Pre-tax

discount rate discount rate

Cash generating unit % %
Iberia 9.3 8.7
Australia 1.1 9.1
Great Britain 9.8 9.3
Germany 10.1 7.9

ific™

Pacific 1.2 97

(A) Pacific refers to New Zealand and Pacific Islands.

The Group did not record any impairment charges as a result of the tests conducted in 2023 and
2022.

The Group’s Iberia, Australia, Great Britain and Germany CGUs have substantial headroom
when comparing the value in use calculation of the CGU versus the CGU’s total carrying value.
For the Group’s Pacific CGU, the headroom in the 2023 impairment analysis was approximately
11% of total carrying value. The Group estimates that a 0.9% reduction in the terminal growth
rate or a 0.7% increase in the discount rate, each in isolation, would eliminate existing headroom
in Pacific.
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For the Group’s Indonesia CGU, the headroom in the 2023 impairment analysis was
approximately 11% of total carrying value. The indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill
equalled €143 million in total and the pre-tax discount rate used in the test was 12.2%. The
Group estimates that a 1.2% reduction in the terminal growth rate or a 0.8% increase in the
discount rate, each in isolation, would eliminate existing headroom in Indonesia.

Note 7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, where cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid to
acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction. Major property additions,
replacements and improvements are capitalised, while maintenance and repairs that do not
extend the useful life of an asset or add new functionality are expensed as incurred. Land is not
depreciated, as it is considered to have an indefinite life. For all property, plant and equipment,
other than land, depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the respective
estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful life (years)

Further Sustainability

Category Low High
Buildings and improvements 10 40
Machinery, equipment and containers 3 20
Cold drink equipment 2 12
Vehicle fleet 3 12
Furniture and office equipment 3 10

Gains or losses arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset are determined as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and any proceeds from its sale. Leasehold
improvements are amortised using the straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining
lease term or the estimated useful life of the improvement.

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, an impairment test is performed to estimate the potential loss
of value that may reduce the recoverable amount of the asset to below its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss is recognised within the consolidated income statement by the amount which
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Useful lives and residual amounts are
reviewed annually and adjustments are made prospectively as required.

Other
Information Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

2023 Integrated Report and Form 20-F

177

For property, plant and equipment, the Group assesses annually whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such an
indication exists, a previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised and only up to the recoverable amount or the original carrying
amount net of depreciation that would have been incurred had no impairment losses been
recognised.

The transition to a low-carbon economy may impact the carrying value and remaining useful
economic lives of the Group’s property, plant and equipment. The Group continues to invest in
more efficient, cleaner and more technologically advanced assets, however, the significant
majority of the Group’s assets currently in operation are likely to be substantially depreciated
ahead of our Net Zero 2040 target, as set out in our Strategic Report on pages 37-40. In
addition, the Group continuously monitors the latest developments in government legislation in
relation to climate-related risks. Currently, no legislation has been passed that will materially
impact the carrying value and remaining useful economic lives of the Group.

The Group leases land, office and warehouse property, computer hardware, machinery and
equipment, and vehicles under non-cancellable lease agreements, most of which expire at
various dates through to 2030. The Group includes right of use assets within property, plant and
equipment. Right of use assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the initial measurement
of the lease liability, plus any direct costs and an estimate of asset retirement obligations, less
lease incentives. Subsequently, right of use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

The Group does not separate lease from non-lease components for each of its lease categories,
except for property leases. All low value leases with total minimum lease payments under €5,000
and leases with a term less than 12 months are expensed on a straight-line basis.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases
across the Group and are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.
Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the
Group has an enforceable right to extend or terminate the lease and is reasonably certain to do
so.
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The following table summarises the movement in net book value for property, plant and equipment for the periods presented:
Buildings and  Machinery, equipment Furniture Assets under
Land improvements. and containers  Cold drink equipment Vehicle fleet  and office equipment construction Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Cost:
As at 31 December 2021 663 2,429 3,578 1,026 298 160 206 8,360
Additions 1 131 221 65 59 21 287 785
Disposals (3) (28) (103) (49) (58) ®) — (249)
Assets held for sale (29) (26) 8) — — — — (63)
Transfers and reclassifications 27 37 75 36 2 8 (184) 1
Currency translation adjustments (1) (42) (40) 32 4) 2) “) 1)
As at 31 December 2022 648 2,501 3,723 1,110 297 179 305 8,763
Additions 20 7 271 73 101 9 344 889
Disposals 1) (44) (214) (47) (51) ©) — (360)
Transfers and reclassifications 2 84 124 34 3 12 (259) —
Currency translation adjustments (12) (26) (18) 9) ()] 2) ()] (69)
As at 31 December 2023 657 2,586 3,886 1,161 349 195 389 9,223
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 31 December 2021 — (766) (1,473) (631) (151) @1 — (3,112)
Depreciation expense — (128) (380) (127) (58) (22) — (715)
Disposals — 19 105 49 53 8 — 234
Assets held for sale — 10 9 — — — — 19
Transfers and reclassifications — — 3 2) — — — 1
Currency translation adjustments — 22 2) (14) 3 2 — 11
As at 31 December 2022 — (843) (1,738) (725) (153) (103) — (3,562)
Depreciation expense — (137) (318) (112) ©61) (25) — (653)
Disposals — 28 204 43 47 3 — 325
Transfers and reclassifications — — 3 (1) — — — 2
Currency translation adjustments — — 5 4 — — — 9
As at 31 December 2023 — (952) (1,844) (791) (167) (125) — (3,879)
Net book value:
As at 31 December 2021 663 1,663 2,105 395 147 69 206 5,248
As at 31 December 2022 648 1,658 1,985 385 144 76 305 5,201
As at 31 December 2023 657 1,634 2,042 370 182 70 389 5,344
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Right of use assets

The following table summarises the net book value of right of use assets included within

property, plant and equipment:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability Other
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The Group incurred variable lease expenses of €157 million in 2023 (2022: €153 million), primarily
included in administrative expenses. This amount mainly consists of the variable component of
lease payments for product transportation services in Australia and New Zealand, whereby these
components are dependent on various factors such as number of cases of product delivered,
number of trips and pallets.

2023

2022

emil . Note 8

million € million .

Buldi T 127 165 Inventories

uidings an improvements Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value and cost is determined using

Vehicle fleet 171 133 the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies (primarily

Machinery, equipment and containers 81 82 in_cluding con(':enltrate, other ipgredients and packaging) anq finished goods, YVhiCh also inglude

Furniture and office equipment 2 Q|rect Iapour, |nd|_rect productlon.and overhea_d_ costs. Cost_lnclude§ all costls incurred to bring
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories also includes the transfer

Total 681 683 from equity of gains and/or losses on qualified cash flow hedges relating to inventory purchases.

Total additions to right of use assets during 2023 were €192 million
(2022: €208 million).

The following table summarises depreciation charges relating to right of use assets for the

periods presented:

Year ended 31 December

Spare parts, classified and accounted as inventories, are recorded as assets at the time of
purchase and are expensed as utilised. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to complete and sell the
inventory.

The following table summarises the inventory outstanding in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at the dates presented:

2023

2022 Year ended 31 December

€ million € million
Buildings and improvements 67 63 A mﬁii € mz,‘iii
Vehicle fleet 58 57 Finished goods 750 777
Machinery, equipment and containers 32 34 Raw materials and supplies 449 452
Furniture and office equipment 2 2 Spare parts and other 157 151
Total 159 156 Total inventories 1,356 1,380

During the years ended 31 December 2023la.nd 31 Decempgr 2022, the 'total expense re!ating to Write downs of inventories totalled €59 million, €41 million and €41 million for the years ended
low value and short-term leases was €24 million and €24 million, respectively, which is primarily 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively. The majority of
included in administrative expenses. The Group does not have any residual value guarantees in - y,o.co'\rite downs were included in cost of sales on the consolidated income statement. None
relation to its leases. As at 31 December 2023, the total value of lease extension and termination of these write downs of inventory were subsequently reversed :

options included within right of use assets was €17 million (2022: €35 million).
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Note 9
Trade accounts receivable

Further Sustainability

The Group sells its products to retailers, wholesalers and other customers and extends credit,
generally without requiring collateral, based on an evaluation of the customer’s financial

condition. While the Group has a concentration of credit risk in the retail sector, this risk is
mitigated due to the diverse nature of the customers the Group serves, including, but not limited

to, their type, geographic location, size and beverage channel.

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognised at their transaction price and subsequently
measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. Typically, accounts receivable have
terms of 30 to 60 days and do not bear interest. The Group applies an expected credit loss
reserve methodology to assess possible impairments. Balances are considered for impairment
on an individual basis rather than by reference to the extent that they become overdue. The

Group considers factors such as delinquency in payment, financial difficulties, payment history of

the debtor and certain forward-looking macroeconomic indicators. The carrying amount of trade
accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. Credit insurance on a portion of the
accounts receivable balance is also carried. Refer to Note 26 for further details on credit risk

management.

As a result of continued recession risk across our European territories, the Group supplements
its existing credit loss reserve methodology to include an incremental loss allowance for those
receivable balances that were deemed to be higher risk in the current environment. The
incremental allowance is included within allowance for doubtful accounts below, as at

31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The following table summarises the trade accounts receivable outstanding in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at the dates presented:

Year ended 31 December
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The following table summarises the ageing of trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts, in the consolidated statement of financial position as at the dates presented:

Year ended 31 December

2023

2022

2023

2022

€ million € million
Trade accounts receivable, gross 2,601 2,523
Allowance for doubtful accounts (54) (57)
Total trade accounts receivable 2,547 2,466

€ million € million
Not past due 2,348 2,287
Past due 1 — 30 days 142 102
Past due 31 — 60 days 16 30
Past due 61 — 90 days 7 15
Past due 91 — 120 days 9 14
Past due 121+ days 25 18
Total 2,547 2,466
The following table summarises the change in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the
periods presented:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts
€ million
As at 31 December 2021 (49)
Provision for impairment recognised during the year (15)
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable 5
Reversals 1
Currency translation adjustments 1
As at 31 December 2022 (57)
Provision for impairment recognised during the year 9)
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 9
Reversals 2

Currency translation adjustments

As at 31 December 2023
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Note 10

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term, highly liquid financial instruments with
maturity dates of less than three months when acquired that

are readily convertible to cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Counterparties and instruments used to hold the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
continually assessed, with a focus on preservation of capital and liquidity.

The following table summarises the cash and cash equivalents outstanding in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at the dates presented:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022

€ million € million
Cash at banks and on hand 465 491
Short-term deposits and securities 954 896
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,419 1,387

Cash and cash equivalents are held in the following currencies as at the
dates presented:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

€ million € million
Euro 662 477
British pound 305 190
US dollar 64 88
Norwegian krone 58 35
Swedish krona 26 21
Australian dollar 118 358
Indonesian rupiah 48 26
Papua New Guinean kina 42 102
Other 96 90
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,419 1,387
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Included within cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are

Papua New Guinea cash assets of €42 million

and €102 million respectively, denominated in local currency (kina).

Government-imposed currency controls impact the extent to which the

cash held in Papua New Guinea can be converted into foreign currency

and remitted for use elsewhere in the Group. There are no other material restrictions on the

Group’s cash and cash equivalents.

Short-term investments

Short-term investments are financial assets that are initially recognised at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost. The Group classifies its financial assets as at

amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments for principal and interest.

The short-term investment balance is comprised of time deposits and treasury bills, with maturity
dates of greater than three months and less than one year when acquired, which do not meet
the definition of cash and cash equivalents, and are expected to be held until maturity. These are
highly liquid investments and, due to their short-term nature, their carrying amount is not
significantly different from the fair values.

As at 31 December 2023, short-term investments were €568 million (2022: €256 million), which
included €33 million (2022: €49 million) denominated in Papua New Guinea kina that are subject
to government-imposed currency controls which impact the extent to which these investments,
upon maturity, can be converted into foreign currency and remitted for use elsewhere in the
Group.

Cash receipts arising from the interest earned on cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments were €58 million, €25 million and €12 million for the years ended

31 December 2023, 31 December 2022, and 31 December 2021 respectively, and in the current
year considered a major class of gross cash receipts from investing activities. Accordingly, these
have been presented separately in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows in the
current year.



Governance and Directors’ Financial

Report

Strategic

Report Information

Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

Note 11

Fair values

Fair value measurements

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This is described as one of the following, based
on the lowest-level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1. The Group values
assets and liabilities included in this level using dealer and broker quotations, certain pricing
models, bid prices, quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. This includes certain pricing models,
discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable
inputs.

The fair values of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade
accounts receivable, amounts receivable from related parties, trade and other payables and
amounts payable to related parties approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-term
nature.

The fair values of the Group’s borrowings are estimated based on borrowings with similar
maturities and credit quality and current market interest rates. These are categorised within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the Group uses certain pricing models and quoted prices
for similar liabilities in active markets in assessing their fair values. Refer to Note 13 for further
details regarding the Group’s borrowings.

The following table summarises the book value and fair value of the Group’s borrowings as at
the dates presented:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022

€ million € million
Fair value of borrowings 10,580 10,503
Book value of borrowings (Note 13) 11.396 11.907

The Group’s derivative assets and liabilities are carried at fair value both upon initial recognition
and subsequently. The fair value is determined using a variety of
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valuation techniques, depending on the specific characteristics of the hedging instrument, taking
into account credit risk. The fair value of the Group’s derivative contracts (including forwards,
options, futures, cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps) is determined using standard
valuation models. The significant inputs used in these models are readily available in public
markets or can be derived from observable market transactions and, therefore, the derivative
contracts have been classified as Level 2. Inputs used in these standard valuation models
include the applicable spot, forward and discount rates. The standard valuation model for the
option contracts also includes implied volatility, which is specific to individual options and is
based on rates quoted from a widely used third party resource. Refer to Note 12 for

further details about the Group’s derivatives.

The following table summarises the fair value of the derivative assets and liabilities as at the
dates presented:

Year ended 31 December
2023

2022

€ million € million
Assets at fair value:
Derivatives (Note 12) 261 448
Liabilities at fair value:
Derivatives (Note 12) 268 263

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period. There have been no transfers
between levels during the periods presented.

Note 12

Hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments

The Group utilises derivative financial instruments to mitigate its exposure to certain market risks
associated with its ongoing operations. The primary risks that it seeks to manage through the
use of derivative financial instruments include currency exchange risk, commodity price risk and
interest rate risk.

All derivative financial instrument assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes, and all hedge ratios are on a 1:1 basis. At the
inception of a hedge transaction, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged
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2023

2022

hedging instrument to the specific asset, liability, firm commitment or forecasted transaction. Hedging instrument Location — statement of financial position € million € million
Refer to Note 26 for further details about the Group’s risk management strategy and objectives.  xooqie:
Both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, the Group assesses and documents — - -
whether the derivative financial instrument used in the hedging transaction is highly effective in ~ Derivatives designated as hedging
maintaining the risk management objectives. Where critical terms match, the Group uses a instruments:
qualitative assessment to ensure initial and ongoing effectiveness criteria. Hedge accounting is Commodity contracts Non-current derivative assets 38 30
discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised or no longer  Foreign currency contracts Non-current derivative assets _ 4
qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging Interest rate and cross currency  Non-current derivative assets 62 157
instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If the swaps
hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in - —
equity is transferred to the income statement. Commodity contracts Current derivative assets 94 133
While certain derivative financial instruments are designated as hedging instruments, the Group " °reign currency contracts Current derivative assets 20 27
may also enter into derivative financial instruments that are designed to hedge a risk but are not  Interest rate and cross currency  Current derivative assets 47 97
designated as hedging instruments (referred to as an economic hedge or a non-designated swaps
hedge). The decision regarding whether or not to designate a hedge for hedge accounting is Total assets 261 448
made by management considering the size, purpose and tenure of the hedge, as well as the Liabilities:
anticipated ability to achieve and maintain the Group’s risk management objective. - - :

Derivatives designated as hedging
The Group is exposed to counterparty credit risk on all of its derivative financial instruments. instruments:
It has gstqbllsh(_ed :_andl mglntalned strict counterparty credit guidelines ar_1d enters |nto_hedges Commodity contracts Non-current derivative liabilities 30 6
only with financial institutions that are investment grade or better. It continuously monitors - ———
counterparty credit risk and utilises numerous counterparties to minimise its exposure to Foreign currency contracts Non-current derivative liabilities 2 10
potential defaults. Interest rate and cross currency ~ Non-current derivative liabilities 137 171
The following table summarises the fair value of the assets and liabilities related to derivative swaps
financial instruments and the respective line items in which they were recorded in the Commodity contracts Current derivative liabilities 58 47
consolidated statement of financial position as at the dates presented. All derivative instruments  Foreign currency contracts Current derivative liabilities 36 29
are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. Deal contingent forwards Current derivative liabilities 5 —
Discussion of the Group’s other financial assets and liabilities is contained elsewhere in these Total liabilities 268 263

financial statements. Refer to Note 9 for trade accounts receivable, Note 14 for trade and other
payables, Note 13 for borrowings and Note 19 for amounts receivable and payable with related
parties.
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Cash flow hedges

The Group uses cash flow hedges to mitigate its exposure to variability in cash flows attributable
to currency fluctuations and commodity price fluctuations associated with certain highly probable
forecasted transactions, including purchases of raw materials, finished goods and services
denominated in

non-functional currencies, the receipts of interest as well as the payments

of interest and principal on debt issuances in non-functional currencies.

Effective changes in the fair value of these cash flow hedging instruments are recognised as a
component of other reserves in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any changes in
the fair value of these cash flow hedges that are the result of ineffectiveness are recognised
immediately in the line item in the consolidated income statement that is consistent with the
nature of the underlying hedged item. Historically, the Group has not experienced, nor does it
expect to experience, material hedge ineffectiveness with the value of the hedged instrument
equalling that of the hedged item. If the hedged cash flow results in a subsequent recognition of
a non-financial asset or liability, the gains and/or losses accumulated in equity are included in the
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability. For other cash flow hedges, the amounts
deferred in equity are then recognised within the line item in the consolidated income statement
that is consistent with the nature of the underlying hedged item in the period that the forecasted
purchases or payments impact earnings.

Further Sustainability Other

Information

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

2023 Integrated Report and Form 20-F

184

The following table summarises the Group’s outstanding cash flow hedges by risk category as at
the dates presented (all contracts denominated in a foreign currency have been converted into
euro using the respective year end spot rate):

Notional maturity profile

Total Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years Over 5 years
Cash flow hedges € million € million € million € million € million
Foreign currency contracts 1,074 912 162 — —
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 2,225 144 1,365 — 716
Commodity contracts 922 566 356 — —
As at 31 December 2021 4,221 1,622 1,883 — 716
Foreign currency contracts 1,723 1,292 431 — —
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 2,079 760 604 416 299
Commodity contracts 1,397 834 563 — —
As at 31 December 2022 5,199 2,886 1,598 416 299
E)izlafggtingent foreign currency 636 636 o o o
Foreign currency contracts 1,105 980 125 — —
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 1,306 602 — 520 184
Commodity contracts 1,441 829 588 9 15
As at 31 December 2023 4,488 3,047 713 529 199

The net notional amount of outstanding interest rate and cross currency swaps used to hedge

interest rate risk and currency fluctuations of non-functional currency borrowings was €1.3 billion
as at 31 December 2023, €2.1 billion as at 31 December 2022 and €2.2 billion as at
31 December 2021. The net notional amount of the other outstanding foreign currency cash flow

hedges was

€1.1 billion as at 31 December 2023, €1.7 billion as at 31 December 2022 and
€1.1 billion as at 31 December 2021. The net notional amount of outstanding commodity-related
cash flow hedges was €1.4 billion as at 31 December 2023,
€1.4 billion as at 31 December 2022 and €0.9 billion as at 31 December 2021.
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During 2023, the Group entered into deal-contingent foreign currency forwards with a total
notional amount of €636 million in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk arising from the
proposed acquisition of CCBPI. These instruments were recorded as cash flow hedges. Refer to
Note 19 for further information concerning the proposed acquisition. As of 31 December 2023, a
loss of €5 million is recognised in other comprehensive income related to changes in the fair
value of these instruments.
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The following table summarises the net of tax effect of the cash flow hedges in the consolidated
income statement for the periods presented:

Amount of gain(loss) reclassified
from the cash flow hedge reserve into profit
Year ended 31 December

2022

2023 2021

Outstanding cash flow hedges as at 31 December 2023 are expected to be settled between Cash flow hedging instruments Location - Income statement € million € million €million

2024 and 2036. Foreign currency contracts ~Cost of sales 1 19 (3)

The following table provides a reconciliation by risk category of the net of tax impacts on the Commodity contracts Cost of sales — 83 74

cash flow hedge reserve disclosed in Note 16, resulting from cash flow hedge accounting: Commodity contracts Selling and distribution 17 34 2

Interest rate and expenses
Fore‘g"f;{f;cé cmm cross °”;’;Q,§§ Totai  Interest rate and cross Finance costs 10 13 13

Cash flow hedges € million € million € million €milion CUITENCY SWaps

As at 1 January 2021 () 20 1 20 Total 28 149 86

Net fair value gains/(losses) recognised in OCI 108 209 16 301 . . . . .

. 9 ¢ : ) & ) (18) Ineffectiveness associated with these cash flow hedges was not material during any year
Net (gains)/losses reclassified from OCI to income 3 (76) (13) (86) presented within these financial statements.
statement or transferred to cost of inventories Fai ue hed
; - _ _ air value hedges

Gains transferred to goodwill (84) (84) The Group has designated certain cross currency swaps used to mitigate foreign currency risk

As at 31 December 2021 26 153 (28) 151 and interest rate risk on foreign currency borrowings as fair value hedges. There is an economic

Net fair value gains/(losses) recognised in OCI 13 43 46 102 relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, as the terms of the cross

Net (gains)/losses reclassified from OCI to income 19) a1 13 (149) currency swap contracts matgh the terms of _the flxeq rate _borrowmgs. The Group has

statement or transferred to cost of inventories established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relationship.

As at 31 December 2022 20 79 5 104 The following table summarises the Group’s outstanding fair value hedges by risk category as at

Net fair value gains/(losses) recognised in OCI 26) 57 @ 3g the dates presented (all contracts denominated in a foreign currency have been converted into

- - - euros using the respective year end spot rate):

Net (gains)/losses reclassified from OCI to income

statement or transferred to cost of inventories® 10 (111) (10) (111) Less than 1 year 11to 3 years 3to5 years Over 5 years
Fair value hedges Total € million € million € million € million

As at 31 December 2023 4 35 (8) 31 Interest rate and cross currency swaps 166 — — — 166

(A) The amount includes a net of tax gain of €83 millon transferred from the cash flow hedge reserve to the cost of inventories. As at 31 December 2021 166 - - - 166
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 1,165 — — 500 665
As at 31 December 2022 1,165 — — 500 665
Interest rate and cross currency swaps 1,159 — 275 450 434
As at 31 December 2023 1,159 — 275 450 434
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The net notional amount of outstanding interest rate and cross currency swaps designated in a
fair value hedge relationship with borrowings was €1,159 million as at 31 December 2023,
€1,165 million as at 31 December 2022 and €166 million as at 31 December 2021.

The following table summarises the gains/(losses) recognised from the settlement of fair value
hedges within the consolidated income statement for the periods presented:

Year ended 31 December
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Year ended 31 December
2022

2023 2021

Non-designated hedging

2023 2022 2021

instruments Location — Income statement € million € million € million
Foreign currency ~ Non-operating items (5) (5) —
contracts®

Total (5) (5) —

Fair value hedges Location — Income statement € million € million € million
Interest rate and cross Finance costs (30) 2 (2)
currency swaps

Total (30) 2 )

The carrying value of the hedged item recognised in borrowings as at 31 December 2023 is
€1,051 million (31 December 2022: €1,019 million), which includes accumulated amounts of fair
value hedging adjustments of €106 million reduction in borrowings (31 December 2022: €146
million reduction in borrowings).

Non-designated hedges
The Group periodically enters into derivative instruments that are designed to hedge various
risks but are not designated as hedging instruments.

At times, it enters into other short-term non-designated hedges to mitigate its exposure to
changes in cash flows attributable to currency fluctuations associated with no qualifying hedged
items such as short-term intercompany loans and certain cash equivalents denominated in non-
functional currencies. Changes in the fair value of outstanding non-designated hedges are
recognised each reporting period in the line item in the consolidated income statement that is
consistent with the nature of the hedged risk.

There were €215 million of outstanding non-designated foreign currency hedges related to
hedging foreign currency exposure on intercompany loans as at 31 December 2023. There were
€29 million outstanding non-designated hedges as at 31 December 2022.

The following table summarises the gains/(losses) recognised from non-designated derivative
financial instruments in the consolidated income statement for the years presented:

(A) The gaini(loss) recognised on these currency contracts is offset by the gain/(loss) recognised on the remeasurement of the underlying hedged items; therefore,
there is a minimal net effect in non-operating items on the idated income statement

Net investment hedges

The Group had no net investment hedges in place as at 31 December 2023 or

31 December 2022; however, it continues to monitor its exposure to currency exchange rates
and may enter into future net investment hedges as a result of volatility in the functional
currencies of certain of its subsidiaries.

Note 13
Borrowings and leases

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of issuance costs incurred. Borrowings
acquired by the Group as part of the Acquisition have been recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortisation of transaction costs, fair value
adjustments made on acquisition, premiums and discounts are recognised as part of finance
costs within the consolidated income statement.

Leases
Lease liabilities are included within borrowings in our consolidated statement of financial
position.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of lease payments, discounted using the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate (IBR). The lease term comprises the non-cancellable period
of the contract, together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease whenever the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and has an enforceable right to do so.
Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability and reducing it by lease payments made.
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Borrowings outstanding
The following table summarises the carrying value of the Group’s borrowings as at the dates presented:
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022
€ million € million € million € million
Non-current: Australian dollar denominated bonds:
Euro denominated bonds: A$100 million 3.50% Notes 2024 o 66
€500 million 1.125% Notes 2024 — 498  A$30 million 4.166% Notes 2025 19 o
€350 million 2.375% Notes 2025 349 349 A$20 million 4.25% Notes 2025 12 1
illi (E)
€250 million 2.75% Notes 2026 245 240  A$30 million 4.125% Notes 2026 19 2
illi (E)
€600 million 1.75% Notes 2026 588 580 AS50 million 4.155% Notes 2028 . 5
illi (E)
€400 million 1.50% Notes 2027 381 370  A$133 million 2.45% Notes 2029 o3 o6
€250 million 1.50% Notes 2027 258 259  A$50 million 4.20% Notes 2031 a2 I
illi (E)
€500 million 1.75% Notes 2028 478 466  A$187 million 4.20% Notes 2031 108 125
€750 million 0.20% Notes 2028 745 744 A$13 million 4.20% Notes 2031 0 0
€500 million 1.125% Notes 2029 496 495 Foreign currency bonds (swapped into Australian dollar or New
€500 million 1.875% Notes 2030 82 a7y 2o%Mand dollan®:
€700 million 3.875% Notes 2030 04 —_ NOK1 billion 3.04% Notes 2028 92 99
€500 million 0.70% Notes 2031€) 182 473 OK750 million 2.75% Notes 2030 68 73
€800 million 0.00% Notes 2025 708 7gg 5800 million 2.6525% Notes 2030 45 47
€700 million 0.50% Notes 2029 605 go5 T Y10 billion 4.15% Notes 2036 67 74
€1,000 million 0.875% Notes 2033 991 ggq “FY12:3bilion 1.06% Notes 20376 65 7
€750 million 1.50% Notes 2041 748 74 o8SC Obligations 542 535
Total non-current borrowings 10,096 10,571
Foreign currency bonds (swapped into euro)®):
US$650 million 0.80% Notes 2024 _ 608

US$500 million 1.50% Notes 2027 451 466
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2023 2022

€ million € million
Current:
Euro denominated bonds:
€500 million 1.125% Notes 2024 500 _

illi o (8)

€350 million 2.625% Notes 2023 o 350
Foreign currency bonds (swapped into euro)®:
US$650 million 0.8% Notes due 2024 588 _
US$850 million 0.50% Notes due 2023(© _ 797
Australian dollar denominated bonds:
A$100 million 3.5% Notes 2024 62 —
Foreign currency bonds
(swapped into New Zealand dollar)®:
US$25 million 4.34% Notes 2023 o 24
US$25 million 4.34% Notes 2023 o 24
Lease obligations 150 141
Total current borrowings 1,300 1,336

(A) In December 2023, the Group issued €700 million 3.875% Notes 2030 in connection with the proposed acquisition of CCBPI. Refer to Note 19 for further
information conceming the proposed acquisition

(B) In November 2023, the Group repaid on maturity the outstanding amount related to the €350 million 2.625% Notes 2023

(C) In May 2023, the Group repaid on maturity the outstanding amount related to the US$850 million 0.50% Notes due 2023,

(D) In October 2023, the Group repaid on maturity the outstanding amount related to US§25 milion 4.34% Notes 2023 and US$25 million 4.34% Notes 2023
assumed as part of the Acquisition.

(E) Bond designated in full or partially in a fair value hedge relationship.

(F) Cross currency swaps are sed by the Group to swap foreign currency bonds into the required local currency.

Other

Information Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
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Borrowings are stated net of unamortised financing fees of €30 million and €33 million, as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively.

Interest expense recognised on lease liabilities totalled €17 million, €14 million and €10 million
in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Credit facilities

During 2023, the amount available under the Group’s multi currency credit facility was

€1.80 billion. This amount is available for borrowing with a syndicate of 12 banks. This credit
facility matures in 2029 and is for general corporate purposes and supporting the Group’s
working capital needs. Based on information currently available, there is no indication that the
financial institutions participating in this facility would be unable to fulfil their commitments to the
Group as at the date of these consolidated financial statements. The Group’s current credit
facility contains no financial covenants that would impact its liquidity or access to capital. As at
31 December 2023, the Group had no amounts drawn under this credit facility.

188
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Derivatives Derivatives
Borrowings, (assets) liabilities Borrowings, (assets)/ liabilities
Current portion less current Interest  held to hedge Dividend Current portion less current Interest  held to hedge Dividend
of borrowings portion payable® borrowings®  payable(® Total of borrowings portion payable(® borrowings®  payable® Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million

As at 01 January 2021 805 6,382 57 — 2 7,246 Payment of principal on lease (153) — — — — (153)

Acquisition of API 381 1251 — 16 —  1p4g Obligations

Changes from financing cash flows Interest paid (14) - (116) - - (130)
Proceeds from third party —  agmt - — —  agyy Dividends paid - - - — (163 (769)
borrowings, net Other financing activities 1) — — — — (1)
Changes in short-term 276 — — — — 276 Other non-cash changes

i (A
borrowings® Amortisation of discount, (1) 4 — — — 3
Repayments on third party (950) — — — — (950) premium and issue costs
borrowings Other non-cash movements 34 171 112 — 766 1,083
Payment of principal on lease (139) - - - — (139 Movement as a result of fair value 11 (172) — — — (s
obligations hedges
Interest paid (10) - 87) - - (G2 Changes in fair values — — — 45 — 45
Dividends paid - - - —  (638)  (838) Gyrrency translation _ 11 _ (18) @ 91

Other non-cash changes Reclassifications 1333 (1,333) — — — —
Amortisation of discount, - ® - - - () Total changes (14 (1.219) @ 27 1 (1,209)
premium and issue costs As at 31 D ber 2022 1,336 10,571 74 83 4 11,902
Other non-cash movements 39 83 108 — 639 869 C:] 8 fecer: er - ha ! : ®3) d
Movement as a result of fair value 6 9 — — — 15 anges from mar.]cmg cash flows
hedges Erocee_ds fromtthlrd party sou o
Changes in fair values — — — (98) — (98) R°"°W'"gst' ne T - - - -

Currency translation 33 100 — (28) — 105 bsﬁca)ngmegg s on third party (1,159) o o o —  (1,159)
Reclassifications 909 (909) — — — —  Payment of principal on lease

Total changes 545 5,408 21 (110) 1 5,865  obligations (148) — — — — (148)

As at 31 December 2021 1,350 11,790 78 (110) 3 13,111 Settlement of debt-related cross-

Changes from financing cash flows currency swaps - - - 69 - 69
Changes in short-term (285) — — — — (285) Interest paid an - (165) - - (182)
borrowings® Dividends paid — — — — (841) (841)
Repayments on third party (938) — — — — (938)

borrowings
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D
s Note 14
Current portion  less current Interest * held to hedge Dividend Trade and other payables
of borrowings portion  payable®  borrowings™® - payable ™ Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior
€ million € million € million € million € million € million . . . H
to the end of the reporting period, which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as

Other non-cash changes current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. Trade

Amortisation of discounts, and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

premium, issue costs and fair cost using the effective interest rate method. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are

value adjustments — 5 — — — 5 normally settled between 70 to 80 days.

Other non-cash movements 93 98 164 - 844 1,199 The Group participates in various programmes and arrangements with customers designed to

Movement as a result of fair value increase the sale of our products. The costs of these programmes are recorded as deductions

hedges — 40 — — — 40 from revenue. Among the programmes are arrangements under which allowances can be

Changes in fair values _ _ _ 25 _ 25 earnkec:l by customers for \?th]aini?r? agre"ed upon sales Ie\_/cojells or for partt'icipGating in specific{h

- — marketing programmes. When these allowances are paid in arrears, the Group accrues the

Currenc?/.trahslatlon (40) (77) 7 @ (102) estimated amount to be paid based upon historical customer experience, the programme’s

Reclassifications 1,235 (1,235) — — — — contractual terms, expected customer performance and/or estimated sales volume. The costs of
Total changes (36) (475) (1) 111 1 (400) these off-invoice customer marketing costs totalled €5.4 billion, €5.2 billion and €4.1 billion for
As at 31 December 2023 1300 10,096 73 28 5 11502 2023,2022 and 2021, respectively.

The following table summarises trade and other payables as at the dates presented:
(A) In 2023, changes in short-term borrowings include €6,810 million of newly issued and €6,810 million of repaid EUR commercial paper. In 2022, changes in

short-term borrowings included €2,464 million and €2,749 million of newly issued and repaid EUR commercial paper, respectively. Year ended 31 December

(B) Interest payable and dividends payable balances are presented within the “Trade and other payables” line item in the Group's consolidated statement of 2055 202
financial position. ”
(C) Interest rate and cross currency swaps used to hedge interest rate risk and currenc of non-functional currency . refer to Note 12. € million € milion
Trade accounts payable® 2306 2921
Total cash outflows for leases were €165 million, €167 million and €149 million for the years - : g
ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively. Accrued customer marketing costs 1,340 1,348
Accrued deposits 338 288
Accrued compensation and benefits 532 500
(8)
Accrued taxes! 280 253
Other accrued expenses 438 442
Total trade and other payables 5,234 5,052

(A) Includes amounts of €622 million (2022: €212 million) which are part of a supply chain finance programme faciltated by the Group. The programme permits
suppliers to elect on an invoice by invoice basis to receive a discounted payment from the partner bank earlier than the agreed payment terms with the
Group. If a supplier makes this election, the value and the due date of the invoice payable by the Group remains unchanged.

(B) This line item includes a payable of €59 million in 2023 and €57 milion in 2022 to the Spanish tax authorities. Refer to Note 24 for further details.
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Note 15

Post-employment benefits

The cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. All remeasurements of
the defined benefit obligation, such as actuarial gains and losses and return on plan assets, are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not reclassified to
profit or loss. Service cost is presented within cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement. Past service cost is recognised
immediately within cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, and administrative expenses
in the consolidated income statement. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
Net interest cost is presented within finance costs or finance income, as applicable, in the
consolidated income statement. The defined benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows, using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related liability.

The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (1) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (2) when the Group recognises
costs for restructuring that are within the scope of IAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Termination benefits are payable whenever
an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Further Sustainability
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The following table summarises our non-current employee benefit liabilities as at the dates
presented:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

GB Rest of world Total GB Rest of world Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million
Retirement benefit obligation 77 81 158 — 77 77
Other employee benefit liabilities — 33 33 — 31 31
Total non-current employee
benefit liabilities 77 114 191 — 108 108

Defined benefit plans

The Group sponsors a humber of defined benefit pension plans in Belgium, France, Germany,
Great Britain, Luxembourg, Norway, Australia and Indonesia. The majority of the defined benefit
plans are either career average, final salary or hybrid plans, and operate on a funded basis with
assets held in external funds. The Group’s Great Britain plan (GB Scheme) is the most
significant.

The GB Scheme'’s defined benefit obligation includes benefits for current employees, former
employees and current pensioners. The level of benefits provided (funded final salary pension)
depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. Part of the pension
may be exchanged for a tax free cash lump sum. The GB Scheme was closed to new members
with effect from

1 October 2005 and is administered by a board of trustees, which is legally separate from the
Group. The board of trustees is composed of representatives of both the employer and
employees. The board of trustees is required by law to act in the interest of all relevant
beneficiaries and is responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets plus the day
to day administration of the benefits.

On 8 October 2020, the Group announced a proposal to close the GB Scheme to future accrual,
which was implemented on 31 March 2021. The affected employees were offered to enrol in the
Group’s defined contribution scheme (DC scheme). Subsequent to the implementation of the
closure of the GB Scheme, the members moved from active to deferred status, with future
indexation of deferred pensions before retirement measured by reference to the consumer price
index (CPI).
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As part of its risk management strategy, in September 2023, the board of trustees entered into a
buy-in agreement with Just Retirement Ltd. to acquire an insurance policy with the intent of
matching a specific portion of the GB Scheme’s future cash flows arising from the accrued
pension liabilities of retired members. The transaction was financed entirely using a portion of
the existing plan assets, with no further funding required from the Group. On an IAS 19
“Employee Benefits” basis, the subsequent fair value of the insurance policy matches the
present value of the liabilities being insured. As the purchase price of the annuity of €257 million
exceeded the IAS 19 accounting value of the corresponding liabilities, an asset remeasurement
loss of €26 million has been recorded in other comprehensive income.

A full actuarial valuation of the GB Scheme occurs on a triennial basis by a qualified external
actuary, which is used as the basis of determining the Group’s future contributions to the plan.
The latest triennial valuation was carried out as at 5 April 2022 and has been updated to

31 December 2023 to reflect our defined benefit obligation, for known events and changes in
market conditions as allowed under IAS 19.

Risks

The Group’s defined benefit pension schemes expose the Group to a number of risks, including:
Asset volatility: the plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to
corporate bond yields; if assets underperformed this yield, a deficit would occur. Some of our
plans hold a significant proportion of growth assets (equities and property) which, though
expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long term, create volatility and risk in the short
term. The allocation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains appropriate given each
scheme’s long-term objectives.

Changes in bond yields — a decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the defined benefit
liability, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plan’s bond
holdings.

Inflation risk: a significant proportion of our benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher
inflation will lead to higher liabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary
increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation). The majority of the assets are either
unaffected by or only loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also
increase the deficit.

Life expectancy: the majority of our plans have an obligation to provide benefits for the life of
the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the defined benefit
liabilities.

Information Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
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Benefit costs

The following table summarises the expense related to pension plans recognised in the

consolidated income statement for the years presented:

Year ended 31 December
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2023

2022

2021

Rest of

Rest of

Rest of

GB world Total GB world Total GB world Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Service cost —_ 14 14 - 18 18 10 16 26
Past service
i (A)
(credity/cost - . m - @ @ @) & (2
Net interest
(income)/cost (1) (1) (2) 2) 1 (1) 1 1 2
Administrative
expenses — 1 1 — 1 1 1 1 2
Total cost (1) 7 6 () 18 16 (17) 24 7

(A) The current year activity is predominantly comprised of the impact of a plan amendment arising from legislative changes in respect of the minimum

retirement age in France.

Other comprehensive income

The following table summarises the changes in other comprehensive income related to our
pension plans for the years presented:

Year ended 31 December

2023

2022

2021

Rest of Rest of Rest of
GB world Total GB world Total GB world Total

€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Actuarial loss/(gain)
on defined benefit
obligation arising during
the period 39 32 71 (712)  (125) (837) (60) 6) (66)
Return on plan assets
less/(greater) than
discount rate 65 (28) 37 808 74 882 (177)  (58) (235)
Net charge to other
comprehensive income 44, 4 108 96 (51) 45 (237)  (64) (301)
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The following tables summarise the changes in the pension plan benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for the periods presented:

Year ended 31 December

Year ended 31 December
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2023 2022 2023 2022
GB  Rest of world Total GB  Rest of world Total GB  Rest of world Total GB  Rest of world Total

€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Reconciliation of benefit obligation: Reconciliation of fair value
Benefit obligation at beginning of plan assets:
of plan year 937 529 1,466 1,739 674 2,413  Fair value of plan assets at beginning
Service cost — 14 14 — 18 18 of plan year 952 572 1,524 1,840 664 2,504
Past service (credit)/cost _ @ %) _ @ @ Interest income on plan assets 46 16 62 34 6 40

s y Return on plan assets (less)/greater
Interest costs on defined benefit
- 4 1 .
obligation 5 5 60 32 7 39 than discount rate (65) 28 @37) (808) (74)  (882)
Plan participants contribution — 36 36 — 28 28 Plan participants contributions — 36 36 — 28 28
Actuarial loss/(gain) — experience 21 9 30 26 7 33 Employer contributions 1 21 32 1" 21 32
Actuarial (gain)/loss — demographic o _ Benefit payments (33) (70) (103) (57) (72) (129)
i (13) (13) 2 2

assumptions Currency translation adjustment 20 %) 18 (68) 1) (69)
Actuanatll loss/(gain) — financial 31 23 54 (740) (132) (872) Fair value of plan assets at end
assumptions of plan year 931 601 1,532 952 572 1,524
Benefit payments (33) (70) (103) (57) (72) (129)
Administrative expenses — 1 1 — 1 1
Currency translation adjustments 20 (2) 18 (65) — (65)
Benefit obligation at end of plan year 1,008 548 1,556 937 529 1,466
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Timing of benefit payments Actuarial assumptions ] ) ] ) .
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation as at 31 December 2023 The following t‘ablt_as summarise the weighted average actuarial a§sumptlons used to determine
is 15 years, including 16 years for the GB Scheme. The weighted average duration of the the benefit obligations of pension plans as at the dates presented:

defined benefit plan obligation as at 31 December 2022 was 16 years, including 17 years for the Year ended 31 December
GB Scheme. 2023 2022
Retirement benefit status GB  Rest of world Average GB  Rest of world Average
The following table summarises the retirement benefit status of pension plans as at the dates Finandial assumptions * % * % % *
presented: Discount rate 4.5 3.6 4.2 4.8 4.0 4.5
Year ended 31 December Rate of compensation increase N/A 3.6 3.6 N/A 3.6 3.6
2023 2022 Rate of price inflation 3.1 2.3 29 3.3 24 3.0
GB  Rest of world Total GB  Rest of world Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million Year ended 31 December
Net benefit status: 2023 2022
" . D hi
Present value of obligation (1,008)  (548)  (1,556) (937)  (529)  (1466) (uewnicdavermpern 6B Restofwoid  Average B Restofword  Average
Fair value of assets 931 601 1,532 952 572 1,624 Retiring at the end
Net benefit status: @ 53 (24) 15 43 58 ©f the reporting period
Retirement benefit surplus (Note 25) — 134 134 15 120 135 Mais 214 198 210 219 19.8 213
: o Female 23.9 23.2 23.7 24.4 23.1 24.0
Retirement benefit obligation 7) (81) (158) — 77) (77) Retiring 15 years after the end
. . 3 . . of the reporting period
The surplus for 2023 is primarily related to the defined benefit plans in Germany and Belgium. Mal 223 200 217 28 200 221
The surplus is recognised on the balance sheet on the basis that the Group is entitled to a ale - . . - - .
Female 25.0 235 246 255 235 249

refund of any remaining assets once all members have left the plan.

(A) These assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in years, post-retirement, for an employee retiring at age 65
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

The following tables summarise the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the
weighted average principal assumptions for the periods presented:

Year ended 31 December 2023

Impact on defined benefit obligation (%)

Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

Change in
Principal assumptions assumption GB Rest of world Average GB Rest of world Average
Discount rate 0.5% (7.3) (4.1) (6.2) 7.9 4.4 6.7
Rate of compensation
increase(® 05% N/A 16 05 NA  (14)  (05)
Rate of price inflation 0.5% 4.6 3.2 4.1 4.5) 3.0) 0)
Mortality rates 1 year 23 1.7 21 (2.5 1.8)
Year ended 31 December 2022
Impact on defined benefit obligation (%)
Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
Change in
Principal assumptions assumption GB Rest of world Average GB Rest of world Average
Discount rate 05% (7.9) (4.0) (6.5) 8.6 44 71
Rate of compensation
increase(® 05% NA 16 06 NA  (14)  (05)
Rate of price inflation 0.5% 39 3.1 3.6 (3.8) (2.9) X
Mortality rates 1 year 3.0 1.7 25 (2.8) (1.7) (2.4)

(A) The compensation increase assumption is o longer applicable to the valuation of the defined benefit obligation associated with the GB Scheme i light of
the plan closure effective 31 March 2021

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact
on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in a significant
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses may not be
representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation, as it is unlikely that changes
in assumptions would occur in isolation from one another.

Pension plan assets

There are formal investment policies for the assets associated with our pension plans. Policy
objectives include: (1) maximising long-term return at acceptable risk levels; (2) diversifying
among asset classes, if appropriate, and among investment managers; and (3) establishing
relevant risk parameters within each asset class. Investment policies reflect the unique
circumstances of the respective plans and include requirements designed to mitigate risk,

2.2) including quality and diversification standards. Asset allocation targets are based on periodic

asset liability and/or risk budgeting study results, which help determine the appropriate
investment strategies for acceptable risk levels. The investment policies permit variances from
the targets within certain parameters.
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The following table summarises pension plan assets measured at fair value as at the dates presented:

Year ended 31 December 2023 Year ended 31 December 2022
Total Investments quoted in active markets Unquoted investments Total Investments quoted in active markets Unquoted investments
cB Rest of world cB Rest of world cB Rest of world GB Rest of world
€ millon €million € million € millon €million € million € millon €million € million € millon
Equity securities® 154 _ 154 o _ 185 _ 185 _ _
Fixed income securities:®
Corporate bonds and notes 211 117 94 — — 56 — 56 — —
Government bonds(© 335 770 41 (476) — 692 1,131 28 (467) —
Cash and other short-term investments® 25 19 6 _ o 28 23 5 _ _
Other investments:
Real estate funds® 255 21 26 208 — 274 43 15 216 —
Insurance contracts® 463 — — 260 203 207 — — — 207
Investment funds(® 77 — — — 77 76 — 5 — 71
Derivatives® 12 7 — 5 — 6 5 — 1 —
Total 1,532 934 321 (3) 280 1,524 1,202 294 (250) 278

(A) Equity securities are comprised of ordinary shares and investments in equity funds. Investments in ordinary shares are valued using quoted market prices muliplied by the number of shares owned. Investments in equity funds are valued at the net asset value per share, which s calculated predominantly based on the
underlying quoted investments market price, multiplied by the number of shares held as of the measurement date.

(B) The fair values of the fixed income securities are determined based on quoted market prices in active markets. Bonds are held mainly in the currency of the geography of the plan.

(C) The unquoted amounts within this category relate to repurchase agreements (where the Scheme has sold government bonds with the agreement to repurchase at a fixed date and price). The
repurchase price. The assets sold are reported at their fair value, reflecting that the Scheme retains the risks and rewards of ownership of those assets. The asset portfolio of the GB Scheme was refined during 2022 by entering into
and to offset the exposure to interests and inflation rates, while remaining invested in the assets of similar risk profile

(D) Cash and other short-term investments are valued at €1.00/unit, which approximates fair value. Amounts are generally invested in cash or interest bearing accounts.

(E) The valuation of unquoted real estate funds is based on net assets value per share multiplied by the number of shares owned. For quoted real estate funds, the calculation is based on the underlying quoted investments market price, multiplied by the number of shares held as of the measurement date.

(F) Insurance contracts exactly match the amount and timing of certain benefits and therefore the fair value of these insurance policies is deemed to be the present value of the related obligations.

(G) Primarily includes investments in equity securities, fixed income securities and combinations of both. Fair values are sourced from broker quotes.

(H) The unquoted amounts within derivatives primarily relate to total retum swaps, which represent the current value of future cash flows arising from the swap determined using discounted cash flow models and market data at the reporting date.

to the bonds reduces the pension assets and is reflected at fair value based on the
of bonds in order to better match the Scheme liability
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Contributions

To support a long-term funding arrangement, during 2019 the Group entered into a partnership
agreement with the GB Scheme and the CCEP Scottish Limited Partnership (the Partnership).
Certain property assets in Great Britain, with a market value of £171 million, were transferred
into the Partnership and subsequently leased back to the Group’s operating subsidiary in Great
Britain. The GB Scheme receives semi-annual distributions from the Partnership, increasing
each year at a fixed cumulative rate of 3% through to 2034. The Group exercises control over
the Partnership, and as such, it is fully consolidated in these consolidated financial statements.
Under IAS 19, the investment held by the GB Scheme in the Partnership does not represent a
plan asset for the purposes of these consolidated financial statements. Similarly, the associated
liability is not included in the consolidated statement of financial position; rather, the distributions

are recognised when paid as a contribution to the plan assets of the scheme.

Contributions to pension plans totalled €32 million, €32 million and €39 million during the years
ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively. Included
within the 2023 contribution is €11 million relating to the Partnership agreement. The Group
expects to make contributions of €31 million for the full year ending 31 December 2024.

Other employee benéfit liabilities

In certain territories, the Group has an early retirement programme designed to create an
incentive for employees, within a certain age group, to transition from (full or part time)
employment into retirement before their legal retirement age. Furthermore, the Group also
sponsors deferred compensation plans in other territories. The current portion of these liabilities
totalled €8 million and €8 million as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively,
and is included within the current portion of employee benéfit liabilities. The non-current portion

of these liabilities totalled €33 million and €31 million as at 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022, respectively, and is included within employee benefit liabilities.
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The Group sponsors a number of defined contribution plans across its territories. Contributions
payable for the period are charged to the consolidated income statement as an operating
expense for defined contribution plans. Contributions to these plans totalled €81 million for the

year ended 31 December 2023,

€79 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 and €62 million for the year ended

31 December 2021.
Note 16

Equity

Share capital

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has issued and fully paid 459,200,818 Shares. Shares
in issue have one voting right each and no restrictions related to dividends or return of capital.

Number of Shares

Share capital

millons € million
As at 1 January 2021 455 5
Issuances of Shares 1 —
Cancellation of Shares — —
As at 31 December 2021 456 5
Issuance of Shares 1 —
Cancellation of Shares — —
As at 31 December 2022 457 5
Issuance of Shares 2 —
Cancellation of Shares — —
As at 31 December 2023 459 5

The number of Shares increased in 2023, 2022 and 2021 from the issue of 2,094,365, 871,421
and 1,589,522 Shares, respectively, following the exercise of share-based payment awards.
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Share premium

The share premium account increased by cash received for the exercise of options by

€42 million in 2023, €14 million in 2022 and €28 million in 2021.
Merger reserves

The consideration transferred to acquire CCIP and CCEG qualified for merger relief under the

Companies Act. As such, the excess consideration transferred over nominal value of €287

million was required to be excluded from the share premium account and recorded to merger

reserves.
Other reserves

The following table summarises the balances in other reserves (net of tax) as at the dates
presented:
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million
Cash flow hedge reserve 31 104 151
Net investment hedge reserve 197 197 197
Foreign currency translation adjustment reserve (974) (728) (509)
Reserve related to the acquisition of non-controlling
interests (79) (79) —

(A)

Other reserves' 2 ) 5
Total other reserves (823) (507) (156)

(A) Other reserves relate to cost of hedging which represents forward point on spot designations, time value of options and currency basis.

Movements, including the tax effects, in these accounts through to 31 December 2023 are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income or directly within the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Dividends
Dividends are recorded within the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in
which they are paid.

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million

First half dividend® 308 256 _
Second half dividend® 533 507 638
Total dividend on ordinary shares paid 841 763 638

(A) Dividend of €0.67 per Share was paid in first half of 2023. Dividend of €0.56 per Share was paid in first half of 2022.
(B) Dividend of €1.17 per Share was paid in second half of 2023. Dividend of €1.12 per Share was paid in second half of 2022.
A full year dividend of €1.40 per Share was paid in 2021

Dividends attributable to restricted stock units and performance share units that are unvested at
the period end date are accrued accordingly. During 2023, an incremental dividend accrual of €3
million has been recognised (2022: €3 million, 2021: €1 million).

Non-controlling interest
As at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, equity attributable to non-
controlling interest was nil, nil and €177 million, respectively.

In December 2022, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement (SPA) with TCCC to
acquire the remaining 29.4% ownership interest of its subsidiary, PT Coca-Cola Bottling
Indonesia, for a total consideration of €282 million. The acquisition completed in the first quarter
of 2023, following the resolution of customary conditions (refer to Note 19). As at

31 December 2022, the non-controlling interest was derecognised.

As at 31 December 2021, equity attributable to non-controlling interest was €177 million,
representing 29.4% of PT Coca-Cola Bottling Indonesia, held by TCCC and 6.1% of Samoa
Breweries Limited held by numerous investors.
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Note 17

Total operating costs

The following tables summarise the significant cost items by nature within operating costs for the
years presented:

Year ended 31 December
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Year ended 31 December
2022

2023 2021

Restructuring costs € million € million € million
Increase in provision for restructuring programmes
(Note 22) 78 15 93
Amount of provision unused (Note 22) (10) ®) (13)
Accelerated depreciation and non-cash costs " 44 60
Other cash costs® 15 12 13
Total restructuring costs 94 163 153
Restructuring costs by function:
Cost of sales 9 19 17
Selling and distribution expenses — 1 45
Administrative expenses 85 143 91

2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million
Transportation costs® 958 851 631
Employee benefits 1,116 1,110 975
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
excluding restructuring 236 246 245
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 7 4
Restructuring charges, including accelerated
depreciation® _ 1 45
Other selling and distribution expenses 862 769 596
Total selling and distribution expenses 3,178 2,984 2,496
Transportation costs® 3 16 2
Employee benefits 608 544 462
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
excluding restructuring 93 99 76
Amortisation of intangible assets 130 94 83
Acquisition related costs 12 3 49
Restructuring charges, including accelerated
depreciation® 85 143 91
Other administrative expenses 379 351 311
Total administrative expenses 1,310 1,250 1,074
Total operating expenses 4,488 4,234 3,570
(A) Transportation costs include warehousing and delivery costs to the final customer They exclude and

(B) See restructuring costs table.

(A) Other cash costs primarly relate to professional fees, which include consuitancy costs, legal fees and other costs directly associated with restructuring

Restructuring costs charged in arriving at operating profit for the years presented include
restructuring costs arising under the following programmes and initiatives.

Accelerate competitiveness

In October 2020, the Group announced a number of proposals aimed at improving productivity
through the use of technology enabled solutions. Included in these proposals was the closure of
certain production facilities, including Liederbach and Sodenthaler in Germany and Malaga in
Iberia. These proposals continue the focus on network optimisation and site rationalisation of the
Group, with the majority of the impacted activities to be transferred within our network of facilities
in each respective territory.

The proposals are also expected to impact a number of functions across the Group, including
business process technology, customer service, sales and marketing, and finance, as the Group
seeks to reduce complexity, improve efficiency and increase the use of technology.

In 2023, as part of the continuation of this program, the Group announced additional
restructuring proposals. These initiatives resulted in €7 million of restructuring charges primarily
related to severance costs. As at 31 December 2023, the programme is substantially complete.
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In November 2022, the Group announced a new efficiency programme to be delivered by the Auditor’s remuneration
end of 2028. This programme focusses on further supply chain efficiencies, leveraging global At and other fees charged in the income statement concerning the statutory auditor of the
procurement and a more integrated shared service centre model, all enabled by next generation ., <olidated financial statements, Emnst & Young LLP, were as follows:
technology including digital tools and data and analytics. ' ' '

Year ended 31 December

In 2023, as part of this efficiency programme, the Group announced restructuring proposals
Iting in €82 million of recognised costs primarily related to expected severance payments 2023 2022 2021
resulting . € thousand € thousand € thousand
Staff costs Audit of Parent Company and consolidated
. . . . | i ()
Staff costs included within the income statement were as follows: financial statements! 3,759 3,136 4,751
Year ended 31 December Audit of the Company's subsidiaries 6,269 6,248 5,493
2023 2022 2021 -
Employee costs € million € million €emilion Total audit 10,028 9,384 10,244
Wages and salaries 1,841 1,769 1,544 Audit-related assurance services(® 1019 1002 1234
Social security costs 339 316 302 Other assurance services 717 213 313
Pension and other employee benefits 253 233 170 Total audit and audit-related assurance services 11,764 10,599 11,791
Total employee costs 2,433 2,318 2,016 inaa(C)
Y All other services 36 47 35
Directors’ remuneration information is disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration report. Total non-audit or non-audit-related assurance
X . . . services 36 47 35
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) for the periods ! -
presented were as follows: Total audit and all other fees 11,800 10,646 11,826
2023 2022 2021 (A) Fees in respect of the audit of the accounts of the Company, including the Group's consolidated financial statements
No. in thousands No. in thousands No. in thousands ~ (B) Includes professional fees for interim reviews, reporting on internal financial controls, services related to the transactions entered into with TCCC, issuance
- of comfort letters for debt issuances, regulatory certain jons and other attested engagements.
Commercial 11.6 12.5 10.9  (c) Represents fees for all other allowable services.
Supply chain 171 16.6 14.9
Support functions 4.1 4.0 3.9

Total average staff employed 32.8 33.1 297
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Note 18

Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they
are incurred, with the exception of general and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Borrowing costs are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised within
the consolidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred based upon the
effective interest rate method. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate
method.

The following table summarises net finance costs for the years presented:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million
Interest income® 65 67 43
Interest expense on external debt® (162) (162) (153)
Other finance costs® @3) (19) (19)
Total finance costs, net (120) (114) (129)

(A) Includes interest income and expense amounts, as applicable, on cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps. Cross currency swap and interest rate
‘swap income totalled €47 millon, €50 million and €27 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Cross currency swap and interest rate swap expense
totalled €67 million, €31 million and €14 million in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Refer to Note 12 for further details,

(B) Other finance costs principally includes amortisation of the discount on external debt and interest on leases

Note 19

Related party transactions

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, transactions with related parties
mainly comprise transactions between subsidiaries of the Group and the related parties of the
Group.
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Transactions with entities with significant influence over the Group

Transactions with TCCC

TCCC exerts significant influence over the Group, as defined by IAS 24 “Related Party
Disclosures”. As at 31 December 2023, 19.20% of the total outstanding Shares in the Group
were owned by European Refreshments, a wholly owned subsidiary of TCCC. The Group is a
key bottler of TCCC products and has entered into bottling agreements with TCCC to make, sell
and distribute products of TCCC within the Group’s territories. The Group purchases concentrate
from TCCC and also receives marketing funding to help promote the sale of TCCC products.
The Group’s agreements with TCCC in each territory are for 10-year terms and each contains
the right for the Group to request a 10-year renewal. The existing bottling agreements expire

no earlier than 1 September 2025. Additionally, two of the Group’s seventeen Directors are
nominated by TCCC.

The Group and TCCC engage in a variety of marketing programmes to promote the sale of
TCCC products in territories in which the Group operates. The Group and TCCC operate under
an incidence based concentrate pricing model and funding programme across most territories,
the terms of which are tied to the bottling agreements. In certain API territories, the Group
operates under a fixed price model with marketing rebates and support.

TCCC makes discretionary marketing contributions under shared marketing agreements to
CCEP’s operating subsidiaries. Amounts to be paid to the Group by TCCC under the
programmes are generally determined annually and are periodically reassessed as the
programmes progress. Under the bottling agreements, TCCC is under no obligation to
participate in the programmes or continue past levels of funding in the future. The amounts paid
and terms of similar programmes with other franchises may differ.

Marketing support funding programmes granted to the Group provide financial support principally
based on product sales or on the completion of stated requirements and are intended to offset a
portion of the costs of the programmes.

Payments from TCCC for marketing programmes to promote the sale of products are classified
as a reduction in cost of sales, unless the presumption that the payment is a reduction in the
price of the franchisors’ products can be overcome. Payments for marketing programmes are
recognised as product is sold.
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The following table summarises the transactions with TCCC that directly impacted the
consolidated income statement for the years presented:
Year ended 31 December

2022

2023 2021

€million € million € million
Amounts affecting revenue® 140 17 50
Amounts affecting cost of sales® (3,964) (3,805) (3,056)
Amounts affecting operating expenses(©) 25 19 9
Amounts affecting finance costs, net® 4 _ _
Total net amount affecting
the consolidated income statement (3,795) (3,669) (2,997)

(A) Amounts principally relate to fountain syrup and packaged product sales.
(B) Amounts principally relate to the purchase of concentrate, syrup, mineral water and juice, as well as funding for marketing programmes.

(C) Amounts principally relate to certain costs associated with new product initiatives and of certain marketing expenses.
(D) Amounts relate to bank fees recharges for bank guarantees.

The following table summarises the transactions with TCCC that impacted the consolidated
statement of financial position for the periods presented:

Year ended 31 December
2023

2022

€ million € million
Amounts due from TCCC 101 130
Amounts payable to TCCC 229 442

In December 2022, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement (SPA) with TCCC to
acquire the remaining 29.4% ownership interest of its subsidiary, PT Coca-Cola Bottling
Indonesia, for a total consideration of €282 million. As at 31 December 2022, we recognised a
redemption liability equalling the consideration amount, which was reflected within the amounts
payable to related parties line of our consolidated statement of financial position. The acquisition
completed on 15 February 2023, following the resolution of customary conditions.

In February 2022, the Group entered into asset sale arrangements with TCCC, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to sell certain non-alcoholic ready to drink beverage brands
predominantly available in Australia and New Zealand, which were acquired as part of the
business combination transaction consummated on 10 May 2021, for a total consideration
approximating €182 million. The sale price approximated the fair value of the brands assessed at
the acquisition date. During
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the first half of 2022, the Group partially completed the asset sale transaction and classified the
remaining brands as assets held for sale in our consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022. The remaining portion of the asset sale transaction was finalised during the
first half of 2023. The Group has also entered into commercial agreements with TCCC to
facilitate ongoing manufacturing, distributing and/or selling activities pertaining to these brands.

Terms and conditions of transactions with TCCC
Outstanding balances on transactions with TCCC are unsecured, interest free and generally
settled in cash. Receivables from TCCC are considered to be fully recoverable.

Proposed acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines, Inc. (CCBPI)

In November 2023, the Group together with Aboitiz Equity Ventures Inc. (AEV) entered into a
definitive agreement with The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC) to jointly acquire 100% of CCBPI, a
wholly owned subsidiary of TCCC, for an estimated total consideration of US$1.8 billion on a
debt-free, cash-free basis. The proposed acquisition reflects a 60:40 ownership structure
between CCEP and AEV. The parties also agreed that if any currently unforeseen events lead
AEV to terminate its participation in the proposed acquisition, at the election of TCCC, CCEP
may acquire 60% or 100% of CCBPI. The transaction, which is subject to a number of
customary closing conditions, including the receipt of regulatory approval, is expected to
complete during the first quarter of 2024 (refer to Note 27 for further details).

Transactions with Cobega companies

Cobega, S.A. (Cobega) exhibits significant influence over the Group, as defined by IAS 24,
“Related Party Disclosures”. As at 31 December 2023, 20.80% of the total outstanding Shares in
the Group were indirectly owned by Cobega through its ownership interest in Olive Partners,
S.A. Additionally, five of the Group’s seventeen Directors, including the Chairman, are nominated
by Olive Partners, three of whom are affiliated with Cobega.
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The principal transactions with Cobega are for the purchase of packaging materials and
maintenance services for vending machines. The following table summarises the transactions
with Cobega that directly impacted the consolidated income statement for the years presented:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million

Amounts affecting revenue® 1 2 1

i (®)
Amounts affecting cost of sales! (69) (76) (49)

i i (©)
Amounts affecting operating expenses (18) (7 “an
Total net amount affecting
the consolidated income statement (86) 91) (59)

(A) Amounts principally relate to packaged product sales.
(B) Amounts principally relate to the purchase of packaging materials and concentrate.
(C) Amounts principally relate to maintenance and repair services and transportation.
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Other related parties

Transactions with associates, joint ventures and other related parties

Joint venture investments relate to interests in a service provider supporting the operation of
container refund schemes in certain Australian states, a PET recycling plant in Indonesia and a
manufacturer of alcoholic beverages (divested during the first half of 2022).

Associate investments relate to interests in deposit scheme coordinators and a holding company
of container deposit schemes in certain Australian states and territories. Associate investments
also include the Group’s equity interests in early stage development companies as part of CCEP
Ventures.

Other related parties include coordinators of container deposit schemes in certain Australian

states over which significant influence is held.

The following table summarises the transactions with associates, joint ventures and other related

parties:

Year ended 31 December
2022

2023 2021

€ million € million € million

The following table summarises the transactions with Cobega that impacted the consolidated Net amounts affecting consolidated income

statement of financial position for the periods presented: statement — associates®)

(68) (73) (49)

Ysarenj:j; December ~z Netamounts affecting consolidated income

—joi (B)

emilon emiion StAtEMent —joint ventures (28) © ©

Amounts due from Cobega 16 3 Net amounts affecting consolidated income
Amounts payable to Cobega 2 24 Statement — other related parties® (85) (85) (52)

. . . Total net amount affecting the consolidated income

Terms and conditions of transactions with Cobega statement (181) (167) (110)

Outstanding balances on transactions with Cobega are unsecured, interest free and generally
settled in cash. Receivables from Cobega are considered to be fully recoverable.

(A) Amounts principally relate to container deposit scheme charges in Australia.
(B) Amounts principally relate to the purchase of certain raw materials.
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The following table summarises the balances with associates, joint ventures and other related
parties:
Year ended 31 December
2023

2022

€ million € million

Amounts due from associates 6 6
Amounts payable to associates 2 9
Amounts payable to joint ventures 7 —
10 10

Amounts payable to other related parties

Terms and conditions of transactions with associates, joint ventures and other related parties
Outstanding balances on transactions are unsecured, interest free and generally settled in cash.
Receivables are considered to be fully recoverable.

Refer to Note 28 for a listing of associates, joint ventures and other related parties.

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are the members of the Board of Directors and the members of the
Executive Leadership Team. The following table summarises the total remuneration paid or
accrued during the reporting period related to key management personnel:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits® 31 30 22
Share-based payments 20 15 7
Total 51 45 29

(A) Shortterm employee benefits include wages, salaries and social security contributions, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, paid bonuses and non-
monetary benefis.

The Group did not have any loans with key management personnel and was not party to any
other transactions with key management personnel during the periods presented.
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Note 20

Income taxes

Current tax

Current tax for the period includes amounts expected to be payable on taxable income in the
period together with any adjustments to taxes payable in respect of previous periods, and is
determined based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate, on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is determined by identifying the temporary differences between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date. Deferred tax for the period includes origination and reversal of temporary differences,
remeasurements of deferred tax balances and adjustments in respect of prior periods.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, unless it gives rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; or

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,
unless it gives rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; or

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement. Income tax is recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or in equity.
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2023, 2022 and 2021 results
The following table summarises the major components of income tax expense for the periods
presented:
Year ended 31 December
2022

2023 2021

€ million € million € million

Current tax:

Current tax charge 555 460 323

Adjustment in respect of current tax from

prior periods (10) (37) (53)
Total current tax 545 423 270
Deferred tax:

Relating to the origination and reversal of

temporary differences 1 35 6

Adjustment in respect of deferred income tax

from prior periods (22) (22) 9)

Relating to changes in tax rates or the imposition

of new taxes — — 127
Total deferred tax (11) 13 124
Income tax charge per
the consolidated income statement 534 436 394
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The following table summarises the taxes on items recognised in other comprehensive income
(OClI) and directly within equity for the periods presented:

Year ended 31 December
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Accordingly, the following tables provide reconciliations of the Group’s income tax expense at the
UK statutory tax rate to the actual income tax expense for the periods presented:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022 2021 2023 2022 2021
€ million € million € million € million € million € million
Taxes charged/(credited) to OCI: Accounting profit before tax
Deferred tax on net gain/loss on revaluation from continuing operations 2,203 1,957 1,382
of cash flow hedges 1 (20) 63
Deferred tax on net gain/loss on pension Tax expense at the UK statutory rate 518 371 262
plan remeasurements (43) (11) 63  Taxation of foreign operations, net® 43 "5 7
Current tax on net gain/loss on pension plan X .
remeasurements 8 _ 1 Non-deductible expense items for tax purposes 15 2 2
Total taxes charged/(credited) to OCI (24) (31) 127 Rate and law change impact, net®(®) — _ 127
Taxes charged/(credited) to equity: Deferred taxes not recognised (10) 7 (7)
Deferred tax charge/(credit): cash flow hedges (31) — —  Adjustment in respect of prior periods® 32) (59) ©2)
Deferred tax charge/(credit): share-based
compensati);n gelt it ) @) 3) Total provision for income taxes 534 436 394
Current tax charge/(credit): share-based (A) This reflects the impact, net of income tax contingencies, of having operations outside the UK, which are taxed at rates other than the statutory UK rate of
compensation — (8) — 23.5% (2022: 19%, 2021: 19%)
- . (B) In 2021, the UK enacted a law change that increased its tax rate to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023. The Group recognised a deferred tax expense of
Total taxes charged/(credited) to equity (32) (10) 3 €123 million to reflect the impact of this change.

The effective tax rate was 24.2%, 22.3% and 28.5% for the years ended 31 December 2023,
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively. The Parent Company of the Group is a
UK company.

(C) In 2021, the Netherlands enacted a law change that increased its tax rate to 25.8% with effect from 1 January 2022. The Group recognised a deferred tax
expense of €2 million to reflect the impact of this change.

(D) In 2021, Indonesia enacted a law change that retained its tax rate of 22% with effect from 1 January 2022, reversing a previously enacted decrease to 20%.
The Group recognised a deferred tax expense of €2 million to reflect the impact of this change.

(E) The prior year adjustment s principally due to the release of tax reserves that are no longer required and tax audit settiements.
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Deferred income taxes
The following table summarises the movements in the carrying amounts of deferred tax liabilities and assets by significant component during the periods presented:

Franchise and other Property, plant Financial assets and Tax  Employee and retiree Tax Other, Total,
intangible assets and equipment liabilities losses benefit accruals credits net net
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
As at 31 December 2021 3,285 251 36 (14) (14) (12) 25 3,557
Amount charged/(credited) to income statement
(excluding effect of tax rate changes) 4) (1) 5 7 5 — 1 13
Amounts charged/(credited) directly to OCI — — (20) — (1) — — (31)
Amount charged/(credited) to equity — — — — 2) — — 2)
Acquired through business combinations 4) 2 — — — — — 2)
Balance sheet reclassifications 1) 2) 1) 4) — — 4 4)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (22) 4) 3) — ()] — ) (39)
As at 31 December 2022 3,254 236 17 (1) (23) (12) 31 3,492
Amount charged/(credited) to income statement
(excluding effect of tax rate changes) (14) 2 11 — (15) (12) 17 (1)
Amounts charged/(credited) directly to OCI — — 11 — (43) — — (32)
Amount charged/(credited) to equity — — (31) — (1) — — (32)
Balance sheet reclassifications — 10 — — — — (10) —
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (49) — — — 2 — 7 (40)
As at 31 December 2023 3,191 248 8 (1) (80) (24) 45 3,377
Analysed as follows:
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2023
Deferred tax asset (21) (1)

Deferred tax liability 3,513 3,378
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Unrecognised tax items

The utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences carried forward, for which no deferred
tax asset is currently recognised, is subject to the resolution of tax authority enquiries and the
achievement of positive income in periods which are beyond the Group’s current business plan,
and therefore this utilisation is uncertain.

The gross and tax effected amounts including expiry dates, where applicable, of unrecognised
losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences available for carry forward are as
follows:

Year ended 31 December

Further Sustainability

2023 2022 2021

€ million € million € million
Gross Gross Gross
amount  Tax effected amount  Tax effected amount  Tax effected
Tax losses expiring:
Beyond 10 years 3 1 3 1 — —
No time limit 1,391 264 1,657 288 1,803 310
1,394 265 1,660 289 1,803 310
Tax credits expiring:
Within 10 years 57 57 58 58 100 100
Beyond 10 years 35 35 43 43 45 45
92 92 101 101 145 145
Deductible temporary differences
No time limit 17 4 79 20 53 1
17 4 79 20 53 11
Total 1,503 361 1,840 410 2,001 466

As at 31 December 2023, no deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of €244 million
(2022: €309 million) of unremitted earnings in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
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Tax provisions

The Group is routinely under audit by tax authorities in the ordinary course of business. Due to
their nature, such proceedings and tax matters involve inherent uncertainties including, but not
limited to, court rulings, settlements between affected parties and/or governmental actions.

The probability of outcome is assessed and accrued as a liability and/or disclosed, as
appropriate. The Group maintains provisions for uncertainty relating to these tax matters that it
believes appropriately reflect its risk. As at 31 December 2023, €175 million (31 December 2022:
€122 million) of these provisions is included in current tax liabilities and the remainder is included
in non-current tax liabilities.

The Group reviews the adequacy of these provisions at the end of each reporting period and
adjusts them based on changing facts and circumstances. Due to the uncertainty associated
with tax matters, it is possible that at some future date, liabilities resulting from audits or litigation
could vary significantly from the Group’s provisions. When an uncertain tax liability is regarded
as probable, it is measured on the basis of the Group’s best estimate.

The Group has received tax assessments in certain jurisdictions for potential tax related to the
Group’s purchases of concentrate. The value of the Group’s concentrate purchases is
significant, and, therefore, the tax assessments are substantial. The Group strongly believes the
application of tax has no technical merit based on applicable tax law, and its tax position would
be sustained. Accordingly, the Group has not recorded a tax liability for these assessments, and
is vigorously defending its position against these assessments.

Global minimum top-up tax

On 11 July 2023, the Finance (No.2) Act 2023 was enacted in the United Kingdom, introducing a
global minimum effective tax rate of 15%. The legislation implements a domestic top-up tax and
a multinational top-up tax effective for accounting periods starting on or after 31 December 2023.

The Group expects to be subject to the top-up tax in relation to its operations in a few countries.
However, since the newly enacted tax legislation in the United Kingdom is only effective from 1
January 2024, there is no current tax impact for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group has applied a temporary mandatory relief from recognising and disclosing information
about deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to top-up tax and accounts for it as a current
tax when it is incurred.

If the top-up tax had applied in 2023, the additional tax expense relating to the Group’s
operations for the year ended 31 December 2023 would be immaterial.
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Note 21 The following table summarises our share option activity for the periods presented:
Share-based payment plans 2023 2022 2021
The Group has an established Share options plan and a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for Average exercise Average exercise Average exercise
certain executive and management level employees that provide for granting restricted stock Shares price Shares price Shares price
units, some with performance and/or market conditions. These awards are designed to align the thousands uss thousands uss thousands uss
interests of executives and management with the interests of shareholders. Outstanding at

beginning of year 2,272 35.30 2,758 34.19 4,051 31.68

During 2022, the Group launched a new global Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP), which

gives employees the opportunity to purchase CCEP Shares on a regular basis and become a Granted - - - - - -
shareholder, promoting an ownership culture. Under the ESPP, participating employees are Exercised (1,352) 33.86 (484) 29.00 (1,290) 26.33
granted matching Shares when certain vesting and non-vesting conditions are met. Forfeited, expired or

The Group recognises compensation expense equal to the grant date fair cancelled — — (2) 23.21 3) 19.68
value for all share-based payment awards that are expected to vest. Expense Outstanding

is generally recorded on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period at end of year 920 37.42 2,272 35.30 2,758 34.19
for each separately vesting portion of the award. Options exercisable

During the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, at end of year 920 37.42 2,272 35.30 2,758 34.19

compensation expense related to our share-based payment plans totalled €57 million, €33
million and €17 million, respectively. The expense arising from equity-settled share-based
payment transactions was €54 million

for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: €33 million; 2021: €16 million).

Share options

Share options: (1) are granted with exercise prices equal to or greater than the fair value of the
Group’s stock on the date of grant, (2) generally vest in three annual tranches over a period of
36 months, and (3) expire 10 years from the date of grant. Generally, when options are
exercised, new Shares will be issued rather than issuing treasury Shares, if available. No options
were granted during the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021. All options outstanding as at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022

and 31 December 2021 were valued and had exercise prices in US dollars.
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The weighted average Share price during the years ended 31 December 2023,
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was US$60.96, US$51.21 and US$55.68,
respectively.

The following table summarises the weighted average remaining life of options outstanding for
the periods presented:

2022

2023 2021

Further Sustainability
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Key assumptions for grant date fair value
The following table summarises the weighted average grant date fair values
per unit:

2023
59.21
59.23

2022
45.43
4544

Restricted stock units and performance share units
Grant date fair value — service conditions (US$)
Grant date fair value — service and performance conditions (US$)

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Range of Options average Options average Options average
exercise prices outstanding remaining life outstanding remaining life outstanding remaining life
us$ thousands years thousands years thousands years
15.01 to 25.00 _ 0 _ o 151 0.5
25.011040.00 920 1.60 2,272 2.20 2,607 3.04
Total 920 1.60 2272 2.20 2758 2.92

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) and Performance Share Units (PSUs)

RSU awards entitle the participant to accrue dividends, which are paid in cash only if the RSUs
vest. They do not have voting rights. Upon vesting, the participant is granted one Share for each
RSU. They generally vest subject to continued employment for a period of 36 months. Unvested
RSUs are restricted as to disposition and subject to forfeiture.

There were 0.1 million, 0.1 million and 0.1 million unvested RSUs outstanding with a weighted
average grant date fair value of US$50.67, US$42.74 and US$43.29 as at 31 December 2023,
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively.

PSU awards entitle the participant to the same benefits as RSUs. They generally vest subject to
continued employment for a period of 36 months and the attainment of certain performance
targets. There were 2.1 million, 1.8 million and 1.3 million of unvested PSUs, with weighted
average grant date fair values of US$48.95, US$41.65 and US$43.07 outstanding as at

31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively.

The PSUs granted in 2023, 2022 and 2021 are subject to performance conditions of absolute
EPS and ROIC, each with a 42.5% weighting, and to a sustainability metric, focused on the
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions (COze) across our entire value chain with a 15%
weighting.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

Through the ESPP, employees are able to contribute on a regular basis up to

a maximum amount deducted from their salary for the purpose of purchasing CCEP Shares.
Every quarter, for each purchased share, CCEP awards participating employees matching
Shares at the same time. Participating employees become owners of the matching Shares 12
months after the award, as long as they remain in employment and do not sell the related
purchased Shares during this period. Participants have all the rights of a shareholder in respect
of their purchased Shares and matching Shares (once they are fully owned by the employees),
including dividend rights and voting rights. During the years ended 31 December 2023 and

31 December 2022, the Group recognised a compensation expense related to the ESPP of €14
million and €3 million, respectively.

Note 22

Provisions, contingencies and commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When some or all of a provision is expected to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated income statement, net of any
reimbursement.

Asset retirement obligations are estimated at the inception of a lease or contract, for which a
liability is recognised. A corresponding asset is also created and depreciated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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Provisions Restructuring provision
The following table summarises the movement in each class of provision for the periods Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Group has a constructive obligation,
presented: which is when a detailed formal plan identifies the business or part of the business concerned,
the location and number of employees affected, a detailed estimate of the associated costs
Restructuring Decommissioning ! : . e b .
provision provision  Other provisions!! Totai @nd an appropriate timeline, and the employees affected have been notified of the plan’s main
€ million € million €million emiion features. These provisions are expected to be resolved by the time the related programme
As at 31 December 2021 103 20 11 134 s substantively complete.
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss: Refer to Note 17 for further details regarding our restructuring programmes.
Additional provisions recognised 115 7 2 124 Decommissioning provisions
Unused amounts reversed ®) @ 3) (13) Decommissioning liabilities relate to contractual or legal obligations to pay for asset retirement
- . N costs. The liabilities represent both the reinstatement obligations when the Group is contractually
Utilised during the period (74) (U] Q) (78) obligated to pay for the cost of retiring leased buildings and the costs for collection, treatment,
Translation 1 — — 1 reuse, recovery and environmentally sound disposal of cold drink equipment. Specific to cold
As at 31 December 2022 137 24 9 170 drink equipment obligations, the Group is subject to, and operates in accordance with, the EU
: - N Directive on Waste from Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). Under the WEEE,
Charq:?d/(credutefj? to profit or .Ioss. companies that put electrical and electronic equipment (such as cold drink equipment) on the EU
Additional provisions recognised 78 1 24 103 market are responsible for the costs of collection, treatment, recovery and disposal of their own
Unused amounts reversed (10) 9) 1) (20) products. Where applicable, the WEEE provision estimate is calculated using assumptions,
Utilised during the period (89) o) @) (94) including disposal cost per unit, average equipment age and the inflation rate, to determine the
- appropriate accrual amount.
Translation — — — — . . L N o .
As at 31 December 2023 16 15 28 159 The_ period over which the decommissioning liabilities on leased buildings anq cold drink
equipment will be settled ranges from 1 to 30 years and 2 to 9 years, respectively.
Non-current 26 15 4 45 . .
Contingencies
Current 90 - 24 114 | egal proceedings and tax matters
As at 31 December 2023 116 15 28 159  The Group is involved in various legal proceedings and tax matters and is routinely under audit

o ] ] by tax authorities in the ordinary course of business. Due to their nature, such legal proceedings

(A) (ilg‘e;::\:lsslons primarily relate to property tax assessment provisions and legal reserves, and are not considered material to the consolidated financial and tax matters involve inherent uncertainties including, but not limited to, court ruIings,
settlements between affected parties and/or governmental actions. The probability of loss for

such contingencies is assessed and accrued as a liability and/or disclosed, as appropriate.
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Guarantees

In connection with ongoing litigation and tax matters in certain territories, guarantees of
approximately €1,127 million have been issued (2022: €646 million). The Group was required to
issue these guarantees to satisfy potential obligations arising from such litigation. In addition,
we have approximately €37 million of guarantees issued to third parties through the normal
course of business

(2022: €29 million). The guarantees have various terms and the amounts represent the
maximum potential future payments that we could be required to make under the guarantees.
No significant additional liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are
expected to arise from guarantees issued.

Commitments
Commitments beyond 31 December 2023 are disclosed herein but not accrued for within the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Purchase agreements

Total purchase commitments were €0.2 billion as at 31 December 2023. This amount represents
non-cancellable purchase agreements with various suppliers that are enforceable and legally
binding, and that specify a fixed or minimum quantity that we must purchase. All purchases
made under these agreements have standard quality and performance criteria. In addition to
these amounts, the Group has outstanding capital expenditure purchase orders of approximately
€165 million as at 31 December 2023. The Group also has other purchase orders raised in the
ordinary course of business, which are settled in a reasonably short period of time.

Lease agreements
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had commiitted to a number of lease agreements that have not
yet commenced. The minimum lease payments for these lease agreements totalled €23 million.

Proposed Acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines, Inc. (CCBPI)

In November 2023, the Group together with Aboitiz Equity Ventures Inc. (AEV) entered into a
definitive agreement with The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC) to jointly acquire 100% of Coca-Cola
Beverages Philippines, Inc. (CCBPI) (refer to Note 19 and Note 27 for further details).
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Note 23

Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2023 totalled €107 million (31 December 2022:
€96 million, 31 December 2021: nil). The balance is primarily attributable to the following
activities.

The Group recognised €18 million of royalty income arising from the ownership of mineral rights
in Queensland, Australia (2022: €96 million). On 7 March 2023, the Group entered into an
agreement to sell the sub-strata and associated mineral rights. Upon regulatory approval, the
transaction was consummated in April 2023. The total consideration approximated €35 million.

The Group recognised a gain of €54 million related to the sales of properties, mainly attributable
to the sale of property in Germany completed on 7 July 2023.

Note 24
Other current assets and assets held for sale
Other current assets
The following table summarises the Group’s other current assets as at the dates presented:
Year ended 31 December
2023

2022

Other current assets € million € million
Prepayments 130 180
VAT receivables 40 41
Coal royalties® o 9%
Miscellaneous receivables 181 162
Total other current assets 351 479

(A) As at 31 December 2022, the amount related to the royalty income recognised in connection with a favourable court ruling pertaining to the ownership of
certain mineral rights in Australia. Refer to Note 23 for further detail

VAT receivables

In 2014, a dispute arose between the Spanish tax authorities and the regional tax authorities of
Bizkaia (Basque Region) as to the responsibility for refunding VAT to CCEP. Pertaining to the
VAT assessment for years 2013 to 2016, the Group recognised a VAT receivable of €214 million
within other non-current assets, for the year ended 31 December 2021. During 2022, the Group
received €252 million, inclusive of interest, from the regional tax authorities of Bizkaia following
the Arbitration Board ruling and recognised an additional VAT receivable of €25 million from the
Basque Region within Other current assets, and a payable of



Governance and Directors’ Financial

Report

Strategic

Report Information

Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

€57 million to the Spanish tax authorities within Trade and other payables, both inclusive of
interest. As at 31 December 2023, the VAT receivable balance of €25 million remains
unchanged, while the VAT payable balance increased to €59 million resulting from interests. The
classification of both balances remains unchanged.

Related to the same dispute between the Spanish tax authorities and the regional tax authorities
of Bizkaia (Basque Region), on 8 February 2023 the Group received a proposed VAT
assessment for years 2017 to 2019, approximating €250 million, inclusive of interest. For the
period under the proposed assessment, the VAT refund was issued by the Spanish tax
authorities. We believe that the Group will continue to be held neutral in respect of the VAT
dispute.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held for
sale if it is highly probable that they would be recovered through sale rather than continuous use.
In order for a sale to be considered highly probable, all of the following criteria needs to be met:
management is committed to a plan to sell the assets, an active programme to locate a buyer
and complete the plan has been initiated, the assets are actively marketed at a reasonable price,
and the sale is expected to be completed within one year from the date of classification.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less cost to sale.

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no
longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity accounted investee is no longer equity
accounted.

Assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2023 totalled €22 million and are comprised
of properties expected to be sold in the near future.

Assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2022 totalled €94 million and were
predominantly comprised of €40 million related to certain non-alcoholic ready to drink brands
that were sold to TCCC (refer to Note 19 for further details), as well as €29 million related to a
sale of property in Germany (refer to Note 23 for further details).
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Note 25
Other non-current assets
The following table summarises the Group’s other non-current assets as at the dates presented:
Year ended 31 December
2023

2022

Other non-current assets € million € million
Retirement benefit surplus (Note 15) 134 135
Investments 39 35
Other 122 82
Total other non-current assets 295 252

Investments

Joint ventures are undertakings in which the Group has an interest and which are jointly
controlled by the Group and one or more other parties. Associates are undertakings where the
Group has an investment in which it does not have control or joint control but can exercise
significant influence. Interests in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost, adjusted for the movement in
the Group’s share of their net assets and liabilities. The Group’s share of the profit or loss after
tax of joint ventures and associates is included in the Group’s consolidated income statement as
non-operating items. Where the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the equity
accounted investee, the carrying amount of the investment is reduced to zero and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation to make payments on behalf of the investee.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income relate to equity investments.
These investments are not held for trading purposes, and hence the Group has opted to
recognise fair value movements through other comprehensive income. There have been no
significant changes in fair value of these investments during the period.
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The following table summarises the Group’s carrying value of investments as at the dates
presented:
Year ended 31 December
2023

2022

Further Sustainability

Investments € million € million
Investments accounted using equity method 35 33
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 4 2
Total investments 39 35

Note 26

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors, objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to several financial risks including market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures to
minimise the uncertainties these risks create on the Group’s future cash flows. Such policies are
developed and approved by the Group’s Treasury and Commodities Risk Committee, through
the authority delegated to it by the Board.

Market risk

Market risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market prices and includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk such as commodity price risk. Market risk affects outstanding borrowings, as well as
derivative financial instruments.

Interest rates

The Group is subject to interest rate risk for its outstanding borrowings. To manage interest rate
risk, the Group maintains a significant proportion of its borrowings at fixed rates. Approximately
89% and 90% of the Group’s interest bearing borrowings were comprised of fixed rate
borrowings at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively. The Group also
modifies its interest rate exposure through the use of interest rate swaps. As at

31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the notional value of the Group’s interest rate
swaps was €1,123 million and €1,146 million, respectively.
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If interest rates on the Group’s floating rate debt were adjusted by 1% for the years ended

31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group’s finance costs and
pre-tax equity would change on an annual basis by approximately €9 million, €9 million and €7
million, respectively. This amount is determined by calculating the effect of a hypothetical interest
rate change on the Group’s floating rate debt.

Currency exchange rates

Foreign currency exchange risk can only arise on financial instruments that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured. Translation-related risks
are therefore not included in the assessment of the Group’s exposure to currency risks.
Translation exposures arise from financial and non-financial items held by the Group with a
functional currency different from the Group’s presentation currency (euro). To manage currency
exchange risk arising from future commercial transactions and recognised monetary assets and
liabilities, foreign currency forward and option contracts with external third parties are used.
Typically, up to 80% of anticipated cash flow exposures in each major foreign currency for the
next calendar year are hedged using a combination of forward and option contracts with third
parties.

The Group is also exposed to the risk of changes in currency exchange rates between US dollar
and euro relating to its US denominated borrowings. This risk is managed by entering into cross
currency swaps upon issuance thereby mitigating all the foreign currency risk.

The Group also has borrowing denominated in Australian dollars that are not swapped into euro
and are converted as part of the currency translation of the net assets of API, and, as such,
movements in exchange rates would not impact profit.

The Group’s main foreign currency exchange rate exposure relates to the change in value of the
euro against other currencies. The impact of a reasonably probable movement such as 10%
appreciation of the euro on the Group’s pre-tax equity would have led to a €6 million loss as at
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:

€29 million loss; 31 December 2021: €11 million gain). A 10% weakening of the euro would have
led to an equal but opposite effect. The impact on the Group’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in
the fair value of foreign currency hedges designated as cash flow hedges.

During 2023, the Group entered into deal contingent foreign currency forwards (refer to Note 12
for further details) in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk arising from the proposed
acquisition of CCBPI. A 10% appreciation of the euro as at 31 December 2023 would have led to
a €64 million loss impacting the Group’s pre-tax equity. A 10% weakening of the euro would
have led to an equal but
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opposite effect. There would be no impact on the Group’s income statement as these
instruments are designated as cash flow hedges.

Movements in foreign currencies related to the Group’s other financial instruments do not have a
material impact on profit before income taxes or pre-tax equity.

Commodity price risk

The competitive marketplace in which the Group operates may limit its ability to recover
increased costs through higher prices. As such, the Group is subject to market risk with respect
to commodity price fluctuations, principally related to its purchases of aluminium, PET (plastic,
including recycled PET, LDPE), ethylene, sugar and vehicle fuel. When possible, exposure to
this risk is managed primarily through the use of supplier pricing agreements, which enable the
Group to establish the purchase price for certain commodities. Certain suppliers restrict the
Group’s ability to hedge prices through supplier agreements. As a result, commodity hedging
programmes are entered into and generally designated as hedging instruments. Refer to Note
12 for more information. Typically, up to 80% of the anticipated commodity transaction exposures
for the next calendar year are hedged using a combination of forward and option contracts
executed with third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group implemented a new gas and power
hedging programme to manage its exposure to changes in commodity prices in relation to its
purchases of power and gas, by entering into financial swaps designated in a cash flow hedge
relationship. As at 31 December 2023, the notional value of the swaps was €89 million and
amounts of €13 million and €52 million were included in derivative assets and derivative
liabilities, respectively (refer to Note 12).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in commodity
prices at the reporting date, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s
pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of commodity hedges designated as cash flow
hedges. There is no impact on the Group’s income statement as all commodity derivatives are
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges.
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Year ended 31 December
2023 2022

2021

Commodity price risk € million € million € million
10% increase in commaodity prices equity gain 144 140 92
10% decrease in commodity prices equity loss (144) (140) ©2)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to counterparty credit risk on all of its derivative financial instruments.
Strict counterparty credit guidelines are maintained and only financial institutions that are
investment grade or better are acceptable counterparties. Counterparty credit risk is
continuously monitored and numerous counterparties are used to minimise exposure to potential
defaults. Where required, collateral is paid between the counterparties to minimise counterparty
risk. The maximum credit risk exposure for each derivative financial instrument is the carrying
amount of the derivative. Included in trade and other payables is €20 million (2022: €25 million)
related to collateral received from counterparties.

Credit is extended in the form of payment terms for trade to customers of the Group, consisting
of retailers, wholesalers and other customers, generally without requiring collateral, based on an
evaluation of the customer’s financial condition. While the Group has a concentration of credit
risk in the retail sector, this risk is mitigated due to the diverse nature of the customers the Group
serves, including, but not limited to, their type, geographic location, size and beverage channel.
Depending on the risk profile of certain customers, we may also seek bank guarantees.
Collections of receivables are dependent on each individual customer’s financial condition and
sales adjustments granted. Trade accounts receivable are initially recognised at their transaction
price and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment. Typically,
accounts receivable have terms of 30 to 60 days and do not bear interest. A default on a
financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due.
Exposure to losses on receivables is monitored, and balances are adjusted for expected credit
losses. Expected credit losses are determined by: (1) evaluating the ageing of receivables; (2)
analysing the history of adjustments; and (3) reviewing high risk customers. Credit insurance on
a portion of the accounts receivable balance is also carried.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is actively managed to ensure that the Group has sufficient funds to satisfy its
commitments. The Group’s sources of capital include, but are not limited to, cash flows from
operations, public and private issuances of debt and equity securities, and bank borrowings.
The Group believes its operating cash flow, cash on hand and available short- and long-term
capital resources are sufficient to fund its working capital requirements, scheduled borrowing
payments, interest payments, capital expenditures, benefit plan contributions, income tax
obligations and dividends to its shareholders. Counterparties and instruments used to hold cash
and cash equivalents are continuously assessed, with a focus on preservation of capital and
liquidity. Based on information currently available, the Group does not believe it is at significant
risk of default by its counterparties.

The Group has amounts available for borrowing under a €1.80 billion multi currency credit facility
(2022: €1.95 billion) with a syndicate of 12 banks. This credit facility matures in 2029 and is for
general corporate purposes, including serving as a backstop to its commercial paper programme
and supporting the Group’s working capital needs. Based on information currently available, the
Group has no indication that the financial institutions participating in this facility would be unable
to fulfil their commitments as at the date of these financial statements. The current credit facility
contains no financial covenants that would impact the Group’s liquidity or access to capital. As at
31 December 2023, the Group had no amounts drawn under this credit facility.

In 2022, the Group implemented a new sustainability-linked supply chain finance programme.
The facility is provided by a third party bank and will help our suppliers get paid earlier than
under contractual credit terms. Supplier balances under supply chain finance facilities are
disclosed in Note 14.
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derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Total  Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3to5years More than 5 years
Financial liabilities € million € million € million € million € million
31 December 2023
Trade and other payables 4,875 4,875 — — —
Amounts payable to related parties 270 270 — — —
Borrowings 11,803 1,322 2,325 2,681 5,475
Derivatives 268 99 42 39 88
Lease liabilities 774 159 237 141 237
Total financial liabilities 17,990 6,725 2,604 2,861 5,800
31 December 2022
Trade and other payables 4,714 4,714 — — —
Amounts payable to related parties 485 485 — — —
Borrowings 12,314 1,336 2,597 2,179 6,202
Derivatives 263 76 17 51 119
Lease liabilities 752 149 217 129 257
Total financial liabilities 18,528 6,760 2,831 2,359 6,578

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure a strong credit rating
and appropriate capital ratios are maintained to support the Group’s business and maximise

shareholder value. The Group’s credit ratings are periodically reviewed by rating agencies.
Currently, the Group’s long-term ratings from Moody’s and Fitch are Baa1 and BBB+,

respectively. Changes in the operating results, cash flows or financial position could impact the
ratings assigned by the various rating agencies. The credit rating can be materially influenced by

a number of factors including, but not limited to, acquisitions, investment decisions, capital

management activities of TCCC and/or changes in the credit rating of TCCC. Should the credit
ratings be adjusted downwards, the Group may incur higher costs to borrow, which could have a
material impact on the financial condition and results of operations.
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The capital structure is managed and, as appropriate, adjustments are made in light of changes
in economic conditions and the Group’s financial policy. The Group monitors its operating
performance in the context of targeted financial leverage by comparing the ratio of net debt with
comparable EBITDA. Net debt is calculated as borrowings adjusted for the fair value of hedging
instruments and other financial assets/liabilities related to borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments. Comparable EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA

and adjusted for items impacting comparability.

Refer to Note 11 for the presentation of fair values for each class of financial assets and financial

liabilities and Note 12 for an outline of how the Group utilises derivative financial instruments to
mitigate its exposure to certain market risks associated with its ongoing operations.

Refer to the Strategic Report included within this Integrated Report for disclosure of strategic,
commercial and operational risk relevant to the Group.

Note 27

Significant events after the reporting period

On 14 February 2024, in connection with the acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines,
Inc. CCBPI, the Group entered into a term loan facility agreement with

Note 28
Group companies
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the Bank of the Philippine Islands. A term loan facility in an aggregate amount of US$500 million
is made available under the agreement to be utilised in Philippine Peso (PHP), which has been
defined as the base currency. On 20 February 2024, the Group drew down a PHP23.5 billion
(US$420 million) loan under the facility with a maturity date of 20 February 2034. The vast
majority of the balance (90% of the total principal amount of the loan) is repayable in full upon
maturity.

On 23 February 2024, the joint acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines, Inc. CCBPI was
successfully consummated for a total consideration of US$1.68 billion (€1.55 billion), all of which
was settled in cash upon completion. The Group paid US$1.0 billion (€930 million) of the total
consideration, commensurate with the effective 60:40 ownership structure of CCBPI. The
transaction is going to be accounted for under IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, using the
acquisition method of accounting. The Group has commenced the purchase price allocation
procedures related to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, which as of the date of this
filing remain incomplete.

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of the Company’s subsidiaries, partnerships, associates, joint ventures and joint arrangements as at 31 December 2023 is
disclosed below, along with the country of incorporation, the registered address and the effective percentage of equity owned at that date. Unless otherwise stated, each entity has a share capital

comprising a single class of ordinary shares and is wholly owned and indirectly held by CCEP.

% equity
Name Country of incorporation interest Registered address

Agua De La Vega Del Codorno, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Aguas De Cospeito, S.L.U. Spain 100% Crta. Pino km. 1 - 2, 27377, Cospeito (Lugo), Spain

Aguas De Santolin, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Real, s/n 09246, Quintanaurria, Burgos, Spain

Aguas Del Maestrazgo, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Aguas Del Toscal, S.A.U. Spain 100% Ctra. de la Pasadilla, km, 3-35250, ingenio (Gran Canaria), Spain

Aguas Vilas Del Turbon, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Aitonomi AG Switzerland 15% Bruderhausstrasse 10, CH-6372 Ennetmoos, Switzerland

Amalgamated Beverages Great Britain Limited United Kingdom 100% Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Apand Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Associated Products & Distribution Proprietary Australia 100%( Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

BBH Investment Ireland Limited Ireland 100% 6th Floor, 2 Grand Canal Square, Dublin 2, Ireland
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Name

Bebidas Gaseosas Del Noroeste, S.L.U.
Beganet, S.L.U.

Beverage Bottlers (NQ) Pty Ltd
Beverage Bottlers (QLD) Ltd
Birtingahusid ehf.

BL Bottling Holdings UK Limited

BNI B.V.

BNII Inc.

BNI (Finance) B.V.
Bottling Great Britain Limited

Bottling Holding France SAS

Bottling Holdings (Luxembourg) SARL
Bottling Holdings (Netherlands) B.V.
Bottling Holdings Europe Limited

Brewcorp Pty Ltd

Brewhouse Investments Pty Ltd
C - C Bottlers Limited

Can Recycling (S.A.) Pty. Ltd.

CC Digital GmbH
CC Erfrischungsgetrénke Oldenburg Verwaltungs GmbH

CC Iberian Partners Gestion S.L.

CC Verpackungsgesellschaft mit beschraenkter Haftung
CCA Bayswater Pty Ltd

CCEP Australia Pty Ltd

CCEP Finance (Australia) Limited

CCEP Finance (Ireland) Designated Activity Company
CCEP Group Services Limited
CCEP Holdings (Australia) Limited

CCEP Holdings (Australia) Pty Ltd

CCEP Holdings Norge AS
CCEP Holdings Sverige AB
CCEP Holdings UK Limited

Country of incorporation
Spain

Spain

Australia
Australia

Iceland

United Kingdom
Netherlands
Philippines

Netherlands
United Kingdom

France
Luxembourg
Netherlands
United Kingdom

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

Germany
Germany

Spain

Germany
Australia
Australia

United Kingdom

Ireland

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
Norway

Sweden
United Kingdom

Further Sustainability
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interest

100%
100%
100%
100%
34.5%
100%
100%
100%®

100%
100%®

100%
100%
100%
100%®E)

100%
100%
100%
100%®

50%
100%"

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%™

100%
100%
100%A)0)

100%™

100%
100%
100%
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Registered address

Avda. Alcalde Alfonso Molina, S/N-15007, (A Coruna), Spain

Avda Paisos Catalans, 32, 08950, Esplugues de Llobregat, Spain

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Laugavegur 174, 105, Reykjavik, Iceland

Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Marten Meesweg 25 J, 3068 AV, Rotterdam, Netherlands

V&A Law Center, 11th Ave Cor 39th St., Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, 1634 Taguig City NCR,
Fourth District, Philippines

Marten Meesweg 25 J, 3068 AV, Rotterdam, Netherlands
Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom

9 chemin de Bretagne, 92784, Issy-les-Moulineaux, France

2, Rue des Joncs, L-1818, Howald, Luxembourg

Marten Meesweg 25 J, 3068 AV, Rotterdam, Netherlands

Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia
Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia
Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia
Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Stralauer Allee 4, 10245, Berlin, Germany
Stralauer Allee 4, 10245, Berlin, Germany

C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Schieferstrasse 20, 06126, Halle (Saale), Germany

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom

3 Dublin Landings, North Wall Quay, Dublin, DO1 C4EQ, Ireland
Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Robsrudskogen 5, Larenskog, 1470, Norway
Dryckesvagen 2 C, 136 87, Haninge, Sweden
Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
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Name Country of incorporation interest Registered address

CCEP Scottish Limited Partnership United Kingdom 100%™ 52 Milton Road, College Milton, East Kilbride, Scotland, G74 5DJ, United Kingdom
CCEP Ventures Australia Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

CCEP Ventures Europe Limited United Kingdom 100%"  Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
CCEP Ventures UK Limited United Kingdom 100%®  Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
CCIP Soporte, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Circular Plastics Australia (PET) Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 16.67%  Building 3, 658 Church Street, Cremorne VIC 3121, Australia

Classic Brand (Europe) Designated Activity Company Ireland 100% Charlotte House, Charlemont Street, Saint Kevin's, Dublin, D02 NV26

Cobega Embotellador, S.L.U. Spain 100% Avda Paisos Catalans, 32, 08950, Esplugues de Llobregat, Spain

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners (CDE Aust) Pty Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners (Fiji) Pte Limited Fiji 100% Lot 1, Ratu Dovi Road, Laucala Beach Estate, NASINU, Fiji

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners (Holdings) Pty Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners (Initial LP) Limited United Kingdom 100% Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners (Scotland) Limited United Kingdom 100% 52 Milton Road, College Milton, East Kilbride, Scotland, G74 5DJ, United Kingdom
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners API Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Australia Pty Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Belgium SRL/BV Belgium 100% Chaussée de Mons 1424, 1070 Brussels, Belgium

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Deutschland GmbH Germany 100%")  Stralauer Allee 4, 10245, Berlin, Germany

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners France SAS France 100%© 9 chemin de Bretagne, 92784, Issy-les-Moulineaux, France

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Great Britain Limited United Kingdom 100% Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Holdings Great Britain Limited United Kingdom 100% Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Holdings NZ Limited New Zealand 100% The Oasis, 19 Carbine Road, Mount Wellington, Auckland, 1060, New Zealand
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Holdings US, Inc. United States 100%A®)  Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington DE, USA

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Iberia, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Investments (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100% 80 Robinson Road, #02-00, 068898, Singapore

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners island ehf. Iceland 100% Studlahals 1, 110, Reykjavik, Iceland

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Luxembourg sarl Luxembourg 100% 2, Rue des Joncs, L-1818, Howald, Luxembourg

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Nederland B.V. Netherlands 100% Marten Meesweg 25 J, 3068 AV, Rotterdam, Netherlands

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100% The Oasis, 19 Carbine Road, Mount Wellington, Auckland, 1060, New Zealand
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Norge AS Norway 100% Robsrudskogen 5, Larenskog, 1470, Norway

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Papua New Guinea Limited Papua New Guinea  100% Section 23, Allotment 14, Milfordhaven Road, LAE, Morobe Province, 411, Papua New Guinea
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Pension Scheme Trustees Limited United Kingdom 100% Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Portugal Unipessoal LDA Portugal 100% Quinta da Salmoura - Cabanas-2925-362 Azeitao, Setubal, Portugal

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Services Bulgaria EOOD Bulgaria 100% 2 Donka Ushlinova Street, Garitage Park, Office Building 4, floor 6, Sofia, 1766, Bulgaria
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% equity

Name Country of incorporation interest Registered address

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Services Europe Limited United Kingdom 100% Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Services SRL Belgium 100%™  Chaussée de Mons 1424, 1070 Brussels, Belgium

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Sverige AB Sweden 100% 136 87, Haninge, Sweden

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners US, LLC United States 100% Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington 19801, Delaware, USA
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners US II, LLC United States 100% Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington 19801, Delaware, USA
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Vanuatu Limited Vanuatu 100% 1st Floor, Govant Building, Kumul Highway, Port Vila, Vanuatu

Coca-Cola Immobilier SCI France 100%(® 9 chemin de Bretagne, 92784, Issy-les-Moulineaux, France

Coca-Cola Production SAS France 100% Zone d' entreprises de Bergues, 59380, Commune de Socx, France

Coca-Cola Australia Foundation Limited Australia —%L) Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Compaiiia Asturiana De Bebidas Gaseosas, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Nava, 18- 32 (Granda) Siero - 33006, Oviedo, Spain

Compaiiia Castellana De Bebidas Gaseosas, S.L. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, (Madrid), Spain

Compaiiia Levantina De Bebidas Gaseosas, S.L.U. Spain 100% Av. Real Monasterio de Sta., Maria de Poblet, 3646930, Quart de Poblet, Spain
Compaiiia Nortefia De Bebidas Gaseosas, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ibaizabal, 57, Galdakao, 48960, Bizkaia, Spain

Compaiiia Para La Comunicacién De Bebidas Sin Alcohol, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/ Ribera Del Loira 20-22, 2a Planta, 28042, Madrid, Spain

Container Exchange (QLD) Limited Australia —%L) Level 17, 100 Creek Street, Brisbane QLD 4000, Australia

Circular Economy Systems Pty Ltd Australia 50% Maddocks, Angel Place, Level 27, 123 Pitt Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia
Crusta Fruit Juices Proprietary Limited Australia 100%"Y  Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Developed System Logistics, S.L.U. Spain 100% Av. Henry Ford 25, Manzana 19, Complejo Pq.Ind.Juan, CARLOS |, 46220, Picassent, Valencia, Spain
Endurvinnslan hf. Iceland 20% Knarravogur 4, 104 Reykjavik, Iceland

Exchange for Change (ACT) Pty Ltd Australia 20% Building C, Suite 6, Level 1, 1 Homebush Bay Drive, Rhodes NSW 2138, Australia
Exchange for Change (NSW) Pty Ltd Australia 20% Building C, Suite 6, Level 1, 1 Homebush Bay Drive, Rhodes NSW 2138, Australia
Feral Brewing Company Pty Ltd Australia 100%"  Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Foodl B.V. Netherlands 33.3% HNK Utrecht West, V.02, Weg der Verenigde Naties 1, 3527 KT, Utrecht, Netherlands
GR Bottling Holdings UK Limited United Kingdom 100%®  Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom
Infineo Recyclage SAS France 49%M) Sainte Marie la Blanche, 21200, Dijon, France

Innovative Tap Solutions Inc. United States 21.8% 300 Brookside Avenue, Ambler, PA 19002, USA

Instelling voor Bedrijfspensioenvoorziening Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Belgium 100% 1424 — B1070 Bergensesteenweg, Brussels, Belgium

Belgium/Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Services — Bedienden-Arbeiders

OFP

Instelling voor Bedrijfspensioenvoorziening Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Belgium 100% 1424 — B1070 Bergensesteenweg, Brussels, Belgium

Belgium/Coca-Cola Europacific Partners Services — Kaderleden OFP
lonech Limited United Kingdom 14.8% 6th Floor, Manfield House, 1 Southampton Street, London, England, WC2R OLR
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Name Country of incorporation interest Registered address

Kollex GmbH Germany 20% Kottbusser Damm 25-26, 10967, Berlin, Germany

Lavit Holdings Inc United States 13.7% 27 West 20th Street, Suite 1004, New York NY 10011, USA

Lusobega, S.L. Spain 100% C/ Ibaizabal, 57, 48960, Bizkaia, Galdakao, Spain

Madrid Ecoplatform, S.L.U. Spain 100% C/Pedro Lara, 8 Pq. Tecnologico de Leganes, 28919, (Leganes), Spain

Mahija Parahita Nusantara Foundation Indonesia —%L) South Quarter Tower C, 22nd (P) Floor, Jalan R.A. Kartini, Kav.8, Cilandak Barat, Cilandak, South Jakarta,
12430, Indonesia

Matila Nominees Pty. Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail Bottled Water Co Pty Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail SA Pty. Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail Springwater (VIC) Pty Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail Springwater Co Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail Springwater Co. (QLD) Pty. Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail Springwater Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Neverfail WA Pty. Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Pacbev Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Paradise Beverages (Fiji) Pte Limited Fiji 100% 122-164 Foster Road, Walu Bay, Suva, Fiji

PENA Umbria S.L.U. Spain 100% Av. Real Monasterio de Sta., Maria de Poblet, 3646930, Quart de Poblet, Spain

Perfect Fruit Company Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

PT Amandina Bumi Nusantara Indonesia 35.31%  South Quarter Tower C, 22nd (P) Floor, Jalan R.A. Kartini, Kav.8, Cilandak Barat, Cilandak, South Jakarta,
12430, Indonesia

PT Coca-Cola Bottling Indonesia Indonesia 100%©  South Quarter Tower C, 22nd (P) Floor, Jalan R.A. Kartini, Kav.8, Cilandak Barat, Cilandak, South Jakarta,
12430, Indonesia

PT Coca-Cola Distribution Indonesia Indonesia 100% South Quarter Tower C, 22nd (P) Floor, Jalan R.A. Kartini, Kav.8, Cilandak Barat, Cilandak, South Jakarta,
12430, Indonesia

Purna Pty. Ltd. Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Quenchy Crusta Sales Pty. Ltd. Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Real Oz Water Supply Co (QLD) Pty Limited Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Refrescos Envasados Del Sur, S.L.U. Spain 100% Autovia del Sur A-IV, km.528- 41309, La Rinconada, Sevilla, Spain

Refrige SGPS, Unipessoal, LDA Portugal 100% Quinta da Salmoura - Cabanas-2925-362 Azeitao, Setubal, Portugal

Sale Proprietary Co 1 Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Sale Proprietary Co 2 Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Sale Proprietary Co 3 Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Sale Proprietary Co 4 Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Sale Proprietary Co 5 Pty Ltd Australia 100% Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia
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Name

Sale Proprietary Co 6 Pty Ltd

Sale Proprietary Co 7 Pty Ltd
Samoa Breweries Limited (SBL)
TasRecycle Limited

VicRecycle Limited

WA Return Recycle Renew Ltd
Wabi Portugal, Unipessoal LDA
WB Investment Ireland 2 Limited

WBH Holdings Luxembourg SCS
WIH UK Limited

Wir Sind Coca-Cola GmbH

Country of incorporation

Australia

Australia
Samoa
Australia

Australia
Australia
Portugal
Ireland

Luxembourg
United Kingdom

Germany

% equity
interest

100%®)

100%
100%
A

AT
—o)
100%
100%

100%
100%™

100%
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Registered address

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Level 13, 40 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060, Australia

Vaitele Industrial Zone, Vaitele Tai, Faleata Sisifo, Samoa

Level 9, 85 Macquarie Street, Hobart TAS 7000, Australia

HWL Ebsworth Lawyers, Level 8, 447 Collins Street, Melbourne VIC 3000, Australia
Unit 2, 1 Centro Avenue, Subiaco WA 6008, Australia

N° 16-A, Fracgao B, 5° Piso, Edificio Miraflores Premium Distrito: Lisboa Concelho: Oieras Freguesia:
Algés, Linda-a-Velha e Cruz Quebrada-Dafundo 1495 190 Algés, Portugal

3 Dublin Landings, North Wall Quay, Dublin, D01 C4EO, Ireland

2, Rue des Joncs, L-1818, Howald, Luxembourg

Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge, England, UB8 1EZ, United Kingdom

Stralauer Allee 4, 10245, Berlin, Germany
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(A) 100% equity interest directly held by Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

(B) Class A and B ordinary shares.
(C) Series A, B, C and D shares.

(D) Including preference shares issued to the Group.

(E) 38.3% equity interest directly held by Coca-Cola Europacific Partners pic (100% of A ordinary shares in issue).

(F) 10% equity interest directly held by Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc.

(G) Group shareholding of 99.99% or greater.

Note 29
Subsidiaries exempt from audit

The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section
479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Name

Registration number

CCEP Holdings (Australia) Limited
WIH UK Limited

Amalgamated Beverages Great Britain Limited

12982568
10140214
01994995

(H) Class A and B shares. The Group holds 49% of Class B shares

(1) In liquidation.

() Class Aand F shares

(K) Includes ordinary shares and B Class shares.

(L) Company limited by guarantee. CCEP is a member along with one other member.
(M)Company limited by guarantee. CCEP is a member along with two other members.

(N) Class A, B and C ordinary shares.

(0) Includes redeemable preference shares and discretionary dividend shares issued to the Group.
(P) Limited partnership.
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Key performance data summary

THISIS Group Europe API
. > FURWARD 2019 2019 2019
Metric 2023 2022 Baseline* 2023 Baseline® 2023 Baseline®
ScapspliGhiGlemissionsi(toneslofiCl:e) 283745 299090 344,616 = 193305 229527 = 90440 115089
Scope 2 GHG emissions — market based approach (tonnes of CO2e) 151,795 192,053 223114 9,542 7546 142,254 215567
Scope 2 GHG emissions — location based approach (tonnes of COze) 292.243 308,050 384,382 117,289 168,899 174,954 215,482
ScopelBiGHICIemissionsllionpesloiCoze) 4827581 5095008 5754177 3161595 3763414 1665987 1,990,763
issions — in®
Scopelili2landiSIGH GlemissionsigdRullivaluelchainigi(ionneslofiCO:zc) 5263122 5586151 6321907 3364441 4000487 1,898,680 2,321,419
e — ) . "
Scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions — Full value chain” per litre (gCOze per litre) 2833 208.9 3501 2243 2803 5307 613.2
P Py o ]
Absolute reduction in total value chain¥’ GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) since 2019 (%) -30% by 2030 16.7 16 15.9 18.2
Relative reduction in total value chain® GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) per litre since 2019
0,
(%) 19.1 14.6 20.0 13.5
GHG Scope 1 and 2™ emissions per litre of product produced
{gC0Oze perllitre) 268 206 155 749
Manufacturing energy use ratio (MJ per litre of finished product produced) 0.35 0.35 0.30 0.56
Emissions from biologically sequestered carbon 87,273 71,151
Percentage of electricity purchased that comes from renewable sources (%) 795! 74.2 98.9 337
Percentage of electricity consumed that comes from renewable sources (%) 100% by 2030 78.0 731 97.8 35.8
Tonnes of CO2e offset through carbon credits (tonnes of CO2e) 41,090 9375
Percentage of carbon strategic suppliers having targets approved by SBTi (%) 100% by 2025® 31 17 50 16
Note: For a full list of CCEP's headline sustainability commitments as part of our This is Forward sustainability action plan, please refer to “Our headline a  This metric was subject to external independent limited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2023.

commitments” on page 15. For detals on our approach to reporting and methodology please see our 2023 Sustainabilty reporting methodology documenton A Our 2019 baseline and 2022 data was subject to extenal independent limited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2022, and was included within
inabil it our 2022 Integrated Report and Form 20-F. A copy of the assurance statement for these periods can be found on
(A) Market based approach only. surance-statement.pdf. In line with the WRIWBCSD GHG Protocol, our baseline figures for
(B) 100% of carbon strategic suppliers to set science based targets by 2023 (Europe) and 2025 (API). Carbon strategic suppliers account for ~80% of our Scope 2019 and prior years 2020-2022 have been restated to include updated emissions factors and more accurate data. These restated emissions were outside
3 GHG emissions (~200 suppliers i total). the scope of the latest independent limited assurance review.
The acquisition of APl completed on 10 May 2021. The Group and API sustainability metrics are presented on a full year basis for 2019 baseline calculated
on a pro forma basis to allow for better period over period comparabily.
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Key performance data summary continued

> THISIS Group Europe API
. FORWARD
Metric 2023 2022 2023 20237
Packaging
Percentage of all primary packaging that is recyclable (%, based on unit case) 100% by 2025 99.1 99.0 99.6
Percentage of PET used which is rPET (%, based on tonnes of material) 50% by 2025¢*) 54.6 48.5 59.2 415
Primary packaging collected for recycling as a percentage of total primary packaging (%, based on individual units) 100% by 2030 732 72.0 75.3 64.9
Percentage of PET bottles that are 100% rPET (%, based on individual consumer units) 47.6 44.7 50.9 39.2
Water
i 3
Total water withdrawal (1,000m?°) 26,142 26,578 20,783 5360
] ; . . 3
Total water withdrawals from areas of high or extremely high baseline water stress (1,000m®) 12,904 13,036 11,651 1,253
Percentage of water withdrawn in regions with high or extremely high water stress (%) 50.1 49.8 56.3 247
. . R . ® 3
Total production volumes from areas of high or extremely high baseline water stress® (1,000m?) 8,067 8126 7.405 662
Percentage of production volumes from areas of high or extremely high baseline water stress (%) 49.8 491 56.5 21.5
i 3
Total volume of water replenished (1,000m®) 18,339 19732 16,189 2150
Water replenished as percentage of total sales volumes (%) 100% by 2030 98.7 105.5 107.9 60.1
Manufacturing water use ratio (litres of water per litre of finished product produced) 1.61 1.60 1.58 1.73
Percentage reduction in manufacturing water use ratio since 2019 (%) 10% vs. 2019 49 1.3 15.7
Note: For a full list of CCEP’s headline sustainability commitments as part of our This is Forward sustainability action plan, please refer to “Our headline a  This metric was subject to external independent limited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2023. Please see
commitments” on page 15. For details on our approach to reporting and methodology please see our 2023 Sustainability reporting methodology document on inabil tre for our 2023 assurance statement.
i i ttre. A This metric was subject to external independent limited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2022 and was included in our 2022 Integrated Report
(A) 50% recycled plastic (fPET) in our PET bottles by 2023 (Europe) and 2025 (API). and Form 20-F. Please see i -Assurance-stat it pdif for our 2022 assurance statement.

(B) 21 out of 42 non-alcoholic ready to drink (NARTD) production faciliies in Europe and three out of 24 NARTD production facilties in API are located in areas
of water stress (based on WRI water stress mapping).
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Group Europe API

THISIS
D ——

2023 20237

Percentage of sugar sourced through suppliers in compliance with our Principles for Sustainable Agriculture (PSA) (%) 100% 99.4 97.6 99.9 97.3
Percentage of pulp and paper sourced through suppliers in compliance with our PSA (%) 100% 99.8 99.2 99.8 99.7
Percentage of total supplier spend covered by Supplier Guiding Principles (%) 100% 97.9 97.5 98.3 96.3
Drinks

. P r— V) o
Europe: Reduction in average sugar per litre in soft drinks portfolio since 2019 (%) 10% by 2025 4.9

- ion i itre i (A)XC) io si

New Zealand: Reduction in average sugar per litre in NARTD' portfolio since 2015 (%) 20% by 2025 159

. P P ) A
Australia: Reduction in average sugar per litre in NARTD' portfolio since 2015 (%) 25% by 2025 14.9

. - P A)C) A

Indonesia: Reduction in average sugar per litre in NARTD portfolio since 2015 (%) 35% by 2025 362
Percentage of volume sold which is low or no calorie (%) 50% by 2030 48.3 48.4 47.8

Society
Percentage of women in management positions (senior manager level and above)® (%)

Percentage of women in total workforce (%)
Percentage of people self-declaring as having a disability in our workforce (%)

Safety — Total incident rate (TIR) (number per 100 full time equivalent employees)
Safety — Lost time incident rate (LTIR) (number per 100 full time equivalent employees)
Total number of volunteering hours (number of hours)®*)

Total community investment contribution (millions of €)*

Number of people supported in skills development (number)™

45% by 2030 38.4 37.2

33% by 2030 25.1 23.8

10% by 2030 12.6
0.84 0.87 0.93 0.69
0.60 0.61 0.72 0.41

32,500 28,500 31,500 1,000
14.8 12.2 13.4 1.5
500,000 by 2030 16,400

Note: For a full list of CCEP's headiine sustainability commitments as part of our This is Forward sustainability action plan, please refer to “Our headiine
commitments” on page 15. For details on our approach to reporting and methodology please see our 2023 Sustainability reporting methodology document on
"

(A) Volumes are based on RTD litre sales to CCEP customers and reflect changes for new product launches, cessation of products as they ocour based on
sales timings. Reformulations are captured on a half-yearly basis given high number of beverage formulas across Europe. Reformulations made in the first-
half of the year are reflected in the current reporting period calculation. Second-half reformulations are reflected in the next reporting period. Note the data
source and methodology on when to apply recipe changes differ from the calculation of the GHG emissions of our ingredients.

(B) Sparkiing soft drinks, non-carbonated soft drinks and flavoured water only. Does not include water or juice.

(C) Non-alcoholic ready to drink (NARTD), including dairy. Does not include coffee, alcohol, beer or Freestyle.

(D) Europe 50% by 2025. Does not include coffee, alcohol, beer or Freestyle. Low calorie beverages <20kcal/100ml. Zero calorie beverages <4kcal/100ml.

(E) Excludes Fiji and Samoa, as aligned role grades are not available for 2023 reporting. We aim to include these markets for 2024. For full year 2022 Papua
New Guinea was also excluded and no restatement has taken place.

(F) Calculated based on the total number of employees responding to our voluntary 2023 inclusion survey (representing 38.4% of our workforce) and the
number of employees self-declaring as having a disabilty.

(G) Australia and Indonesia only. The volunteering policy has been rolled out to all CCEP markets in 2023. Each business unitis responsible for the level of
implementation, which might vary from market to market.

(H) We aim to be accurate in our reporting and continue to enhance the way we capture the total value of our community contribution. Figures quoted have
been rounded to the nearest 100k.

a This metric was subject to external independent limited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2023.

A This metric was subject to external independent limited assurance for the year ended 31 December 2022. Note the baseline year for Europe reduction in
average sugar per ltre in soft drinks portfolio has changed to 2019 since we issued our 2022 Integrated Report and Form 20-F.
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Our approach to reporting and methodology

CCEP’s carbon footprint is calculated in accordance with the World Resource Institute (WRI) and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) Greenhouse Gas (GHG)
Protocol Corporate Standard, using an operational control approach to determine organisational
boundaries.

GHG emissions are reported in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tonnes COe or tCOze),
accounting for different Global Warming Potentials (GWPs) of the different GHGs.

Note on sources of data and calculation methodologies

Under the GHG Protocol, we measure our emissions in three Scopes. We disclose the Scope 1,
2, and 3 carbon emissions of our full value chain, including all key emissions related to our
production facilities, operational centres, sales offices, distribution centres, cold drink equipment
(CDE), our own operated and owned transportation as well as third party distribution, business
travel, ingredients and packaging. We also disclose biogenic emissions which are outside of the
three WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol Scopes. GHG emissions are reported on a gross basis,
independent of any GHG trades, offsets or carbon credits.

Where we refer to our own operations, unless otherwise indicated, we are referring to our own
production, sales/distribution, combined sales/production facilities, administrative offices and
fleet owned or controlled by CCEP, including our shared-service centre in Bulgaria.

In-scope sales volumes were based on ready to drink litre sales to CCEP customers and reflect
changes as they occur based upon sales timings. Sales from distribution agreements are
excluded as the GHG emissions associated with these products will be accounted for by the
Brand owners. Alcohol sales volume is included if CCEP manufacture the alcohol products.
Sales volumes from

imports/exports from/to non-CCEP countries are excluded to avoid

double counting.
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Less than 5% of our value chain carbon footprint is based on estimated emissions. This includes
the site energy emissions for small leased offices where energy invoices or the square metre
footage size is not available, or packaging emissions where product specifications are
unavailable. We also estimate the electricity consumption for the pure electric and plug-in
hybrids in our company car fleet.

2019 Baseline and recalculation methodology

Our baseline years is 2019. The acquisition of APl completed on 10 May 2021. The Group and
API sustainability metrics are presented on a full year basis for 2019 baselines calculated on a
pro forma basis to allow for better period over period comparability.

In line with the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol guidance, we restate our baseline and subsequent
year data when there are significant acquisitions, new emissions factors, and more accurate
data. We apply a significance threshold of 5%, but also re-baseline in line with best practice, in
order to retain consistency and comparability across years.

In 2024, we have restated our baseline figures for 2019 and 2020-2022 as necessary; increasing
baseline and subsequent year emissions by ~350,000 tCO,e. Key changes include:

National packaging collection rate changes in European markets, driven by new EU
methodology for calculating packaging collection rates.

Changes to SBTi boundary which now includes emissions from Category 7 and new sources
of emissions for Category 1 (marketing and IT spend)

Shifts in emissions factor source for Well-To-Tank (WTT)/Transmission and Distribution
emissions

- Shifts in emission factors for CO; as ingredient

Improvements in data, and inclusion of previously non-included emissions sources.



Financial
Statements

Governance and Directors’
Report

Strategic

Report Information

Approach to sustainability reporting and methodologies

Scope 1 GHG emissions sources
Includes direct owned and operated sources of emissions such as:

Stationary combustion sources, such as natural gas, diesel/petrol fuel for

back up boilers/generators and on-site shunting vehicles, light fuel oil, liquid petroleum gas
(LPG) for forklift trucks, Compressed natural gas (CNG) and

the non-biogenic element of biofuels such as HVO100.

Mobile combustion such as diesel and petrol for CCEP operated customer delivery, vans and
car fleet.

Fugitive emissions of refrigerants.

Fugitive CO, emissions from manufacturing processes (i.e. losses occurring during product
carbonisation process).

On-site renewables including geothermal, solar, water turbine, ground source heat (listed as
GHG emission sources, but zero rated in terms of carbon emissions).

Fugitive biogas from Anaerobic Digesters.

We follow Beverage Industry Environmental Roundtable (BIER) emissions sector guidance on
the emissions source for the source of the CO, supplied to CCEP to carbonate soft drinks, and
whether these are generated from fossil or biogenic sources of CO,.

Scope 2 GHG emissions — purchased electricity, heat and steam

We report Scope 2 emissions according to the GHG Protocol Scope 2 Guidance. We use the
Scope 2 market based approach to report our aggregated Scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions,
and to set our aggregated targets.

We include indirect sources of GHG emissions from the generation of electricity, heat and steam
we use at our sites.
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The carbon emission factors for Scope 2 emissions are applied in terms of the two methods
provided by the GHG Protocol:

(1) Location based: All electricity purchased is converted into CO, emissions using the average
grid emissions factor for electricity in the country in which it is purchased. Energy Attribute
Certificates (EAC) are not applied to the total Scope 2 emissions.

(2) Market based: All electricity purchased is converted to CO2 using emissions factors from
contractual instruments which CCEP has purchased or entered into. EACs are applied based
on RE100 guidance which allows for EACs to be used against electricity consumed in the
same market as where the EACs are purchased.

Any sites with no contractual instruments for renewable electricity supply will have a residual
factor applied (where available), which has had renewable contractual instruments removed.

The quantity of purchased renewable electricity was verified through renewable electricity
certificates such as Guarantees of Origin (GoOs) in the EU, Renewable Energy Guarantees of
Origin (REGOs) in the UK, Large-scale Generation Certificates (LGCs) in Australia or Power
Purchase Agreements (PPAs) from our electricity suppliers in each country and through meter
readings of renewable electricity generated on site.

In 2023, we completed a review of our site renewable electricity purchases,

and noted that some market based instruments were not in place for a limited number of
locations in prior years 2019-2022. This included our PPA solar farm in Wakefield, our water
turbine in Chaudfontaine, and our purchased electricity in Iceland. We have restated our
purchased and consumed Renewable Electricity figures for Wakefield and Chaudfontaine for
FY2019-FY2022 to reflect this.

In 2023, in line with RE100 technical guidance, we no longer use passive claims for renewable
electricity use in Iceland. Due to this change, in FY2023, we did not have GoOs available to
cover renewable electricity purchases in Iceland. As a result, in

FY2023, renewable electricity purchase and use is not claimed for Iceland, and the residual
emission factor was applied.
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Approach to sustainability reporting and methodologies

In leased non-production facilities where we do not control the purchase of the electricity, we
apply the national grid emissions factor for those sites. Where the landlord has provided
evidence that they are purchasing renewable electricity on our behalf, we will report this in line
with the market based approach. Emissions related to the generation of electricity for these sites
are included in our Scope 2 emissions. In 2023, we used ~20,000 MWh of electricity in non-
production facilities, where we do not control the purchase of electricity, or use on-site solar.

Scope 3 GHG emissions

Data is consolidated from a number of sources across our business and is analysed centrally.
We use a variety of methodologies to gather our emissions data and measure each part of our
carbon footprint.

CCEP uses emission factors relevant to the source data including UK Department for Energy
Strategy and Net Zero (DESNZ), Australia’s Department of Industry, Science, Energy and
Resources factors for state-level electricity factors, and International Energy Agency (IEA)
emission factors for all other grid factors at a national level.

Data sources include:

Energy data: from metered sources, supplier invoices or calculations and estimates based on
energy benchmarks published in the Best Practice Programme’s Energy Consumption Guide
19 (ECON 19).

Packaging specifications.

Recipe data for key ingredients. If a recipe change occurs during a reporting year, it is applied
for the full year sales.

- National Recycling Rates, calculated in line with our Collection Rates metric. We have restated
prior year 2019-2022 rates in line with updated European methodology for calculating
packaging collection rates.

Supplier data for Recycled Content Rates.

Consumer CO; released from carbonated products.

Calculations of CDE emissions are based on weighted average daily (kWh/24h) supplier
energy consumption rates and by subtracting any savings achieved through carbon/energy
use reduction initiatives completed during the reporting period or prior years.

Transport fuel is calculated according to actual litres used or kilometres recorded with vehicle
fuel efficiency rates provided by suppliers.

Supply of water, treatment of wastewater and waste management are calculated by using litre
and weight (kg) data respectively.
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- Spend data used to calculate Category 1 purchased goods and services (Marketing and IT
spend). Marketing spend includes: sales and marketing agency and services spend, and trade
marketing. IT spend includes fixed and mobile telecoms, IT hardware and software, and
outsourced services.

Employee headcount and job role used to calculate employee commuting data. Includes WTT
assumptions.

We have started to use supplier specific emission factors for sugar beet in Europe and will
extend this to other packaging and ingredient suppliers over the coming years.

Scope 3 reported categories

The following Scope 3 categories are reported by CCEP in our total value chain figures, and are
included in our current Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi) target boundary, representing
approximately 90% of our Scope 3 emissions:

Category 1: purchased goods and services (including the packaging we put on the market, the
ingredients used in our products, purchased water, IT, telecoms and sales and trade marketing
spend).

Category 3: fuel- and energy-related activities not already included in Scope 1 or Scope 2 (e.g.
WTT, transmission and distribution from energy supply to our sites and assets).

Category 4: upstream transportation and distribution (transportation of finished products paid
for by CCEP).

Category 5: waste generated in operations (emissions from disposal of waste generated at our
production facilities).

- Category 6: business travel (including employee business travel by rail and air).

Category 7: employee commuting (including commuting and home working emissions).
Category 8: upstream leased assets (including the home charging of company plug-in hybrid
electric vehicles (PHEV) and battery electric vehicles (BEV)).

Category 11: use of sold products (including CO, emissions released by consumers, in
accordance with BIER guidance).

Category 12: end of life treatment of sold products.

Category 13: downstream leased assets (including the emissions generated from the
electricity used by our hot and cold drink equipment at our customers’ premises).
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The following Scope 3 categories are not included in CCEP’s current SBTi target boundary. We
will provide additional information in our 2024 CDP response, using estimated emission
calculations:

- Category 1: purchased goods and services (additional purchased goods and services that are
not included above).

- Category 2: capital goods.

« Category 11: use of sold products (including home chilling).

- Category 15: investments (including investments in joint venture recycling facilities and CCEP
Ventures investments).

All other Scope 3 categories (9, 10, 14) are not currently applicable to CCEP.

Emissions from biologically sequestered carbon

Methodologies and boundaries

Emissions from biologically sequestered carbon are reported outside of the three Scopes of our

reported GHG emissions, in line with WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol guidance. CO, is used to

carbonate our soft drinks, therefore we follow the BIER guidance on reporting CO, emissions

from biogenic sources for fugitive losses and release by consumers.

Our scope for reporting emissions from biologically sequestered carbon includes:

- Biofuels (such as HYO100, Bio-CNG, wood) used in vehicles and sites

+ Anaerobic biogas (where CO; is released from combustion of the biogas)

- Biofuel where blended with diesel/petrol (forecourt fuels)

- Biogenic-sourced CO, ingredient: we follow the BIER emissions sector guidance.

Each source of biologically sequestered carbon is calculated separately using appropriate

biogenic carbon emission factors and then aggregated to provide our reported total.

Emissions from the production and transportation of biofuels are accounted for in Scope 3 as
part of Category 5 WTT.
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Emissions from conversion of biogenic CO2 to a higher GWP GHG are accounted for in Scope 1
(i.e. anaerobic biogas where organic material is converted to biomethane, and not all of the
biomethane fully combusted and is therefore not converted back to COz, these biomethane
emissions are included under Scope 1).

CCEP uses the most up-to-date emission factors from DESNZ/DEFRA for biogenic CO, and
anaerobic biogas and for biofuels and bio-blends.

Exclusions

Emissions from carbon removals within our value chain related to biomass feedstock production
for bioenergy are well below the significance threshold for CCEP, so removals have yet to be
estimated. If the level of significance changes in the future, CCEP will follow the latest guidance
from the GHG Protocol on accounting for removals.

Biogenic emissions from electricity generation are excluded for CCEP. Carbon conversion
factors are provided by DEFRA/DESNZ for electricity in the UK grid generated by biomass
power stations. However, no similar carbon factors for all other CCEP countries is available from
credible or reliable sources. Therefore, to be consistent, CCEP does not report these biogenic
emissions for only one of our territories. It is hoped that an international data source (e.g. IEA)
will provide these conversion factors in future.

Definitions

Biogenic CO, emissions are defined as CO, emissions related to the natural carbon cycle, as
well as those resulting from the production, harvest, combustion, digestion, fermentation,
decomposition, and processing of biologically based materials. Biologically based feedstocks,
also referred as “biologically sequestered carbon,” are non-fossilized and biodegradable organic
materials originating from modern or contemporarily grown plants, animals, or microorganisms.

Biogenic emissions are inherently accounted for in the atmosphere’s natural carbon cycle.
Reporting them within Scopes 1, 2, or 3 would lead to double counting of emissions, as the
sequestration of COz during the growth of the biomass is not accounted for in these scopes.

> Additional information on the methodology for all This is Forward indicators is available on
cocacolaep.com/sustainability/download-centre.
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Risk factors

This section examines the risks Coca-Cola Europacific Partners (CCEP) faces as a business.
These risks may change over time.

Business disruption

Global or regional catastrophic events could negatively impact our business and financial results.
Our business may be affected by prolonged internal and/or external disruptive events, including
natural disasters such as hurricanes, floods, fires, earthquakes, and health crises such as
pandemics, and man-made events such as wars and political turmoil, as well as cyber attacks or
system failures that may have a material impact on our ability to operate the business, or on our
suppliers or customers. Recent examples of disruptive events include the COVID-19 pandemic,
the current conflicts between Russia and Ukraine, and Israel and Gaza, which have directly and
indirectly impacted us and our consumers. Other potential disruptive events include the loss of
critical assets and infrastructure, the loss of (or loss of access to) critical employees, including
through government lockdowns or industrial disputes, major IT outages due to a cyber incident
or similar, and the failure of third party supplied raw materials, critical services or utilities such as
electricity, gas and water.

These disruptive events could have a material adverse impact on our sales volume, cost of
sales, earnings, and overall financial condition.

Packaging and recycling

Waste and pollution, and the legal and regulatory responses to these issues, could adversely
impact our business.

Waste and pollution, particularly plastic and packaging waste, is a global issue affecting our
business. Although the vast majority of our packaging is fully recyclable, it is not always collected
for recycling across our territories, and can end up as land or marine litter. Concerns regarding
the environmental impacts of packaging have led to governments in countries we operate in
implementing laws and regulations that aim to increase the collection and recycling of our packs;
reduce packaging waste and litter, including through limiting the use of single use plastic; and
introduce quotas for refillable packaging, as well as specific packaging design requirements.

The European Commission is working on a revision of the Packaging and Packaging Waste
Directive, setting increasingly stringent mandatory reuse targets on soft drinks and carbonated
alcoholic beverages in EU member states, takeaway beverages filled at the point of sale,
recycled content targets for plastic packaging and a mandatory deposit return scheme (DRS) for
single use plastic bottles and
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metal containers of up to three litres. Regulations will likely be adopted by EU member states in
2024, with compliance dates between then and 2040.

In addition to initiatives at the EU level, several countries in which we operate also have or are
planning other legislative or regulatory measures to reduce the use of single use plastics,
including plastic beverage bottles, and/or increases to plastic collection and recycling. Such
measures may include implementing a DRS under which a deposit fee is added to the consumer
price, which is refunded if and when the bottle is returned. Other measures may include rules on
recycled content, requirements to purchase packaging recovery notes (PRN) to show that we
meet our responsibilities for recycling and recovery of packaging waste, individual collection or
recycling targets, or a plastic tax. The adoption of new or more stringent rules could increase our
costs and may have a material impact on the cost and efficiency of our operations.

If we fail to sufficiently address stakeholder concerns about packaging and recycling, or we are
not able to adapt our business to new legislation and regulation on a timely or cost-effective
basis, or at all, it could result in higher costs through packaging taxes, producer responsibility
reform, regulatory fines, damage to corporate reputation or investor confidence, and a reduction
of consumer acceptance of our products and packaging.

Health concerns regarding the contents of our packaging materials, and regulatory responses to
those concerns, could increase our costs and harm

our reputation.

We are also subject to regulations governing the contents of our packaging, and may become
subject to more stringent regulations in that regard.

New recycling technologies may not work or may not be developed

quickly enough.

We are exploring innovative ways to achieve the packaging targets that we have set ourselves
and those imposed by legislation and regulation, for example by using plastic that has been
recycled via enhanced/chemical recycling technologies. There is a risk that these new
technologies may not be developed quickly enough or may not work as well as intended, which
could limit our ability to mitigate the impact of restrictions on single use plastics. Also, these
technologies may be more expensive than current solutions, potentially reducing our profitability.

Read more about packaging on pages 41-44
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Risk factors continued

Legal, regulatory and tax

Future changes to tax laws in the countries in which we operate could adversely affect our
business.

We are subject to multiple national, state, regional, and local taxes in the jurisdictions in which
we operate, including corporate income tax and sales tax.

Tax is a complex evolving area, leading to the risk of increased or unexpected

tax costs, and/or additional tax reporting obligations. Tax laws could change

on a prospective or retroactive basis. Any such changes could adversely affect

our business and its affiliates, and there is no assurance that we would be able

to maintain any particular worldwide effective corporate tax. An increase in our effective tax rate
would negatively impact the results of our operations.

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) and the Inclusive
Framework (IF) have agreed to work together to create a consistent and coordinated approach
to reform the international taxation rules to address the tax challenges arising from the
digitalisation of the economy and to ensure that multinational enterprises (MNEs) pay a fair
share of tax wherever they operate and generate profits (a two pillar solution). In 2021, the
Global Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules (Pillar Two) was published, providing for a minimum level
of taxation on the income arising in each of the jurisdictions where large MNEs operate.

The Pillar Two rules were enacted in the UK under the Finance (No.2) Act 2023 introducing a
global minimum effective tax rate of 15%. The legislation implements a domestic top-up tax and
a multinational top-up tax effective

for accounting periods starting on or after 31 December 2023.

Additionally, direct or indirect taxes or other charges imposed on the sale of our products could
increase costs or cause consumers to purchase fewer of them. Many countries in which we
operate are looking to implement or increase such taxes. These may relate, for example, to the
use of non-recycled plastic in beverage packaging, or the use of sugar or other sweeteners in
our beverages. Such changes may arise through the raising of an existing tax or the imposition
of a new one.
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Additional taxes levied on us could harm our financial results.

Our tax filings for various periods are or may be subject to current or future audit by tax
authorities. These audits have resulted, and may in the future result, in assessments of
additional taxes, as well as interest and/or penalties, and could adversely affect our financial
results. Changes in tax laws, regulations, court rulings, related interpretations, and tax
accounting standards in countries in which we operate, or if we are unsuccessful in defending
our tax positions, may adversely affect our financial results. Additionally, amounts we may need
to repatriate for the payment of dividends, share buybacks, interest on debt, salaries and other
costs may be subject to additional taxation when repatriated.

Legal changes could affect our status as a foreign corporation for US federal income tax
purposes, or limit the US tax benefits we receive from engaging in certain transactions.

In general, for US federal income tax purposes, a corporation is considered a tax resident in the
jurisdiction of its organisation or incorporation. Because CCEP is incorporated under the laws of
England and Wales, it would generally be classified as a non-US corporation (and therefore a
non-US tax resident) under these rules. However, section 7874 of the US Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (IRC), provides an exception under which a non-US incorporated
entity may, in certain circumstances, be treated as a US corporation for US federal income tax
purposes.

These regulations are complex and there is limited guidance as to their application. In addition,
changes to applicable regulations could adversely affect CCEP’s status as a foreign corporation
for US federal tax purposes, and any such changes could have prospective or retroactive
application. If CCEP were to be treated as a US corporation for US federal income tax purposes,
it could be subject to materially greater US tax liability than as a non-US corporation.
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Risk factors continued

Legislative or regulatory changes that affect our operations, access to raw materials, products,
distribution or packaging could reduce demand for our products or increase our costs.

Our business model depends on making our products and packages available in multiple
channels and locations. Laws that restrict our ability to do so, including laws affecting the
promotion and distribution of our products, imposing levies on products with sugar and
sweeteners, and limiting our ability to design or market certain packages, could increase our
costs, decrease demand for our products, and negatively impact our financial results.

For example, our products are subject to, and may in the future be subject to, additional
marketing and commercial restrictions based on ultra-processed food or nutrition grounds,
promotions or marketing to children, or pressure from customers or regulators to develop
discriminatory front of pack labelling.

Additionally, we are subject to licensing and other regulatory requirements in the jurisdictions in
which we operate, and changes in these rules could increase our compliance costs or impact our
ability to operate.

We may be exposed to risks in relation to compliance with anti-corruption laws and other key
regulations and economic sanctions programmes.

We and our subsidiaries are required to comply with the laws and regulations of the various
countries in which we conduct business, as well as certain laws of other countries, including the
US. In particular, our operations are subject to anti-corruption laws such as the US Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 (the FCPA), the UK Bribery Act 2010 (UKBA), the Spanish

and Portuguese Criminal Codes and Sapin Il, and other key regulations such as the corporate
criminal offence provisions of the UK Criminal Finances Act 2017 and the General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR). We are also subject to economic sanction programmes, including
those administered by the United Nations, the EU and the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the
US Department of the Treasury (OFAC), and regulations set forth under the US Comprehensive
Iran Sanctions, Accountability, and Divestment Act.
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One of the purposes of data protection laws is to protect individuals’ fundamental rights and
freedom, particularly their right to protection of their personal data. In addition, EU personal data
transfers to third countries are subject to significant and evolving compliance requirements,
including risk assessments of foreign government surveillance, execution of standard contractual
clauses with third parties and potential supplemental measures. Non-compliance with

such transfer requirements would result in a GDPR violation.

The FCPA, UKBA, and other anti-corruption regulations are aimed at preventing bribery in
dealings with foreign entities. These rules are complex and may reach our dealings with both
public and private sector entities and officials. In our business dealings, we may deal with
governments, state owned business enterprises, and private sector entities.

We do not currently operate in jurisdictions that are subject to territorial sanctions imposed by
OFAC or other relevant sanction authorities. However, such economic sanction programmes
restrict our ability to engage or confirm business dealings with certain sanctioned countries and
with sanctioned parties.

Violations of the above, including anti-corruption, data protection laws, economic sanctions,
competition law or other applicable laws and regulations, are punishable by civil and sometimes
criminal penalties for individuals and companies. These penalties can include fines, denial of
export privileges, injunctions, asset seizures, debarment from government contracts (and
termination of existing contracts) to revocations or restrictions of licences, as well as criminal
fines and imprisonment. Any violation within one of these compliance risk areas could have a
negative impact on our reputation and on our ability to win future business.

Due to the fast pace of changing statutory and regulatory environment, we cannot guarantee that
our compliance programmes, policies and procedures will be followed at all times, or that we will
always detect and prevent violations of the applicable laws by our employees, consultants,
agents or partners. Implementing new or additional internal compliance systems or oversights
may also increase our operating costs.



Financial
Statements

Governance and Directors’
Report

Strategic

Report Information

Risk factors continued

Legal claims against our suppliers could affect their ability to provide us with products and
services, which could negatively impact our financial results.

Many of our suppliers provide us with products and services that rely on certain intellectual
property rights or other proprietary information, and are subject to other third party rights,
laws and regulations. If these suppliers face legal claims brought by third parties or regulatory
authorities, they could be required to pay large settlements or even cease providing us with
products and services as well as expose us to risk.

These outcomes could require us to change suppliers or develop replacement solutions or be
subject to third party claims. This could result in business inefficiencies, delays or higher costs,
which could negatively impact our financial results.

Litigation or legal proceedings could expose us to significant liabilities and damage our
reputation.

We are a party to various litigation claims and legal proceedings. We evaluate these claims and
proceedings to assess the likelihood of unfavourable outcomes and to estimate, if possible, the
amount of potential losses. Based on these assessments and estimates, we establish reserves
or disclose the relevant claims or proceedings, as appropriate. These assessments and
estimates are based on the information available to management at the time and involve a
significant amount of management judgement. Actual outcomes or losses may differ materially
from those in the current assessments and estimates. Recent EU legislation has increased the
ability to bring claims, including of greenwashing, against CCEP.

Improper conduct by our employees could damage our reputation or lead to litigation or legal
proceedings that could result in civil or criminal penalties, including substantial monetary fines,
as well as disgorgement of profits.

Cyber and IT resilience

Cyber attacks, or a deficiency in our cybersecurity or a customer’s or supplier’s cybersecurity,
could negatively impact our business.

As our reliance on IT increases, so will the risks posed to our internal and third party systems
from cyber incidents.

A cyber incident is considered to be any adverse event that threatens the confidentiality, integrity
or availability of our data or information systems. It could involve a third party gaining
unauthorised access to systems, either unintentionally or through an intentional attack (such as
activities due to war, state sponsored

Further Sustainability

Other

Information

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
2023 Integrated Report and Form 20-F

246

cyber terrorism, criminal attack, hacking or a computer virus), which could disrupt operations,
compromise or corrupt data, damage our brand reputation, threaten our Company or employees
and negatively impact our financial results.

Our business processes require high levels of integration between our IT systems and the
systems of third parties (suppliers, customers, business partners, systems providers) and
companies that we invest in or acquire. A cyber incident at any of those entities could either
spread to our systems or indirectly have a negative impact on our ability to operate. Similarly,
cyber attacks in one country might impact our ability to do business in other countries due to the
dependencies on information systems and applications.

Technology failures could disrupt our operations and negatively impact our business.

We rely extensively on IT systems to process, transmit, store and protect electronic information.
For example, our production and distribution facilities and inventory management all use IT to
maximise efficiencies and minimise costs. Communication between our employees, customers
and suppliers also depends, to a large extent, on IT.

Our IT and operational technology systems may be vulnerable to interruptions due to
implementation of new systems or systems upgrades (such as our system applications and
product in data processing (SAP) and its modules) and events that may be beyond our control.
These include, but are not limited to, natural disasters, telecommunications failures, power
outages, hardware failures, human error and security issues, such as cyber attacks.
Centralisation of IT systems might increase the impact of a failure of IT applications. We have IT
security controls, processes and disaster recovery plans in place, but they may not be adequate
or implemented effectively enough to ensure that our operations are not disrupted. If we
miscalculate the level of investment needed, our software, hardware and maintenance practices
could become out of date, and this could result in disruptions to our business. In addition, when
we integrate new entities following investment or acquisition, the integration of IT systems and
applications for those entities will increase the complexity and the risk level of our IT
infrastructure.

> Read more about our cyber security risk management on pages 77-78
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Risk factors continued

Economic and political conditions

The deterioration of global and local economic and political conditions could adversely affect our
business performance and share price.

Our performance is closely linked to the global economic cycle as well as macro and
microeconomic conditions in the countries, regions and cities where we operate. Normally, slow
economic growth or economic contraction decreases demand and drives down sales.

For example, adverse economic conditions decrease individuals’ disposable income, potentially
leading to the purchase of cheaper private label brands or avoiding buying beverage products
altogether.

Currently, many major economies are going through monetary tightening to contain high inflation
following a multi-year monetary and fiscal expansion and supply chain dislocations. The war in
Ukraine is further increasing the uncertainty and volatility, mainly through energy prices and
supply uncertainty.

The ongoing uncertainties around economic growth, employment, inflation, commodities,
currencies, costs, and the availability of financial resources could directly impact our business,
operating results, financial conditions, cash flows, liquidity requirements and share price.
Geopolitical concerns are higher than last year, particularly with the ongoing war in Ukraine, the
conflict in the Middle East, the global refugee crisis, and elections resulting in more populist or
extremist parties gaining support and polarised coalition governments, creating a very volatile
macroeconomic environment.

Other key external economic and political factors also have the potential to specifically impact
AP, including economic and political instability in Papua New Guinea (PNG) and the impact on
foreign currency availability, tariffs and protectionism, geopolitical turbulence in the form of US-
China trade wars and trade tension between Australia and China. Additionally, API is exposed to
PNG liquidity risks and the associated impact on short-term profitability. Access to foreign
exchange in PNG is limited due to a supply/demand imbalance of hard currency. The PNG kina
(PGK) is considered to be overvalued. If the PNG government requires assistance from the
International Monetary Fund to fund its budget deficit, it could require the PGK to be devalued,
which could significantly impact API's financial results upon translation of PGK earnings and
balance sheet into Australian dollars.
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Increases in costs, limitation of supplies, or lower than expected quality of raw materials could
harm our financial results.

The cost of our raw materials, ingredients, packaging materials or energy could increase over
time. If that happens, and if we are unable to pass the increased costs on to our customers in
the form of higher prices, our financial results could be adversely affected.

We use supplier pricing agreements and derivative financial instruments to manage volatility
and market risk for certain commaodities. Generally, these hedging instruments establish the
purchase price before the time of delivery, which may lock us into prices that are ultimately
higher or lower than the actual market price at the time of delivery.

We continue to experience volatility in commaodity prices and foreign exchange mainly driven by
central banks’ global tightening policies; supply chain disruptions due to military conflicts; political
uncertainty across key global powers; and increased protectionist policies.

Our suppliers could be adversely affected by a number of external events. These could include
war, strikes, adverse weather conditions, speculation, abnormally high demand, governmental
controls, new taxes, national emergencies, natural disasters, health crises, such as a pandemic,
and insolvency. If this happens, and we are unable to find an alternative source for our materials,
our cost of sales, revenues, and ability to manufacture and distribute our products could be
adversely affected.

The quality of the materials or finished goods we receive could be lower than expected. If this
happens, we may need to substitute those items for ones that meet our standards, or replace
underperforming suppliers. This could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our business.

Changes in interest rates or our debt rating could harm our financial results and financial
position.

We are subject to interest rate risk, and changes in our debt rating could have a material
adverse effect on interest costs and debt financing sources. Our debt rating can be materially
influenced by a range of factors, including our financial performance, acquisitions, and
investment decisions, as well as the capital management activities of TCCC and changes in its
debt rating. If our credit rating declines or interest rates continue to increase, as they have done
in recent years, there is no guarantee that we will be able to access debt financing on favourable
terms, or at all.
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Risk factors continued

The deterioration in political unity within the EU could significantly impact our financial results
and reduce our competitiveness in the marketplace.

There are concerns regarding the short-term and long-term stability of the euro and pound
sterling and the euro’s ability to serve as a single currency for a number of individual countries.
These concerns could lead individual countries to revert, or threaten to revert, to local
currencies. In more extreme circumstances, they could exit the EU, and the Eurozone could be
dissolved entirely. Should this occur, the assets we hold in a country that reintroduces local
currency could be subject to significant changes in value when expressed in euros. Furthermore,
the full or partial dissolution of the euro, the exit of one or more EU member states from the EU or
the full dissolution of the EU could cause significant volatility and disruption to the global
economy. This could affect our ability to access capital at acceptable financing costs, the
availability of supplies and materials, and demand for our products, all of which could adversely
impact our financial results.

If it becomes necessary for us to use additional currencies, we would be subjected to additional
earnings volatility as amounts in these currencies are translated into euros.

Default by or failure of one or more of our counterparty financial institutions could cause us to
incur losses.

We are exposed to the risk of default by, or failure of, the counterparty financial institutions with
which we do business. This risk may be heightened during economic downturns and periods of
uncertainty in the financial markets.

If one of our counterparties became insolvent or filed for bankruptcy, our ability to recover
amounts owed from or held in accounts with the counterparty may be limited. In this event
we could incur losses, which could negatively impact our results and financial condition.

Market

We may not be able to respond successfully to changes in the marketplace.

We operate in the highly competitive beverage industry and face strong competition from other
general and speciality beverage companies. The timing and effectiveness of our response to
continued and increased competitor and customer consolidations and marketplace competition
may result in lower than expected net pricing of our products. Additionally, the loss of key
contracts or customers to our competitors may decrease our sales volume, revenues and
profitability and damage our reputation.
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Changes in our relationships with large customers may adversely impact our financial results.
A significant amount of our volume is sold through large retail chains, including supermarkets
and wholesalers. Many of these customers are consolidating, or are forming buying groups,
which increases their purchasing power. They may seek to use this to improve their profitability
through lower prices, increased emphasis on generic and other private label brands, or
increased promotional programmes and payment of rebates.

Competition from hard discount retailers and online retailers continues to challenge traditional
retail outlets. This can increase the pressure on all customer margins, which may then be
reflected in pressure on suppliers such as us.

In addition, from time to time, a customer or customers choose(s) to temporarily or permanently
stop selling some of our products as a result of disputes with us.

These factors, can have a negative impact on the availability of our products, and

our profitability.

Adverse weather conditions could limit the demand for our products.

Our sales are significantly influenced by weather conditions in the countries in which we operate.
In particular, due to the seasonality of our business, cold or wet weather during the summer
months may have a negative impact on the demand for our products and contribute to lower
sales. This could have an adverse effect on our financial results.

Our business is vulnerable to products being imported from outside our territories, which
adversely affects our sales.

Some of the territories in which we operate permit imports of products manufactured by bottlers
from countries outside our territories. When these imports come from members of the European
Economic Area, we are prohibited from taking action to stop such imports.

Climate change and water

Water scarcity and additional regulations on water supply or use could adversely impact our
business.

Water is the primary ingredient in most of our products. It is also vital to our manufacturing
processes and is needed to produce the agricultural ingredients that are essential to our
business. Water scarcity or a deterioration in the quality of available water sources in our
territories or to our supply chain, even if temporary, may result in increased production costs or
capacity constraints, negative publicity, and a loss in consumer confidence.
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Risk factors continued

Climate change, and the legal and regulatory responses, could adversely impact our business.
Climate change is resulting in global average temperature increases and increasingly frequent
and severe extreme weather conditions around the

world, and the effects of this change appear to be accelerating. More frequent extreme weather
events, such as storms or floods in our territories, could disrupt our facilities and distribution
network, further impacting our business. It may

also lead to decreased agricultural productivity in certain regions of the world

that limits the availability or increases the cost of key raw materials that we use

to produce our products. Additional climate laws may affect other areas of our business, such as
production, distribution, packaging or the cost of raw materials.

Concern over climate change has led to more environmental legislative and regulatory initiatives
at an EU and national level. These include areas such as
GHG emissions, water use and energy efficiency.

Governments and private parties are increasingly filing lawsuits or initiating regulatory action
based on allegations that certain public statements regarding sustainability-related matters and
practices by companies are greenwashing,

i.e. misleading information or false claims overstating potential benefits. Threat

of such actions and the negative publicity arising from them presents additional uncertainty
regarding the extent to which we may face increased risk of liability stemming from our climate
change or sustainability practices.

As part of our commitment to addressing our climate change impacts, we are investing in
technologies that improve the energy efficiency of our operations

and reduce GHG emissions related to our packaging, CDE and transportation. In general, the
cost of these investments is greater than investments in less energy efficient technologies, and
the period of return is often longer, and

there is a risk that we may not achieve our desired returns.

Read more about climate and water on pages 37-40 and 45-47
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Changes in customer and consumer buying trends and category perception

Health concerns could reduce consumer demand for some of our products, impacting our
financial performance.

There is concern that the public health consequences of obesity, particularly among young
people, are increasing. Health advocates and dietary guidelines suggest that consumption of
sugar sweetened beverages is a cause of increased obesity rates, and are encouraging
consumers to reduce or eliminate consumption of such products. In addition, governments have
introduced stronger regulations around the marketing, labelling, packaging, or sale of sugar
sweetened beverages. These concerns and regulations could reduce demand for, or increase
the cost of, our sugar sweetened beverages.

At the same time, there is additional scrutiny by the World Health Organisation, EFSA and
national health authorities on sweeteners, with many studies and impact assessments on health
ongoing. Some of these studies may lead to additional regulatory constraints or additional tax,
like in France, where a soda tax applies

to both products with sugar and those with sweeteners.

Consumer trends have also led to an increased demand for low-calorie soft drinks, water,
enhanced water, isotonics, energy drinks, teas, coffees and beverages with natural ingredients.
If we are unable to meet this demand by providing a broad enough range of products, our
business and financial results could be negatively impacted.

Business transformation, integration and digital capability

We may not identify sufficient initiatives to realise our cost saving goals to stay competitive.

We continue to assess opportunities for improvements as part of the ongoing business strategy
to enable us to remain competitive in the future. This strategic objective encompasses all the
support functions, technology transformation, supply chain and commercial improvements and
working efficiently with our partners and franchisors.

The initiatives are complex due to their multi functional and multi country nature. Ineffective
coordination and control over single initiatives and interdependent initiatives could result in us
failing to realise the expected benefits.
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Risk factors continued

Restructuring could cause labour and union unrest.

Since our inception, we have restructured in all countries and functions, resulting in a
combination of redeployment and layoffs. While we continue to look for opportunities to maintain
and improve our position within the market, this might have a negative impact on our relationship
with our employee representatives and social partners, and could cause labour and union
unrest. Continual change might trigger change fatigue among our people or social unrest in the
event that such changes result in industrial action.

In the past, we have sought to minimise union unrest through constructive social dialogue, e.g.
on employability, which has not affected our ability to achieve our objectives. However, there is
no guarantee that our efforts will continue to be successful or have the desired effect.

Miscalculation of our need for infrastructure investment could impact our financial results.

To support revenue growth, we are investing in our infrastructure, including CDE, fleet,
technology, sales force, digital capability and production equipment. There is a risk that these
investments will not generate the projected returns, either because of market or technological
changes, or ineffective adoption of capabilities, or because the projected requirements of the
investments differ from actual levels. This could adversely affect our financial results.

We may not be able to execute our strategy to pursue suitable acquisitions or may have difficulty
integrating acquired businesses.

Our strategy involves, in part, pursuing disciplined and attractive investments, which are
intended to create shareholder value. Our efforts to execute this strategy require us to identify
suitable acquisition targets (such as Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines, Inc. (CCBPI)), negotiate,
and close acquisition and development transactions. Further, to the extent that we are able

to identify suitable investments, negotiations may not proceed as anticipated and management
attention may be diverted by such opportunities. We may also encounter unexpected difficulties,
joint venture partner disputes, cost or delays in restructuring and integrating acquired businesses
or bottling operations into our operating, governance, sustainability and internal control
structures, including extending our Company’s internal control over financial reporting to newly
acquired businesses, which may increase the risk of failure to prevent misstatements in our
consolidated financial statements. There is no guarantee that these investments will ultimately
be accretive, support our growth or achieve the intended result.
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People and wellbeing

Failure to attract, retain and motivate existing and future employees.

Our ability to achieve our strategic objectives is reliant on having the right talent and people.
The increasing importance of flexible working and future work topics brings the challenge of
attracting, retaining and motivating existing and future employees who have the talent we need,
the required technical skill set, and the expected levels of motivation to deliver. As a result, we
could fail to achieve our strategic objectives and could experience a decline in employee
engagement, industrial action, reputational damage or litigation.

Increases in the cost of wages and employee benefits could impact our financial results and
cash flow.

The increases in the cost of wages and employee benefits, including retirement benefits, may
affect our financial results and cash flow.

The increasing inflationary trend combined with the high employment levels we see globally will
put pressure on future wage negotiations and the anticipated salary budget. We are engaged in
a dialogue with social partners on this issue. However, we cannot guarantee that our efforts will
be successful in creating consensus or that unions representing our employees will not take
future actions that are disadvantageous to us.

Adverse effects on our people’s health, wellbeing and safety could impact

our business.

Failure to adequately manage workplace hazards or abide by our health and safety policies
and guidelines could result in injuries and deaths among our people. In turn, this can have an
adverse impact on employee engagement and productivity levels. The increase of stress and
employees feeling burnt out may continue to affect the business with a higher degree of mental
health issues and increased absence rates for employees. Wellbeing initiatives require new
approaches to reach all employees, especially when restructuring takes place, which potentially
increases the risk to us of long-term absence and loss of productivity levels.

Read more about our people in Great people on pages 20-27
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Risk factors continued

Misconduct by third parties relating to human rights could lead to reputational and financial
damage.

Supplier monitoring and due diligence of suppliers might fail or it may not be able to prevent
suppliers’ abuse of human rights including modern slavery, resulting in media and public
attention. This could cause a reputational and financial impact on CCEP, including negative
ratings in benchmarks, leading to an impact on investors becoming less likely to invest in CCEP.

Relationship with The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC) and other franchisors

Our business success, including our financial results, depends on our relationship with TCCC
and other franchisors.

Around 87% of our revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023 was derived from the
distribution of beverages under agreements with TCCC. We make, sell and distribute these
products through bottling agreements with TCCC, which typically include the following terms:

» We purchase our entire requirement of concentrates and syrups for Coca-Cola trademark
beverages (sparkling beverages bearing the trademark Coca-Cola or the Coke brand name)
and allied beverages (beverages of TCCC or its subsidiaries, but not Coca-Cola trademark
beverages or energy drinks) from TCCC. Prices, terms of payment, and other terms and
conditions of supply are determined from time to time by TCCC at its sole discretion.

There are no limits on the prices that TCCC may charge for concentrate.

Much of the marketing and promotional support that we receive from TCCC is at its discretion.
Programmes may contain requirements, or be subject to conditions, established by TCCC that
we may not be able to achieve or satisfy. The terms of most of the marketing programmes do
not and will not contain an express obligation for TCCC to participate in future programmes or
continue past levels of payments into the future.

We are obligated to maintain sound financial capacity to perform our duties, as required and
determined by TCCC at its sole discretion. These duties include, but are not limited to, making
certain investments in marketing activities to stimulate the demand for products in our
territories and making infrastructure improvements to ensure our facilities and distribution
network are capable of handling the demand for these beverages.

Disagreements with TCCC concerning business issues may lead TCCC to act adversely to our
interests with respect to these relationships, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, business and customers relationships, and reputation.
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Other risks

TCCC and Olive Partners, S.A. (Olive Partners) hold significant shareholdings in CCEP, and
their views may differ from those of our public shareholders.

Around 19% and 36% of CCEP’s Shares are owned by European Refreshments (ER, a wholly
owned subsidiary of TCCC) and Olive Partners respectively. Five of our Directors, including the
Chairman, were nominated by Olive Partners, and two of our Directors were nominated by ER.
As a result of their shareholdings and Board seats, TCCC and Olive Partners can influence
matters requiring shareholder and Board approval, subject to our Articles of Association and the
Shareholders’ Agreement. The views and interests of TCCC and Olive Partners may not always
align with each other or those of other shareholders.

Product quality

Our business could be adversely affected if we, TCCC or other franchisors and manufacturers of
the products we distribute are unable to maintain a positive brand image as a result of product
safety, product quality, food defence or food fraud issues.

Adequate and effective quality control methods are vital to ensure the safety and integrity of the
products we manufacture. The food additives we use have been approved as safe by globally
recognised authorities, including the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives
(JECFA), the European Food Safety Authority (EFSA), the Food Standards Australia New
Zealand (FSANZ), Indonesia National Agency of Food and Drug Control (BPOM) and National
Department of Health, Papua New Guinea. We only use additives in our drinks when they are
needed for preserving, colouring, sweetening or balancing acidity. In addition, all our employees
are responsible for ensuring we only supply safe products and are required to follow all relevant
policy guidelines, procedures and processes at our production facilities and across our entire
supply chain. Factors such as improper handling, storage, or inadequate/inefficient sanitation
practices during the manufacturing process can introduce contaminants, leading to adverse
health effects for our consumers. Additionally, failure to meet stringent quality standards may
result in product recalls, regulatory fines, and legal liabilities. Negative publicity surrounding
safety and quality issues may jeopardise our Company's reputation, as it may erode consumer
trust and loyalty, affecting our market share and long-term profitability.
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Shareholder information

The Company was incorporated in England and Wales on 4 August 2015, as

a private company under the Companies Act 2006 (the Companies Act). On 4 May 2016, the
Company was registered as a public company limited by shares and changed its name from
Coca-Cola European Partners Limited to Coca-Cola European Partners plc. On 10 May 2021,
the Company changed its name from Coca-Cola European Partners plc to Coca-Cola
Europacific Partners plc (CCEP).

It is registered at Companies House, Cardiff, under company number 9717350.

The business address for Directors and senior management is Pemberton House, Bakers Road,
Uxbridge, UB8 1EZ, England.

The Company is resident in the UK for tax purposes. Its primary objective is to make, sell and
distribute ready to drink beverages.

Annual General Meeting

It is intended that the Company’s 2024 Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held on 22 May
2024. However, shareholders will be notified if the Company is required to make alternative
arrangements.

Registered shareholders will be sent a Notice of AGM, or notice of availability of the Notice of
AGM, closer to the time of the AGM, and will be notified of any change affecting the AGM
through an appropriate channel.

Directors and senior management
Biographies of the Directors and senior management are set out on pages 95-99. Sol Daurella
and Alfonso Libano Daurella are first cousins.

Service contracts and loss of office arrangements

It is the Remuneration Committee’s policy that there should be no element of reward for failure.
When considering payments in the event of a loss of office, it takes account of the individual
circumstances, including the reason for the loss of office, Group and individual performance,
contractual obligations of both parties as well as share and pension plan rules.

Service contracts for Executive Directors provide for a notice period of not more than 12 months
from CCEP and not more than 12 months from the individual. The standard Executive Director
service contract does not confer any right to additional payments in the event of termination.
However, it does reserve the right for the Group to impose garden leave (i.e. leave with pay) on
the Executive Director during any notice period. In the event of redundancy, benefits would be
paid according to CCEP’s redundancy guidelines for GB prevailing at that time. Executive
Directors may be eligible for a pro rata bonus for the period served, subject to performance, but
no bonus will be paid in the event of gross
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misconduct. The treatment of unvested long-term incentive awards is governed by the rules of
the relevant plan and depends on the reasons for leaving. The cost of legal fees spent on
reviewing a settlement agreement on departure may be provided where appropriate. The
Company also reserves the right to pay for outplacement services as appropriate.

The Non-executive Directors (NEDs), including the Chairman of the Board, do not have service
contracts but have letters of appointment. NEDs are not entitled to compensation on leaving the
Board.

Directors and senior management interest in shares

Other than Sol Daurella, Alfonso Libano Daurella and José Ignacio Comenge,

who indirectly owned 7.3% (33,385,110 Shares), 1.5% (6,701,540 Shares), and 1.7% (7,855,504
Shares) of the Shares outstanding as of 29 February 2024, respectively, no Director or member
of senior management individually

owned more than 1% of the Company’s Shares as of 29 February 2024.

Table 1 shows the number of share options held by Directors and other members of senior
management as at 29 February 2024, including the applicable exercise price and the date when
the applicable exercise period ends.

Other employee-related matters

Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements provides a breakdown of employees by main
category of activity. As at 31 December 2023, we had around 32,000 employees, of whom none
were located in the US. A number of our employees in Europe and API are covered by
collectively bargained labour agreements, most of which do not expire. However, in some
countries, wage rates must be renegotiated at various dates throughout 2024. We believe we will
be able to renegotiate these wage rates with satisfactory terms.

Table 1
Share options held by Directors and other members of senior management as at
29 February 2024
Total number of Shares subject to
outstanding options including
exercisable and

Name Grant date unvested options

Damian
Gammell

Expiry date Exercise price

5 November 2015 5 November 2025 US$39.00 324,643
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Nature of trading market

The Company has one class of ordinary shares. These shares are traded on the Nasdaq Stock

Market (XNAS), London Stock Exchange (LSE), Euronext Amsterdam (AEX) and the Spanish
Stock Exchanges (of which the lead exchange is Madrid (MADX)).

Listing information

Further Sustainability

Ticker symbol (all exchanges) CCEP

ISIN code GB00BDCPN049

Legal entity identifier 549300LTH67W4GWMRF57
CusIP G25839104

SEDOL number (XNAS) BYQQ3P5

SEDOL number (LSE) BDCPNO04

SEDOL number (AEX) BD4D942

SEDOL number (MADX) BYSXXS7

Share capital

The Articles of Association of the Company (the Articles) contain no upper limit on the authorised
share capital of the Company. Subject to certain limitations under the Shareholders’ Agreement,
the Board has the authority to offer, allot, grant options over or otherwise deal with or dispose of
shares to such persons, at such times, for such consideration and upon such terms as the Board

may decide, only if approved by ordinary resolution of our shareholders.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 459,200,818 Shares, nominal value €0.01 per
share, issued and fully paid. As at 29 February 2024, the Company had 459,416,557 Shares
issued and fully paid.

Under the Shareholders’ Agreement and the Articles, the Company is permitted to issue, or
grant to any person rights to be issued, securities, in one or a series of related transactions, in

each case representing 20% or more of our issued share capital, only if approved in advance by

special resolution of our shareholders.

Pursuant to this authority, our shareholders have passed resolutions allowing a maximum of a
further 305,510,225 Shares (as of 29 February 2024) to be allotted and issued, subject to the
restrictions set out below:

(1) pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 24 May 2023 regarding the authority to allot

new shares, the Board is authorised to allot shares and to grant rights to subscribe for or
convert any security into shares:
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a. up to a nominal amount of €1,527,551.12 (representing 152,755,112 Shares; such
amount to be reduced by any allotments or grants made under paragraph 1(b) below in
excess of such sum); and

b. comprising equity securities (as defined in the Companies Act) up to a nominal amount of
€3,055,102.25 (representing 305,510,225 Shares; such amount to be reduced by any
allotments or grants made under paragraph 1(a) above) in connection with an offer by
way of a rights issue:

i. to ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their
existing holdings; and

ii. to holders of other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as
the Board otherwise considers necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any limits or restrictions and make any arrangements

which it considers necessary or appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional

entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of,
any territory or any other matter; and

(2) pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 24 May 2023 regarding authority to disapply

pre-emption rights, the Board is authorised to allot equity securities (as defined in the

Companies Act) for cash under the authority given by the shareholder resolution described in

paragraph 1 above and/or to sell shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash as

if section 561 of the Companies Act did not apply to any such allotment or sale, such power
to be limited:

a. to the allotment of equity securities and sale of treasury shares in connection with an
offer of, or invitation to apply for, equity securities (but in the case of the authority granted
under paragraph 1(b) above, by way of a rights issue only):

i. to ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to their
existing holdings; and

ii. to holders of other equity securities, as required by the rights of those securities, or
as the Board otherwise considers necessary,

b. and so that the Board may impose any limits or restrictions and make any arrangements
which it considers necessary or appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of,
any territory or any other matter; and

c. in the case of the authority granted under paragraph 1(a) above and/or in the case of any
sale of treasury shares, to the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
(otherwise than under paragraph 2(a) above) up to a nominal amount of €229,132.66
(representing 22,913,266 Shares).
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Shares not representing capital
None.

Shares held by CCEP

We are not permitted under English law to hold our own Shares unless they are repurchased by
us and held in treasury. At our 2023 AGM, our shareholders passed a special resolution that
allows us to buy back our own Shares in the market as permitted by the Companies Act. On 13
February 2020, the Board announced a share buyback programme of up to €1 billion. All Shares
repurchased as part of the buyback programme have been cancelled. Details of the Shares
bought back are provided under Share buyback programme below. In light of macroeconomic
uncertainty brought about by the outbreak of COVID-19, on 23 March 2020, the Company
announced the suspension of the buyback programme until further notice.

Share-based payment awards

Table 2 shows the share-based payment awards outstanding under each of the CCE 2010
Incentive Award Plan (2010 Plan) and the Long-Term Incentive Plan 2016 (CCEP LTIP) as at
31 December 2023 and 29 February 2024.

> For more details about the share plans and awards granted see Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
on pages 209-210

History of share capital
Table 3 on page 255 sets out the history of our share capital for the period from 1 January 2021
until 29 February 2024.

Share buyback programme

The maximum number of Shares authorised for purchase at the 2023 AGM was 45,826,533
Shares, representing 10% of the issued Shares at 5 April 2023, reduced by the number of
Shares purchased, or agreed to be purchased after 5 April 2023 and before 24 May 2023. No
Shares have been purchased under the 2023 shareholder authority as at the date of this report.
The existing authority to buy back Shares will expire at the 2024 AGM. We intend to seek
shareholder approval to renew the authority to buy back Shares.

US shareholders

To the knowledge of the Company, 405 holders of record with an address in the US held a total
of 459,287,301 Shares (or 99.97% of the total number of issued Shares outstanding) as at 29
February 2024. However, some Shares are registered in the names of nominees, meaning that
the number of shareholders with registered addresses in the US may not be representative of
the number of beneficial owners of Shares resident in the US.

Information

Table 2

Outstanding share-based payment awards

Total number of Shares
awarded to employees
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Total number of Shares
awarded to employees

Price per Share
payable on
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Date of award Type of outstanding as at outstanding as at exercise/  Expiration date

Plan (dd/mmyy) award® 31 December 2023 29 February 2024 transfer (USS) (dd/mmiyy)
2010 Plan 30/10/14 Option 223,650 175,911 32.51 30/10/24
05/11/15 Option 695,961 557,961 39.00 05/11/25

CCEP LTIP 29/09/21 PSU 424,565 781,805 — 15/03/24
29/09/21 RSU 38,821 37,827 — 15/03/24

25/11/21 PSU 670 1,240 — 15/03/24

25/11/21 RSU 34 34 — 15/03/24

10/03/22 PSU 458,127 455,971 —  09/03/25

10/03/22 RSU 1,521 1,521 — 15/03/24

10/03/22 RSU 375 375 —  01/03/25

10/03/22 RSU 44,955 43,581 —  09/03/25

05/09/22 PSU 10,852 10,852 —  09/03/25

05/09/22 RSU 948 948 —  09/03/25

13/03/23 PSU 2,626 2,626 —  09/03/25

13/03/23 PSU 386,646 384,014 — 12/03/26

13/03/23 RSU 205 205 —  01/07/24

13/03/23 RSU 411 41 —  01/07/25

13/03/23 RSU 40,800 39,399 — 13/03/26

10/08/23 PSU 5,036 5,036 — 13/03/26

10/08/23 RSU 1,524 1,524 — 13/03/26

(A) PSU is performance share unit. RSU is restricted stock unit.

(B) When an employee leaves CCEP, the expiration date of their options is shortened so options with a new expiration date may appear between the year end

and the later reporting date. These are not new options but options that have been moved from another row in the table.

(C) The 2021 LTIP award was subject to EPS, ROIC and CO,e reduction performance targets measured over the three year performance period from 1

January 2021 to 31 December 2023 and is due to vest on 15 March 2024. Read more in the Annual report on remuneration on page 134.
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Cumulative balance
of issued Shares

Period Nature of Share issuance Number of Shares Consideration atend of period  Period Nature of Share issuance Number of Shares Consideration at end of period
1 January 2021 Opening balance 454,645,510 N/A 454,645,510 1 January to Shares issued in 1,323,879 Exercise price per Share 458,430,332
1 January to Shares issued in 1,290,506 Exercise price per Share 455,936,016 31 December 2023 CO""?C"OF} with the ranging from U§$31 46
31 December 2021  connection with the ranging from US$19.68 exercise of stock to US$39.00

exercise of stock to US$32.51 options

options 1 January to Shares issued in 770,486 Nil 459,200,818
1 January to Shares issued in 299,016 Nil 456,235,032 31 December2023 fcciff,‘lnect'onf"'\gtshdhe .
31 December 2021 connection with the Fl’J 1 mehnt Of an

fulfilment of RSU and SU share-based

PSU share-based payment awards

payment awards 1 January to Shares cancelled as — — 459,200,818
1 January to Shares cancelled as — — 456,235,032 31 December 2023 part of buyback
31 December 2021 part of buyback programme

programme 1 January to Shares issued in 215,739 Exercise price per Share 459,416,557
1 January to Shares issued in 482,420 Exercise price per Share 456,717,452 29 February 2024 connection with the ranging from US$32.51
31 December 2022  connection with the ranging from US$23.21 exercise of stock to US$39.00

exercise of stock to US$32.51 options

options 1 January to Shares issued in — Nil 459,416,557
1 January to Shares issued in 389,001 Nil 457,106,453 29 February2024  connection with the
31 December 2022  connection with the fulfilment of RSU and

fulfilment of RSU and PSU share-based

PSU share-based payment awards

payment awards 1 January to Shares cancelled as — — 459,416,557
1 January to Shares cancelled as — — 457,106,453 29 February 2024 part of buyback
31 December 2022 programme

part of buyback
programme
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Marketing

CCERP relies extensively on advertising and sales promotions to market its products. TCCC and
other franchisors advertise in all major media to promote sales in the local areas we serve. We
also benefit from regional, local and global advertising programmes conducted by TCCC and
other franchisors. Certain advertising expenditures by TCCC and other franchisors are made
pursuant to annual arrangements.

CCEP and TCCC engage in a variety of marketing programmes to promote the sale of TCCC's
products in territories in which we operate. The amounts to be paid to us by TCCC under the
programmes are determined annually and are periodically reassessed as the programmes
progress. Marketing support funding programmes entered into with TCCC provide financial
support, principally based on our product sales or on the completion of stated requirements, to
offset a portion of the cost of our marketing programmes. Except in certain limited
circumstances, TCCC has no specified contractual obligation to participate in expenditures

for advertising, marketing and other support in our territories.

The terms of similar programmes TCCC may have with other licensees and the amounts paid
by TCCC under them could differ from CCEP’s arrangements.

We take part in various programmes and arrangements with customers to increase the sale of
products. These include arrangements under which allowances can be earned by customers for
attaining agreed sales levels or for participating in specific marketing programmes.

Dependence on franchisors
As a franchise business, CCEP’s business success, including its financial results, depends upon
its relationships with TCCC and its other franchisors.

Read more about our relationships with franchisors, see the Risk factors on pages 243-251

Competition

CCEP competes mainly in the manufacturing, sale and distribution of non-alcoholic ready to drink
(NARTD) beverages industry and adjacencies, including squashes/cordials, hot beverages and
low alcoholic ready to drink (ARTD) beverages. CCEP competes in the Western Europe and API
segments, and primarily manufactures, sells and distributes the products of TCCC, as well as
those of other franchisors such as Monster Energy.
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CCEP competes mainly with:

» NARTD and non-alcoholic, non-ready to drink (for example squashes/cordials and hot
beverages) brand and private label manufacturers, sellers and distributors.

- Alcoholic beverage manufacturers, sellers and distributors — in the sense that some of their
products may be considered to be substitutes for CCEP’s own products on certain consumer
occasions. More recently, CCEP entered the ARTD segment with Jack Daniel's & Coca-Cola
ready to drink (RTD) and intends to make further entrances with ARTD in the near future with
launches such as Absolut Vodka & Sprite ARTD.

A small number of such companies may also be contracted by CCEP as manufacturers (e.g. co-
packers) or commercial partners (e.g. on behalf of which CCEP sells and/or distributes, or which
sells and/or distributes on CCEP’s behalf).

CCEP sells and distributes to a wide range of customers, including both physical and online food
and beverage retailers, wholesalers and out of retail customers. The market is highly
competitive, and all CCEP customers and consumers may choose freely between products

of CCEP and its competitors. Many of CCEP’s customers are under increasing competitive
pressure, including with the increasing market share of discounters, the growth of e-commerce
food and beverage players, increase of private label, emergence of quick commerce

and customer consolidation.

CCEP competes with respect to a wide range of commercial factors, including brand awareness,
product and packaging innovations, supply chain efficacy, customer service, sales strategy,
marketing, and pricing and promotions.

The level of competition faced by CCEP may be affected by, for example; changing customer
and consumer product, brand, and packaging preferences, shifts in customers’ industries,
competitor strategy shifts, new competitor entrants, supplier dynamics, the weather, and social,
economic, political or other external landscape shifts.

Key factors affecting CCEP’s competitive strength include, for example; CCEP’s strategic
choices, investments, partnerships (e.g. with customers, franchisors and suppliers), people
management, asset base (e.g. property, plant, fleet, and equipment), technological
sophistication, and processes and systems.
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Impact of governmental regulation

Our business is sensitive to the economic and political action and conditions in our countries of
operation. The risks these can pose to our business are set out in our Principal risks on pages
68-78 and in our Risk factors on pages 243-251.

Material contracts

Neither the Company (nor any member of the Group) has entered into any material contracts, for
the two years immediately preceding publication of this report, that are to be performed in whole
or in part at or after the filing of this report, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary
course of business.

Articles of Association

For a summary of certain principal provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association (the
Articles), see Other Information — Other Group information — Articles of Association of the 2018
Annual Report on Form 20-F, filed on 14 March 2019. A copy of the Company’s Articles has
been filed as Exhibit 1 to this Form 20-F.

Documents on display

CCEP is subject to the information requirements of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the Exchange Act), applicable to FPIs. In accordance with these requirements, we
file our Annual Report on Form 20-F and other related documents with the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). It is possible to read and copy documents that we have filed with
the SEC at the SEC’s office. Filings with the SEC are also available to the public from
commercial document retrieval services, and from the website maintained by the SEC at
WWW.SEC.JgOoV.

Our Annual Report on Form 20-F is also available on our website at ir.cocacolaep.com/financial-
reports-and-results/integrated-reports. Shareholders may also order a hard copy, free of charge
— see Useful addresses on page 277.

Exchange controls

Other than those individuals and entities subject to economic sanctions that may be in force from
time to time, we are not aware of any other legislative or legal provision currently in force in the
UK, the US, the Netherlands or Spain restricting remittances to non-resident holders of CCEP’s
Shares or affecting the import or export of capital for the Company’s use.
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Taxation information for shareholders

US federal income taxation

US federal income tax consequences to US holders of the ownership and disposition of CCEP
Shares

This section summarises the material US federal income tax consequences of owning Shares as
capital assets for tax purposes. It is not, however, a comprehensive analysis of all the potential
US tax consequences for such holders, and it does not discuss the tax consequences of
members of special classes of holders which may be subject to other rules, including, but not
limited to: tax exempt entities, life insurance companies, dealers in securities, traders in
securities that elect a mark-to-market method of accounting for securities holdings, holders liable
for alternative minimum tax, holders that, directly or indirectly, hold 10% or more (by vote or by
value) of the Company’s stock, holders that hold Shares as part of a straddle or a hedging or
conversion transaction, holders that purchase or sell Shares as part of a wash sale for US
federal income tax purposes, or US holders whose functional currency is not the US dollar. In
addition, if a partnership holds Shares, the US federal income tax treatment of a partner will
generally depend on the status of the partner and the tax treatment of the partnership and may
not be described fully below. This summary does not address any aspect of US taxation other
than US federal taxation (such as the estate and gift tax, the Medicare tax on net investment
income or US state or local tax).

Investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the US federal, state, local and other tax
consequences of owning and disposing of Shares in their particular circumstances.

This section is based on the IRC, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations,
published rulings and court decisions, and on the United Kingdom-United States Tax Treaty
(the Treaty), all of which are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis.

A US holder is a beneficial owner of Shares that is, for US federal income tax purposes, (i) a
citizen or individual resident of the US, (ii) a US domestic corporation, (iii) an estate whose
income is subject to US federal income taxation regardless of its source, or (iv) a trust if a US
court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more US
persons are authorised to control all substantial decisions of the trust. A non-US holder is a
beneficial owner of Shares that is neither a US holder nor a partnership for US federal income
tax purposes.
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Taxation of dividends

Subject to the passive foreign investment company (PFIC) rules discussed below, a US holder is
subject to US federal income taxation on the gross amount of any dividend paid by CCEP out
of the Company’s current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined for US federal
income tax purposes). Dividends paid to a non-corporate US holder will generally constitute
“qualified dividend income” and be taxable to the holder at a preferential rate, provided that

(i) CCEP is eligible for the benefits of the Treaty, (i) CCEP is not a PFIC (as discussed below)
for either its taxable year in which the dividend is paid or the preceding taxable year and (iii)
certain minimum holding period and other requirements are met. CCEP currently believes that
dividends paid with respect to its Shares should constitute qualified dividend income for US
federal income tax purposes if CCEP was not, in the year prior to the year in which the dividend
was paid, and is not, in the year in which the dividend is paid, a PFIC for US federal income tax
purposes and provided that the certain minimum holding period is met. US holders should
consult their own tax advisors regarding the availability of the preferential dividend tax rate on
dividends paid by CCEP.

For US federal income tax purposes, a dividend must be included in income when the US holder
actually or constructively receives the dividend. Dividends paid by CCEP to corporate US
holders will generally not be eligible for the dividends received deduction. For foreign tax credit
purposes, dividends will generally be income from sources outside the US and will generally,

be “passive” or “general” income for purposes of computing the foreign tax credit allowable to

a US holder.

The amount of a dividend distribution (including any UK withholding tax) on Shares that is paid in
a currency other than the US dollar will generally be included in ordinary income in an amount
equal to the US dollar value of the currency received on the date such dividend distribution is
includable in income, regardless of whether the payment is, in fact, converted into US dollars on
such date. Generally, any gain or loss resulting from currency exchange fluctuations during the
period from the date the dividend payment is includable in income to the date the payment is
converted into US dollars will be treated as ordinary income or loss and will not be eligible for the
preferential tax rate on qualified dividend income. Generally, the gain or loss will be income or
loss from sources within the US for foreign tax credit purposes.

Distributions in excess of CCEP’s earnings and profits, as determined for US federal income tax
purposes, will be treated as a return of capital to the extent of the US holder’s basis in its Shares
and thereafter as capital gain, subject to taxation as described below.
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Taxation of capital gains

Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, a US holder will generally recognise gain or loss on
any sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition of Shares in an amount equal to the
difference between the US dollar value of the amount realised on the disposition and the

US holder’s tax basis, determined in US dollars, in the Shares. Any such capital gain or loss will
generally be a long-term gain or loss, subject to tax at a preferential rate for a non-corporate

US holder, if the US holder’s holding period for such Shares exceeds one year. Any gain or loss
recognised by a US holder on the sale or exchange of Shares will generally be treated as
income or loss from sources within the US for foreign tax credit limitation purposes. The
deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

PFIC status

A non-US corporation is a PFIC in any taxable year in which, after taking into account the
income and assets of certain subsidiaries, either (i) at least 75% of its gross income is passive
income or (ii) at least 50% of the quarterly average of its assets is attributable to assets that
produce or are held to produce passive income. Currently, we do not believe that CCEP Shares
will be treated as stock of a PFIC for US federal income tax purposes. However, we review this
annually, and therefore this conclusion is subject to change. If CCEP was to be treated as a
PFIC, unless a US holder elects to treat CCEP as a “qualified electing fund” (QEF) or to be taxed
annually on a mark-to-market basis with respect to its Shares, any gain realised on the sale

or exchange of such Shares would in general be treated as ordinary income rather than capital
gain. Instead, a US holder would be treated as if he or she had realised such gain rateably over
the holding period for Shares and generally would be taxed at the highest tax rate in effect for
each such year to which the gain was allocated. In this case, an interest charge in respect of the
tax attributable to each such year would apply. Certain distributions would be similarly treated if
CCEP were treated as a PFIC. In addition, each US person that is a shareholder of a PFIC may
be required to file an annual report disclosing its ownership of shares in a PFIC and certain other
information.

We do not intend to provide to US holders the information required to make a valid QEF election.
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Information reporting and backup withholding

In general, information reporting requirements will apply to dividends received by US holders of
Shares, and the proceeds received on the disposition of Shares effected within the US (and, in
certain cases, outside the US), in each case, other than US holders that are exempt recipients

(such as corporations).

Backup withholding may apply to such amounts if the US holder fails to provide an accurate
taxpayer identification number (generally on an IRS Form W-9 provided to the paying agent or
the US holder’s broker) or is otherwise subject to backup withholding.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding
rules may be allowed as a refund or credit against a holder’s US federal income tax liability, if
any, provided the required information is given to the IRS on a timely basis.

Certain US holders may be required to report to the IRS on Form 8938 information relating to
their ownership of foreign financial assets, such as the Shares, subject to certain exceptions
(including an exception for Shares held in accounts maintained by certain financial institutions).
US holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of these rules on their
obligations to file information reports with respect to the Shares.

US federal income tax consequences to non-US holders of the ownership and disposition of
CCEP Shares

In general, a non-US holder of Shares will not be subject to US federal income tax or, subject to
the discussion below under Information reporting and backup withholding, US federal
withholding tax on any dividends received on Shares or any gain recognised on a sale or other
disposition of Shares including any distribution to the extent it exceeds the adjusted basis in the
non-US holder’s Shares unless:

- the dividend or gain is effectively connected with such non-US holder’s conduct of a trade or
business in the US (and, if required by an applicable tax treaty, is attributable to a permanent
establishment maintained by the non-US holder in the US); or

- in the case of gain only, such non-US holder is a non-resident alien individual present in the
US for 183 days or more during the taxable year of the sale or disposition, and certain other
requirements are met.

Special rules may apply to a non-US holder who was previously a US holder and who again

becomes a US holder in a later year.
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A non-US holder that is a corporation may also be subject to a branch profits tax at a rate of 30%
(or such lower rate specified by an applicable tax treaty) on its effectively connected earnings
and profits for the taxable year, as adjusted for certain items.

Information reporting and backup withholding

Dividends with respect to Shares and proceeds from the sale or other disposition of Shares
received in the US or through certain US-related financial intermediaries by a non-US holder,
may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding unless such non-US holder
provides to the applicable withholding agent the required certification showing its non-US status,
such as a valid IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E or IRS Form W-8ECI, or otherwise
establishes an exemption, and otherwise complies with the applicable requirements of the
backup withholding rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding
rules may be allowed as a refund or credit against a holder’s US federal income tax liability, if
any, provided the required information is given to the IRS on a timely basis.

UK taxation consequences for US holders

The following summarises certain UK tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of
Shares for US holders who are not resident in the UK for tax purposes and to which split year
treatment does not apply, which do not carry on a trade, profession or vocation through

a permanent establishment or branch or agency in the UK, and which are the absolute beneficial
owners of their Shares and hold such Shares as a capital investment.

This information is a general discussion based on UK tax law and what is understood to be the
practice of HMRC, all as in effect on the date of publication, and all of which are subject to
differing interpretations and change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect. It is not a
complete analysis of all potential UK tax considerations that may apply to a US holder. In
addition, this discussion neither addresses all aspects of UK tax law that may be relevant to
particular US holders nor takes into account the individual facts and circumstances of any
particular US holder. Accordingly, it is not intended to be, and should not be construed as, tax
advice.
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Distributions on Shares

No UK tax is required to be withheld from cash distributions on Shares paid to US holders. In
addition, US holders will not be subject to UK tax in respect of their receipt of cash distributions
on their Shares.

Sale, exchange, redemption or other dispositions of Shares

US holders will not be subject to UK tax on capital gains in respect of any gain realised by such
US holders on a sale, exchange, redemption or other disposition of their Shares (and the UK
rules relating to non-resident taxation of disposals of shares in “UK property rich” companies are
not expected to apply with respect to the Shares, and would in any event only apply to a non-UK
holder who holds (together with connected persons) 25% or more of the shares in a relevant “UK
property rich” company). Special rules may apply to individual US holders which have ceased to
be resident in the UK for tax purposes and who make a disposition of their Shares whilst UK
non-resident before becoming once again resident in the UK for tax purposes within five years
from departure.

While Shares are held within the DTC clearance system, and provided that DTC satisfies various
conditions specified in UK legislation and has not made an election for the alternative system of
charge under Section 97A of the UK Finance Act 1986 which applies to the Shares (a Section
97A Election), electronic book entry transfers of such Shares should not be subject to UK stamp
duty, and agreements to transfer such Shares should not be subject to Stamp Duty Reserve Tax
(SDRT). Confirmation of this position was obtained by way of formal clearance by HMRC and we
are not aware that any Section 97A Election has been made. Likewise, transfers of, or
agreements to transfer, such Shares from the DTC clearance system into another clearance
system (or into a depositary receipt system) should not, provided that the other clearance
system or depositary receipt system satisfies various conditions specified in UK legislation and
that DTC has not made a Section 97A Election, be subject to UK stamp duty or SDRT.
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In the event that Shares have left the DTC clearance system, other than into another clearance
system or depositary receipt system, any subsequent transfer of, or agreement to transfer, such
Shares may, subject to any available exemption or relief, be subject to UK stamp duty or SDRT
at a rate of 0.5% of the consideration for such transfer or agreement (in the case of UK stamp
duty, rounded up to the next multiple of £5). Any such UK stamp duty or SDRT will generally be
payable by the transferee and must be paid (and any relevant transfer document duly stamped
by HMRC) before the transfer can be registered in the books of the Company. In the event that
Shares that have left the DTC clearance system, other than into another clearance system or
depositary receipt system, are subsequently transferred back into a clearance system or
depositary receipt system, such transfer or agreement may, subject to any available exemption
or relief, be subject to UK stamp duty or SDRT at a rate of 1.5% of the consideration for such
transfer (or, where there is no such consideration, 1.5% of the value of such Shares).
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this paragraph, a transfer of securities may in certain
circumstances be subject to UK stamp duty or SDRT based on the market value of the relevant
securities if this is higher than the amount of the consideration for the relevant transfer.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible tax consequences. It is not intended as legal or
tax advice to any particular holder of shares and should not be so construed. Holders of shares
should consult their own tax advisor with respect to the tax consequences applicable to them in
their own particular circumstances.
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Selected financial data
The following selected financial data has been extracted from, and should be read in conjunction 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

with the consolidated financial statements of the Group and their accompanying notes. Statement of financial posiion € mifon € mifon & milon € mifon € milon
The fi ial it ted herein for th 0 fi 19 2021 Non-current assets 22,649 22,770 23,330 15,161 15,582
e financial results presented herein for the period from 1 January

through to the acquisition of CCL (the Acquisition) effective 10 May 2021 refer to Coca-Cola Current assets 6,605 6,543 5,760 4,076 3103

European Partners plc (Legacy CCEP) and its consolidated subsidiaries. The periods from the ~ Total assets 29,254 29,313 29,090 19,237 18,685

Acquisition to the year ended 31 December 2023 refer to the combined financial results of Non-current liabilities 14,000 14,553 15,787 9,072 8,414

CCEP. Current liabilities 7,278 7,313 6,093 4,140 4115

The financial information presented here has been prepared in accordance with UK adopted Total liabilities 21278 21 866 21,880 13.212 12,529

International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as - . . ’ - :

adopted by the European Union and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by Total equity 7,976 7,447 7,210 6,025 6,156

the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Total equity and liabilities 29,254 29,313 29,090 19,237 18,685
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Income statement € million €million €million €million €milion C2pital stock data S—

Revenue 18,302 17.320 13,763 10,606 12,017 Number of Shares (in millions) 459 457 456 455 456

Cost of sales (11,582) (11,096) (8.,677) (6,871) (7,424) Share capital (in € million) 5 5 5 5 5

Gross profit 6.720 6,224 5,086 3,735 4,593 Share premium (in € million) 276 234 220 192 178

ng;“ngsggd distribution (3.178) (2,984) (2.496) (1,939) (2.258) per share data

Administrative expenses (1,310) (1,250) (1,074) (983) (787) Basic eamings per Share (€) 3.64 3.30 215 1.09 234

Other Income 107 % _ _ - D!ILfted earnings per Share (€) 3.63 3.29 2.15 1.09 2.32

Operating profi 2339 2.086 1516 813 1548 Dividends declared per Share (€) 1.84 1.68 1.40 0.85 1.24

Finance income 65 67 43 33 49

Finance costs (185) (181) (172) (144) (145)

Total finance costs, net (120) (114) (129) (111) (96)

Non-operating items (16) (15) (5) (7) 2

Profit before taxes 2,203 1,957 1,382 695 1,454

Taxes (534) (436) (394) (197) (364)

Profit after taxes 1,669 1,521 988 498 1,090
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Operations review

Revenue

Revenue increased by €1.0 billion, or 5.5%, from €17.3 billion in 2022 to €18.3 billion in 2023.
Refer to the Business and financial review for a discussion of significant factors that impacted
revenue in 2023, as compared to 2022.

2022 vs 2021
Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Operations review of the 2022 Annual
Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023.

Volume
Refer to the Business and financial review for a discussion of significant factors that impacted
volume in 2023, as compared to 2022.

2022 vs 2021
Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Operations review of the 2022 Annual
Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023.

Cost of sales

On a reported basis, cost of sales increased 4.5%, from €11.1 billion in 2022 to €11.6 billion in
2023. Refer to the Business and financial review for a discussion of significant factors that
impacted cost of sales in 2023, as compared to 2022.

2022 vs 2021

Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Operations review of the 2022 Annual
Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023.

Selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses

The following table presents selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses for
the periods presented:

2023 2022

Further Sustainability

€ million € million
Selling and distribution expenses 3,178 2,984
Administrative expenses 1,310 1,250
Total 4,488 4,234

On a reported basis, total operating expenses increased by 6.0% from €4.2 billion in 2022 to
€4.5 billion in 2023.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by €194 million, or 6.5%, versus 2022, primarily
driven by increased inflation, partially offset by a continued focus on discretionary spend
optimisation.
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Administrative expenses increased by €60 million, or 5.0%, versus 2022, mainly reflecting
increased inflation and the continuation of restructuring activity related to various transformation
initiatives.

2022 vs 2021

Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Operations review of the 2022 Annual
Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net totalled €120 million and €114 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
following table summarises the primary items impacting our interest expense during the periods
presented:

2023 2022

Average outstanding debt balance (€ million) 11,761 12,431
Weighted average cost of debt during the year 1.6 % 1.3%
Fixed rate debt (% of portfolio) 89 % 90 %
Floating rate debt (% of portfolio) 1% 10 %

Non-operating items

Non-operating items represented an expense of €16 million in 2023 and an expense of €15
million in 2022. Non-operating expenses include remeasurement gains and losses related to
currency exchange rate fluctuations on financing transactions denominated in a currency other
than the subsidiary’s functional currency. Non-operating items are shown on a net basis and
reflect the impact of any derivative instruments utilised to hedge the foreign currency movements
of the underlying financing transactions. Non-operating items also include the Group’s share of
the profit or loss after tax of equity accounted investments and impairments.

Tax expense
In 2023, our reported effective tax rate was 24.2%. The increase from 2022 is largely due to the
increase in the UK statutory tax rate to a weighted average of 23.5% and the review of uncertain
tax positions.

In 2022, our reported effective tax rate was 22.3%. The decrease from 2021 is largely due to the
remeasurement of deferred tax positions following the enactment of tax rate changes in the
United Kingdom, the Netherlands and Indonesia in the prior period.
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Cash flow and liquidity review

Liquidity and capital resources

Our sources of capital include, but are not limited to, cash flows from operating activities, public
and private issuances of debt and equity securities and bank borrowings. Based on information
currently available, we do not believe we are at significant risk of default by our counterparties.

The Group satisfies seasonal working capital needs and other financing requirements with operating
cash flow, cash on hand, short-term borrowings and a line of credit. In December 2023 the Group
issued €700 million of 3.875% notes maturing in 2030. At 31 December 2023, the Group had
€1,150 million in third party debt maturities in the next 12 months, €500 million in the form of euro
denominated notes, €588 million of US dollar denominated notes swapped into euro and €62 million
of Australian dollar denominated notes. No short-term commercial papers were issued at

31 December 2023. In addition to using operating cash flow and cash in hand, the Group may repay
its short-term obligations by issuing more debt, which may take the form of commercial paper and/or
longer-term debt. Further details regarding the level of borrowings at the year end are provided in
Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements.

In line with our commitments to deliver long-term value to shareholders, in April and November
2023 the Board declared interim dividends of €0.67 and €1.17 per Share, respectively,
maintaining annualised dividend payout ratio of approximately 50%. For the year ended

31 December 2023, dividend payments totalled €841 million.

There were no payments under the share buyback programme in 2023.

Credit ratings and covenants

The Group’s credit ratings are periodically reviewed by rating agencies. The ratings outlook from
Moody’s and Fitch is stable and continue to be investment-grade as at end of 2023. Changes in
the operating results, cash flows or financial position could impact the ratings assigned by the
various rating agencies. The credit rating can be materially influenced by a number of factors
including, but not limited to, acquisitions, investment decisions, and capital management
activities of TCCC, and/or changes in the credit rating of TCCC. Should the credit ratings be
adjusted downward, the Group may incur higher costs to borrow, which could have a material
impact on the financial condition and results of operations.
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Summary of cash flow activities

2023

During 2023, our primary sources of cash included: (1) €2,806 million from operating activities,
net of cash payments related to restructuring programmes of €104 million and contributions to
our defined benefit pension plans of €32 million; (2) proceeds from borrowings, net of issuance
costs of €694 million; (3) proceeds of €69 million related to the settlement of debt-related cross
currency swaps; (4) proceeds of €101 million primarily related to the sale of property; (5)
proceeds of €37 million related to the sale of certain non-alcoholic ready to drink brands to
TCCC and (6) proceeds of €35 million related to the sale of sub-strata and associated mineral
rights in Australia.

Our primary uses of cash were: (1) repayments on borrowings of €1,159 million, repayments of
principal on lease obligations of €148 million (refer to Financing activities below) and net interest
payments of €124 million; (2) dividend payments of €841 million; (3) spend on property, plant and
equipment of €672 million and software of €140 million; (4) investments in short-term financial assets
of €342 million, and (5) acquisition of non-controlling interest of €282 million .

2022

During 2022, our primary sources of cash included: (1) €2,932 million from operating activities,
net of cash payments related to restructuring programmes of €86 million and contributions to our
defined benefit pension plans of €32 million; and (2) proceeds of €143 million related to the sale
of certain non-alcoholic ready to drink brands to TCCC.

Our primary uses of cash were: (1) repayments on borrowings of €1,223 million, repayments of
principal on lease obligations of €153 million (refer to Financing activities below); (2) net interest
payments of €130 million; (3) dividend payments of €763 million; (4) spend on property, plant and
equipment of €500 million and software of €103 million; and (5) investments in short-term
financial assets of €207 million.

The discussion of our 2021 cash flow activities has not been included as this can be found under
Other Information — Other Group information — Cash flow and liquidity review of the 2021 Annual
Report on Form 20-F, filed on 15 March 2022.

Operating activities

2023 vs 2022

Our cash derived from operating activities totalled €2,806 million in 2023 versus €2,932 million in
2022. This decrease was primarily due to cycling the impact of working capital improvement
initiatives.
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2022 vs 2021 The following table summarises our financing activities related to the issuances of and payments
Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Cash flow and liquidity review of the on debt for the periods presented (in € millions):
2022 Annual Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023. Issuances of debt Maturity date Rate 2023 2022
Investing activities €700 million December 2023 3.875 % 694 —
2023 vs 2022 Total issuances of debt,
During 2023, proceeds related to the sale of property, plant and equipment totalled €101 million, less short-term borrowings,
primarily related to the sale of properties. Proceeds from net of issuance costs 694 —
the sallel of certain non-alcoholic ready to drink brands to TCCC tptalled ) i . i Net issuances of short-term borrowings _ (A) _ _
€37 million. Proceeds related to the sale of sub-strata and associated mineral rights in Australia Total issuances of debt. net 594 —
totalled €35 million. Net outflows related to short-term investments were €342 million. i
Capitgl asset investmer)ts represent a primary use of cash for our investing activities. The Payments on debt Maturity date Rate 2023 2022
following table summarises the capital investments for the $850 million May 2023 0.500 % (775) —
periods presented:
US$25 million October 2023 4.340 % 17) —
s 22 US§25 million October 2023 4340 % (17) —
Supply chain infrastructure 532 393 €350 million November 2023 2,625 % (350) —
Cold drink equipment 110 83 €700 million February 2022 0.750 % — (700)
Fleet and other 30 24 A$200 million March 2022 3.375% — (134)
Total capital asset investments 672 500 A$30 million July 2022 5.060 % - (20)
A$125 million July 2022 3.125% — (84)
Investments in supply chain infrastructure relate to investments in our manufacturing and distribution ~ Lease obligations — — (148) (153)
facilities. In addition, during 2023 the Group spent €jz}0 million i o Total repayments
(2022: €103 million) on capitalised development activity, primarily in relation to the continuation of our  on third party borrowings, less short-
business capability programme and further investments in technology and digitisation. term borrowings (1,307) (1,091)
During 2024, we expect our capital expenditures to be invested in similar categories as those Net payments of short-term borrowings — (A) — (285)
listed in the table above. While the level of capital expenditure is uncertain, we expect our Total payments on debt (1,307) (1,376)
operating cash flow, cash in hand and available short-term capital resources will be sufficient to
fund future capital expenditures. (A) These amounts represent short-term euro commercial paper with varying interest rates. In 2023, changes in short-term borrowings include €6,810 million of
newly issued and €6,810 million of repaid EUR commercial paper. In 2022, changes in short-term borrowings included €2,464 million and €2,749 million of
2022 vs 2021 newly issued and repaid EUR commercial paper, respectively.
Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Cash flow and liquidity review of the
2022 Annual Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023. Our financing activities during 2023 included dividend payments totalling €841 million, based on
Financing activities a full year dividend rate of €1.84 per Share. In 2022, dividend payments totalled €763 million.
2023 vs 2022 There were no payments under the share buyback programme in 2023 and 2022.

Our net cash used in financing activities totalled €1,822 million in 2023. In 2022, There were no drawdowns from our credit facility in 2023 and 2022. The facility was undrawn at
net cash used in financing activities totalled €2,276 million. 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively.
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During 2023 our financing activities also included the acquisition of non-controlling interest of €282

million. Further details are provided in Note 19 of the consolidated financial statements.

Lease obligations
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, total cash outflows from
payments of principal on lease obligations were €148 million and €153 million, respectively.

2022 vs 2021
Refer to Other Information — Other Group information — Cash flow and liquidity review of the
2022 Annual Report on Form 20-F, filed on 17 March 2023.

Raw materials

CCEP purchases concentrates and syrups from TCCC and other franchisors to manufacture
products. In addition, the Group purchases sweeteners, juices, coffee, mineral waters, finished
product, carbon dioxide, fuel, pallets, ocean freight, haulage, virgin and recycled PET (plastic)
preforms, glass, aluminium and plastic bottles, aluminium and steel cans, pouches, closures,
post-mix and packaging materials. The Group generally purchases raw materials, other than
concentrates, syrups and mineral waters, from multiple suppliers. The product licensing and
bottling agreements with TCCC and agreements with some of our other franchisors provide that
all authorised containers, closures, cases, cartons and other packages, and labels for their
products must be purchased from manufacturers approved by the respective franchisor. The
principal sweetener we use is sugar derived from sugar beets in Europe and sugar cane in API.
Our sugar purchases are made from multiple suppliers. The Group does not separately
purchase low-calorie sweeteners because sweeteners for low-calorie beverage products are
contained in the concentrates or syrups we purchase.

The Group produces most of its plastic bottle requirements within the production facilities,
approximately 60% from using preforms purchased from multiple suppliers and the remainder
from self-manufactured preforms. The Group believes the self-manufacture of certain packages
serves to ensure supply and to reduce or manage costs. The Group manages its continuity of
materials and supplies closely, although the supply and price of specific materials or supplies
are, at times, adversely affected by strikes, weather conditions, speculation, abnormally high
demand, governmental controls, new taxes, national emergencies, natural disasters, price or
supply fluctuations of their raw material components, and currency fluctuations.
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Contractual obligations
The following table reflects the Group's contractual obligations as at 31 December 2023:

Total Less than 1 year 1to 3 years 3105 years More than 5 years
€ million € million € million € million € million
Borrowings and
interest
obligations® 11,803 1,322 2,325 2,681 5475
Lease
obligations® 782 179 232 139 232
Purchase
agreements 238 94 83 41 20
12,823 1,595 2,640 2,861 5,727

(A) These amounts represent the Group's scheduled debt maturities and estimated interest payments related to the Group's long-term debt obligations,
excluding leases. Refer to Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements for further details about the borrowings of CCEP. Interest on fixed rate debt has
been calculated based on applicable rates and payment dates. Interest on variable rate debt has been calculated using the forward interest rate curve.

Refer to Note 26 of the consolidated financial statements for further details about financial risk management within CCEP.

(B) These amounts represent the Group's future lease payments including amounts representing interest, obligations related to lease agreements committed to
but not yet commenced and lease payments due under non-cancellable short-term or low value lease agreements.

(C) These amounts represent non-cancellable purchase agreements with various suppliers that are enforceable and legally binding and that specify a fixed or
minimum quantity that we must purchase. All purchases made under these agreements have standard quality and performance criteria. In addition to these
amounts, the Group has outstanding capital expenditure purchase orders of approximately €165 million as at 31 December 2023. The Group also has other
purchase orders raised in the ordinary course of business which are settied in a reasonably short period of time. These are excluded from the table above.
The Group expects that the net cash flows generated from operating activities will be able to meet these liabilities as they fall due

The above table does not include the impact of contractual obligations related to derivative
financial instruments. A table containing this information is presented in Note 26 of the
consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, the exact timing of our tax provisions is not
certain and these have been excluded from the above table. Refer to Note 20 of the
consolidated financial statements for further information.

The above table also does not reflect employee benéfit liabilities of €199 million, which include
current liabilities of €8 million and non-current liabilities of €191 million as at 31 December 2023.
Refer to Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements for further information.
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Properties

The Group’s principal properties include production facilities, distribution and logistics centres, shared service centres, business unit headquarter offices and

corporate offices.
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Great Britain France Belgium/ Luxembourg Netherlands Norway Sweden Germany Iberia Iceland Total
Production facilities®
Leased 1 — — — — — 2 1 — 4
Owned 4 5 3 1 1 1 14 10 2 41
Total 5 3 1 1 1 16 11 2 45
Distribution and logistics facilities
Leased 1 — 1 — 1 — 15 3 — 21
Owned — — — — — — 6 4 — 10
Total 1 — 1 — 1 — 21 7 — 31
Corporate offices and business unit headquarters
Leased 2 1 1 1 — — 1 3 — 9
Owned — — — — — — — — — —
Total 2 1 1 1 — — 1 3 — 9
Australia New Zealand and Pacific Islands Indonesia and Papua New Guinea Total
Production facilities®®)
Leased 10 6 — 16
Owned 4 7 1 22
Total 14 13 1 38
Distribution and logistics facilities
Leased 9 4 9 22
Owned 2 — 3 5
Total 1" 4 12 27
Corporate offices and business unit headquarters
Leased 1 1 1 3
Owned — — — —
Total 1 1 1 3

(A) Al production fadiiies are a combination of production and warehouse facilties.

(B) Production facilities include NARTD, alcoholic beverage and other production facilities.
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The Group uses two shared service centres, both located in Bulgaria.

The Group’s principal properties cover approximately 5.6 million square metres in the aggregate
of which 0.9 million square metres is leased and 4.7 million square metres is owned. The Group
believes that its facilities are adequately utilised and sufficient to meet its present operating
needs.

At 31 December 2023, the Group operated approximately 13,000 vehicles of various types, the
majority of which are leased. The Group also owned approximately 1.4 million pieces of cold
drink equipment, principally coolers and vending machines.

Disclosure controls and procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

The Group maintains “disclosure controls and procedures”, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under
the Exchange Act, which are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarised and
reported within the time periods specified in the US SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to the Group’s management, including the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. The Group’s management, with the participation of the
CEO and CFO, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as at 31 December 2023. Based on that
evaluation, the Group’s CEO and CFO have concluded that the Group’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.
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Management's report on internal control over financial reporting

The Group’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting for the Group, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange
Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the
principal executive and financial officers to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance with IFRS issued by the IASB. The Group’s internal
control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the Group’s
transactions and dispositions of assets; (ii) are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and that receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and the Directors of the Group;
and (jii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use or disposition of the Group’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that internal
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Management, with the participation of the CEO and CFO, assessed the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control over financial reporting as at 31 December 2023, using the criteria set
forth in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management has
determined that the Group’s internal control over financial reporting as at 31 December 2023
was effective. Ernst & Young LLP (EY), the Group’s independent registered public accounting
firm, has issued a report on the Group’s internal control over financial reporting as at

31 December 2023, which is set out on page 161.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There has been no change in the Group’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during 2023 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Group’s internal control over financial reporting.

Auditor’s fees and services

The Audit Committee has established policies and procedures for the engagement of the
independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP (Auditor Firm ID: 1438), to
render audit, and, audit-related assurance services, other assurance services and other
services. The policies provide for

pre-approval by the Audit Committee of specifically defined audit, audit-related, tax and other
services that are not prohibited by regulatory or other professional requirements. EY is engaged
for these services when its expertise and experience of CCEP are important. Most of this work is
of an audit nature.
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Under the policy, pre-approval is given for specific services within the following categories:
advice on accounting, auditing and financial reporting matters; internal accounting and risk
management control reviews (excluding any services relating to information systems design and
implementation); non-statutory audit; project assurance and advice on business and accounting
process improvement (excluding any services relating to information systems design and
implementation relating to CCEP’s financial statements or accounting records); due diligence in
connection with acquisitions, disposals and arrangements in which two or more parties have joint
control (excluding valuation or involvement in prospective financial information); income tax and
indirect tax compliance and advisory services; employee tax services (excluding tax services
that could impair independence); provision of, or access to, EY publications, workshops,
seminars and other training materials; provision of reports from data gathered on non-financial
policies and information; and assistance with understanding non-financial regulatory requirements.

The Audit Committee evaluates the performance of the auditor each year.

The Committee keeps under review the scope and results of audit work and the independence
and objectivity of the auditor. External regulation and CCEP policy require the auditor to rotate its
lead audit partner every five years. The audit fees payable to EY are reviewed by the Committee
for cost effectiveness each year. Details of fees for services provided by the auditor are provided
in Note 17 of

the consolidated financial statements.
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Exhibits

The following documents, which form a part of this Annual Report on Form 20-F, have been filed with the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) via its EDGAR system and can be viewed
on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov

Exhibit 1 Articles of Association of CCEP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CCEP’s Form 6-K
filed with the SEC on May 30, 2019).

Exhibit 2 Description of rights attached to each class of CCEP securities registered under Section 12 of
the Exchange Act as at 31 December 2023.

Exhibit 3 Shareholders’ Agreement by and among the Company, Olive Partners, S.A., European
Refreshments, Coca-Cola GmbH and Vivaga Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. KG (incorporated by
reference to Annex C to the proxy statement/prospectus contained in CCEP’s Form F-4/A
registration statement filed with the SEC on April 11, 2016).

Exhibit ~ Form of Bottler's Agreement entered into between The Coca-Cola Company and the bottling
4.1 subsidiaries of CCEP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Form F-4/A
registration statement filed with the SEC on April 7, 2016).

Exhibit ~ Coca-Cola European Partners plc Long-Term Incentive Plan 2016 (incorporated by reference to
4.2 Exhibit 4.1 to CCEP’s Form S-8 registration statement filed with the SEC on June 1, 2016).

Exhibit ~ Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
4.3 Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form 6-K filed with the SEC on April 12, 2023).

Exhibit  Rules of the Coca-Cola Enterprises Belgium/Coca-Cola Enterprises Services Belgian and

4.4 Luxembourg Share Savings Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to CCEP’s Form S-8
registration statement filed with the SEC on June 1, 2016).

Exhibit  Trust Deed and Rules of Coca-Cola Enterprises UK Share Plan (incorporated by reference to

45 Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Form S-8 registration statement filed with the SEC on June 1,
2016).

Exhibit  The Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc. 2010 Incentive Award Plan (as amended Effective February 7,
4.6 2012) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc.’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on February 9, 2012).

Exhibit  Deed of Assumption and Replacement relating to Equity Awards of Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc.
4.7 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on
Form S-8 to Form F-4 registration statement filed with the SEC on June 1, 2016).

Exhibit 8 List of Subsidiaries of the Company (included in Note 28 of the consolidated financial statements
in this Annual Report on Form 20-F).

Exhibit  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Damian Gammell.

121

Exhibit  Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Nik Jhangiani.
12.2

Exhibit 13 Rule 13a-14(b) Certifications.

Exhibit  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, UK.
15.1

Exhibit 97 Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc Policy on Recoupment of Incentive Compensation (approved
by the Board on 18 October 2023).

Exhibit

101.INS  XBRL Instance Document.

Exhibit

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

Exhibit

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

Exhibit

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

Exhibit

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

Exhibit

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

The total amount of long-term debt securities issued by the Company or any subsidiary under any one instrument which requires filing consolidated or unconsolidated financial statements does not
exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The Company agrees to furnish a copy of any long-term debt security instrument which requires filing
consolidated or unconsolidated financial statements to the SEC on request.


https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000165010719000070/cceparticlesofassociatio.htm
https://reportify-1252068037.cos.ap-beijing.myqcloud.com/report/clean/exhibit22023.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000119312516536529/d42920df4a.htm#rom42920_143
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000119312516533777/d42920dex107.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000119312516610058/d189220dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000165010723000028/a230406-ccepxltiprules_f.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000119312516610058/d189220dex43.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000119312516610058/d189220dex42.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1491675/000149167512000013/feb92012ex.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1650107/000119312516610063/d189272dex43.htm
https://reportify-1252068037.cos.ap-beijing.myqcloud.com/report/clean/exhibit1212023.htm
https://reportify-1252068037.cos.ap-beijing.myqcloud.com/report/clean/exhibit1222023.htm
https://reportify-1252068037.cos.ap-beijing.myqcloud.com/report/clean/exhibit132023.htm
https://reportify-1252068037.cos.ap-beijing.myqcloud.com/report/clean/exhibit151eylondon2023.htm
https://reportify-1252068037.cos.ap-beijing.myqcloud.com/report/clean/exhibit972023.htm
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Signatures

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and
that it has duly caused and authorised the undersigned to sign the Annual Report on Form 20-F
on its behalf.

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
/s/ Damian Gammell
Damian Gammell

Chief Executive Officer
15 March 2024
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Glossary

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms have the meanings shown below.

2010 Plan
AEV
the Acquisition

AFH
AGM

Al
API
APS

ARR

ARTD
Articles
ATC
B2B
BCP
Board
BPF
BU

Capex
CCE or Coca-Cola Enterprises

CCBPI
CCBPI acquisition

CCEG or Coca-Cola
Erfrischungsgetrénke

CCE 2010 Incentive Award Plan
Aboitiz Equity Ventures Inc.

under the binding offer made in November 2020, revised in February
2021, acquiring the entire issued share capital of

Coca-Cola Amatil Limited from The Coca-Cola Company, under the terms
of a Co-operation and Sale Deed, and from shareholders other than The
Coca-Cola Company, effected

by means of a scheme of arrangement

Away from home channel
Annual General Meeting

artificial intelligence

Australia, Pacific and Indonesia region incorporating Coca-Cola Amatil
Limited and its subsidiaries and business unit

Australia, Pacific and South East Asia region and renamed API business
unit following the CCBPI acquisition

Annual report on remuneration

alcoholic ready to drink
Articles of Association of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

Affiliated Transaction Committee

business to business

business continuity planning

Board of Directors of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

Business Performance Factor
a business unit of the Group

capital expenditure
Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc.

Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines, Inc.

acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages Philippines, Inc. jointly with Aboitiz
Equity Ventures Inc. (AEV) from The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC)
resulting in a 60:40 ownership structure between CCEP and AEV which
completed on 23 February 2024

Coca-Cola Erfrischungsgetranke GmbH (which changed its name to
Coca-Cola European Partners Deutschland GmbH from 22 August 2016)

CCEP or the Group

CCEP LTIP
CCIP or Coca-Cola Iberian
Partners
CCL

Ccco

CDE

CDP
CDSP
CEO

CFO
Chairman
CcGuU

clo

CISO
Cobega

CoC

Coca-Cola system

the Code
CODM

Committee(s)

Committee Chairman/Chairmen

or Chair
Committee member(s)

Companies Act

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc (registered in England and Wales
number 709717350) and its subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings from
time to time

CCEP Long-Term Incentive Plan 2016

Coca-Cola Iberian Partners, S.A. (which changed its name to Coca-Cola
European Partners Iberia S.L.U. from 1 January 2017)

Coca-Cola Amatil Limited

Chief Compliance Officer

cold drink equipment

formerly Carbon Disclosure Project, name shortened to CDP in 2013
Customer Demand and Supply Planning

Chief Executive Officer (of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc)
Chief Financial Officer (of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc)

the Chairman of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

cash generating unit

Chief Information Officer (of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners pic)
Chief Information Security Officer (of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc)
Cobega, S.A.

Code of Conduct

comprises The Coca-Cola Company and around 225 bottling partners
worldwide

UK Corporate Governance Code 2018

chief operating decision maker

the five Committees with delegated authority from the Board: the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination, Environmental, Social and Governance and
Affiliated Transaction Committees

the Chairman/Chairmen of the Committee(s)

member(s) of the Committees

the UK Companies Act 2006, as amended

Company or Parent Company Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
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Company Secretary
COVID-19 (also pandemic)
CRC

Deloitte

Director(s)

DNV
DRS

DTC
DTRs

EBITDA
EEA

EcoVadis
EFSA
EIR

EPS
ERA
ERM

ESG
EWRA
ESPP
EU

European Refreshments or ER

Exchange Act

Executive Leadership Team
or ELT

EY

FAWVA
FCPA

FLAG
FMCG
FSC

Company Secretary (of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc)

the Coronavirus-19 pandemic, from March 2020

Compliance and Risk Committee, a management committee chaired by
the Chief Compliance Officer

Deloitte LLP
a (the) Director(s) of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

international accredited registrar and classification society
deposit return scheme(s)

Depository Trust Company

the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the UK Financial
Conduct Authority

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

European Economic Area

provider of business sustainability ratings
European Food Safety Authority
effective interest rate

earnings per share
enterprise risk assessment
enterprise risk management

Environmental, Social and Governance

Enterprise Water Risk Assessment

Global Employee Share Purchase Plan

European Union

European Refreshments Unlimited Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of TCCC

the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934

the CEO and his senior leadership direct reports

Ernst & Young LLP

Facility Water Vulnerability Assessment
US Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977

Forest, Land and Agriculture

fast moving consumer goods
Forest Stewardship Council
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FPI

FRC

Fxor FX
GAAP

GB
GB Scheme

GHG
Group or CCEP

HMRC
IAS
IASB
IBR

ID&E
IEA

IFRIC
IFRS
INEDs
IPCC

IPF

IRC

IRS

ISAE 3000
ISO

1ISO 14001
I1SO 22301
IT

KORE
KPI
Leadership locations
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foreign private issuer, a term that applies to a company under the rules of
the Nasdaq Stock Exchange that is not a domestic US company

the Financial Reporting Council

Foreign exchange
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Great Britain
the Great Britain defined benefit pension plan

greenhouse gas

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc and its subsidiaries and subsidiary
undertakings from time to time

Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, the UK’s tax authority
International Accounting Standards

International Accounting Standards Board

incremental borrowing rate

Inclusion, Diversity & Equity
International Energy Agency

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
International Financial Reporting Standards

Independent Non-executive Directors of
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
Individual Performance Factor

the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended

US Internal Revenue Service

International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
International Organization for Standardization

International standard for environmental management systems
International standard for Business Continuity and Resilience
information technology

The Coca-Cola Operating Requirements
key performance indicator

NARTD Production Facilities which rely on vulnerable water sources or
have high water dependancy
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LGBTQ+

Listing Rules or LRs
LSE

LTI

LTIP

LTIR
M&A
Merger

NARTD

Nasdaq
Nasdaq Rules
NEDs

NGO

OcCl

OFAC
Official List

Olive Partners

Opex

Packageless

Pack mix

Parent Company or Company

Paris Agreement

pertaining collectively to people who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, or
transgender, and to people who identify as queer or with gender
expressions outside perceived societal norms, including non-binary,
intersex and questioning of their gender identity and/or sexual orientation,
along with their allies

the Listing Rules of the UK Financial Conduct Authority
London Stock Exchange

long-term incentive

Long-Term Incentive Plan

lost time incident rate
merger and acquisition(s)

the formation of Coca-Cola European Partners plc on 28 May 2016
through the combination of the businesses of Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc.,
Coca-Cola Iberian Partners, S.A. and Coca-Cola Erfrischungsgetréanke
GmbH

non-alcoholic ready to drink

The Nasdaq Stock Market
the corporate governance rules of Nasdaq
Non-executive Directors of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc

non-governmental organisation
other comprehensive income
Office of Foreign Assets Control of the US Department of the Treasury

the Official List is the list maintained by the Financial Conduct Authority of
securities issued by companies for the purpose of those securities being
traded on a UK regulated market such as London Stock Exchange

Olive Partners, S.A.

operating expenditure

Dispensed solutions for serving drinks without packaging such as fountain
or Coca-Cola Freestyle

the packaging portfolio mix of beverages
Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
the agreement on climate change resulting from UN COP21, the UN

Climate Change Conference, also known as the 2015 Paris Climate
Conference
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Partnership

Pension Plan 1 and
Pension Plan 2

PET
PFIC
PRN

PSA
PSU

RAS
RGB
ROIC

rPET

RSP
RTD
RSU

S&P
SBTi
SDG
SDRT
SEC
SGP
Shares
SID
SKU
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the partnership agreement entered into between the Group, the GB
Scheme and CCEP Scottish Limited Partnership to support a long-term
funding arrangement

the Germany defined benefit pension plans
polyethylene terephthalate

passive foreign investment company
packaging recovery notes

Principles of Sustainable Agriculture
performance share unit

Risk appetite statement
returnable/refillable glass bottle
return on invested capital

recycled PET

CCEP’s Responsible Sourcing Policy, launched in 2022
ready to drink
restricted stock unit

Standard & Poor’s

Science Based Targets initiative

UN Sustainable Development Goals

stamp duty reserve tax

Securities and Exchange Commission of the US

Supplier Guiding Principles

ordinary shares of €0.01 each of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
Senior Independent Director

stock keeping unit

SOX or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

the Spanish Stock Exchanges
SPO

SSPs
SVA

TCCC

the Barcelona, Bilbao, Madrid and Valencia Stock Exchanges
CCEP’s Sustainable Packaging Office

shared socioeconomic pathways
source water vulnerability assessment

The Coca-Cola Company
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TCCF
TCFD

TIR
TSR

UK Accounting Standards
UKBA
UNESDA

UN
unit case

VAT

WBCSD
WEEE

WHO
WMP
WRI

WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol or

GHG Protocol

The Coca-Cola Foundation
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures

total incident rate
total shareholder return

Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board
UK Bribery Act 2010
Union of European Soft Drinks Associations

United Nations

approximately 5.678 litres or 24 eight ounce servings, a typical volume
measurement unit

value added tax

World Business Council for Sustainable Development
EU Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

World Health Organisation
water management plan
World Resources Institute

the GHG Protocol is the internationally recognised, standard framework
for measuring greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from private and public
sector operations and their value chains
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Registered office

Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc
Pemberton House

Bakers Road

Uxbridge

UBS8 1EZ

Registered in England and Wales
Company number: 09717350

+44 (0)1895 231313

Share registration

Further Sustainability
Information

US shareholders: Shareholders in Europe and outside the US:
Computershare Computershare

150 Royall Street The Pavilions

Canton Bridgwater Road

MA 02021 Bristol

1-800-418-4223 BS99 622

+44 (0)370 702 0003

Report ordering

Shareholders who would like a paper copy of the Integrated Report, which will be despatched on or around 10 April 2024,
can make their request by post to the Company Secretary, Pemberton House, Bakers Road, Uxbridge UB8 1EZ, United
Kingdom or by making a request via ir.cocacolaep.com/financial-reports-and-results/integrated-reports or by sending an
email to sendmaterial@proxyvote.com or by making a request via www.proxyvote.com or by phoning (in the US) 1-800-

579-1639 or (outside the US) +1-800-579-1639 quoting their 16 digit control number.

Agent for service of process in the US

The Corporation Trust Company
Corporation Trust Center

1209 Orange Street
Wilmington, DE 19801
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Forward-looking statements

This document contains statements, estimates or projections that constitute “forward-looking
statements” concerning the financial condition, performance, results, guidance and outlook,
dividends, consequences of mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures, and divestitures, including the
joint venture with Aboitiz Equity Ventures Inc. (AEV) and acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages
Philippines, Inc. (CCBPI), strategy and objectives of Coca-Cola Europacific Partners plc and its
subsidiaries (together CCEP or the Group). Generally, the words “ambition”, “target”, “aim”,
“believe”, “expect’, “intend”, “estimate”, “anticipate”, “project”, “plan”, “seek”, “may”, “could”,
“would”, “should”, “might”, “will”, “forecast”, “outlook”, “guidance”, “possible”, “potential”, “predict’,
“objective” and similar expressions identify

forward-looking statements, which generally are not historical in nature.

Forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks that could cause actual results to differ
materially from CCEP’s historical experience and present expectations or projections. As a
result, undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements, which speak only as
of the date on which they are made. These risks include but are not limited to:

1. those set forth in the “Risk Factors” section of this 2023 Annual Report on
Form 20-F;

2. risks and uncertainties relating to the global supply chain and distribution, including impact
from war in Ukraine and increasing geopolitical tensions and conflicts including in the Middle
East and Asia Pacific region, such as the risk that the business will not be able to guarantee

sufficient supply of raw materials, supplies, finished goods, natural gas and oil and increased
state-sponsored cyber risks;

3. risks and uncertainties relating to the global economy and/or a potential recession in one or
more countries, including risks from elevated inflation, price increases, price elasticity,
disposable income of consumers and employees, pressure on and from suppliers, increased
fraud, and the perception or manifestation of a global economic downturn;

4. risks and uncertainties relating to potential global energy crisis, with potential interruptions and

shortages in the global energy supply, specifically the natural gas supply in our territories.
Energy shortages at our sites, our suppliers and customers could cause interruptions to our
supply chain and capability to meet our production and distribution targets;

5. risks and uncertainties relating to potential water use reductions due to regulations by national

and regional authorities leading to a potential temporary decrease in production volume; and
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6. risks and uncertainties relating to the integration and operation of the joint venture with AEV
and acquisition of CCBPI, including the risk that our integration of CCBPI’s business and
operations may not be successful or may be more difficult, time consuming or costly than
expected.

Due to these risks, CCEP’s actual future financial condition, results of operations, and business
activities, including its results, dividend payments, capital and leverage ratios, growth, including
growth in revenue, cost of sales per unit case and operating profit, free cash flow, market share,
tax rate, efficiency savings, achievement of sustainability goals, including Net Zero emissions
and recycling initiatives, capital expenditures, our agreements relating to and results of the joint
venture with AEV and acquisition of CCBPI, and ability to remain in compliance with existing and
future regulatory compliance, may differ materially from the plans, goals, expectations and
guidance set out in forward-looking statements. These risks may also adversely affect CCEP’s
share price. Additional risks that may impact CCEP’s future financial condition and performance
are identified in filings with the SEC which are available on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.
CCEP does not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, except as
required under applicable rules, laws and regulations. Any or all of the forward-looking
statements contained in this filing and in any other of CCEP’s public statements may prove to be
incorrect.
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